
 
 

 
Tuesday, 17 November 2020 
 

 

Trafford Town Hall 
Talbot Road 
Stretford 
M32 0TH 

 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Your attendance is requested at the ANNUAL MEETING of the Council of the Borough 
of Trafford on WEDNESDAY, 25 NOVEMBER 2020, at 7.00 P.M. which will be held as 
a VIRTUAL MEETING, for the transaction of the business set out below.  
 
Please Note: Members of the public may view the meeting via the following link: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg 
 
  Pages  

1.  Election of Mayor and Chair of Council   
 
To elect the Mayor to serve until the Annual Council in May 2022, who will be 
Chair of Council until that time and receive notification of the appointment of 
the Mayoress. 
 

 

2.  Appointment of Deputy Mayor and Vice-Chair of Council   
 
To elect the Deputy Mayor to serve until the Annual Council in May 2022, 
who will be Vice-Chair of Council until that time and receive notification of the 
appointment of the Mayoress. 
 

 

3.  Vote of Thanks   
 
A vote of thanks to the retiring Mayor and Mayoress. 
 

 

4.  Minutes   
 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held 
on 30 September 2020, for signature by the Mayor as Chair of the Council. 
 

 

5.  Leader of the Council and Membership of the Executive   
 
To note the Leader of the Council’s continuing term of office and note that the 
Leader will appoint the membership of the Cabinet and a Deputy Leader. 
 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg


Annual Meeting of the Council - Wednesday, 25 November 2020 
   

 

6.  Shadow Executive   
 
To note the membership of the Shadow Executive. 
 

 

7.  Council Committees   
 
To receive a report on the Committees of the Council, their composition, 
membership and terms of reference for the remainder of the 2020/21 
Municipal Year. 
 

 

8.  Appointments to Outside and Independent Bodies   
 
To receive a report on Council appointments to outside and independent 
bodies for the remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 

 

9.  Timetable of Council and Committee Meetings   
 
To reconfirm the timetable of meetings agreed by Council on 30 September 
2020, for the remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal Year with the addition of an 
Annual Meeting on 26 May 2021 at 6.00 p.m. and to note that as from 1 
January 2021 it is proposed that all meetings will commence as set out in the 
Constitution. 
 

 

10.  Delegated Decisions and Urgent Action for Committees   
 
To approve the following arrangements for dealing with delegated decisions 
and urgent action: 
 
(a) Delegated Decisions 
 
That where, under the approved scheme of delegation, decisions may be 
taken by Officers in consultation with non-Executive Members then in the 
absence of any specific arrangements having been made, the Officer shall 
consult the appropriate Chair, Vice-Chair and Opposition Spokesperson. 
 
(b) Urgent Action  
 
That, in situations which require emergency action the Chief Executive or the 
appropriate Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the 
Committee concerned and the Opposition Spokesperson where appropriate 
(or their respective nominees), be authorised to deal from this date until the 
Annual Meeting of the Council in 2021, with any matters of urgency or any 
other matter that cannot conveniently be deferred to the next ordinary 
meeting of the Committee, subject to later report for information, to the 
Committee in question. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Annual Meeting of the Council - Wednesday, 25 November 2020 
   

 

11.  Delegation of Functions and Amendments to the Constitution   
 
To receive the following reports of the Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy and Monitoring Officer: 
 

 

(a)   Delegation of Functions   
 

 

(b)   Trafford's Constitutional Changes in Response to the Local 
Government Ethical Standards Areas of Best Practice Published by the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life in January 2019   
 

 

12.  Report on Special Urgency Decisions   
 
To note any decisions taken under special urgency provisions. 
 

 

Yours sincerely,  

 
SARA TODD 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Council 
 
Councillors R. Chilton (Mayor), L. Walsh (Deputy Mayor), D. Acton, S. Adshead, 
A. Akinola, S.B. Anstee, Dr. K. Barclay, J. Bennett, Miss L. Blackburn, C. Boyes, 
J. E. Brophy, B. Brotherton, D. Bunting, D. Butt, T. Carey, Dr. S. Carr, K.G. Carter, 
C.H. Churchill, G. Coggins, M. Cordingley, J. Dillon, A. Duffield, N. Evans, M. Freeman, 
Mrs. D.L. Haddad, J. Harding, B. Hartley, J. Holden, C. Hynes, D. Jarman, D. Jerrome, 
P. Lally, J. Lamb, J. Lloyd, S. Longden, M. Minnis, A. Mitchell, D. Morgan, P. Myers, 
A. New, J.D. Newgrosh, E. Patel, K. Procter, S.B. Procter, B. Rigby, T. Ross, B. Shaw, 
J. Slater, E.W. Stennett, S. Taylor, S. Thomas, R. Thompson, M.J. Welton, A. Western, 
D. Western, G. Whitham, A.M. Whyte, A.J. Williams, B.G. Winstanley, J.A. Wright and 
Mrs. P. Young 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Ian Cockill, Governance Officer 
Tel: 0161 912 1387 
Email: ian.cockill@trafford.gov.uk  
 
This Summons was issued on Tuesday, 17 November 2020 by the Legal and 
Democratic Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, 
Stretford M32 0TH 
 
 
1. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

30 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 

PRESENT  
 
The Worshipful the Mayor (Councillor Rob Chilton), in the Chair. 
 
L. Walsh (Deputy Mayor) 
D. Acton 
S. Adshead 
A. Akinola 
S.B. Anstee 
Dr. K. Barclay 
J. Bennett 
Miss L. Blackburn 
C. Boyes 
J. E. Brophy 
B. Brotherton 
D. Bunting 
D. Butt 
Dr. S. Carr 
K.G. Carter 
C.H. Churchill 
G. Coggins 
M. Cordingley 
J. Dillon 
 

A. Duffield 
N. Evans 
M. Freeman 
Mrs. D.L. Haddad 
J. Harding 
B. Hartley 
J. Holden 
C. Hynes 
D. Jarman 
D. Jerrome 
P. Lally 
J. Lloyd 
M. Minnis 
A. Mitchell 
D. Morgan 
P. Myers 
A. New 
J.D. Newgrosh 
E. Patel 
 

K. Procter 
S.B. Procter 
T. Ross 
B. Shaw 
J. Slater 
S. Taylor 
S. Thomas 
R. Thompson 
M.J. Welton 
A. Western 
D. Western 
G. Whitham 
A.M. Whyte 
A.J. Williams 
B.G. Winstanley 
J.A. Wright 
Mrs. P. Young 
 

In  attendance 
 
Chief Executive  S. Todd 
Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy 
J. Le Fevre 

Governance Manager J. Addison 
Governance Officer F. Fuschi 
Senior Governance Officer I. Cockill 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors T. Carey, J. Lamb, 
S. Longden, B. Rigby and E.W. Stennett. 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 18 March 2020 and the 
Extraordinary Meetings of the Council held on 15 May 2020 and 14 July 2020, be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



  2 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
(a) Mayoral Engagements 
 
The Mayor announced that on behalf of the Council he had attended a wreath 
laying ceremony at Sale War Memorial to commemorate the 75th anniversary of 
VJ Day. The Mayor also informed the Council that along with the Mayoress, 
Deputy Mayor and Deputy Mayoress he had also attended the 80th 
commemoration of the Battle of Britain again at Sale War Memorial. Both had 
been particularly moving and well received given the current pandemic 
restrictions.   
 
(b) Altrincham Football Club 
 
Acknowledging that it was the first meeting to allow the Council to recognise the 
club’s achievements in the summer, the Mayor conveyed congratulations to 
Altrincham Football Club on promotion to the National League after the team’s 
victories in the play-offs. 
 
(c) Budget Scrutiny 
 
Councillor Acton, the Chair of the Pandemic Scrutiny Committee informed the 
Council that two budget scrutiny meetings were to be held to consider the 
Executive’s budget proposals and that all Members were welcome to participate in 
due course. 
 

5. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS  
 
The Mayor reported that 5 questions had been received under Procedure Rule 
10.2. 
 
(a) Councillor Myers asked the following question for which he had given notice: 
 

“The Council has agreed to borrow up to half a billion pounds to invest in 
properties that will generate revenue and support regeneration.  Most of the 
investment has been pre-Covid and much of the investment has been in 
retail premises which are now worth considerably less than the price paid. In 
addition, the empty retail premises have left a shortfall in revenue. 
 
Would the Executive Member for Finance and Investment outline the 
strategy to mitigate the losses?” 

 
Indicating that a full written response had been provided to Members and was 
available on the Council’s website, the Mayor invited Councillor Ross, Executive 
Member for Finance and Investment to respond. 
 
Councillor Ross advised that all the Council’s investments had been made in 
accordance with the agreed investment strategy and were monitored closely with 
regular updates provided to the Investment Management Board.  The range of 
investments was both diverse across a number of sectors and comprised a mix of 

Page 2



  3 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

investments including directly acquired assets and provision of development debt. 
Of the amounts invested at the end of 2019/20 approximately 25% had a direct 
retail exposure and one quarter of that was invested in supermarkets. Real estate 
valuations would rise and fall over time with the normal market cycles. However, 
as the Council is a long-term investor, portfolio income levels were more 
significant than “on paper” value. Investments provided an important revenue 
stream for Council services and were estimated to generate a nett income of £7.4 
million in the current financial year.  
 
Councillor Myers asked as a supplementary question whether the Executive 
Member could assure the Council that the £3.9 million reserve was enough to 
safeguard the Council’s investments in the falling retail market. Councillor Ross 
advised that the Council’s reserves were continuously under review and that 
consideration was being given to increasing the reserve set aside for the 
Investment Strategy. At this point in time, he assured the Council that the matter 
was subject to further review and if, at any time in the future, the position needed 
to be reviewed it would be.   
 
(b) Councillor Coggins asked the following question for which she had given 

notice: 
 

“Does the council agree that 2 years is not an appropriate timescale for an 
emergency response, like the climate emergency report and draft action plan 
we have had this week?” 

 
Councillor Adshead, the Executive Member for Environment, Air Quality and 
Climate Change advised that Trafford was one of the first Council’s to declare a 
climate emergency and addressing the challenge was not a simple task nor could 
it be achieved alone requiring the support of Trafford businesses, communities 
and residents. External experts were commissioned to support the development of 
a framework and their report was well received and approved at the Executive 
Meeting on 28 September 2020, with the target of achieving carbon neutrality by 
2028. It should be noted that their work would have concluded earlier if it had not 
been for the consequences of the Covid-19 Pandemic. 
 
The importance of meeting the climate challenge was recognised by the Council 
as a corporate priority and the Council had brought forward initiatives to reduce 
carbon useage and proposals for sustainable development which all demonstrated 
the Council’s commitment to addressing the climate emergency. Now the 
framework had been agreed, Councillor Adshead looked forward to working 
across the Council and with partners to deliver these ambitious plans. 
 
As a supplementary question, Councillor Coggins asked whether the Executive 
had truly grasped the extent of the challenge facing us and the implications for us 
all if we fail. Councillor Adshead recognised that there was a lot of work to be done 
and that the task was to set up the various groups and forums, as a matter of 
urgency, with Councillors, businesses and communities and alongside Trafford’s 
involvement at a Greater Manchester level, the work had begun. 
 

Page 3



  4 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

(c) Councillor Newgrosh asked the following question for which he had given 
notice: 

 
“With the first anniversary of Trafford Council’s Empty Homes Policy upon 
us, can we please be informed exactly how many long term empty homes 
have been brought back into use by this initiative, and what the current 
number of long term empty homes currently stand at?” 

 
Responding to the question, Councillor Wright, the Executive Member for Housing 
and Regeneration reported that the first stage in the implementation of the 
strategy was to assess the number of long term empty properties within the 
borough which would require further investigation. The number of properties which 
met the criteria was 487 as of June 2020 and after a further detailed investigation 
of the properties confirmed 445 properties being empty over 2 years with no 
explanation or no detailed plans of bringing them back into use. A risk assessment 
has been developed and investigations are ongoing with 63 undertaken by 30 
September 2020. The availability of small loans of up to £10,000 has been 
communicated to the owners of empty properties on a regular basis over several 
years, however, uptake has been low with 2 properties being brought back into 
use in 2019/20 using this financial assistance. Part of the strategy is to identify 
why uptake of the assistance was so low. The first yearly review of the Empty 
Properties Strategy would be undertaken in November 2020 and a further update 
at that stage can be provided. 
 
As a supplementary question Councillor Newgrosh queried the means as to how 
the figure of over 700 properties listed in the Strategy as long-term empty homes 
had been reduced. Confirming the figure as 445, Councillor Wright advised that 
whilst 2 had come back into use using the assistance scheme, the Council was 
investigating and visiting properties over a period of time to assess them in more 
detail and any criticism would be unfair given the world crisis that year with 
resources being diverted to other affairs in the Council and the increased difficulty 
of undertaking visits. The Executive Member assured Councillor Newgrosh that it 
was a priority and in better times hoped to improve the rate of performance but 
given the current restrictions, it would be difficult to push matters to a greater 
degree than what they were. 
 
(d) Councillor Brophy asked the following question for which she had given 

notice: 
 

“What additional services can Trafford provide for people experiencing 
mental health challenges during covid, whether that be exacerbation of 
previous issues or needs that have arisen as a result of covid itself such as 
ongoing or worsening physical health issues, unemployment, isolation, 
depression or loneliness?” 

 
The Mayor advised that a full written response had been provided to Members and 
was available on the Council’s website and invited Councillor Slater, Executive 
Member for Health, Wellbeing and Equalities to respond.  
 

Page 4



  5 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

Indicating that the written response was quite detailed, Councillor Slater wished to 
draw attention to a range of virtual and telephone meeting platforms provided for 
those wishing to access additional services as well as the usual mental health 
services delivered by the borough’s service providers. With regard to those issues 
directly that have directly arisen from the pandemic, Trafford Psychological 
Therapies Services have provided services for people to speak about loneliness, 
unemployment, stress, sleep disturbance and the trauma of domestic violence.  
 
Throughout the pandemic, the Primary Care Mental Health and Wellbeing Service 
had worked closely with the volunteer hubs in the neighbourhoods providing 
support and taking referrals via the hubs, with Blusci, one of the Council’s 
commissioned providers offering additional support. The Approved Mental Health 
Professionals service continued to operate, whilst TES (adult autism and ADHD 
diagnostic services) and MATS (Memory assessment team services) which were 
initially pared back in order to support core services, have now been stepped back 
up and were running as normal. 
 
The Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust operated a 24 hour 
helpline for service users and carers and the Executive Member conveyed the 
telephone number 08009 530285 to all Members in case residents were to contact 
them. 
 
Councillor Brophy asked as a supplementary question whether the Council was 
confident that these needs could be met in unprecedented times with all the 
additional challenges to funding, pressures on other services and people being 
deployed elsewhere. Councillor Slater advised that staff had been deployed in 
other areas to support Covid on the frontline but as hospitals had been able to 
discharge people from Covid wards, people had been able to move back to their 
own jobs and staff were now back in situ. From the comments she had received 
from staff and residents, the Executive Member did feel confident that both the 
authority and the NHS were providing as much as they could considering the 
budget pressures and conveyed thanks to all the staff involved in these services 
for their amazing work.  
 
(e) Councillor Miss Blackburn asked the following question for which she had 

given notice: 
 

"Would the Executive Member for Environment, Air Quality and Climate 
Change inform me as to the legal maximum width of cycle lanes and if 
advance notice of them on roads needs to be given to road users?" 
 

The Mayor advised that a full written response had been provided to Members and 
was available on the Council’s website and invited Councillor Adshead, Executive 
Member for Environment, Air Quality and Climate Change to respond.  
 
Councillor Adshead advised that there was no legal maximum width for cycle 
lanes. If a highway authority made a decision to have a whole carriageway 
dedicated to cycles only, it could do so by introducing a prohibition of motor 
vehicles or pedestrian and cycle zones, etc., and these were usually enforced with 
signs or physical measures. Although there was no legal maximum width there 

Page 5



  6 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

was a legal minimum width for cycle lanes which was defined by the Department 
for Transport (Dft). The Executive Member also confirmed that in accordance with 
DfT guidance there were no advanced cycle lane signs permitted to be used on 
the highway. 
 
Councillor Miss Blackburn asked as a supplementary question for the Executive 
Member to specify what safeguards are being undertaken to ensure at road 
junctions, where there are cycle lanes, that safety is prioritised for all road users, 
as at present the pop-up cycle lane on the A56 had created hazards. On that 
particular issue, Councillor Adshead reported the Council was working closely with 
Transport for Greater Manchester and was receiving regular updates. In addition, 
the Council’s own team was regularly reviewing the situation and responding to 
issues that had arisen or had been raised with them. Should there be any further 
concerns or issues with other locations, Councillor Adshead asked Members to 
advise and they would be investigated. 
 

6. COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS - ARRANGEMENTS, FORMAT AND 
TIMETABLE  
 
The Executive Member for Public Safety, Governance and Reform submitted a 
report presenting the Constitution Working Group’s recommendations regarding 
the continued arrangements for Council and Committee meetings which had been 
introduced in response to the Coronavirus Pandemic. 
 
The report’s recommendations were moved and seconded and after a debate 
were put to the vote and declared carried. 
 

RESOLVED: That, subject to confirmation of the Planning and Development 
Control Committee start time and a change to the Committee’s meeting date 
from 8 to 15 October 2020, the Council agrees to adopt the Constitution 
Working Group’s recommendations, as set out below, for Council and 
Committee meetings for the period October 2020 to the end of December 
2020: 

 
(1) That the Draft Calendar of Meetings for the period October 2020 to May 

2021, as set out in the Appendix 1, be approved. 
 
(2) That the Council’s meetings should continue to be held virtually and at 

the earlier time start time of 4.00 p.m. and be concluded by 6.00 p.m. at 
the latest, with the exception of the full Council meetings in September, 
October and November, which will be at the usual time of 7.00 p.m. and 
meetings of the Planning and Development Committee which will 
continue to be held at 4.00 p.m. and continue until 6.30 p.m. 

 
(3) That the arrangements agreed by Council on 15 May 2020  in relation 

to the Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee and the suspension of the 
other Scrutiny Committees be extended until the end of 2020. 

 

Page 6



  7 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

(4) That Council re-affirms the extension of the 6 month attendance rule for 
Members unable to attend meetings whilst alternative arrangements are 
in place as agreed by Council on 15 May 2020. 

 
(5) That the Constitution Working Group reviews the position again in 

December 2020 and that a more in depth review of the impact of these 
arrangements on the efficacy of meetings and on members, including 
possible alternative options, be conducted and submitted to inform the 
review in December. 

 
7. ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL 

2019/20  
 
The Chair of the Accounts and Audit Committee for 2019/20 submitted to the 
Council a report setting out the Committee’s Annual Report for 2019/20. The 
Annual Report which had been presented to the Accounts and Audit Committee 
on 15 July 2020 summarised the work undertaken by the Committee during the 
year and its impact and also provided assurance to the Council on the fulfilment of 
the Committee’s responsibilities. 
 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

8. YEAR END CORPORATE REPORT ON HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING - 
1 APRIL 2019 TO 31 MARCH 2020  
 
The Executive Member for Finance and Investment submitted a report providing 
information on council wide health and safety performance and trends in 
workplace accidents. The report also provided a summary of other key 
developments in health and safety for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 
 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

9. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE LABOUR GROUP - DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 
(DEFERRED FROM THE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 18 MARCH 2020)  
 
It was moved and seconded that: 
 

“This Council fully supports the Trafford Partnerships Domestic Violence and 
Abuse Strategy and recognises that the Domestic Abuse Bill has been finally 
brought to Parliament almost three years after it was first promised. This 
legislation is welcome and urgently needed, but will only be effective if it is 
underpinned by sustainable funding for specialist women’s services.  
  
This Council notes that: 
 
Trafford Council strives to have a zero tolerance approach towards domestic 
violence and abuse. Domestic abuse is a complex social issue which affects 
people from all groups, genders and cultures and impacts across all 
services. However, it is important to recognise that Domestic Abuse is a 
gendered crime. The Office of National Statistics states that whilst 2 million 

Page 7



  8 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

adults aged 16-59 experienced domestic abuse last year, 1.6 million of these 
are women. Almost one in three women will experience domestic abuse in 
their lifetime, and two women a week are killed by a current or former 
partner. This Council also notes that all children who live with domestic 
abuse are victims too. 

   
“Every case of domestic abuse should be taken seriously and each individual 
given access to the support they need. All victims should be able to access 
appropriate support. Whilst both men and women may experience incidents 
of inter-personal violence and abuse, women are considerably more likely to 
experience repeated and severe forms of abuse, including sexual violence. 
They are also more likely to have experienced sustained physical, 
psychological or emotional abuse, or violence which results in injury or 
death” (Statement from Women’s Aid). 

 
The causes and effects of domestic abuse are numerous and 
significant. Across Trafford there are a range of organisations that work 
directly or indirectly with residents affected by domestic abuse, including 
Trafford Domestic Abuse Services (TDAS). Recent Home Office Statistics 
put the financial cost of domestic abuse in England and Wales at £66 billion, 
but it is the human cost that is more devastating.   
 
This Council believes that: 
 
In Trafford we are committed to enabling our residents, their families and 
communities to live a healthy life, free from abuse and violence. We will 
support this by reducing the impact of domestic abuse on the population of 
Trafford by developing and implementing a sustainable system wide 
approach to prevention, early intervention, response and support.   
 
This Council will ensure that we: 

 
 Promote awareness, raising the profile of domestic abuse across all 

Trafford Partnership organisations and services 
 Encourage staff, partners and Elected Members to attend the excellent 

training offered by TDAS. A request will be submitted to provide an 
extra session at Trafford Town Hall. 

 Work to ensure our services enhance the safety of victims and the 
support that they receive 

 Promote early identification and harm reduction 
 Work in partnership with Greater Manchester Combined Authority and 

our partners to ensure an effective, evidence based response to 
perpetrators through to conviction and management of offenders, 
including rehabilitation and behavioural change programmes. 

 Improve performance – to drive consistency and better performance in 
the response to domestic abuse across all local areas, agencies and 
sectors.  

 
 
 

Page 8



  9 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

This Council resolves: 
 

 To call upon the government to fully fund the Bill.  The previous 
government/s have promised this would be a ‘landmark moment’ for 
victim-survivors of domestic abuse, and a vital piece of legislation, 
which would change the lives of the estimated 2 million people a year 
who are subjected to abuse. This Bill is welcomed as a first step but the 
safety of women has got to be made an economic priority.” 

 
Following a debate on the matter, the Motion was agreed by general consent. 
 

RESOLVED: That this Council fully supports the Trafford Partnerships 
Domestic Violence and Abuse Strategy and recognises that the Domestic 
Abuse Bill has been finally brought to Parliament almost three years after it 
was first promised. This legislation is welcome and urgently needed, but will 
only be effective if it is underpinned by sustainable funding for specialist 
women’s services.  
  
This Council notes that: 
 
Trafford Council strives to have a zero tolerance approach towards domestic 
violence and abuse. Domestic abuse is a complex social issue which affects 
people from all groups, genders and cultures and impacts across all 
services. However, it is important to recognise that Domestic Abuse is a 
gendered crime. The Office of National Statistics states that whilst 2 million 
adults aged 16-59 experienced domestic abuse last year, 1.6 million of these 
are women. Almost one in three women will experience domestic abuse in 
their lifetime, and two women a week are killed by a current or former 
partner. This Council also notes that all children who live with domestic 
abuse are victims too. 

   
“Every case of domestic abuse should be taken seriously and each individual 
given access to the support they need. All victims should be able to access 
appropriate support. Whilst both men and women may experience incidents 
of inter-personal violence and abuse, women are considerably more likely to 
experience repeated and severe forms of abuse, including sexual violence. 
They are also more likely to have experienced sustained physical, 
psychological or emotional abuse, or violence which results in injury or 
death” (Statement from Women’s Aid). 

 
The causes and effects of domestic abuse are numerous and 
significant. Across Trafford there are a range of organisations that work 
directly or indirectly with residents affected by domestic abuse, including 
Trafford Domestic Abuse Services (TDAS). Recent Home Office Statistics 
put the financial cost of domestic abuse in England and Wales at £66 billion, 
but it is the human cost that is more devastating.   
 
 
 
 

Page 9



  10 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

This Council believes that: 
 
In Trafford we are committed to enabling our residents, their families and 
communities to live a healthy life, free from abuse and violence. We will 
support this by reducing the impact of domestic abuse on the population of 
Trafford by developing and implementing a sustainable system wide 
approach to prevention, early intervention, response and support.   
 
This Council will ensure that we: 

 
 Promote awareness, raising the profile of domestic abuse across all 

Trafford Partnership organisations and services 
 Encourage staff, partners and Elected Members to attend the excellent 

training offered by TDAS. A request will be submitted to provide an 
extra session at Trafford Town Hall. 

 Work to ensure our services enhance the safety of victims and the 
support that they receive 

 Promote early identification and harm reduction 
 Work in partnership with Greater Manchester Combined Authority and 

our partners to ensure an effective, evidence based response to 
perpetrators through to conviction and management of offenders, 
including rehabilitation and behavioural change programmes. 

 Improve performance – to drive consistency and better performance in 
the response to domestic abuse across all local areas, agencies and 
sectors.  

 
This Council resolves: 

 
To call upon the government to fully fund the Bill.  The previous 
government/s have promised this would be a ‘landmark moment’ for victim-
survivors of domestic abuse, and a vital piece of legislation, which would 
change the lives of the estimated 2 million people a year who are subjected 
to abuse. This Bill is welcomed as a first step but the safety of women has 
got to be made an economic priority. 

 
10. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE LABOUR GROUP - UK CITIES, TOWNS AND 

DISTRICTS STANDING UP FOR RESPONSIBLE TAX CONDUCT (DEFERRED 
FROM THE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 18 MARCH 2020)  
 
(Note: The time being 8.21 p.m., the Mayor indicated that with the exception of 
Members moving and seconding the Motion, speeches would be limited to a 
maximum of one minute per speaker.) 
 
(Note: As an employee of Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, Councillor Hynes 
declared a personal interest in this matter and remained in the meeting.) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



  11 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

It was moved and seconded that: 
 

“Trafford Council recognises that: 
 
Paying tax is often presented as a burden, but it shouldn’t be. Not when 
considered against the huge array of public services it helps fund – from 
education, health and social care, to flood defence, roads, policing and 
defence. It also helps to counter financial inequalities and rebalance distorted 
economies. 
 
The pressure on organisations to pay the right amount of tax in the right 
place at the right time has never been stronger. For example, polling from 
the Institute for Business Ethics finds that “corporate tax avoidance” has, 
since 2013, been the clear number one concern of the British public when it 
comes to business conduct. 
 
In recent years, Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (HMRC) has done 
much to clamp down on tax avoidance and evasion – but many in the tax 
justice movement think there is still much more to be done. It’s been 
conservatively estimated that losses from multinational profit-shifting (just 
one form of tax avoidance) could be costing the UK some £7 billion per 
annum in lost corporation tax revenues. 
 
As recipients of significant public funding, municipalities should take the lead 
in the promotion of exemplary tax conduct; be that by ensuring contractors 
are paying their proper share of tax, or by refusing to go along with offshore 
tax dodging when buying land and property. 
 
Where substantive stakes are held in private enterprises, then influence 
should be wielded to ensure that such businesses are exemplars of tax 
transparency and tax avoidance is shunned - e.g., no use of marketed 
schemes requiring disclosure under DOTAS regulations (Disclosure Of Tax 
Avoidance Schemes) or arrangements that might fall foul of the General Anti-
Abuse Rule. The Fair Tax Mark offers a means for business to demonstrate 
good tax conduct, and has been secured by organisations with a combined 
annual income of £50 billion and more than 6,500 outlets and premises. 
Social enterprises and co-operatives have been early pioneers of the Fair 
Tax Mark, and fit especially well with the pursuit of social value in public 
procurement. 
 
In recent polling, almost two-thirds (63%) of the public agree that the 
Government and local councils should consider a company’s ethics and how 
they pay their tax as well as value for money and quality of service provided, 
when undertaking procurement. At the same time, research has found that 
17.5% of public contracts in the UK have been won by companies with links 
to tax havens. More action is needed, however, current law significantly 
restricts council’s ability to either penalise poor tax conduct or reward good 
tax conduct, when buying goods or services. 
 

Page 11



  12 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

UK cities, counties and towns can and should stand up for responsible tax 
conduct - doing what they can within existing frameworks and pledging to do 
more given the opportunity, as active supporters of international tax justice. 
 
We pledge to: 
 
1.  Pass a resolution approving the Councils for Fair Tax Declaration. 
 
2. Lead by example and demonstrate good practice in our tax conduct, 

right across our activities. Including: 
 

-  Ensuring contractors implement IR35 robustly and a fair share of 
employment taxes are paid. 

- Shunning the use of offshore vehicles for the purchase of land and 
property, especially where this leads to reduced payments of stamp 
duty. 

- Undertaking due diligence to ensure that not-for-profit structures are 
not being used inappropriately as an artificial device to reduce the 
payment of tax and business rates. 

- Ensuring that there is clarity on the ultimate beneficial ownership of 
suppliers and their consolidated profit and loss position, given lack of 
clarity could be strong indicators of poor financial probity and weak 
financial standing. 

 
3.  Promote Fair Tax Mark certification for any business in which we have 

a significant stake and where corporation tax is due. 
 
4.  Join in and support Fair Tax Week events in the area, and celebrate the 

tax contribution made by responsible businesses who say what they 
pay with pride. 

 
5.  Support calls for urgent reform of EU and UK law to enable 

municipalities to revise their procurement policies and better penalise 
poor tax conduct and reward good tax conduct.” 

 
Following a debate on the matter, the Motion was agreed by general consent. 
 

RESOLVED: That Trafford Council recognises that: 
 
Paying tax is often presented as a burden, but it shouldn’t be. Not when 
considered against the huge array of public services it helps fund – from 
education, health and social care, to flood defence, roads, policing and 
defence. It also helps to counter financial inequalities and rebalance distorted 
economies. 
 
The pressure on organisations to pay the right amount of tax in the right 
place at the right time has never been stronger. For example, polling from 
the Institute for Business Ethics finds that “corporate tax avoidance” has, 
since 2013, been the clear number one concern of the British public when it 
comes to business conduct. 

Page 12



  13 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

In recent years, Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (HMRC) has done 
much to clamp down on tax avoidance and evasion – but many in the tax 
justice movement think there is still much more to be done. It’s been 
conservatively estimated that losses from multinational profit-shifting (just 
one form of tax avoidance) could be costing the UK some £7 billion per 
annum in lost corporation tax revenues. 
 
As recipients of significant public funding, municipalities should take the lead 
in the promotion of exemplary tax conduct; be that by ensuring contractors 
are paying their proper share of tax, or by refusing to go along with offshore 
tax dodging when buying land and property. 
 
Where substantive stakes are held in private enterprises, then influence 
should be wielded to ensure that such businesses are exemplars of tax 
transparency and tax avoidance is shunned - e.g., no use of marketed 
schemes requiring disclosure under DOTAS regulations (Disclosure Of Tax 
Avoidance Schemes) or arrangements that might fall foul of the General Anti-
Abuse Rule. The Fair Tax Mark offers a means for business to demonstrate 
good tax conduct, and has been secured by organisations with a combined 
annual income of £50 billion and more than 6,500 outlets and premises. 
Social enterprises and co-operatives have been early pioneers of the Fair 
Tax Mark, and fit especially well with the pursuit of social value in public 
procurement. 
 
In recent polling, almost two-thirds (63%) of the public agree that the 
Government and local councils should consider a company’s ethics and how 
they pay their tax as well as value for money and quality of service provided, 
when undertaking procurement. At the same time, research has found that 
17.5% of public contracts in the UK have been won by companies with links 
to tax havens. More action is needed, however, current law significantly 
restricts council’s ability to either penalise poor tax conduct or reward good 
tax conduct, when buying goods or services. 
 
UK cities, counties and towns can and should stand up for responsible tax 
conduct - doing what they can within existing frameworks and pledging to do 
more given the opportunity, as active supporters of international tax justice. 
 
We pledge to: 
 
1.  Pass a resolution approving the Councils for Fair Tax Declaration. 
 
2. Lead by example and demonstrate good practice in our tax conduct, 

right across our activities. Including: 
 

-  Ensuring contractors implement IR35 robustly and a fair share of 
employment taxes are paid. 

- Shunning the use of offshore vehicles for the purchase of land and 
property, especially where this leads to reduced payments of stamp 
duty. 

Page 13



  14 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Undertaking due diligence to ensure that not-for-profit structures are 
not being used inappropriately as an artificial device to reduce the 
payment of tax and business rates. 

- Ensuring that there is clarity on the ultimate beneficial ownership of 
suppliers and their consolidated profit and loss position, given lack of 
clarity could be strong indicators of poor financial probity and weak 
financial standing. 

 
3.  Promote Fair Tax Mark certification for any business in which we have 

a significant stake and where corporation tax is due. 
 
4.  Join in and support Fair Tax Week events in the area, and celebrate the 

tax contribution made by responsible businesses who say what they 
pay with pride. 

 
5.  Support calls for urgent reform of EU and UK law to enable 

municipalities to revise their procurement policies and better penalise 
poor tax conduct and reward good tax conduct. 

 
11. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE LABOUR GROUP - FINANCIAL IMPACT OF 

COVID ON LOCAL AUTHORITY BUDGETS  
 
It was moved and seconded that: 
 

“This Council is deeply concerned by the failure of the Conservative 
Government to compensate local authorities for the full financial impact of 
Covid-19. In Trafford alone, despite false promises of ‘whatever it takes’ from 
Government, the current crisis has created a financial pressure of over £60 
million that so far hasn’t been met anywhere near in full. Local authorities 
find themselves in this appalling position having already endured ten years of 
sustained austerity. Unless action is taken by Government to properly 
compensate councils for both costs and loss of income in full caused by 
Covid this could have a significant impact on this Council’s ability to deliver 
services to its residents in the future. 
 
Council notes that as things currently stand – after utilising available 
resources and exhausting other options – we find ourselves in the position of 
having a multi-million pound in-year budget gap significantly attributable to 
Covid, and face a budget deficit of over £35 million for the next financial year 
2021/22.  
 
Council therefore resolves: 
 
-   That the Government must compensate local authorities for the true 

financial impact of Covid-19. 
-  That the Leader of the Council should write to the Prime Minister outlining 

the threat to local services if this does not happen. 
-   That the Council should launch a communications campaign similar to 

other authorities such as Redbridge to outline the Government’s failure to 

Page 14



  15 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

fund Covid-19 in full (costs and lost income) and to raise awareness of this 
amongst residents to highlight the risk to local services. 

 
Council places on record it’s thanks to all Trafford residents for their support 
in these challenging times and pays tribute to all our staff who have worked 
to support our communities over the past six months. They are a credit to us 
and we are keen to ensure we are properly funded in order that they can 
continue this fantastic work.” 

 
Following a debate on the matter, the Motion was put to the vote and in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 16.5, a recorded vote was called for. This 
resulted as follows: 
 
Those in favour of the Motion: Councillors Acton, Adshead, Akinola, Bennett, 
Brophy, Brotherton, Dr. Carr, Carter, Coggins, Cordingley, Dillon, Duffield, 
Freeman, Harding, Hartley, Hynes, Jarman, Jerrome, Lloyd, Minnis, New, 
Newgrosh, Patel, K. Procter, S. Procter, Ross, Slater, Taylor, Thomas, Thompson, 
Walsh, Welton, A. Western, D. Western, Whitham, Whyte, Williams, Winstanley 
and Wright. 
 
Those against the Motion: Councillors Dr. Barclay, Miss Blackburn, Boyes, 
Bunting, Butt, Mrs. Churchill, Evans, Mrs. Haddad, Holden, Lally, Mitchell, Morgan, 
Myers, Shaw and Mrs. P. Young. 
 
Those choosing to abstain: None. 
 
With the result of the vote being 39 in favour and 15 against, with no abstentions, 
the Motion was declared carried. 
 

RESOLVED: That this Council is deeply concerned by the failure of the 
Conservative Government to compensate local authorities for the full 
financial impact of Covid-19. In Trafford alone, despite false promises of 
‘whatever it takes’ from Government, the current crisis has created a 
financial pressure of over £60 million that so far hasn’t been met anywhere 
near in full. Local authorities find themselves in this appalling position having 
already endured ten years of sustained austerity. Unless action is taken by 
Government to properly compensate councils for both costs and loss of 
income in full caused by Covid this could have a significant impact on this 
Council’s ability to deliver services to its residents in the future. 
 
Council notes that as things currently stand – after utilising available 
resources and exhausting other options – we find ourselves in the position of 
having a multi-million pound in-year budget gap significantly attributable to 
Covid, and face a budget deficit of over £35 million for the next financial year 
2021/22.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



  16 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

Council therefore resolves: 
 
-   That the Government must compensate local authorities for the true 

financial impact of Covid-19. 
-  That the Leader of the Council should write to the Prime Minister outlining 

the threat to local services if this does not happen. 
-   That the Council should launch a communications campaign similar to 

other authorities such as Redbridge to outline the Government’s failure to 
fund Covid-19 in full (costs and lost income) and to raise awareness of this 
amongst residents to highlight the risk to local services. 

 
Council places on record it’s thanks to all Trafford residents for their support in 
these challenging times and pays tribute to all our staff who have worked to 
support our communities over the past six months. They are a credit to us and we 
are keen to ensure we are properly funded in order that they can continue this 
fantastic work. 
 

12. MOTION SUBMITTED BY THE GREEN PARTY GROUP - LOWER SPEEDS, 
SAFER ROADS: HARNESSING NEW TECHNOLOGY TO BUILD BACK 
BETTER ON TRAFFORD’S STREETS  
 
It was moved and seconded that: 
 

“Council notes that all parties in Trafford have previously supported motions 
or amendments backing the expansion of 20 mph zones. It also recognises 
that the provision of enforcement and competing demands on the police and 
other agencies has slowed that expansion down and has hitherto often been 
cited as reason not to make 20 mph zones more widespread. 
 
This Council therefore welcomes the intention of our Government to abide by 
Regulation (EU) 2019/2144, making it a mandatory requirement for speed 
limiter and data recorder technology to be installed in new models of vehicle 
from 2022, and all new vehicles from 2024. For the first time speed 
compliance will be in-built into private vehicles, bringing them into line with 
HGVs. 
 
And Council recognises the opportunity this provides to local authorities to 
look again at 20 mph schemes: 
 

●  That will not be a long-term drain on policing resources and won’t need 
investment in humps or traffic calming. 

●  That offer long-term savings through collision reduction, better public 
health (through cleaner air and increased active travel) and reduced 
highway wear and tear. 

●  That can help reduce health inequalities in deprived neighbourhoods, 
where research shows child pedestrian deaths are over four times 
those in affluent neighbourhoods.1 

 

 

Page 16



  17 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

●  That will bring policy into line with the principle of the Stockholm 
Declaration2, signed by the UK government in February 2020, which 
mandates a maximum road travel speed of 20 mph “where vulnerable 
road users and vehicles mix in a frequent and planned manner, except 
where strong evidence exists that higher speeds are safe". 

●  That further the objectives of Trafford’s Public Health Report, which 
finds that “slowing city traffic makes roads safer for everyone, and 
encourages walking and cycling”.3 

●  That benefit from strong public support, according to national surveys.4 
 
Council resolves: 
 

●  To take advantage of this new opportunity. 
●  To strive to utilise the Department of Transport’s Emergency Active 

Travel Funding to enable new funded 20 mph limit zones. 
●  In the short term, to provide Trafford residents with the right to request 

signed 20 mph speed limits on their streets, using a similar mechanism 
to the one already used for residents to request parking schemes. 

●  To adopt a policy of favouring the implementation of 20 mph limits or 
zones as a default for all streets in residential areas, town centres/retail 
districts and roads where vulnerable road users and motor vehicles mix. 
A report outlining how this could be achieved and funded will be 
presented to the Council by the end of the financial year. 

 
1  Welsh 20 MPH Task Force Group: Final Report 
 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/20mph-task-force-group-report.pdf 
2  Stockholm Declaration Third Global Ministerial Conference on Road Safety: Achieving Global 

Goals 2030 
3 Combating Climate Change: Report of the Director of Public Health Trafford 2019 
4 Working Together to Promote Active Travel. A briefing for local authorities 
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/

523460/Working_Together_to_Promote_Active_Travel_A_briefing_for_local_authorities.pdf” 
 

It was moved and seconded as an amendment that: 
 

“Council notes that all parties in Trafford have previously supported motions 
or amendments backing the expansion of 20 mph zones. It also recognises 
that the provision of enforcement and competing demands on the police and 
other agencies has slowed that expansion down and has hitherto often been 
cited as reason not to make 20 mph zones more widespread. 
 
This Council therefore welcomes the intention of our Government to abide by 
Regulation (EU) 2019/2144, making it a mandatory requirement for speed 
limiter and data recorder technology to be installed in new models of vehicle 
from 2022, and all new vehicles from 2024. For the first time speed 
compliance will be in-built into private vehicles, bringing them into line with 
HGVs. 
 
And Council recognises the opportunity this provides to local authorities to 
look again at 20 mph schemes: 
 

Page 17



  18 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

●  That will not be a long-term drain on policing resources and won’t need 
investment in humps or traffic calming. 

●  That offer long-term savings through collision reduction, better public 
health (through cleaner air and increased active travel) and reduced 
highway wear and tear. 

●  That can help reduce health inequalities in deprived neighbourhoods, 
where research shows child pedestrian deaths are over four times 
those in affluent neighbourhoods.1 

●  That will bring policy into line with the principle of the Stockholm 
Declaration2, signed by the UK government in February 2020, which 
mandates a maximum road travel speed of 20 mph “where vulnerable 
road users and vehicles mix in a frequent and planned manner, except 
where strong evidence exists that higher speeds are safe". 

●  That further the objectives of Trafford’s Public Health Report, which 
finds that “slowing city traffic makes roads safer for everyone, and 
encourages walking and cycling”.3 

●  That benefit from strong public support, according to national surveys.4 
 
Council resolves: 
 

●  To take advantage of this new opportunity. 
●  To strive to utilise the Department of Transport’s Emergency Active 

Travel Funding to enable new funded 20 mph limit zones. 
●  In the short term, to provide Trafford residents with the right to request 

signed 20 mph speed limits on their streets, using a similar mechanism 
to the one already used for residents to request parking schemes. 

●  To adopt a policy of favouring the implementation of 20 mph limits or 
zones as a default for all streets in residential areas, town centres/retail 
districts and roads where vulnerable road users and motor vehicles mix. 
A report outlining how this could be achieved and funded will be 
presented to the Council by the end of the financial year. 

 
●    to note and support the measures as outlined above; 
●    notes that Trafford residents can request 20 mph schemes on their 

streets, using existing mechanisms like the one to request parking 
schemes, and waiting restrictions etc.; 

●     to support the favouring and implementation of 20 mph zones in 
residential areas, and other appropriate locations like schools, 
with a report brought by the end of March 2021 setting out an 
assessment of the deliverability of this work including timescales 
for accelerated delivery if possible, options for better promoting 
the existing right of residents to request schemes whilst managing 
expectations on the time required for implementation, and how 
further work in this already key strategic area will fit with the 
various existing tranches of work to improve road safety in the 
borough; and 

●     that this be funded through both the Councils capital programme 
(subject to financial constraints) and other funding mechanisms 
that Trafford Council can take advantage of. 

 

Page 18



  19 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

1  Welsh 20 MPH Task Force Group: Final Report 
 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/20mph-task-force-group-report.pdf 
2  Stockholm Declaration Third Global Ministerial Conference on Road Safety: Achieving Global 

Goals 2030 
3 Combating Climate Change: Report of the Director of Public Health Trafford 2019 
4 Working Together to Promote Active Travel. A briefing for local authorities 
 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/

523460/Working_Together_to_Promote_Active_Travel_A_briefing_for_local_authorities.pdf” 
 
Following a debate on the matter and in putting the amendment to the vote a 
recorded vote was called for, in accordance with Procedure Rule 16.5. This 
resulted as follows: 
 
Those in favour of the Amendment: Acton, Adshead, Akinola, Dr. Barclay, 
Bennett, Miss Blackburn, Brotherton, Butt, Dr. Carr, Carter, Mrs. Churchill, Dillon, 
Duffield, Evans, Freeman, Mrs. Haddad, Harding, Hartley, Holden, Hynes, 
Jarman, Lloyd, Mitchell, Morgan, Myers, New, Patel, K. Proctor, S. Procter, Ross, 
Slater, Taylor, Thomas, Thompson, Walsh, A. Western, D. Western, Whitham, 
Whyte, Williams, Winstanley, Wright and Mrs. P. Young. 
 
Those against the Amendment: Councillors Brophy, Bunting, Coggins, Jerrome, 
Minnis, Newgrosh and Welton. 
 
Those choosing to abstain: Councillors Boyes and Cordingley. 
 
With the result of the vote being 43 in favour and 7 against, with 2 abstentions, the 
Amendment was declared carried. 
 
The Substantive Motion was then put to a recorded vote which resulted as follows: 
 
Those in favour of the Substantive Motion: Councillors Acton, Adshead, Akinola, 
Dr. Barclay, Miss Blackburn, Boyes, Brophy, Brotherton, Butt, Dr. Carr, Carter, 
Mrs. Churchill, Cordingley, Coggins, Dillon, Duffield, Evans, Freeman, Harding, 
Hartley, Holden, Hynes, Jarman, Jerrome, Lloyd, Minnis, Mitchell, Morgan, Myers, 
New, Newgrosh, Patel, S. Procter, Ross, Slater, Thomas, Thompson, Walsh, 
Welton, A. Western, D. Western, Whitham, Whyte, Williams, Winstanley and Mrs. 
P. Young.  
 
Those against the Substantive Motion: Bennett, Bunting, Taylor and Wright. 
 
Those choosing to abstain: Councillors Mrs. Haddad and K. Procter. 
 
With the result of the vote being 46 in favour and 4 against, with 2 abstentions, the 
Substantive Motion was declared carried. 
 

RESOLVED: That Council notes that all parties in Trafford have previously 
supported motions or amendments backing the expansion of 20 mph zones. 
It also recognises that the provision of enforcement and competing demands 
on the police and other agencies has slowed that expansion down and has 
hitherto often been cited as reason not to make 20 mph zones more 
widespread. 
 

Page 19



  20 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

This Council therefore welcomes the intention of our Government to abide by 
Regulation (EU) 2019/2144, making it a mandatory requirement for speed 
limiter and data recorder technology to be installed in new models of vehicle 
from 2022, and all new vehicles from 2024. For the first time speed 
compliance will be in-built into private vehicles, bringing them into line with 
HGVs. 
 
And Council recognises the opportunity this provides to local authorities to 
look again at 20 mph schemes: 
 

●  That offer long-term savings through collision reduction, better public 
health (through cleaner air and increased active travel) and reduced 
highway wear and tear. 

●  That can help reduce health inequalities in deprived neighbourhoods, 
where research shows child pedestrian deaths are over four times 
those in affluent neighbourhoods.1 

●  That will bring policy into line with the principle of the Stockholm 
Declaration2, signed by the UK government in February 2020, which 
mandates a maximum road travel speed of 20 mph “where vulnerable 
road users and vehicles mix in a frequent and planned manner, except 
where strong evidence exists that higher speeds are safe". 

●  That further the objectives of Trafford’s Public Health Report, which 
finds that “slowing city traffic makes roads safer for everyone, and 
encourages walking and cycling”.3 

●  That benefit from strong public support, according to national surveys.4 
 
Council resolves: 
 

●    to note and support the measures as outlined above; 
●    notes that Trafford residents can request 20 mph schemes on their 

streets, using existing mechanisms like the one to request parking 
schemes, and waiting restrictions etc.; 

●     to support the favouring and implementation of 20 mph zones in 
residential areas, and other appropriate locations like schools, with a 
report brought by the end of March 2021 setting out an assessment of 
the deliverability of this work including timescales for accelerated 
delivery if possible, options for better promoting the existing right of 
residents to request schemes whilst managing expectations on the time 
required for implementation, and how further work in this already key 
strategic area will fit with the various existing tranches of work to 
improve road safety in the borough; and 

●     that this be funded through both the Councils capital programme 
(subject to financial constraints) and other funding mechanisms that 
Trafford Council can take advantage of. 

 
1  Welsh 20 MPH Task Force Group: Final Report 
 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/20mph-task-force-group-report.pdf 
2  Stockholm Declaration Third Global Ministerial Conference on Road Safety: Achieving Global 

Goals 2030 
 
 
 

Page 20



  21 
Meeting of the Council  

30 September 2020 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

3 Combating Climate Change: Report of the Director of Public Health Trafford 2019 
4 Working Together to Promote Active Travel. A briefing for local authorities 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/
523460/Working_Together_to_Promote_Active_Travel_A_briefing_for_local_authorities.pdf 

 
The meeting commenced at 7.06 p.m. and finished at 9.08 p.m. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:  Annual Meeting of the Council  
Date: 25 November 2020 
Report for:  Decision 
Report of:  Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy  
 
Report Title 
 

 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL AND MEMBERSHIP OF THE EXECUTIVE 
 

 
Summary 
 

To note that the Leader of the Council’s term of office continues and that for the 
remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal Year, the Leader will appoint the Deputy 
Leader, decide the composition of the Executive Cabinet and appoint the 
Membership of the Executive Cabinet. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

The Council is requested to: 
 
1. Note that Councillor Andrew Western continues as the Leader of the 

Council until the expiry of his term of office in May 2023. 
 

2. Note that the Leader of the Council has determined that the Executive shall 
comprise himself plus 9 councillors; 

 
3. Note the appointment of the Deputy Leader and the appointed Membership 

of the Executive for the remainder of 2020/21, as agreed by the Leader of 
the Council and set out in the Appendix to the report. 

 

4. Note the role of the Lead Member for Education, as detailed in the report 
and the appointment made by the Leader of the Council, as set out in the 
appendix to the report. 

 

5. Authorise the Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy 
to make any amendments necessary to the Constitution as a result of these 
arrangements.  
 

  
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name: Ian Cockill 
Extension: 1387 
 
Background Papers:  None   

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 At its meeting on 2 December 2009, the Council approved a new style 
‘strong’ Leader and Cabinet model of executive leadership, in accordance 
with the Local Government and Health Act 2007. The Act required changes 
to the leadership of Councils giving only two options, both of which place all 
executive powers in the hands of one individual, who, in the normal course 
of events, will serve an uninterrupted 4 year term. The Council’s Executive 
Arrangements came into operation on 6 May 2010. 

 
1.2 Councillor Andrew Western was elected Leader of the Council at the Annual 

Meeting of Council on 22 May 2019 for a fixed term of office to the first 
Annual Meeting of the Council after his normal day of retirement as a 
councillor in May 2023. Each year the Leader will appoint the Deputy 
Leader, decide the composition of the Executive Cabinet and appoint the 
Membership of the Cabinet. 

 
 
2.0 New Style Leader and Cabinet 
 
2.1 Under this model the Council appoints the Leader for a fixed term of office of 

4 years. The Leader then appoints a Cabinet but also determines the size of 
the Cabinet (within the statutory minimum and maximum of 3 and 10). Under 
these executive arrangements provision must be made for the appointment 
of a Deputy Leader with power to act in the Leader’s absence. Again the 
Deputy Leader is appointed (and may also be removed) by the Leader. 

 
2.2 The term of office of the Leader is from the date of election as Leader to the 

first annual meeting after their normal day of retirement as a councillor i.e. 
up to 4 years. Thus, a Leader needing to seek re-election as a councillor 
before the end of the maximum 4 year term will be elected for a shorter 
term.   

 
2.3 The Council includes provisions in its Constitution whereby the Council may 

remove the Leader from office at any time (if the Council did not include 
such provision for the mid term removal of the Leader, the Leader would 
remain in office for their full term).The Council’s Constitution states that the 
Leader shall hold office until: 

 
(a) (s)he resigns from the office; or 

 
(b) (s)he is disqualified from being a councillor; or 
 
(c) (s)he is no longer a councillor; or 

 
(d) the first Annual Meeting after their normal day of retirement as a 

councillor save that the Council may by resolution remove the Leader 
from office at an earlier date. 

 
2.4 The Leader will be vested with all the authority’s executive functions, initially 

holding all the Council’s executive functions under their personal control. It 
is then for him/her to choose whether to exercise some or all of these 
functions personally or to make arrangements for their discharge by the 

Page 24



 

executive, a committee of the executive, by an individual member of the 
executive, or by officers and these will be notified at the Annual Meeting of 
the Council. 

 
2.5  The Leader of the Council shall appoint an Executive Member as Deputy 

Leader with power to act in the Leader’s absence. The deputy appointment 
is set out in the Appendix 
 

2.6  The Leader of the Council also proposes to appoint 9 Executive Members 
and these are also set out in the Appendix.  Executive Members appointed 
by the Leader of the Council (including the Executive Member appointed as 
Deputy Leader) shall hold office until: 

 
(a) they resign from office; or 

 
(b) (s)he is disqualified from being a councillor; or 

 
(c) they are no longer councillors; or 

 
(d) the Annual General Meeting following the meeting at which they are 

appointed to the Executive save that the Leader of the Council may 
remove them from office either individually or collectively at an earlier 
date.  

 
 
3.0 Lead Member for Education 
 
3.1 The Leader has designated a specific role for an additional Non-Executive 

Member to support the work of the Executive. A Lead Member with special 
responsibility for Education will be responsible for championing all aspects of 
education across the council. The Lead member will provide advice and 
support to the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Social Care in fulfilling their 
responsibilities in relation to Education and undertake certain activities on 
their behalf. 

 
3.2 In supporting the Executive Member for Children’s Social Care in their role, 

the Lead Member for Education will be able to attend Executive meetings, 
however, the Lead Member will not have any decision making powers.

Page 25



 

Appendix 

 
EXECUTIVE 

 
PORTFOLIOS 2020/21 

 
 
 

Councillor 
 

PORTFOLIO 
 

 
Andrew Western 

 
Leader of the Council (with portfolio responsibility 
for Sustainability and Climate Change) 
 

 
Catherine Hynes (Deputy Leader) 

 
Children’s Services (with all statutory children’s 
responsibilities) 
 

 
Joanne Harding 

 
Adult Social Care  
 

 
Graham Whitham 

 
Communities and Partnerships (with responsibility 
for Poverty Strategy) 
 

 
Mike Freeman 

 
Covid-19 Recovery and Reform 
 

 
Liz Patel 

 
Culture and Leisure 
 

 
Stephen Adshead 

  
Environmental and Regulatory Services 
 

 
Tom Ross 

 

Finance and Governance 
 

 
Jane Slater 

 
Health, Wellbeing and Equalities 
 

 
James Wright 

 
Housing and Regeneration 
 

  
 
 

  
Non-Executive Portfolio 
 

 
Karina Carter 

 
Lead Member for Education   
 

 
 

Page 26



 
 

 
 
 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:  Annual Meeting of the Council  
Date: 25 November 2020 
Report for:  Information 
Report of:  Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy 
 
Report Title 
 

 
SHADOW EXECUTIVE 
 

 
Summary 
 

 
To note the Members of the main opposition with shadow responsibility for the 
Executive portfolio areas. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
To note the members of the Shadow Executive as set out in the Appendix. 
 

 
   
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Ian Cockill 
Extension:  1387 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: None.  
 
 
 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Appendix 
 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE SHADOW EXECUTIVE 2020/21 
 

Councillor 
 

PORTFOLIO 
 

 
Nathan Evans 

 
Leader of the Opposition  (with portfolio 
responsibility for Sustainability and Climate 
Change) 
 

 
Patrick Myers (Deputy Leader) 

 

Finance and Governance 
 

 
John Holden 

 
Adult Social Care  
 

 
Sean Anstee 

 
Children’s Services (with all statutory children’s 
responsibilities) 
 

 
Dr. Karen Barclay 

 
Communities and Partnerships (with responsibility 
for Poverty Strategy) 
 

 
Chris Boyes 

 
Covid-19 Recovery and Reform 
 

 
John Lamb 

 
Culture and Leisure 
 

 
Dylan Butt 

 
Environmental and Regulatory Services 
 

 
Miss Linda Blackburn 

 
Health, Wellbeing and Equalities 
 

 
Dave Morgan 

 
Housing and Regeneration 
 

  

  
Non-Executive Portfolio 
 

 
Thomas Carey 

 
Lead Member for Education   
 

 
Note: The Members’ Allowances Scheme specifies that Shadow Executive arrangements 
should reflect the composition of the Council’s Executive, thus: 

 

(a) the Shadow Executive must be composed of identical portfolio areas; and 
 

(b) the number of Members appointed to the Shadow Executive (including the 
Members appointed as Leader and Deputy Leader) must be equal to or less than 
the number of Members appointed to the Executive. 

Page 28



 1 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 

Report to:  Annual Meeting of the Council  

Date: 25 November 2020 

Report for:  Decision 

Report of:  Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy  
 

Report Title 
 

 

COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

 

Summary 

 
 

To agree the Committees of the Council, their size, political composition, membership 
and terms of reference for the remainder of the 2020/21 municipal year. 
 

 

Recommendation(s) 

 
 

1) That the Standing Committees and their composition, as set out in Appendix 1 to 
the report, be approved. 

 

2) That the Terms of Reference for each Committee, as set out in Appendix 2 to the 
report, be approved. 

 

3) That the membership of Committees for the remainder of the 2020/21 municipal 
year, as set out in Appendix 3 to the report, be approved. 

 

4) That the appointment of Committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs, as set out in 
Appendix 3, be approved and the nomination of Opposition Spokespersons 
(where appropriate), be noted. 

 

5) That, whilst Committee and Sub-meetings shall continue to be held virtually, as 
from 1st January 2021, all meetings will commence as set out in the Constitution.  
Arrangements to support this proposed change shall be reported to the 
Constitution Working Group of all party Members. 

 

6) That the Council approves the appointment and memberships of the three Sub-
Committees of Licensing Committee, as set out in Appendix 4. 

 

7) That the Appointments and Appeals Panel be formally appointed, the 
membership for which will be drawn from all members of the Council. 

 

[When sitting, the Panel shall comprise a smaller number of members selected 
for specific purposes and shall include representation from all parties and 
appointed on the basis of 2:1:1:1. When acting as an Appeals Panel, the 
membership shall be restricted to a pool of Members who have undertaken the 
necessary Members Appeals Training. Please refer to the Terms of Reference 
(Appendix 2) for details on the role of this Panel.] 

 

8) That the Council appoints to the Health and Wellbeing Board, as set out in 
Appendix 5, and the Board be recommended to endorse the Council’s 
membership. 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 
9) That the Council delegate to the Chief Executive, in accordance with the written 

request of the relevant Group Leader, the power and authority to change the 
membership of committees and sub-committees as may be needed from time to 
time.  

 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Ian Cockill 
Extension:  1387 
 
 
Background Papers: None.         

 
 

1. COMPOSITION OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
  
1.1  The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the composition of 

committees to be in accordance with the political balance of the 63 members of the 
Council and this shall be reviewed as a result of any changes to that balance. 
Currently the political make-up of the Council is a follows: 

 
 Labour Group  -    35 members  
 Conservative Group  -    19 members  
 Liberal Democrat Group  -      3 members 
 Green Party Group   -      3 members 
 Independent  - 1 member 

 
1.2 Additionally, the Council is currently carrying 2 vacancies. 
 
1.3 The regulations require that the composition of committees is in accordance with the 

political balance of the 63 members of the Council and that this is reviewed as a 
result of any changes to that balance. There have been no changes since the last 
review reported to the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council on 15 May 2020. 

 

1.4 Subject to the need to allocate each political group a total allocation of seats in 
proportion to its strength on the Council and with no requirement to offer any seats 
to an Independent since an individual does not constitute a group, the Membership 
of each Ordinary Committee should be made up of the following proportions: - 

 
 Labour (35/63)  -  55.56% 
 Conservative (19/63)  -  30.16% 
 Liberal Democrat (3/63)  -   4.76% 
 Green Party (3/63)  -  4.76% 
 
Note:  
 
the vacant seats account for (2/63)  -   3.17%   
and the Independent Member (1/63)  -  1.59% 

 
1.5 The proposed Committee structure is set out in Appendix 1.  
 
 
 

Page 30



 3 

2.0 MEETING START TIMES 
 
2.1  Following the Extraordinary Council meeting on 15 May 2020 and in order to assist 

with the Council’s response to the Coronavirus Pandemic, the Council’s meetings 
have been held virtually and at the earlier start time of 4.00 p.m. 

 
2.2 Government restrictions mean that a return to physical meetings is unlikely in the 

near future, however, the Council may consider a return to a later start time for its 
meetings. As agreed at the Council meeting on 30 September, the Constitution 
Working Group is due to consider the impact of a return to the normal start time at a 
meeting in December 2020 and was scheduled to report to the Council meeting on 
27 January 2021.  

 
2.3 It is however clear that the earlier start times are continuing to impact on a number 

of members and whilst it is recognised that a return to the more normal start times 
will impact on officers who are working from home, it is proposed that with effect 
from 1st January 2021 all meetings will commence as set out in the Constitution. 
The arrangements to support the proposed return to ‘normal’ meeting times will be 
reported to the Constitution Working Group meeting in December. 

 
 
 

Page 31



 4 

 

Item 7: APPENDIX 1 
 

PROPOSED COMMITTEE ENTITLEMENTS FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020/21 
 

Committee No. of 

Members 

Ex-officio 

Members 

Co-opted 

Members 
Proposed Places 

LAB CON L/D GP 

Ordinary Committees        
 
Accounts and Audit 
 

 
9 

 
- 

 
1 

 
5 

 
3 

 
0 

 
1 

 
Employment 
 

 
9 

 
- 

 
- 

 
6 

 
3 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Planning and 
Development 
Management 
 

 
13 

 
- 

 
- 

 
7 

 
4 

 
1 

 
1 

 
Licensing * 
 

 
15 

 
- 

 
- 

 
8 

 
5 

 
1 

 
1 

 
Standards 
 

 
11 

 
- 

 

5^^ 

 
6 

 
3 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
Trafford Pandemic 
Scrutiny 
 

 
17 

 
- 

 

5^ 

 
9 

 
6 

 
1 

 
1 

 

POLITICALLY 

BALANCED PLACINGS 
(excluding other 
Committees) 

 

74 

 

 
 

 

0 

 

11 

 

41 

 

24 

 

4 

 

5 

        

Other Committee(s)        
 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board** 
 

 
5 

 
- 

 
16^^^ 

 
3 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 

OVERALL PLACINGS 
 

 

79 

 

6 

 

27 

 

44 

 

25 

 

5 

 

5 

 

*  Committees for which political balance rules may be disapplied  
** Committee for which political balance rules do not apply 
 
# The Chairmen of the three Scrutiny Committees shall be appointed as ex-officio non-voting 

members on each of the other Committees. (Temporarily suspended) 
 

^ 2 Church and 3 Parent-Governor representatives  
 

^^ 2 Parish representatives and 3 Independent members 
 
^^^ Corporate Director of Children, Families and Wellbeing plus 16 External Partners 

Page 32



 5 

Item 7: APPENDIX 2 
 

ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Statement of Purpose 
 
The purpose of the committee is to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of 
the risk management framework and the associated control environment, independent 
scrutiny of the Authority’s financial and non financial performance to the extent that it 
affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment, and to 
oversee the financial reporting process. 

 

Composition 
 
Membership of the Audit and Accounts Committee shall comprise 9 Members, be 
politically balanced and shall not include any Members of the Executive. A non voting 
member, with appropriate skills and experience, may be co-opted on to the Committee 
with the approval of the Council.  
 

Terms of Reference 

 

Internal and External Audit 
 
a) Review and approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit Charter and Strategy, 

including internal audit resourcing. 
 
b) Review and approve (but not direct) the annual Internal Audit work programme. 

Consider the proposed and actual Internal Audit coverage and whether this 
provides adequate assurance on organisations main business risks, review the 
performance of Internal Audit.  

 
c)  Receive summary internal audit reports and seek assurance on the adequacy of 
 management response to internal audit advice, recommendations and action 
 plans. 
 
d)  Review arrangements made for cooperation between Internal Audit, External Audit 
 and other review bodies and ensure that there are effective relationships which 
 actively promote the value of the audit process. 
 
e) Receive the Annual Internal Audit report and opinion. 
 
f)  Review and consider proposed and actual External Audit coverage and its 
 adequacy and consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies. 
 
g)  Receive updates from External Audit on External Audit findings and opinions 
 (including the audit of the annual financial statements and the value for money 
 conclusion) and seek assurance on the adequacy of management response to 
 External Audit advice, recommendations and action plans. 

 

Risk Management 
 

a) Review the adequacy of arrangements for identifying and managing the 
organisation's business risks, including partnerships with other organisations.  This 

Page 33



 6 

includes review of the Council’s risk management policy and strategy and their 
implementation. 

 
b) Review the robustness of the strategic risk register and the adequacy of associated 

risk management arrangements. 
 
c) Receive and consider regular reports on the risk environment and associated 

management action. 
 

Internal Control Arrangements, Corporate Governance and the Annual Governance 

Statement 
 

a)  Review the effectiveness of corporate governance arrangements and internal 
control across the organisation and the adequacy of action taken to address any 
weaknesses or control failures. 
 

b)  Conduct a review of the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS), which is a key 
assurance statement required to be completed each year in accordance with the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 
c)  Approve the final version of the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

Anti - Fraud and Corruption Arrangements 
 

a) Review and ensure the adequacy of the organisation’s Anti – Fraud & Corruption 
policy and strategy and the effectiveness of their application throughout the 
Authority. 

 
b) Review and ensure that adequate arrangements are established and operating to 

deal with situations of suspected or actual fraud and corruption. 
 

Accounts 
 

a) Approve the annual Statement of Accounts, including subsequent amendments. 
 
b) Consider the External Auditor’s report on the audit of the annual financial 

statements. 
 
c) Be responsible for any matters arising from the audit of the Council’s accounts, 

including the auditor’s opinion on the accounts, identification of any misstatements, 
comments on the accounting and internal control systems and qualitative aspects 
of accounting practices and financial reporting. 

 

Access and Reporting 

 
a)  To have the right of access to senior officers and all committees of the Council.            

 
b) To report directly to the Executive or Council, as appropriate, on matters within 

these terms of reference.  

 

Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to the Committee in its terms of reference, 
the Audit and Accounts Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on 
behalf of and in the name of the Council. Page 34



 7 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
The Employment Committee shall consist of at least 9 members and be established in 
accordance with the political balance of the Council and shall have a quorum of 3 
members. 
 
The Employment Committee shall meet at least quarterly and also when convened by the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To determine and keep under review collective and corporate terms and conditions of 

employment. 
 
2. To approve the Council’s draft Pay Policy Statement prior to recommendation to full 

Council for approval and adoption. 
  
3. To keep under review the consistent and lawful application of the Councils Pay Policy 

and publication requirements in respect of transparency of pay, termination payments 
and audit responsibilities. 

 
4. Except in exceptional circumstances, to approve the job description, salary and 

benefits for Chief Officers prior to appointment. 
 

(exceptional circumstances to be determined by the Proper Officer in consultation 
with the Chair of the Employment Committee.) 

 
5. To approve any decisions for the re engagement or reemployment of former Chief 

Officers. 
 

6. To consider and determine decisions about the recovery of exit payments or 
overpayment of pension for Chief Officers. 
 

7. To consider any matter referred to the Committee by the Head of Paid Service or 
Corporate Director of People. 

 
8. To consider, approve and adopt any new or significant revision to existing corporate 

human resources strategies and policies in so far as they relate to the appointment, 
terms and conditions of employment and dismissal of staff. 

 
9. To determine any other matters relating to the appointment, terms and conditions of 

employment, severance and dismissal of staff which are neither covered by policies of 
the Council, required to be decisions of full Council nor delegated to Officers under 
the Scheme of Delegation. 

 
10. To review proposals for severance payments in excess of £100,000 prior to 

consideration of the proposals by full Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 8 

 
Delegation 
 
The Executive Member with responsibility for Strategic HR and the Corporate Director of 
People will notify/keep the Employment Committee informed of all other relevant HR 
related issues, as required. 
 
In exercising the above powers and responsibilities, the Employment Committee shall 
have delegated power (subject to Council Procedure Rule 9 - Call-in of Decisions taken 
under Delegated Powers) to make decisions on behalf of the Council, except for any 
matter where: 
 

 the Head of the Paid Service determines the matter should be considered by full 
Council, or  

 the Council has resolved to determine the matter  
 
[Note: The Committee may itself determine not to exercise its delegated powers and 
instead make recommendations to Council.] 

Page 36



 9 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To exercise the Council’s licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003 with the 

exception of any function conferred on the Council under Section 5 of the Act 
(statement of licensing policy). 

 
2. In respect of each 5 year period, in consultation with the Executive, to formulate or 

prepare for approval by the Council its policy with respect to the exercise of its 
licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
3. To keep the policy with respect to the exercise of its licensing functions under the 

Licensing Act 2003 under review and recommend any revisions to the policy to the 
Council. 

 
4. To exercise the Council’s licensing functions under the Gambling Act 2005 with the 

exception of any function conferred on the Council under Section 349 of the Act 
(statement of licensing policy). 

 
5. To exercise powers in relation to the following functions as specified in Schedule 1 

to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000: 

 
(i) all licensing and registration functions except those relating to town and 

country planning and the regulation of the use of the highway;  
 

(ii) functions under any ‘relevant statutory provision’ within the meaning of Part I 
of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, to the extent that those functions 
are discharged otherwise than in the Council’s capacity as employer; and 

 

(iii) associated functions under any local Act. 
 
6. To establish one or more Sub-Committees under Section 10(1) of the Licensing Act 

2003 and Section 154 of the Gambling Act 2005 consisting of three members of 
the Licensing Committee for the discharge of functions exercisable by the 
Committee under the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005. The 
functions to be exercised by the Sub-Committees include the functions set out at 
Appendix 1 and Appendix 2.  Licensing Act and Gambling Act Sub-Committees 
shall be chaired in accordance with the protocol set out at Appendix 3. 

 
7. To establish a Safety at Sports’ Grounds Sub-Committee consisting of three 

Members of Council to oversee the exercise of the Council’s functions in relation to 
safety at sports’ grounds. 

 
8. To establish a Public Protection Sub-Committee for the discharge of all other 

licensing, registration and regulatory functions within the terms of reference of the 
Licensing Committee not covered by the sub-committees in paragraphs 6 and 7 
above.  That in establishing a Public Protection Sub-Committee this is to be a Sub-
Committee of 9 Members (5:3:1) with up to 5 substitute Members for the Sub-
Committee Members being allowed (3:2:0).  The substitute Members for the Sub-
Committee can only be nominated from the membership of the Licensing 
Committee. 

 
 

Page 37



 10 

 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference, the 
Licensing Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on behalf of and in 
the name of the Council. 
 

Page 38



 11 

Appendix 1 to the Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference 

 

Delegated Functions 

 

Licensing Act 

 
TABLE OF DELEGATED FUNCTIONS 
 

Matter to be dealt 

with 

Full Committee Sub Committee Officers 

Application for 
personal licence 

 If a police objection is 
made 

If no objection is 
made 

Application for 
personal licence 
with unspent 
convictions 

 All Cases  

Application for 
premises 
licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation is 
made 

If no relevant 
representation is 
made 

Application for 
provisional 
statement 

 If a relevant 
representation is 
made 

If no relevant 
representation is 
made 

Application to vary 
premises 
licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation is 
made 

If no relevant 
representation is 
made 

Application to vary 
designated 
premises supervisor 

 If a police objection is 
made 

All other cases 

Request to be 
removed as 
designated 
premises supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for 
transfer of premises 
licence 

 If a police objection is 
made 

All other cases 

Application for 
interim authorities 

 If a police objection is 
made 

All other cases 

Application to review 
premises 
licence/club 
premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision to Serve 
Counter Notice to 
Temporary Event 
Notice 

 All cases  

 

 

Page 39



 12 

 

Appendix 2 to the Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference 

 

Delegated Functions 
 

Gambling Act 
 
TABLE OF DELEGATED FUNCTIONS 
 

Matter to be dealt with Full Council Sub-Committee 

of Licensing 

Committee 

Officers 

Final approval of three year licensing 
policy X   

Policy not to permit casinos X   

Fee setting (when appropriate)   

 
X 

Application for premises licences 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Application for a variation to a 
licence 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Application for a transfer of a licence 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received from 
the Commission 

Where no 
representations received 
from the Commission 

Application for a provisional 
statement 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Review of a premises licence  X  

Application for club gaming/club 
machine permits 

 

Where 
objections have 
been made (and 
not withdrawn) 

Where no objections 
made/objections have 
been withdrawn 

Cancellation of club gaming/club 
machine permits  

X 
 

Application for other permits   X 

Cancellation of licensed premises 
gaming machine permits   

X 

Consideration of temporary use 
notice   X 

Decision to give a counter notice to 
a temporary use notice  

X 
 

 

Page 40



 13 

Appendix 3 to the Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference  

 

 

List of proposed Chairs 
 
 

 

Name 

 
 

Order of 

Priority 

 
Chair of Licensing Committee 

 
 

 
1 

 
Vice-Chair of Licensing Committee 

 
 

 
2 

 
Opposition Spokesperson for Licensing 
Committee 
 

 
3 

 
Member of Licensing Committee  

 
 

 
4 

 
Member of Licensing Committee  

 
 

 
5 

 

 

 

Note: the order of priority is applicable when more than one chair is a member of the 
same Sub-Committee. 
 

Page 41



 14 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To exercise powers in relation to planning and development management over 

development proposals in the Borough in the context of Government and Council 
policies and guidance in order to maintain and improve the quality of life and the 
natural and built environment of the Borough. 

 
2. To exercise powers in relation to the following functions as specified in schedule 1 

to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000, as amended: 

 
(i) town and country planning; 

 
(ii) the protection and registration of common land or town and village greens 

and to register the variation of rights of common; and 
 

(iii) the exercise of powers relating to the regulation of the use of highways. 
 

3. To exercise powers under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 in respect 
of the discharge of functions under the Planning Acts to any other local authority. 

 
     
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference, the 
Planning and Development Management Committee shall have delegated power to 
resolve and to act on behalf of and in the name of the Council. 
 

Page 42



 15 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
 
1. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct. 
 
2. To make recommendations to Council on the council’s code of conduct and its 

register of interests. 
 
3. To determine by way of its Hearing Panel whether a breach of the code has 

occurred; if so, whether to take any action and, if so, what action to take. 
 
4. To determine appeals from the Monitoring Officer’s decision on dispensations. 
 
 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to the Committee in its terms of reference, 
the Standards Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on behalf of 
and in the name of the Council. 
 

Page 43



 16 

TRAFFORD PANDEMIC SCRUTINYCOMMITTEE 

 

Terms of Reference  
 

 
During the ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic a dedicated Scrutiny Committee has been 
set up to ensure democratic accountability and good governance around Council decision 
making is maintained during this period. 
 

1. Title 

 
The Committee to be named the Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee (TPSC).  
 

2. Operation 

 
 The TPSC will stand in place of Trafford Council’s normal scrutiny function until 30th 

September 2020 and the arrangement will be subject to review after 3 months. 
There will be one meeting each month. All meetings will take place in working hours, 
virtually, with a meeting scheduled to take place 7 working days after any meeting of 
the Executive principally to provide both pre and post decision scrutiny in relation to 
decisions. The other scheduled meetings will focus principally on topics proposed in 
agenda setting meetings to be held as set out below.  

 

3. Scope and function 

 
 The Committee will be appointed to discharge the functions conferred by Section 21 

of the Local Government Act 2000. The principal functions of the Committee will be 
to act as a critical friend to the Executive through the scrutiny of decisions taken 
during the period that the Council is obliged to operate under restricted measures 
and to add value through the pre-decision scrutiny of key decisions.  

 
 Within its scope and function the Scrutiny Committee will: 
 

A. Review and/or scrutinise policies; proposals; and decisions made or to be 

taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions. 

 
B. Make reports and/or recommendations to the Executive and/or Council where 

appropriate in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions; 

 
C. Add value to the Council through pre-decision scrutiny of key decisions through 

using the 28-day notice. 

 
D. Consider any urgent matter in relation to Covid-19 affecting the area or its 

inhabitants. 

 
E. Provide for appropriate scrutiny of issues of concern arising during the course 

of the ongoing pandemic 

 
F. Promote collaborative working with the Executive. 

 
G. Consider items that would normally have been considered by the substantive 

Committees where there is a legal requirement that such matters are 

reviewed/considered during the period of this emergency 

Page 44



 17 

 

4. Work Programme 

 
 The core function of the TPSC will be to review and add value to the Council’s 

decision making during a time of national emergency; to consider urgent Covid 

related matters; and to provide appropriate scrutiny in relation to issues of 

concern arising during the ongoing pandemic. The relevant Portfolio 

holder/Chief Officer will provide Members with a verbal report in respect of any 

decision which is being reviewed, or which is proposed to be made at the 

following Executive meeting, or in relation to any issue/matter subject to review. 

 
 The Work of the TPSC will focus on; 
 

 Public Questions - relating only to items on the Agenda 

 Post Decision Scrutiny - Members will receive an overview of recent key, 

delegated and urgent decisions that have been taken since the last meeting of 

the Executive and will have the opportunity to review such decisions.  

 Pre – decision Scrutiny - Members will be given an overview of key decisions 

that are expected to be taken over the following month and will have the 

opportunity to feed back any comments or concerns in relation to such 

proposed decisions to the Executive through the relevant Portfolio holder/Chief 

Officer. 

 Focussed Scrutiny – Members will be given an overview of agenda items 

which relate to urgent matters relating to the Covid pandemic or issues of 

concern arising during the ongoing pandemic  

 

5. Agenda Setting  

 
 The Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee, together with the Chairs of the 

suspended Children’s and Health Scrutiny Committees will meet regularly with the 
Statutory Scrutiny Officer in order to agree the agendas for the meetings taking 
place during the operation of the TPSC 

 

6. Task Groups 

 
 As the TPSC has been constituted to perform specific functions around decision 

making and will meet frequently for that purpose during the pandemic, it will not 
undertake Task and Finish work. 

 

7. Membership 

 
 The TPSC will have a membership of 17 Councillors who are not members of the 

Executive, appointed on a Proportional Representation basis by Council. Currently 8 
Labour, 5 Conservatives, 1 Liberal Democrat and 1 Green, to be nominated by 
group leaders. In addition the Chairs of the suspended Children’s Scrutiny 
Committee and Health Scrutiny Committees will be members of the Committee with 
full voting rights 

 

 Co-optees 
 
 The Committee will have no co-optees, but at the discretion of the Chair can invite 

co-optees of the suspended Children’s and Health Scrutiny Committees if a relevant 
item is to be considered by the TPSC. Page 45



 18 

 

8. Substitutes 

 
 There will be no substitutes allowed in order to aid the efficient short-term operation 

of the Committee. 
 

9. Chair and Vice Chair 

 
 The Committee will be chaired by the current chair of the main Scrutiny Committee 

and the Vice Chair will be the current vice chair of that committee. 

 

10. Quorum 

 
 The quorum shall be a third of Members of the Committee. 
 
 Where a meeting is inquorate those Members in attendance may meet informally but 

any decisions shall require appropriate ratification at the next quorate meeting of the 
TPSC. 

 

11. Public speaking 

 

 If a Member of the public wishes to ask a question on any item on the Agenda, they 
are required to indicate they wish to speak by 12 noon the day before the meeting, 
this is to allow Governance Services the necessary time to enable them to join a 
meeting and facilitate when they can speak. They can submit a written question that 
the Chair will ask instead, as long as it is received by Governance Services by 12 
noon the day before the meeting.  

Page 46



 19 

APPOINTMENTS AND APPEALS PANEL  

(EMPLOYMENT MATTERS) (THE “PANEL”) 
 
 

To act as the Council’s appeals body regarding appeals other than those for which 
specific arrangements have been established. 
 
All elected members of the authority shall be eligible to be appointed as a Panel member. 
Smaller numbers of members will constitute individual panels. 
 
The Appointment and Appeals Panel shall be constituted by the Monitoring Officer, unless 
a matter relates to the appointment, terms and conditions of employment, severance or 
dismissal of the Monitoring Officer in which case it shall be constituted by the Proper 
Officer, in accordance with relevant conditions of service and employment procedures, 
including Joint Negotiating Conditions (JNC) of Service in respect of Chief Officers.  
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Monitoring Officer, all Panels constituted for the 
purposes of staff appointments and related matters shall be constituted in accordance 
with the political balance of the Council and will have a membership of at least 3, except 
when constituted for Investigating and Disciplinary functions when the minimum shall 
be 5. 
 
The Panel shall: 
 

• act as the Council’s appeals body regarding appeals other than those for which 
specific arrangements have been established; 

 
• be (except in exceptional circumstances) responsible for staff appointments and 

related matters regarding short-listing and interview of external and internal 
applicants and appointments of Corporate Directors and Directors (Statutory and 
Non-Statutory Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers as defined in the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules) in accordance with the Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules; 
 

• short-listing applicants and appointments of Joint Council / Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group Director level posts. Appointment panels to consist of one 
member from each political party and 2 from the Governing Body; 

 
• except in exceptional circumstances, approve the interim appointment of Chief 

Officers; 
  
• act as an investigatory and disciplinary Panel in accordance with the Local 

Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001, as amended in 2015 and 
JNC Conditions of Service and the Appendix to the Officer Employment Procedure 
Rules; 

     
• be responsible for appeals in accordance with the disciplinary and grievance 

procedures; 
 
• be responsible for appeals by employees against grading. 

 
 
 
 
 Page 47



 20 

 
For meetings of Appointment and Appeal Committees the quorum shall be as follows: 
 
(i)  for a committee comprising 3 members the quorum shall be 2; 
(ii)  for a committee comprising 5 members the quorum shall be 3; 
(iii)  in all other cases the quorum shall be 4.

Page 48



 21 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 
Terms of Reference  
 
1. To provide strong leadership and direction of the health and wellbeing agenda by 

agreeing priority outcomes for health and wellbeing. 
 
2. To develop a shared understanding of the needs of the local population and lead the 

statutory Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). 
 
3. To seek to meet those needs by producing a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 

Trafford and ensure that it drives commissioning of relevant services. 
  
4. To drive a genuine collaborative approach to commissioning of improved health and 

care services which improve the health and wellbeing of local people and reduces 
health inequalities. 

 
5. To promote joined–up commissioning plans across the NHS, social care and public 

health. 
 
6. To have oversight of local Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and local authority 

commissioning plans. 
 
7. To operate as a thematic partnership within the context of the Sustainable 

Community Strategy Trafford 2021 and align its work to the Trafford Partnership in 
that capacity. 

 
8. To improve local democratic accountability and engage with the Health and 

Wellbeing Forum which includes Trafford residents, service providers and other key 
stakeholders to understand health and wellbeing needs in Trafford. 

  
9. To monitor and review the delivery of health and wellbeing improvements and 

outcomes through robust performance monitoring.  

Page 49



 22 

Item 7: APPENDIX 3 
 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

Note on Membership: In accordance with Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) recommended practice the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Accounts 
and Audit Committee should not also be a Chair or Vice-Chair of an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee / Select Committee. 

 

 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT 

 
 

 

 
9 

       
(plus 1 Co-optee) 

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 

    

Barry Brotherton CH Chris Boyes OS  Geraldine Coggins 

Jayne Dillon Nathan Evans   
Judith Lloyd V-CH Alan Mitchell   
Rose Thompson    
Barry Winstanley    

    

TOTAL  5 3 0 1 
 

 

 

 

 
NON-VOTING CO-OPTEE (1) – Mrs. Jeannie Platt 

Page 50



 23 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

 

Note on Membership: Members of the Employment Committee will also be appointed as 
representatives of the Council (Employer’s Side) on the Joint Consultative Panel. 

 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
EMPLOYMENT 

 
 

 

 
9 

       

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 

    
David Acton Chris Boyes - - 
Akilah Akinola John Holden    

Joanne Bennett CH Brian Rigby OS   
Mike Cordingley    
Rose Thompson    

Amy Whyte V-CH    

    

TOTAL  6 3 0 0 

    
    

Substitute 

Members:    

   

    
vacancy  Sean Anstee - - 
    
 (1) (1) (0) (0) 
    

 

Page 51



 24 

 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

Notes on Membership:  
 
(1) It is advisable that the number of members serving on both the Licensing and Planning 
and Development Management Committees in each political group is kept to a minimum 
to ensure that the potential for conflicts of interest is kept to a minimum. 
 
(2) All Licensing Committee Members may be called upon as Members of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee, the meetings for which are held during the working day. Therefore, it 
would be preferable if Members serving on this Committee could also be available during 
the day time.    

 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
LICENSING 

 
 

 

 
15 

       

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 

    
Barry Brotherton  Dan Bunting Julian Newgrosh Michael Welton 

David Jarman CH Dylan Butt OS   
Steven Longden Mrs. Claire Churchill   
Adele New John Holden   
Whit Stennett Patrick Myers   
Sophie Taylor    
Simon Thomas V-CH    
Denise Western    

    

TOTAL  8 5 1 1 
 

Page 52



 25 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

Note on Membership: It is advisable that the number of members serving on both the 
Planning & Development Management and Licensing Committees in each political group 
is kept to a minimum to ensure that the potential for conflicts of interest is kept to a 
minimum. 
 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT  

MANAGEMENT 
 

 

 
13 

       
(plus 7 Substitutes) 

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 

    
Mike Cordingley Dr. Karen Barclay Meena Minnis Daniel Jerrome 

Ben Hartley V-CH Thomas Carey   
Kevin Procter Dave Morgan   
Whit Stennett Brian Rigby OS   
Simon Thomas    

Aidan Williams CH    
Barry Winstanley     

    

TOTAL  7 4 1 1 
    

Substitute 

Members:    

   

    
David Acton Nathan Evans Julian Newgrosh Michael Welton 
Akilah Akinola John Holden   
vacancy    
    
 (3) (2) (1) (1) 
    
 

Page 53



 26 

 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 
 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
STANDARDS 

 
 

 

 
11 

 
+ 2 PARISH REPRESENTATIVES 

+ 3 INDEPENDENT MEMBERS 
 

+ 2 INDEPENDENT PERSONS  
(of the Hearing Panel) 

       

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 

    
Dr. Serena Carr Miss Linda Blackburn V-CH Julian Newgrosh Geraldine Coggins 
Karina Carter Dylan Butt   
Ben Hartley Patrick Myers   
David Jarman    

Kevin Procter CH    
Denise Western    
    

    

TOTAL  6 3 1 1 
 

 

 
NON-VOTING CO-OPTEES (5) 
 

2 Parish Representatives: Mr. A. Rudden and 1 vacancy 

3 Independent Members:  Mr. D. Goodman, Mr. C. Griffiths and Mr. R. Brown 
 

INDEPENDENT PERSONS OF THE HEARING PANEL (2) 

(under Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011):  Ms. N. Jackson and Mr. M. Whiting 
   

Page 54



 27 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

 

Notes on Membership:  
 
 (1) The Scrutiny Committee shall have a membership of 17, or, where this does not 
achieve the political balance required under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, 
whatever figure is necessary to reflect the proportional representation of political groups. 
 
(2) The Scrutiny Committee shall be chaired by a Councillor who is a member of the 
largest political group on the Council. The person appointed as Vice-Chair shall not be a 
member of the same political group as the person appointed as Chair. 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
TRAFFORD PANDEMIC  
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

 

 
17 

 
 
 

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 

    

David Acton1 CH Sean Anstee Julian Newgrosh Geraldine Coggins 

Barry Brotherton Dr. Karen Barclay3   
Dr. Serena Carr Miss Linda Blackburn   
Judith Lloyd John Holden   
Steven Longden John Lamb2 V-CH   
Rose Thompson Brian Shaw   
Denise Western4    
Amy Whyte    
Barry Winstanley    
    
    
    
    

TOTAL  9 6 1 1 
 

 
Chair and Vice-Chairs of the temporally suspended Scrutiny Committees 
 

1 Scrutiny Committee Chair 
2 Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chair 
3 Health Scrutiny Committee Chair 

Health Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chair – Councillor Sophie Taylor 
4 Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chair 

Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chair – Councillor Thomas Carey 
 

 

Page 55



 28 

 

 

TRAFFORD PANDEMIC SCRUNTINY COMMITTEE CO-OPTED MEMBERS FOR 

EDUCATION MATTERS 
 
 
Church of England (VOTING MEMBER): Vacancy 
 

Roman Catholic (VOTING MEMBER): Sister P. Goodstadt 
 
 
Parent-Governor Representatives 

 
Primary (VOTING MEMBER):  
 
Secondary (VOTING MEMBER):   

 
Special (VOTING MEMBER):   

 

 
Teacher Representatives 

 
(NON-VOTING MEMBER):  

 
(NON-VOTING MEMBER):  
 
(NON-VOTING MEMBER):  
  

Page 56



 29 

Item 7: APPENDIX 4 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
PUBLIC PROTECTION  

SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

 

 
9 

       

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
    
Barry Brotherton Dan Bunting - Michael Welton 

David Jarman CH Dylan Butt OS    

Simon Thomas V-CH Mrs. Claire Churchill   
Sophie Taylor    
1 appointment to be 
confirmed 

   

    

TOTAL  5 3 0 1 
 

[5 Substitutes: Councillors John Holden, Steven Longden, Patrick Myers, Adele New, and Whit 
Stennett.] 

 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To exercise powers in relation to the following functions as specified in Schedule 1 

to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000: 

 

(iv) all licensing and registration functions except those relating to town and 
country planning, the regulation of the use of the highway and Safety at 
Sports Grounds. 

 

(v) functions under any ‘relevant statutory provision’ within the meaning of Part I 
of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, to the extent that those functions 
are discharged otherwise than in the Council’s capacity as employer; and 

 

(vi) associated functions under any local Act. 
 
2.   Membership of the Public Protection Sub-Committee shall comprise 9 Members 

(5:3:1) with up to 5 substitute Members being allowed (3:2:0).  The substitute 
Members for the Public Protection Sub-Committee can only be nominated from the 
membership of the Licensing Committee. 

 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference, the Public 
Protection Sub-Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on behalf of 
and in the name of the Council. 

Page 57



 30 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

 
Membership to be drawn from all members 
of the Licensing Committee. 
 
Order of priority for Chairing a meeting 
applies when more than one of the 
appointed chairs is a member of the same 
Sub-Committee. 

 

 
CHAIRS 

 

 
5 

       

CHAIR  ORDER OF PRIORITY  

   
David Jarman                    1 Chair of Licensing 
Simon Thomas                    2 Vice-Chair of Licensing 
Dylan Butt                    3 Opposition Spokesperson 
Barry Brotherton                    4 Member of Licensing 
to be confirmed                    5 Member of Licensing 
   

TOTAL  5   

 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Terms of Reference 
 

1. To exercise the Licensing Sub-Committee’s functions under the Licensing Act 2003 
regarding consideration of contested applications and reviews. 

 
2.   To establish one or more Sub-Committees under Section 10 (1) of the Licensing 

Act 2003 consisting of three members of the Licensing Committee for the 
discharge of functions exercisable by the Committee under the Licensing Act 2003.  
The functions to be exercised by the Sub Committees include the functions set out 
at Agenda Item 4, Appendix 1.   

 
3. To establish one or more Sub-Committees under Section 154 of the Gambling Act 

2005 consisting of three members of the Licensing Committee for the discharge of 
functions exercisable by the Committee under the Gambling Act 2005.  The 
functions to be exercised by the Sub-Committees include the functions set out at 
Agenda Item 4, Appendix 2. 

 
4. Sub-Committees shall be appointed as follows:- 
 

(a)  one Member to be taken from the list of proposed Chair; 
(b) the other two Members to be drawn from membership of the Licensing 

Committee, and may include Members from the list of Chairs; 

Page 58



 31 

(c) the membership of the Sub-Committees to reflect the political balance of the 
Council where possible; 

(d) subject to the above, membership of the Sub-Committees to be determined by 
the Director of Legal and Democratic Services in consultation with the Chair of 
the Licensing Committee; 

(e) where possible a Sub-Committee will not consider applications relating to 
premises located in the wards represented by its members. 

 
5. When the Licensing Sub-Committee consists of more than one member from the 

list of Chairs it will be chaired in accordance with the order of priority. 
 
 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference, the 
Licensing Sub-Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on behalf of 
and in the name of the Council. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



 32 

 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

 

Note on Membership: Membership of the Sub-Committee should not include ward 
Members for the wards where the relevant stadia are situated, currently Gorse Hill, Hale 
Central and Longford, to minimise potential conflicts of interest. 

 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
SAFETY AT SPORTS GROUNDS  

SUB-COMMITTEE  
(to be appointed by  

Licensing Committee) 

 

 
3 

       

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
    

Kevin Procter V-CH John Holden - - 

Amy Whyte CH    

    

TOTAL  2 1 0 0 
 

 
Terms of Reference 

 
To receive reports from the Safety at Sports Grounds Advisory Group, or other source, in 
relation to any matters concerning safety at sports grounds in the Borough.  To promote 
public awareness of safety issues arising from those reports and to undertake annual 
inspections of the sports grounds on behalf of the Council. 
 
 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference, the Safety 
at Sports Grounds Sub-Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on 
behalf of and in the name of the Council.  

 

Page 60



 33 

Item 7: APPENDIX 5 

 

 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2020/21 

 

Notes on Membership:  
 
(1) The Council Membership is nominated by the Leader of the Council. 
 
(2) The Chair for the Health and Wellbeing Board will rotate on an annual basis between 
Trafford Council and NHS Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group. 
 
(3) * Denotes that this position must be represented on the HWB as per the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012 (Note: at least one Councillor, one member of each relevant CCG, a 
representative of the local Healthwatch organisation plus any other members considered 
appropriate by the Council, must be appointed.) 

 

 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 
5 
 

(plus *Corporate Director of Children 
Services, Corporate Director of Adult 

Services, *Director of Public Health and  
16 External Partners)  

 

LABOUR 

GROUP 

CONSERVATIVE  

GROUP 

LIBERAL 

DEMOCRAT 

GROUP 

GREEN PARTY 

GROUP 

Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
    
Executive Member for 
Health, Wellbeing and 
Equalities 

 

Shadow Executive 
Member for Health, 
Wellbeing and 
Equalities 

Jane Brophy  

Executive Member for 
Adult Social Care 

 

   

Executive Member for 
Children’s Social Care 

   

    
    

TOTAL  3 1 1 0 
 

Page 61



 34 

 
Membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board shall also comprise of: 
 NHS Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group (3 representatives: Chair, Chief Operating Officer and 

Clinical Director/Representative) 

 Chair of Health Watch 

 Third Sector (2 representatives) 

 Independent Chair Children’s Local Safeguarding Board 

 Independent Chair Adult Safeguarding Board 

 Chair of the Safer Trafford Partnership - GMP 

 Chair of the Trafford Sports and Physical Activity Partnership 

 Chief Executive Officers of health care providers (4): (Central Manchester University Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust; University Hospital South Manchester NHS Foundation Trust; Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust; Greater Manchester West Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust) 

 Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service Representative 

 Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partner Representative 

  

 

Page 62



  

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 

Report to:  Annual Meeting of the Council  

Date: 25 November 2020 

Report for:  Decision 

Report of:  Chief Executive 

 

Report Title 

 

 

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE AND INDEPENDENT BODIES 

 

 

Summary 

 
 

To agree the appointment of representatives to outside and independent bodies 
relating to the service areas and functions of the Council for the remainder of the 
2020/21 Municipal Year. 
 

Additionally, there is a more extensive list of outside and independent bodies whose 
activities relate to Executive functions. The Council is asked to note the 
representatives on these bodies which are to be confirmed by the Leader of the 
Council. 
 

 

Recommendation(s) 

 
 

1. That approval be given to the appointment of representatives to those outside 
and independent bodies set out in Appendix 1 to this report. 
 

2. That the Council notes the representatives appointed by the Leader of the 
Council to those outside, independent and Executive bodies set out in Appendix 2 
to this report. 

 

3. That the Chief Executive, in consultation with the relevant Group Leader(s), be 
delegated authority to appoint members to any outside body vacancy that 
remains or arises after this Annual Meeting and to any other bodies to which the 
Council is required to make appointments (and when such appointments 
specifically relate to Council functions, to report back to Council on any changes 
or new appointments so made).   

 

4. That the Council approves the persons named in Appendix 3 to sit on the 
Statutory School Appeals Committee for the remainder of the 2020/21 Municipal 
Year and that the Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy be 
delegated authority to make changes to this list and to set up School Appeals 
Committees, including the appointment of Chairs. 

 

 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 

Name:  Ian Cockill 
Extension:  1387 
 

Background Papers: None. Page 63

Agenda Item 8



  

 

Item 8: Appendix 1 
 

 

TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES AND ORGANISATIONS 

 

PERSONS NOMINATED – 2020/21 

 

APPOINTMENTS MADE BY THE COUNCIL 

 

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

   Required         LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

 
 
 

2020/21 

Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 
1.  

 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
(GMCA) / Association of Greater 
Manchester Authorities (AGMA) 

 

    

 (a) AGMA Executive Board 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1 
 

(Leader of the 
Council plus 1 

named substitute 
from the Executive) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 
 
 

 

 

Andrew Western 
 

Substitute: 
Catherine Hynes 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 (b) GMCA 1 
 

(Leader plus 
substitute) 

1:0:0:0 Andrew Western 
 

Substitute: 
Catherine Hynes 

 
 

 

 (c) GMCA Audit Committee  1 
 

(Cannot be  
the Leader) 

 
(Appointed by 
GMCA not a 

Council nomination) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

GMCA Executive to determine 
 

(Chris Boyes) 

 

 (d) GMCA Scrutiny Committees 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 
 

(having regard to 
equality and 

diversity and the 
conurbation’s 
population) 

4:2:0:0  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 (i) Corporate Issues and Reform  
 

  Anne Duffield 
 (1st preference) 

 

 

 (ii) Economy, Business Growth and 
Skills 

  Barry Brotherton 
 (1st preference) 

 

 

 (iii) Housing, Planning and 
Environment 

  Kevin Procter 
 (1st preference) 

 

 

 (iv) 2nd Preference Pool (3 Members) 
 
 
*change confirmed by GMCA 

  Amy Whyte 
 (No preference) 

 
David Morgan* 

(Corporate Issues and Reform) 
 

Sean Anstee* 
(Scrutiny Pool) 

 

 

Page 64



  

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

   Required         LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

 
 
 

2020/21 

Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 (e) Greater Manchester Culture and 
Social Impact Fund Committee 

 

1  
 

(plus substitute) 

 
Membership to 
replicate AGMA 

Statutory Functions 
(o) below 

 

1:0:0:0 Liz Patel 
 

Deputy:  
Mike Freeman 

 
 

 

 

 (f)  Greater Manchester Health 
Scrutiny Committee 

1 
Non-Executive 

Member 

 
(plus Non-Executive 

substitute) 

 

1:0:0:0 

 

Sophie Taylor 
 

Substitute: 
Anne Duffield 

 

 (g) Greater Manchester Pensions 
Fund Management Panel 

 

1 
 
 

1:0:0:0 AGMA Executive to determine 
 

(Alan Mitchell) 
 

 

 (h) Greater Manchester Police and 
Crime Panel 

 

1 
 

(Cannot be  
the Leader) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

 

Graham Whitham 
 

Substitute cannot be Leader:  
Mike Freeman 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 (i) Greater Manchester Police and 
Crime Steering Group 

 

1 
 

(Cannot be  
the Leader) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

 

Mike Freeman  

 (j) Greater Manchester Transport 
Committee 

1 
 

(plus substitute) 

 
 

(plus 1 nominee to 
be appointed by the 

GM Mayor, 
ensuring that 

political balance 
across GM is 
represented) 

 

1:1:0:0 Stephen Adshead  
 

Substitute: 
James Wright 

 
 

 

 (k) Greater Manchester Waste and 
Recycling Committee 

 

2 1:1:0:0 Stephen Adshead  
Brian Shaw 

 

 
 
 

 (l) Greater Manchester Work and 
Skills Executive 

 

1 
 

Executive Member 
for Work & Skills 

 

1:0:0:0 James Wright  
 

 (m) Health and Social Care 
Partnership Board 

 

1 
 

(plus substitute) 

1:0:0:0 
 

Andrew Western 
 

Substitute:  
Jane Slater 

 

 

 (n) Health and Social Care Joint 
Commissioning Board 

 

1 
 

(plus substitute) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

Jane Slater 
 

Substitute:  
Andrew Western  

 

 

Page 65



  

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

   Required         LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

 
 
 

2020/21 

Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 (o) Planning and Housing 
Commission 

1 
 

Member from 
Planning & Housing 

portfolio holders 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

 

AGMA Executive to agree final 
membership 

 
James Wright 

 

 

 (p) Statutory Functions Committee 

 

1 
 

Membership to 
replicate GM 

Culture & Sound 
Impact Fund 

Committee (e) 
above 

 

1:0:0:0 

 

Liz Patel 
 

Substitute:  
Mike Freeman 

 

 

 (q) Nominations invited to be made, 
should the Council wish to do so:  

 

    

 (i) Christie Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust: Council of Governors 

 

1 
 

(3 year appointment 
no momination 

required)  

 

1:0:0:0 
 

AGMA Executive to determine 
 

 

 (ii) Halle 1 1:0:0:0 
 

AGMA Executive to determine 

 
 

 (iii) Peoples History Museum: Charity 
Trustee role 

 

1 1:0:0:0 
 

AGMA Executive to determine 
 

 

 (iv) Transport for the North – 
Substitute Member for the GM 
Mayor 
 

1 
 

1:0:0:0 
 

GMCA Executive to determine 
Andrew Western 

 

 (v) Transport for the North – Scrutiny 
Committee 

1 
 

(plus substitute) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

GMCA Executive to determine 
 

 

3.  Local Government Association - 
General Assembly 

4 3:1:0:0 Joanne Harding 
Catherine Hynes 
Andrew Western 

Nathan Evans 
  

 

4.  Manchester Port Health Authority 1  
 

(plus deputy) 

 

1:0:0:0 Graham Whitham 
 

Deputy: 
Jayne Dillon 

 

 

5.  North West Employers  1  
 

(plus deputy) 

 

1:0:0:0 Joanne Bennett 
 

Deputy: 
Amy Whyte 

 

 

 

 
6.  Statutory School Admissions Appeals 

Committee 
 

(See appendix 2 attached – not 
Council members) 

  

 

Page 66



  

 

Item 8: Appendix 2 
 

 
TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE, INDEPENDENT AND EXECUTIVE BODIES 

 

PERSONS NOMINATED – 2020/21 

 

 

APPOINTMENTS MADE BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

 

 
Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

Required       LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

2020/21 
Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 

1  Age UK (Trafford) 
 

2 2:0:0:0 Joanne Harding 
Kevin Procter 

 

 

2 Altrincham and Sale Chamber of 
Commerce 

1 (plus 
1 Deputy) 

1:0:0:0 James Wright 
Deputy: Amy Whyte 

 

 

3 Assets of Community Value  
 

Pool of 12 
 

Panel comprises 
7 Members 

(4:2:0:1) 
 

To be Chaired 
by the Executive 

Member for 
Communities 

and Partnerships 

7:4:0:1 
 

(agreed no LD 
nominee) 

 
 
 
 
 

Akilah Akilnola 
David Jarman 

Liz Patel 
Kevin Procter 

Simon Thomas 
Amy Whyte 

Barry Winstanley 
Dylan Butt 

Rob Chilton 
Denise Haddad 

Brian Rigby 
Daniel Jerrome 

 

 

4 Bollin Valley Scheme Steering 
Committee 

2  
(plus 2 

Deputies) 
 

2:0:0:0 Aidan Williams 
Steven Longden 

 
Deputies: Vacant 

 

 

5 Bridgewater Canal Trust 
 

1 1:0:0:0 Barry Brotherton  

6 Citizens’ Advice Trafford 
 

1 1:0:0:0 James Wright  

 Corporate Parenting Board  3 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Children’s 

Services,  
Shadow Member 

for Children’s 
Services, 

Leader / Deputy 
Leader of the 

Council 
 

2:1:0:0 Cath Hynes 
Andrew Western 

Sean Anstee 
 

 

7 Early Years Strategic Board 
 

3 2:1:0:0 Karina Carter 
Cath Hynes 

Miss Linda Blackburn 
 

 

8 Greater Manchester Accessible 
Transport Ltd. – Ring and Ride 
Steering Group 
 

1 
 

1:0:0:0 James Wright  

Page 67



  

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

Required       LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

2020/21 
Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 

9 Greater Manchester Forests 
Partnership 
 
 

2 
 

Executive 
Member(s) for 
Planning and 
Environment 

 

2:0:0:0 Steve Adshead 
Liz Patel 

 

 
 

10 Groundwork, Manchester, Salford, 
Stockport, Tameside and Trafford 
 

 

1 local authority 
Nominated 

Trustee 
 

1:0:0:0 
 

Sophie Taylor  

11 Investment Management Board 6 Agreed 
3:1:1:1 

 
(All Group 
Leaders, 
Executive 

Member for 
Housing & 

Regeneration, 
Executive 

Member for 
Finance & 

Investment and 
Chief Executive 

plus Shadow 
Member for 
Housing & 

Regeneration as 
a non-voting 

Member) 
 

Andrew Western 
Tom Ross 

James Wright 
Nathan Evans 
Jane Brophy 

Geraldine Coggins 

 

12 Larkhill Centre Community 
Association – General Committee 
 

1 Agreed 
0:0:1:0 

Julian Newgrosh 
 

 

13 Local Government Association 
Founder Members Mutual Member 
 

1 1:0:0:0 Andrew Western  

14 Local Strategic Partnership 2  
(plus Chief 
Executive) 

 

2:0:0:0 Andrew Western 
Graham Whitham 

 

 

15  Manchester Airport Consultative 
Committee 
 
 

3 
(plus 1 Deputy) 

2:1:0:0 
 
 

Liz Patel 
Barry Winstanley 

Chris Boyes 
 

Deputy: Graham Whitham 
 

 

16 Manchester University NHS 
Foundation Trust (MFT) – 
Nominated Governor 
 
Note: must not be a member of a 
local authority's scrutiny committee 
covering health matters 

 

1 
 

(3 year 
appointment) 

 

0:1:0:0 Chris Boyes 
 

(until October 2023) 

 

17 North West Reserve Forces and 
Cadets Association (NWRFCA) 
 

1 1:0:0:0 Judith Lloyd  

18 One Trafford Partnership Board 3 2:1:0:0 Stephen Adshead 
Andrew Western 

Dylan Butt 
 

 

19 Parking and Traffic Regulations 
Outside London (PATROL) 
Adjudication Joint Committee / Bus 
Lane Adjudication Service Joint 
Committee 
 

1 (plus  
1 Deputy) 

1:0:0:0 Stephen Adshead 
 

Deputy: 
Mike Freeman 

 

Page 68



  

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

Required       LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

2020/21 
Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 

20 Standing Advisory Council for 
Religious Education (SACRE) 

7 4:2:1:0 
 

(agreed no Green 
nominee) 

 
 
 

Karina Carter 
Dave Jarman 

Shirley Procter 
Whit Stennett 

Miss Linda Blackburn 
Dave Morgan 
LD Nominee 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
21 Sale Town Centre Partnership 

 
1 1:0:0:0 Barry Brotherton  

22 Sharon Youth Association 
Management Committee 
 

2 2:0:0:0 
 

Akilah Akinola 
Whit Stennett 

 

 

23 Stretford War Memorial Red Cross 
Public Nursing Services 
 

1 1:0:0:0 Judith Lloyd  

24 Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale 
(STaR) Joint Committee 
 

1 (plus 1 
Substitute) 

 

1:0:0:0 
 

(Executive 
Member for 

Finance plus 1 
Executive 

Member to be 
appointed as a 

Substitute) 
 

Tom Ross 
Substitute: Catherine Hynes 

 

25 Teachers Joint Negotiating 
Committee (Schools) 

 
 

4  
 

To be appointed 
as per the JNC 

Constitution 
 
 

3:1:0:0 
 

(Executive 
Members for 
Education, 

Children’s Social 
Services, Chair of 
the Employment 
Committee and 

the Shadow  
Member for 
Education) 

 

Karina Carter 
Mike Freeman 
David Acton 
Brian Rigby 

 

26 Timperley Village Club - 
Management Committee 

1 (observer)  Agreed 
0:0:1:0 

Meena Minnis 
 
 

 

27 Trafford Arts Association  2 2:0:0:0 Barry Brotherton 
Liz Patel 

 

 

28 Trafford Safeguarding Children 
Board 
 

2 
 

2:0:0:0 Joanne Harding 
Catherine Hynes 

 

 

29 Trafford Community Leisure Trust 
 

2 2:0:0:0 Whit Stennett 
Liz Patel 

 

 
 

30 Trafford Housing Trust Customer 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

1  1:0:0:0 Joanne Bennett  

31 Trafford Sports Council 
 
 

2 
 
 

2:0:0:0 Judith Lloyd 
Kevin Procter 

 

32 Trans-Pennine Trail  
 
 

2 2:0:0:0 Mike Cordingley 
Ben Hartley 

 

 

33 University of Manchester – General 
Assembly 
 
(3 year appointment) 
 

1 1:0:0:0 Graham Whitham 
 

(until June 2021) 
 

 

Page 69



  

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

Required       LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

2020/21 
Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 

34 Victim Support - Trafford 
(Management Committee) 
 
 
 
 

1 1:0:0:0 Adele New  

 
 
 

 

CHARITIES 

    

35 The James Bradshaw Charity and 
the Bradshaw Educational and 
Richard Newton Foundations 
 
(3 year appointment)  
 

3 2:1:0:0 Simon Thomas 
(until June 2021) 

 
Laurence Walsh 
(until June 2021) 

 
John Holden 

(until June 2023) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

36 Mayor's Land Charity and New 
Town Night School Fund 
 

3 
(The Mayor, 

Deputy Mayor 
and Retiring 

Mayor) 
 

2:1:0:0 
 
 

Mayor: Rob Chilton 
Deputy: Laurence Walsh 

Retiring: Tom Ross 
 

 

37 Frances Del Panno Trust As set out  The Mayor 
Chief Executive & 

Chief Finance Officer 
are ex-officio Trustees 

 

 

38 Sale Educational Foundation 
 
Note: The Charity requests the 
appointment of Members living in 
Sale and representing Sale wards. 
 

10 
(Need not be 

Elected 
Members) 

 

6:3:1:0 
 
 

Joanne Bennett 
Barry Brotherton 
Steven Longden 

Adele New 
Liz Patel 

Rose Thompson 
Chris Boyes 

Mrs. Denise Haddad 
John Holden 
LD Nominee 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

COMPANY DIRECTORSHIPS 
 

    

39 Trafford Bruntwood LLP 
 
 

1 
 

 

1:0:0:0 Andrew Western 
Corporate Director Place 

Corporate Director Finance & Systems 
Chris Oglesby 
Chris Roberts 
Kevin Crotty 

 

 

40 Trafford ES LLP 1 
 
 

1:0:0:0 Andrew Western 
Corporate Director Place 

Corporate Director Finance & Systems 
Michael Dwan 

Timothy Edghill 
John Connolly 

 

 

41 Trafford Leisure Community Interest 
Company Limited Board of Directors 
 

1 
 
 

1:0:0:0 Liz Patel 
Susan Aldridge 
Yvonne Burke 
Gareth Evans 
Daniel Gidney 

Eamonn O’Rourke 
Eleanor Roaf 

Andrew Worthington 
 

 

Page 70



  

Organisation Number of  

Representatives 

Required       LAB:CON:LD:GRN 

2020/21 
Appointments  

 

Councillor(s) 

 

 

42 Trafford Regeneration and 
Investment Limited 
 
 

1 
(plus Chief 
Executive) 

 

1:0:0:0 Andrew Western 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Note: Re 39 to 42 
Where these are Directors’ 
appointments it will be necessary for 
the current members to sign 
resignation forms and for new 
members to be appointed and the 
details need to be lodged at the 
Companies Registry. 
 

    

Page 71



  

 

 

 

Item 8: Appendix 3 
 

 

STATUTORY SCHOOL ADMISSION APPEALS COMMITTEE – 

PANEL MEMBERS FOR 2020/21 

 

 

Lay People: 
 
Mrs. Bracegirdle Mr. Lea 
Mrs Broadstock Mr. Munday (Chair) 
Mrs. Finn (Chair) Mr. Padden 
Ms. Hall Mrs. Smith (Chair) 
Mrs. Javaid Mr. Turner 
Mrs. A. Jones Mr. Whitehead (Chair) 
Mrs. Keavney  
 
 

People with an Interest in Education: 
 
Mrs. Coulburn Mrs. D. Jones 
Ms. Dawson-Smith Mrs. Kelly 
Mrs. Dee Mrs. Peters 
Mr. Flannery Mrs. Quest 
Mrs. Foan (Chair) Mrs. Sher (Chair) 
Mr. Hall (Chair) Ms Sproston 
Mrs. Hassan  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:  Annual Meeting of the Council  
Date: 25 November 2020  
Report for:  Decision 
Report of:  Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy 

and Monitoring Officer 
 
Report Title 
 

 
DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS  
 

 
Summary 
 

 
To confirm arrangements for the delegation of Council (non-Executive) and Executive 
functions and to obtain Council’s agreement to amend the Constitution of the Council 
to incorporate these arrangements.  
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
1) That Council notes that Executive functions not covered by the Officers’ Scheme of 

Delegation are delegated by the Leader of the Council as follows: 
 

(a) functions are delegated to all individual Executive Members in accordance with 
the Executive Members’ Scheme of Delegation, as set out in the Appendix; 

 
(b) all other functions are delegated to the Executive. 

 
2) That the Scheme of Delegation to Officers and the changes to Part 4 of the 

Constitution, as set out in Appendix, be approved. 
 
3) That the Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy be authorised 

to amend the Constitution of the Council in accordance with and as a consequence 
of this report and other decisions made by Council at this Annual Meeting. 

 

4) That Council notes that further changes may be made to delegations and that the 
Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy be authorised to 
amend the Constitution following consultation with the Leader and Chief Executive.   

 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Ian Cockill  
Extension:  1387 
 
Background Papers:   
 

Constitution of the Council 

 
 Page 73

Agenda Item 11a



 
1. Background 
 
1.1 It is the duty of the Council’s Monitoring Officer to review the Constitution from 

time to time and to propose amendments to the Council. Generally 
amendments are proposed at the Council’s Annual Meeting to reflect any 
changes which are proposed to the schemes of delegation for both Members 
and Officers, together with any further amendments which may be considered 
to be necessary for the efficient and effective management of the Council and 
Council services. 

 
 
2. Executive Scheme of Delegation 
 
2.1 The Leader of the Council determines how, and by whom, executive functions 

are carried out. The Leader has agreed a scheme of delegation of executive 
functions to the individual members of the Executive. The Executive Scheme of 
Delegation is set out in the Responsibility for Functions document in the 
appendix. This document forms Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution. Changes 
have been made to reflect changes to portfolios as reported to Council under 
item 5 “Leader of the Council and Membership of the Executive”. 

 
 
3. Officer Scheme of Delegation 
 
3.1 Changes to the Officer Scheme of Delegation are recommended to ensure that 

the Constitution is in line with changed statutory regulations and also current 
Council policy. The Officer Scheme of Delegation also forms Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution and the proposed changes are detailed in the appendix. 
  

3.2 Minor changes are also proposed to the Financial Procedure Rules which are 
included in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution. These changes are also set out 
in the appendix. 
 

3.3 There may need to be other changes throughout the year and it is 
recommended that these be dealt with by the Corporate Director of 
Governance and Community Strategy following consultation with the Leader 
and Chief Executive. 

Page 74



 

ITEM 11a - APPENDIX 
 
  

PART 3 
 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 75



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 2 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
 

1. RESPONSIBILITY FOR LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS 
 

 
Function 

 

 
Decision making body and 

Delegations 
 

1. Any function under a Local Act in so far as it 
relates to registration, licensing and 
regulatory functions.  All other functions 
under the Act shall be executive functions. 
 

The appropriate regulatory committee 

2. The determination of any appeal against 
any decision made by or on behalf of the 
Authority for which no specific provision has 
been made. 
 

The Appointments and Appeals Panel 
or such other body or person as is 
specified in relevant council policies.  

3. The making of arrangements pursuant to 
section 51A of the Education Act 2002 and 
the School Discipline (Pupil Exclusions and 
Reviews) (England) Regulations 2012 

The Corporate Director of Governance 
and Community Strategy is given 
delegated authority to appoint to and 
make changes to Panels and to make 
all necessary arrangements for the 
determination of appeals in accordance 
with prescribed regulations and 
guidance.  
 
 

4. The making of arrangements pursuant to 
section 94(1) and (4) and schedule 4 of the 
Education Act 2002 and the School 
Admissions (Appeals Arrangements) 
(England) regulations 2012.  
 

As 3 above. 

5. The making of arrangements pursuant to 
s95 (2) SSFA 1998 and schedule 4 of the 
EA 2002  and school admissions (appeals 
arrangements) (England) regulations 2012 
 

As 3 above. 

6. The making of arrangements to ask 
questions on police matters at council 
meetings to be put on the discharge of the 
functions of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner.  
 
 
 
 
 

The Council 

Page 76



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 3 

  
Function 

 
Decision making body and 

Delegations 

7. Any function relating to contaminated land. 
 

The Council is responsible for the 
adoption or approval of any plan or 
strategy after the submission of a draft 
by the Executive. 
All other functions are delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Place 
for determination in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Officers and 
with advice from the Director of Public 
Health. 
 
 

8. The discharge of any function relating to the 
control of pollution or the management of air 
quality. 
(Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999; 
Part IV, Environment Act 1995; Part I, 
Environmental Protection Act 1990; Clean 
Air Act 1993) 
 

The Council is responsible for the 
adoption or approval of any plan or 
strategy after the submission of a draft 
by the Executive. 
All other functions are delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Place for 
determination in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Officers and 
with advice from the Director of Public 
Health. 
  
 

9. The service of an abatement notice in 
respect of a statutory nuisance. 

Council function delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Place for 
determination in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
 

10. The passing of a resolution that Schedule 2 
to the Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 
1993 should apply in the Borough. 
 
 

The Council 

11. The inspection of the Authority’s area to 
detect statutory nuisance. 
 

Council function delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Place for 
determination in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
 

12. The investigation of any complaint as to the 
existence of a statutory nuisance. 

Council function delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Place for 
determination in accordance with the 
scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 4 

  
Function 

 
Decision making body and 

Delegations 
 

13. The obtaining of information under Section 
330 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as to interests in land. 
 

The Council, except to the extent that it 
relates to actions preliminary to the 
exercise of powers to make Compulsory 
Purchase Orders which is an Executive 
function. Delegated in both cases to the 
Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy, or in the case of 
functions under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts, the Head of Regulatory 
Services or the Head of Planning and 
Development. 
 

14. The obtaining of particulars of persons 
interested in land under Section 16 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976. 

The Council, except to the extent that it 
relates to actions preliminary to the 
exercise of powers to make Compulsory 
Purchase Orders which is an Executive 
function.  Delegated in both cases to the 
Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy. 
 

15. The making of agreements for the execution 
of highway works under s.278, s.38, s.6, 
s.8, s.72, s.184 of the Highways Act 1980, 
s.111 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
s.23 of the New Roads and Streetworks Act 
1991 

Executive function delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Place for 
determination in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
 
 
 

16. The appointment of any individual – 
 
(a) to any office other than an office in which 

he is employed by the authority 
 
(b) to any body other than 

i) the authority 
 ii)    a joint committee of two or more                                                
         authorities or 
  
(c) to a Committee or Sub-Committee of 

such a body 
 
and the revocation of any such appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Council insofar as the appointment 
does not relate to an Executive function. 

Page 78



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 5 

  
Function 

 
Decision making body and 

Delegations 

17. The making of agreements with other local 
authorities for the placing of staff at the 
disposal of those other authorities. 
 

The Executive 

18. Any function of the local authority in its 
capacity as a harbour authority. 
 

The Council 

Page 79



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 6 

2. RESPONSIBILITY FOR COUNCIL FUNCTIONS 
 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

Accounts and 
Audit 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 members of 
the Authority 
and 1 
independent 
member 

Statement of Purpose 
 
The purpose of the committee is to provide independent 
assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework 
and the associated control environment, independent scrutiny of 
the Authority’s financial and non-financial performance to the 
extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk and weakens 
the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting 
process. 
 
Composition 
 
Membership of the Audit and Accounts Committee shall comprise 
9 Members, be politically balanced and shall not include any 
Members of the Executive. A non-voting member, with 
appropriate skills and experience, may be co-opted on to the 
Committee with the approval of the Council.  
 
Terms of Reference 
 
Internal and External Audit 

 
a) Review and approve (but not direct) the Internal Audit 

Charter and Strategy, including internal audit resourcing. 
 
b) Review and approve (but not direct) the annual Internal 

Audit work programme. Consider the proposed and actual 
Internal Audit coverage and whether this provides 
adequate assurance on organisations main business risks, 
review the performance of Internal Audit. 
 

c) Receive summary internal audit reports and seek 
assurance on the adequacy of  management 
response to internal audit advice, recommendations and 
action  plans. 

 
d) Review arrangements made for cooperation between 

Internal Audit, External Audit  and other review bodies and 
ensure that there are effective relationships which actively 
promote the value of the audit process. 

 
e) Receive the Annual Internal Audit report and opinion. 

 
f) Review and consider proposed and actual External Audit 

coverage and its adequacy and consider the reports of 
external audit and inspection agencies. 
 

g) Receive updates from External Audit on External Audit 
findings and opinions (including the audit of the annual 
financial statements and the value for money conclusion) 
and seek assurance on the adequacy of management 

Page 80



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 7 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

Accounts and 
Audit 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

response to External Audit advice, recommendations and 
action plans. 

 
Risk Management 
 

a) Review the adequacy of arrangements for identifying and 
managing the organisation's business risks, including 
partnerships with other organisations.  This includes 
review of the Council’s risk management policy and 
strategy and their implementation. 

 
b) Review the robustness of the strategic risk register and the 

adequacy of associated risk management arrangements. 
 
c) Receive and consider regular reports on the risk 

environment and associated management action. 
 

Internal Control Arrangements, Corporate Governance and 
the Annual Governance Statement 

a)  Review the effectiveness of corporate governance 
arrangements and internal control across the organisation 
and the adequacy of action taken to address any 
weaknesses or control failures. 

b)  Conduct a critical review of the proposed Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS), which is a key assurance 
statement required to be completed each year in 
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2011.  The review includes the procedures followed in its 
completion and the content of the Statement to consider: 

 how meaningful the AGS is; 

 the robustness of the evidence and assurances on 
which the AGS is based; and 

 whether the AGS discloses adequately the 
organisations actions for addressing any significant 
internal control weaknesses disclosed within the 
statement. 

c) Make recommendations for amendment of the AGS and 
the associated procedures. 

Anti - Fraud and Corruption Arrangements 
 

a) Review and ensure the adequacy of the organisation’s Anti 
– Fraud & Corruption policy and strategy and the 
effectiveness of their application throughout the Authority. 

 
b) Review and ensure that adequate arrangements are 

established and operating to deal with situations of 
suspected or actual fraud and corruption. 
 

Page 81



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 8 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

Accounts and 
Audit 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 

Accounts 
 

a) Approve the annual Statement of Accounts, including 
subsequent amendments. 

 
b) Consider the External Auditor’s report on the audit of the 

annual financial statements. 
 
c) Be responsible for any matters arising from the audit of the 

Council’s accounts, including the auditor’s opinion on the 
accounts, identification of any misstatements, comments 
on the accounting and internal control systems and 
qualitative aspects of accounting practices and financial 
reporting. 

 
Access and Reporting 
 

a)  To have the right of access to senior officers and all 
committees of the Council.            

 
b) To report directly to the Executive or Council, as 

appropriate, on matters within these terms of reference. 

Delegation 

 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to the Committee in 
its terms of reference, the Audit and Accounts Committee shall 
have delegated power to resolve and to act on behalf of and in the 
name of the Council. 
 

Appointments 
and Appeals 
Panel 
(Employment 
Matters) (The 
“Panel”) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All members of 
the authority - 
smaller 
numbers of 
Members will 
constitute 
individual 
panels. 

To act as the Council’s appeals body regarding appeals other 
than those for which specific arrangements have been 
established. 
 
All elected members of the authority shall be eligible to be 
appointed as a Panel member. Smaller numbers of members will 
constitute individual panels. 
 
The Appointment and Appeals Panel shall be constituted by the 
Monitoring Officer, unless a matter relates to the appointment, 
terms and conditions of employment, severance or dismissal of 
the Monitoring Officer in which case it shall be constituted by the 
Proper Officer, in accordance with relevant conditions of service 
and employment procedures, including Joint Negotiating 
Conditions (JNC) of Service in respect of Chief Officers.  
 
Unless otherwise determined by the Monitoring Officer, all Panels 
constituted for the purposes of staff appointments and related 
matters shall be constituted in accordance with the political 
balance of the Council and will have a membership of at least 3, 
except when constituted for Investigating and Disciplinary 
functions when the minimum shall be 5. 
 

Page 82



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 9 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

Appointments 
and Appeals 
Panel 
(continued) 

The Panel shall: 
 

• act as the Council’s appeals body regarding appeals other 
than those for which specific arrangements have been 
established; 

 
• be (except in exceptional circumstances) responsible for 

staff appointments and related matters regarding short-
listing and interview of external and internal applicants and 
appointments of Corporate Directors and Directors 
(Statutory and Non-Statutory Chief Officers and Deputy 
Chief Officers as defined in the Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules) in accordance with the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules; 
 

• short-listing applicants and appointments of Joint Council / 
Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group Director level posts. 
Appointment panels to consist of one member from each 
political party and 2 from the Governing Body; 

 
• except in exceptional circumstances, approve the interim 

appointment of Chief Officers; 
  
• act as an investigatory and disciplinary Panel in accordance 

with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
Regulations 2001, as amended in 2015 and JNC Conditions 
of Service and the Appendix to the Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules; 

     
• be responsible for appeals in accordance with the 

disciplinary and grievance procedures; 
 
• be responsible for appeals by employees against grading. 
 

For meetings of Appointment and Appeal Committees the quorum 
shall be as follows: 
 
(i)  for a committee comprising 3 members the quorum shall be 

2; 
(ii)  for a committee comprising 5 members the quorum shall be 

3; 
(iii)  in all other cases the quorum shall be 4. 
 

Employment 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 members of 
the Authority 

The Employment Committee shall consist of at least 9 members 
and be established in accordance with the political balance of the 
Council and shall have a quorum of 3 members. 
 
The Employment Committee shall meet at least quarterly and also 
when convened by the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To determine and keep under review collective and corporate 

terms and conditions of employment. 

Page 83



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 10 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Employment 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. To approve the Council’s draft Pay Policy Statement prior to 

recommendation to full Council for approval and adoption. 
  
3. To keep under review the consistent and lawful application of 

the Councils Pay Policy and publication requirements in 
respect of transparency of pay, termination payments and 
audit responsibilities. 

 
4. Except in exceptional circumstances, to approve the job 

description, salary and benefits for Chief Officers prior to 
appointment. 

 
(exceptional circumstances to be determined by the Proper 
Officer in consultation with the Chair of the Employment 
Committee.) 

 
5. To approve any decisions for the re engagement or 

reemployment of former Chief Officers. 
 

6. To consider and determine decisions about the recovery of 
exit payments or overpayment of pension for Chief Officers. 
 

7. To consider any matter referred to the Committee by the 
Head of Paid Service or Corporate Director of Strategy and 
Resources. 

 
8. To consider, approve and adopt any new or significant 

revision to existing corporate human resources strategies and 
policies in so far as they relate to the appointment, terms and 
conditions of employment and dismissal of staff. 

 
9. To determine any other matters relating to the appointment, 

terms and conditions of employment, severance and 
dismissal of staff which are neither covered by policies of the 
Council, required to be decisions of full Council nor delegated 
to Officers under the Scheme of Delegation. 

 
10. To review proposals for severance payments in excess of 

£100,000 prior to consideration of the proposals by full 
Council. 

 
Delegation 
 
The Executive Member with responsibility for Strategic HR and 
the Corporate Director of Strategy and Resources will notify/keep 
the Employment Committee informed of all other relevant HR 
related issues, as required. 
 
In exercising the above powers and responsibilities, the 
Employment Committee shall have delegated power (subject to 
Council Procedure Rule 9 - Call-in of Decisions taken under 
Delegated Powers) to make decisions on behalf of the Council, 
except for any matter where: 

Page 84



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 11 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Employment 
Committee 
(continued) 

 

 the Head of the Paid Service determines the matter should 
be considered by full Council, or  

 the Council has resolved to determine the matter  
 
[Note: The Committee may itself determine not to exercise its 
delegated powers and instead make recommendations to Council] 
 

Licensing 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15 members of 
the Authority 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
1. To exercise the Council’s licensing functions under the 

Licensing Act 2003 with the exception of any function 
conferred on the Council under Section 5 of the Act 
(statement of licensing policy). 

 
2. In respect of each 5 year period, in consultation with the 

Executive, to formulate or prepare for approval by the 
Council its policy with respect to the exercise of its 
licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
3. To keep the policy with respect to the exercise of its 

licensing functions under the Licensing Act 2003 under 
review and recommend any revisions to the policy to the 
Council. 

 
4. To exercise the Council’s licensing functions under the 

Gambling Act 2005 with the exception of any function 
conferred on the Council under Section 349 of the Act 
(statement of licensing policy). 

 
5. To exercise powers in relation to the following functions as 

specified in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions 
and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000: 

 
(i) all licensing and registration functions except those 

relating to town and country planning and the 
regulation of the use of the highway;  

 
(ii) functions under any ‘relevant statutory provision’ 

within the meaning of Part I of the Health and 
Safety at Work Act 1974, to the extent that those 
functions are discharged otherwise than in the 
Council’s capacity as employer; and 

 
(iii) associated functions under any local Act. 

 
6. To establish one or more Sub-Committees under Section 

10(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 and Section 154 of the 
Gambling Act 2005 consisting of three members of the 
Licensing Committee for the discharge of functions 
exercisable by the Committee under the Licensing Act 
2003 and the Gambling Act 2005. The functions to be 
exercised by the Sub-Committees include the functions set 

Page 85



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 12 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Licensing 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

out at Appendix 1 and Appendix 2.  Licensing Act and 
Gambling Act Sub-Committees shall be chaired in 
accordance with the protocol set out at Appendix 3. 

 
7. To establish a Safety at Sports’ Grounds Sub-Committee 

consisting of three Members of Council to oversee the 
exercise of the Council’s functions in relation to safety at 
sports’ grounds. 

 
8. To establish a Public Protection Sub-Committee for the 

discharge of all other licensing, registration and regulatory 
functions within the terms of reference of the Licensing 
Committee not covered by the sub-committees in 
paragraphs 6 and 7 above.  That in establishing a Public 
Protection Sub-Committee this is to be a Sub-Committee 
of 9 Members (5:3:1) with up to 5 substitute Members for 
the Sub-Committee Members being allowed (3:2:0).  The 
substitute Members for the Sub-Committee can only be 
nominated from the membership of the Licensing 
Committee. 

 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms 
of reference, the Licensing Committee shall have delegated 
power to resolve and to act on behalf of and in the name of the 
Council. 

 
 
 
Appendix 1 to the Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference 
 

Delegated Functions 
 

Matter to be 
dealt with 

Full 
Committee 

Sub 
Committee 

Officers 

Application for 
personal licence 

 If a police 
objection is 
made 

If no objection is 
made 

Application for 
personal licence 
with unspent 
convictions 

 All Cases  

Application for 
premises 
licence/club 
premises 
certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
is made 

If no relevant 
representation is 
made 

Application for 
provisional 
statement 

 If a relevant 
representation 
is made 

If no relevant 
representation is 
made 

Application to 
vary premises 
licence/club 
premises 

 If a relevant 
representation 
is made 

If no relevant 
representation is 
made 

Page 86



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 13 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Licensing 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

certificate 

Application to 
vary designated 
premises 
supervisor 

 If a police 
objection is 
made 

All other cases 

Request to be 
removed as 
designated 
premises 
supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for 
transfer of 
premises licence 

 If a police 
objection is 
made 

All other cases 

Application for 
interim 
authorities 

 If a police 
objection is 
made 

All other cases 

Application to 
review premises 
licence/club 
premises 
certificate 

 All cases  

Decision to 
Serve Counter 
Notice to 
Temporary Event 
Notice 

 All cases  

 

 
Appendix 2 to the Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference 
 
Delegated Functions 
 

Matter to be dealt 
with 

Full 
Council 

Sub-Committee 
of Licensing 
Committee 

Officers 

Final approval of 
three year licensing 
policy X   

Policy not to permit 
casinos X   

Fee setting (when 
appropriate)   

 
X 

Application for 
premises licences 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Application for a 
variation to a 
licence 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Application for a 
transfer of a licence 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received from 
the Commission 

Where no 
representations received 
from the Commission 

Page 87



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 14 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Licensing 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Application for a 
provisional 
statement 

 

Where 
representations 
have been 
received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 
received/representations 
have been withdrawn 

Review of a 
premises licence  X  

Application for club 
gaming/club 
machine permits 

 

Where 
objections have 
been made (and 
not withdrawn) 

Where no objections 
made/objections have 
been withdrawn 

Cancellation of club 
gaming/club 
machine permits  

X 
 

Application for other 
permits   X 

Cancellation of 
licensed premises 
gaming machine 
permits   

X 

Consideration of 
temporary use 
notice   X 

Decision to give a 
counter notice to a 
temporary use 
notice  

X 

 
 

Appendix 3 to the Licensing Committee’s Terms of Reference  
 
List of proposed Chairs 
 

Title Order of 
Priority 

Chair of Licensing Committee 
 

1 

Vice-Chair of Licensing Committee 
 

2 

Opposition Spokesperson for Licensing Committee 
 

3 

Member of Licensing Committee  
 

4 

Member of Licensing Committee  
 

5 

 
Note: the order of priority is applicable when more than one Chair is a 
member of the same Sub-Committee. 
 

Page 88



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 15 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 

Planning and 
Development 
Management 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 members of 
the Authority  

Terms of Reference 
 
1. To exercise powers in relation to planning and 

development management over development proposals in 
the Borough in the context of Government and Council 
policies and guidance in order to maintain and improve the 
quality of life and the natural and built environment of the 
Borough. 

 
2. To exercise powers in relation to the following functions as 

specified in schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions 
and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 as 
amended: 

 
(i) town and country planning; 

 
(ii) the protection and registration of common land or 

town and village greens and to register the 
variation of rights of common; and 

 
(iii) the exercise of powers relating to the regulation of 

the use of highways. 
 
3. To exercise powers under Section 101 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 in respect of the discharge of 
functions under the Planning Acts to any other local 
authority. 

 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to them in their terms 
of reference, the Planning and Development Management 
Committee shall have delegated power to resolve and to act on 
behalf of and in the name of the Council. 

 
 

Standards 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 members of 
the Authority 
and 5 non-
voting  
co-optees 
comprised of 2 
parish 
representatives 
and 3 
independent 
members 

Terms of Reference 
 
1. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct. 
 
2. To make recommendations to Council on the council’s code 

of conduct and its register of interests. 
 
4. To determine by way of its Hearing Panel whether a 

breach of the code has occurred; if so, whether to take any 
action and, if so, what action to take. 
 

5. To grant general dispensations and to determine requests 
for dispensations either referred from the monitoring officer 
or received from a member or co-opted member.  

 
6. To determine appeals from the Monitoring Officer’s 

Page 89



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 16 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Standards 
Committee 
(continued) 
 
 
 

decision on dispensations. 
 
Delegation 
 
In exercising the power and duties assigned to the Committee in 
its terms of reference, the Standards Committee shall have 
delegated power to resolve and to act on behalf of and in the 
name of the Council. 
 
 

Health and 
Well-Being 
Board 
(established in 
accordance with 
S194 of the Health 
and Social Care 
Act 2012). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As set out in 
Section 5 of 
the Health and 
Wellbeing 
Board’s Terms 
of Reference. 
 
 
The Council 
Membership is 
nominated by 
the Leader of 
the Council) 
 

 

Terms of Reference  
 
1. Functions of Health and Well Being Board 
 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 gives health and 
wellbeing boards specific functions. These are a statutory 
minimum and further functions can be given to the boards in 
line with local circumstances. The statutory functions are:  

 

 To prepare Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) 
and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies (JHWSs), which 
is a duty of local authorities and clinical commissioning 
groups (CCGs).  

 A duty to encourage integrated working between health 
and social care commissioners, including providing advice, 
assistance or other support to encourage arrangements 
under section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 
(i.e. lead commissioning, pooled budgets and/or integrated 
provision) in connection with the provision of health and 
social care services.  

 A power to encourage close working between 
commissioners of health-related services and the board 
itself.  

 A power to encourage close working between 
commissioners of health-related services (such as housing 
and many other local government services) and 
commissioners of health and social care services.  

 Any other functions that may be delegated by the council 
under section 196(2) of the Health and Social Care Act 
2012. For example, this could include certain public health 
functions and/or functions relating to the joint 
commissioning of services and the operation of pooled 
budgets between the NHS and the council. Such 
delegated functions need not be confined to public health 
and social care. Where appropriate, they could also, for 
example, include housing, planning, work on deprivation 
and poverty, leisure and cultural services, all of which 
have an impact on health, wellbeing and health 
inequalities. 

 
 
 
 

Page 90



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 17 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 

Health and 
Well-Being 
Board 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2. Regulations relating to Health & Well Being Boards: 

Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 218 
 
The regulations relating to health and wellbeing boards have 
been published as Statutory Instrument 2013 No. 218 entitled, 
The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing 
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/218/ contents/made  

 
The regulations modify certain legislation as it applies to 
health and wellbeing boards and disapply certain legislation in 
relation to the boards. The provisions which are modified or 
disapplied are in the Local Government Act 1972 and the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

 
Under section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, a 
health and wellbeing board is a committee of the council 
which established it and for the purposes of any enactment is 
to be treated as if appointed under section 102 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. It is therefore a ‘section 102 
committee’, as it is sometimes called within local government. 
However, the regulations modify and disapply certain 
provisions of section 102 and other sections of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and also provisions of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 in relation to health and 
wellbeing boards. 
 
This means that it is best not to think of health and wellbeing 
boards according to the strict model of other section 102 
committees, but to think of them as a basic section 102 
committee with some differences. The sections below discuss 
the characteristics shared by health and wellbeing boards with 
other council committees and where they do or may diverge 
under the new regulations.  

 
The modifications and disapplications which apply to health 
and wellbeing boards within the regulations generally also 
apply to subcommittees and joint sub-committees of boards. 

 
3. Membership of Health & Well Being Boards  

 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 indicates that health and 
wellbeing boards are different to other section 102 
committees, in particular in relation to the appointment of 
members. Specifically, the Act:  

 

 sets a core membership that health and wellbeing boards 
must include:  

 

 at least one councillor from the relevant council  

 the director of adult social services  

 the director of children’s services  

Page 91



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 18 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Health and 
Well-Being 
Board 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 the director of public health  

 a representative of the local Healthwatch organisation 
(which will come into being on a statutory footing on 1 
April 2013)  

 a representative of each relevant clinical 
commissioning group (CCG)  

 any other members considered appropriate by the 
council  

 

 requires that the councillor membership is nominated by the 
executive leader or elected mayor (in councils operating 
executive arrangements) or by the council (where executive 
arrangements are not in operation) with powers for the 
mayor/ leader to be a member of the board in addition to or 
instead of nominating another councillor. 

 

 under the regulations (Regulation 7) modifies sections 15 to 
16 and Schedule 1 of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 to disapply the political proportionality 
requirements for section 102 committees in respect of 
health and wellbeing boards – this means that councils can 
decide the approach to councillor membership of health and 
wellbeing boards.  

 

 requires that the CCG and local Healthwatch organisation 
appoint persons to represent them on the board. 

  

 enables the council to include other members as it thinks 
appropriate but requires the authority to consult the health 
and wellbeing board if doing so any time after a board is 
established. 

 

 the NHS Commissioning Board must appoint a 
representative for the purpose of participating in the 
preparation of JSNAs and the development of JHWSs and 
to join the health and wellbeing board when it is considering 
a matter relating to the exercise, or proposed exercise, of 
the NHS Commissioning Board’s commissioning functions 
in relation to the area and it is requested to do so by the 
board.  

 
4. Trafford Health and Well Being Board additional locally 

agreed functions 
 

In addition to the statutory functions outlined in section 1 
above the governance task group, convened in November 
2015, agreed the Board would: 

 

 Provide oversight to the delivery of the Trafford (Locality) 
Plan (although accountability for the delivery of the Plan 
will remain with the Trafford Joint Commissioning Board, 
reporting into the GM Joint Commissioning Board).  

 Maintain a positive relationship with the Joint 

Page 92



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 19 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Health and 
Well-Being 
Board 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioning Board in order to help shape strategic 
commissioning decisions and those concerning structural 
reform in Health and Social Care sectors. 

 Agree annually, a number of key priorities (5-10) based on 
those in the Trafford (Locality) Plan, the CAMHs strategy 
and relevant data sets such as the JSNAA, the indices of 
Multiple Deprivation and Public Health profiles, as well as 
reflecting GM agendas emerging from the GM Joint 
Commissioning and GM Early Intervention and Prevention 
Boards. 

 Ensure delivery against these priorities either through 
Task and Finish (service reform) project groups or by 
delegating the priority to a relevant thematic partnership 
(e.g. Safer Trafford) 

 Put in place a Performance dashboard to monitor progress 
against the agreed priorities and receive exception reports 
relating to progress as necessary. 

 Receive written reports at regular agreed intervals from 
the Safer Trafford, Sport and Physical Activity 
Partnerships, from the two Safeguarding Boards and from 
the project groups. 

 
5. Trafford Health and Well Being Board Membership  
 

Membership of the Board shall comprise:  
 

 Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Equalities 

 Executive Member for Adult Social Care 

 Executive Member for Children’s Social Care 

 Shadow Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and 
Equalities 

 Liberal Democrats Group representative  

 Corporate Director of Children and Families 

 Director of Public Health 

 NHS Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group (3 
representatives: Chair, Chief Operating Officer and Clinical 
Director/Representative) 

 Chair of Health Watch 

 Third Sector (2 representatives) 

 Independent Chair Children’s Local Safeguarding Board 

 Independent Chair Adult Safeguarding Board 

 Chair of the Safer Trafford Partnership - GMP 

 Chair of the Trafford Sports and Physical Activity 
Partnership 

 Chief Executive Officers of health care providers (24): 
(Manchester University NHS Foundation TrustCentral 
Manchester University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust; 
University Hospital South Manchester NHS Foundation 
Trust; Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust; Greater 
Manchester West Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust) 

 Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service 
Representative 

Page 93



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 20 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Health and 
Well-Being 
Board 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partner 
Representative 

 
6. Meeting Arrangements 
 

Notice of Meetings 
Meetings of the Board will be convened by Trafford Council, 
who will also arrange the clerking and recording of meetings 
(a member of the Council’s Democratic Services Team will act 
as Clerk). 

 
Chairing 

The Chair for the Health and Well Being Board will rotate on 
an annual basis between Trafford Council and NHS Trafford 
Clinical Commissioning Group.  

 
Quorum 
The quorum for all meetings of the Board will be a minimum of 
5 members with at least two Local Authority and two Clinical 
Commissioning Group members present. 

 
Substitutes 
Nominating groups may appoint a substitute member for each 
position.  These members will receive electronic versions of 
agendas and minutes for all meetings.  Members are asked to 
nominate a single named substitute who replace them in the 
event they cannot attend a meeting. Notification of a named 
substitute member must be made in writing or by email to the 
Clerk.  .  Substitute members will have full voting rights when 
taking the place of the ordinary member for whom they are 
designated substitute.  
 
Decision Making 
It is expected that decisions will be reached by consensus; 
however, if a vote is required it will be determined by a simple 
majority of those members present and voting.  If there are 
equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair will have a 
second or casting vote.  There will be no restriction on how 
the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote. 

 
Meeting Frequency 

The Health and Well Being Board will meet quarterly in line 
with the new schedule of dates agreed within the Trafford 
Partnership review.  

 
Status of Reports 

Meetings of the Board shall be open to the press and public 
and the agenda, reports and minutes will be available for 
inspection at Trafford Council’s offices and on Trafford 
Council’s website at least five working days in advance of 
each meeting.  This excludes items of business containing 
confidential information or information that is exempt from 
publication in accordance with Part 5A and Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972 as amended. The same 

Page 94



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 21 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Health and 
Well-Being 
Board 
(continued) 

principals will apply to information from NHS Trafford as a 
partner organisation on the board. Other participating 
organisations may make links from their website to the 
Board’s papers on Trafford Council’s website. 

 
7. Members’ Conduct 

 
Where appropriate rules and regulations governing the Code 
of Conduct of Board members will apply. The Code in use will 
be the Trafford Council Code of Conduct. Board members will 
be expected to declare appropriate interests where necessary.  
 

8. Amendment of the Constitution  
 

The Health and Well Being Board may vary its constitution by 
a simple majority vote by the members provided that prior 
notice of the nature of the proposed variation is made and 
included on the agenda for the meeting.  

 
9. Governance and Accountability  

 

 The Health and Well Being Board will be accountable for 
its actions to its individual member organisations. 
 

 There will be sovereignty around decision making 
processes.  Representatives will be accountable through 
their own organisations for the decisions they take.  It is 
expected that Members of the Board will have delegated 
authority from their organisations to take decisions within 
the terms of reference. 
 

 Decisions within the terms of reference will be taken at 
meetings and will not normally be subject to ratification or 
a formal decision process by partner organisations.  
However, where decisions are not within the delegated 
authority of the Board members, these will be subject to 
ratification by constituent bodies.  
 

 It is expected that decisions will be reached by consensus. 
 

Joint Arrangements 
 

Joint Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
with 
Manchester 
City Council 
 
 
 
 
 

5 Members 
from each 
Authority 

Terms of Reference 

Purpose of the Committee 
 
In accordance with the letter sent to the JHOSC by the Secretary 
of State on 11 July 2013, the purpose of the Committee is:-  
 
1. To assess and evaluate the progress made in relation to the 

implementation of the New Health Deal for Trafford. 
 

2. To take part in the assurance process, as stipulated by the 

Page 95



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 22 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Joint Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
with 
Manchester 
City Council 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Secretary of State." In exercising these functions, the JHOSC 
has the power to: 

 
a) Make comments to a relevant NHS body; 

b) Require an NHS body to provide information; 

c) Require an officer of a local NHS body to attend meetings 

and to answer questions in connection with the 

implementation of the proposals.    

Membership/Chairing 

The JHOSC will consist of ten Members. Five members will be 
appointed from each participating Local Authority and this will be 
decided upon at the Annual Meeting of each participating Local 
Authority.  

Individual authorities will decide whether or not to apply political 
proportionality to their own Members in accordance with their own 
legal requirements and constitutional arrangements of each 
authority. 

The Committee’s members will elect a Chair and Vice-Chair. 

Each member of the Committee will have one vote and the Chair 

will not exercise a casting vote.  

Quorum for meetings 

The quorum for the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will be a 

minimum of three members, with at least one member from each 

authority. 

Supporting the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 

The administrative support for the JHOSC will be shared between 

both Local Authorities.  

Each participating authority will appoint a link officer to provide 

support to the members of the Committee as follows: 

 liaise with the Chair and Committee Members;   

 ensure attendance of witnesses; 

 Organising and minuting meetings;  

 Produce any correspondence where appropriate. 

Meetings shall be held at venues, dates and times agreed 
between the participating authorities. The host authority will bear 
the costs of arranging, supporting and hosting the meetings of the 

Page 96



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 23 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Joint Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
with 
Manchester 
City Council 
(continued) 
 

Committee.  

 
Constitutional arrangements 
 

In all matters other than those specified in this document, the 

standing orders and constitutional rules of the Members’ 

appointing authority will apply. 

 

Greater 
Manchester 
Joint Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Non-
Executive 
Member from 
each of the 10 
Greater 
Manchester 
Local 
Authorities 

Terms of Reference 
 
These reviewed arrangements take into account the extended 
role for Health Scrutiny as detailed in the Local Authority (Public 
Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013 (“the Local Health Scrutiny Regulations”). 
 

Membership 
 
The membership of the GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will 
be nominated by the ten Greater Manchester local authorities.  
Each local authority will nominate one non-Executive/Cabinet 
member.  Where possible, members will be drawn from the 
individual local Scrutiny Panels/Committees that have 
responsibility for scrutinising Health and Social Care issues within 
their area.  
 
Officers of Individual District Health Scrutiny Panels/Committees 
are invited to attend to support and advise Members from their 
local authority on Health Scrutiny Issues and will have access to 
all agendas, briefing notes and minutes. 
 
Substitutes will be allowed but will need to be non-
Executive/Cabinet members of the respective local authority. 
 
 
Role 
 
The GM Joint Health Scrutiny Committee has the delegated 
powers from the 10 Authorities of Greater Manchester (Bolton, 
Bury, Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, Stockport, 
Tameside, Trafford and Wigan) to undertake all the necessary 
functions of health scrutiny in accordance with the Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013 (“the Local Health Scrutiny Regulations”), 
relating to reviewing and scrutinising health services matters 
where these are at a Greater Manchester level, and to provide a 
body to which Health Services Providers have a duty to consult 
under the Local Health Scrutiny Regulations. 
 
The Committee will scrutinise: 
 
1.   The strategies, policies, actions and consultations of: 

 NHS England Greater Manchester Local Area Team 

Page 97



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 24 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 
Greater 
Manchester 
Joint Health 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
(continued) 

 The joint work of the Greater Manchester Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (the Association of GM CCGs) 

 Public Health England (Greater Manchester) 

 Local Authorities across Greater Manchester regarding 
their role as providers and commissioners of social care, 
and as public health agencies. 

 All other cross-boundary NHS services i.e. North West 
Ambulance Service, Christies, Specialist Children’s 
Services provided by the Royal Manchester Children’s 
Hospital 

 
2. Services provided to patients living and working across 

Greater Manchester 
 
3. Specific health issues that cut across geographical boundaries 
 
4. Individual authorities will reserve the right to undertake 

scrutiny of any of those authorities listed above with regard to 
matters relating specifically to their local population 

 
Objectives 
 

1. To ensure that the needs of local people are considered 
as an integral part of the delivery and development of 
health services; and to contribute to the reduction of health 
inequalities by ensuring that services are accessible to all 
local people. 

 
2. To review proposals for consideration or items relating to 

proposed substantial developments/substantial variations 
to services provided across Greater Manchester by NHS 
organisations, including; 

 Changes in accessibility of services 

 Impact of proposal on the wider community 

 Patients affected 
 
3. To engage pro-actively with the GM Health and Social 

Care Reform Programme as it develops. 
 

4. To keep abreast of organisational changes and key policy 
implementation within the NHS. 

 
5. To bring together the responsibilities of local authorities to 

promote health service provision, delivery and accessibility 
within the remit of the Health Scrutiny function. 

 

Support 
 
Officers from the Greater Manchester Integrated Support Team 
(GMIST) will provide policy and administrative support to the 
Committee.  
 
 

Page 98



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 25 

Committee 
 

Membership Functions 

 

STaR Joint 
Committee 

1 Member 
from each 
Authority 

Terms of Reference 
 
1. To manage the procurement operations of the Councils 

except for any procurement activity carried on by each 
Council that is specifically excluded by each Council from 
being dealt with by the STaR on its behalf. 

 
2. To agree any changes to the cost and income sharing 

arrangements set out in the inter-authority agreement. 
 
3. To agree the organisational structure of the STaR to carry 

out those operations. 
 
4. To recommend to Trafford Council the person to be 

appointed as Director of STaR and the salary for the post. 
 
5. To consider the policies and procedures for procurement 

activities carried out by the STaR recommended to it by its 
Board including the contract procedure rules under which it 
will operate for each of the Councils. 

 
6. To recommend the business plans and budgets of the 

STaR for approval by the Councils.  
 
7. To monitor the budget and performance of the STaR. 
 
8. To approve major changes to standard tender 

documentation and procedures. 
 
9. Such other matters as the Councils (for non-executive 

matters) and/or the Executive Leaders jointly agree. 
 
10. To the extent that the activities of the STaR joint committee 

are not executive functions the council delegates to the joint 
committee the power to do anything which is calculated to 
facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of 
the procurement functions delegated to it – in particular the 
power to make staffing appointments and the power to 
make standing orders as to contracts but not the power to 
set budgets.  

 

 

Page 99



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 26 

 
3. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS - DELEGATION TO 

INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 
 

3.1 The Executive is authorised to carry out all of the functions of the Council which 
are, by virtue of the Local Government Act 2000 and regulations thereunder, the 
responsibility of an Executive of the Council.  The Executive Leader has the 
responsibility for determining the delegation of executive functions. The scheme 
of delegation of functions to officers is set out in Section 4 of this Part of the 
Constitution. 

 
3.2 Each Executive Member has been allocated particular areas of responsibility 

(portfolios) by the Council meeting.  The list of portfolio responsibilities and 
portfolio holders is:- 

  
Councillor 
 

PORTFOLIO 
 

 
Andrew Western 

 
Leader of the Council (with portfolio responsibility for 
Sustainability and Climate Change) 
 

 
Catherine Hynes (Deputy Leader) 

 
Children’s Services (with all statutory children’s 
responsibilities) 
 

 
Joanne Harding 

 
Adult Social Care  
 

 
Graham Whitham 

 
Communities and Partnerships (with responsibility for 
Poverty Strategy) 
 

 
Mike Freeman 

 
Covid-19 Recovery and Reform 
 

 
Liz Patel 

 
Culture and Leisure 
 

 
Stephen Adshead 

  
Environmental and Regulatory Services 
 

 
Tom Ross 

 
Finance and Governance 
 

 
Jane Slater 

 
Health, Wellbeing and Equalities 
 

 
James Wright 

 
Housing and Regeneration 
 

  
 
 

  

Page 100



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 27 

Non-Executive Portfolio 
 

 
Karina Carter 

 
Lead Member for Education   
 

                         
3.3 Subject to any matters which are specifically reserved to the Council, reserved to 

an individual under any statutory provision, delegated to Officers, or which the 
Leader from time to time decides should be determined by the Executive, a 
committee of the Executive, another Executive Member or themself, and to 
paragraphs 4 and 5 each individual Executive Member, within the Terms of 
Reference for their portfolio, is authorised to deal with and determine the 
following matters: 

 
(a) To take decisions, other than key decisions as defined in the Constitution 

or decisions relating to the disposal of land at an undervalue, in relation to 
the discharge of executive functions and expenditure on services, 
including the payment or repayment of grants.  Except that the Leader 
may, in his/her discretion, authorise an individual Executive Member to 
take key decisions on specific matters. 

 
(b) To monitor the budget for services within the portfolio, and report as 

necessary to the Executive. 
 
(c)  To agree policies, plans and strategies for services within their portfolio. 
 
(d)  To monitor service performance. 
 
(e) To consider any policy review reports prepared by Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and make recommendations to the Executive for any 
consequent action. 

 
(f) To respond to requests from Overview and Scrutiny Committees for 

information relating to the discharge of executive functions and the 
performance of the Executive. 

 
(h) To approve virement between budget heads in accordance with virement 

rules approved by Council. 
 
(i) To represent the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic 

policy and other matters within their respective portfolios. 
 

3.4 The exercise of the delegated authority as set out above is subject to the 
following conditions: 

 
(a) In making decisions Executive Members must comply with the principles of 

decision making in Article 13 of the Constitution, corporate policies and 
such decisions must be made in accordance with the Council’s Policy and 
Budgetary Framework; 

 
(b) Executive Members must seek the advice of the Corporate Director of 

Governance and Community Strategy and the Corporate Director of 

Page 101



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 28 

Finance and Systems (or their nominees) and such other officers as the 
Executive Member shall consider necessary to fully inform the decision 
making process; 

 
(c) Such decisions must be recorded in a Decision notice, which shall be open 

to public inspection in accordance with the provisions of the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012; 

 
(d) Where an Executive Member has been authorised by the Leader to make 

a key decision, the procedure on key decision making set out in the 
Constitution must be followed; 

 
(e) To consult with other Executive Members as appropriate before taking 

decisions on matters which are cross cutting and affect other portfolio 
areas. 

 
(f) Where an Executive Member has a prejudicial interest in a matter or 

otherwise believes that they should not make a particular decision due to a 
conflict of interest, the matter should be referred to the Leader who will 
either make the decision or refer the matter to the Executive. 

 
3.5 If there is any doubt as to which portfolio would cover any proposed decision by 

an Executive Member, the matter shall be referred to the Leader to determine the 
appropriate portfolio. The Leader may also determine that any proposed decision 
(of any description) shall be referred to the Executive for decision. 

 
3.6 An individual Executive Member may refer any matter within that Member’s 

portfolio to the Executive for decision. 
 
 

Page 102



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 29 

 
EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 

 
Portfolio - Leader of the Council 

(with portfolio responsibility for Sustainability and Climate Change) 

 
 
 
GENERAL 
 
To act as Leader of the Council and be the Executive Portfolio holder responsible for 
all matters relating to the Council’s affairs in respect of the Leader’s portfolio.  As 
such, the Leader is responsible for: 
 

1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within the 
portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally; 

 
2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio 
 

3. Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, Annual 
Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the Portfolio holder; 

 
4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 
 

5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services within 
the portfolio. 

 
 6.  Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
 
 7.  Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the  Borough 

 
8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy and 

any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive as required. 

 
10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms of 

office. 
 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections within the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12.   Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 

13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 
within the portfolio. 

 
 

Page 103



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 30 

 
Areas of Responsibility 
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 

   Strategic overview of the Council 

  Overall performance of the Council 

   Overall performance of the Executive 

   Overall governance of the Council 

   Chief Executive’s functions 

   Co-ordination within the Executive 
 Developing and implementing the Council’s Corporate Plan  

   Determination of how and by whom Executive functions are exercised 

   Appointments to outside bodies not within the remit of the Council 

   All matters not within the remit of any other portfolio 
 
In recognition of the importance of these matters and in the light of the Council’s 
declaration of a Climate Emergency, the Leader will also assume overall 
responsibility for:- 
 

 Sustainability and Climate Change  
 The Clean Air Plan (and Air Quality Commission) 

 
Key Roles and Responsibilities within the Leader’s Portfolio 
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Leader is responsible for all matters within the 
Areas of Responsibility set out above to the extent that they comprise Executive 
functions, including in particular:- 
 
 

1. To provide leadership in the development and maintenance of an active and 
participatory local democracy. 

 
2. To chair meetings of the Executive and ensure that the Executive acts as a 

corporate team working together to achieve common aims. 
 

3. In consultation with the Chief Executive, to draw up a 4 month programme of work 
by the Executive and to keep it under continuous review. 

 
4. To ensure that the Council’s decision-making process functions effectively and that 

decisions made by the Executive take into account all relevant factors and reflect 
the Council’s commitment to open government and equality of opportunity. 

 
5. To discharge or arrange the discharge of the Executive functions of the Council. 

 
6. To ensure delivery of the Council’s priorities in accordance with the Corporate Plan  

 
7. To implement, working with the Chief Executive, strategy and policies approved by 

the Council and reflecting the views of the community based around the Corporate 

Page 104



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 31 

priorities set out in the Corporate Plan (delegating work to other Executive 
Members where necessary). 

 
8. To review and monitor, with the Chief Executive, the management arrangements of 

the Council. 
 

9. To exercise a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets, to ensure 
progress towards meeting the Council’s key objectives. 

 
10. To ensure that Executive Members and services work together effectively. 

 
11. Representing the Council externally and furthering the Council’s interests within 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority, AGMA, the North West region and 
nationally. 

 
12. To ensure that the Council and its priorities are appropriately represented in the 

context of Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel matters. 
 

13. To be the principal political spokesperson for the Council at internal and external 
meetings. 

 
14. To ensure liaison with the Council’s external auditors and inspectors. 

 
15. To develop and implement Council’s strategies and plans to become carbon 

neutral by 2038. 
 

16. To protect public health through strategic environmental measures to protect and 
promote the health of Trafford residents. 
 

 
 

To submit to the Executive: 
 

Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference 
 
 

Page 105



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 32 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
 
GENERAL 
 
In the event that the Leader of the Council is unable to act, or the post of Leader is 
vacant, the Deputy Leader shall: 
 

1. undertake all statutory functions of the Leader of the Council; and 
 
2. undertake the portfolio responsibilities of the Leader’s portfolio. 
 

In the absence of the Leader of the Council, the Deputy Leader shall: 
 

1. chair meetings of the Executive; and 
 
2. ensure that the Executive acts as a corporate team working together to 

achieve common aims.   
 

Page 106



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 33 

 
EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 

 
Portfolio – Adult Social Care 

GENERAL 
  
The Executive Member for Adult Social Care acts as the authority’s statutory Lead 
Member for Adults Social Services.  
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of Adult Social Services including acting as the Lead Member for 
Adult Services in accordance with best practice guidance. 
 
As such, the Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for:  
 
1.  Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally.  
 
2.  Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio.  
 
3.  Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, 

Annual Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the 
Portfolio holder.  

 
4.  Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area.  
 
5.  Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio.  
 
6.  Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
  
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 

Borough. 
  
8.  Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and on any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
  
9.  Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader.  
 
10.  Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office.  
 
11.  Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder.  
 
12. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 

Page 107



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 34 

 
13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio.  
 
Areas of Responsibility  
 
To have overall responsibility for Adult Social Services including:  
 

 Joint Commissioning of Services 

 Services to Older People  

 Mental Health  

Learning Disabilities  

Health & Disability Services  

Sensory Services  

Other Adult services  

  Liaison with NHS service providers 

 Carers services  

  Housing issues including:  

 Supporting People  

 Major and minor adaptations services and the Disabled Facilities Grant  

 Advice and information services 

 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Adult Social Care Portfolio:  
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Adult Social Care is 
responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility as set out above, to 
the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:-  
 
1.  The powers and duties of the Council as an Adult Social Services Authority.  
 
2.  The duty to make provision for services to people in need as defined by the 

National Assistance Act 1948, the Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 
and the NHS and Community Care Act 1989 and Care Act 2014.  

 
3.  The duty to protect vulnerable adults.  
 
4.  Developing working partnerships with NHS bodies, exploiting the flexibility 

afforded by Health Acts when likely to deliver improved services for Trafford 
residents. This will involve integrated commissioning and provider 
arrangements.  

 
5. Ensuring Services are in place that meet the needs of carers in Trafford.  
 

Page 108



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 35 

6.  Liaison with the NHS and related bodies on matters affecting the social care 
and the general social welfare of people in Trafford.  

 
7.  Development of a positive relationship with voluntary sector organisations who 

represent service users or carers ensuring they are appropriately involved in 
determining service priorities, service planning and review.  

 
8.  Acting as Older People’s Champion.  
 
9.  Administration of the Supporting People Programme.  
 
10.  Development of the All Age Integrated Health and Social Care Service  
 
11. Ensuring services are in place for the prevention and treatment of substance 

misuse. 
 

  .    
To submit to the Executive:  
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 36 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Portfolio – Children’s Services  
(with all statutory children’s responsibilities) 

 
GENERAL  
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of the Children and Families portfolio, including acting as Lead 
Member for Children’s Services in accordance with the Children Act 2004 and 
associated statutory guidance. As such, the Executive Portfolio holder is responsible 
for:  
 
1.  Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally.  
 
2.  Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio.  
 
3.  Agreeing in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, 

Transformation Plans for the services within the remit of the Portfolio holder.  
 
4.  Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area.  
 
5.  Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio.  
 
6.  Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council.  
 
7.  Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 

Borough.  
 
8.  Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
  
9.  Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
  
10.  Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office. 
  
11.  Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
  
12.  Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas.  
 
13.  Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio.  
 

Page 110



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 37 

 
Areas of Responsibility:  
 

 Statutory Lead Member for Children’s Services in accordance with the 
Children Act 2004 and associated statutory guidance  

 Development of the All Age Integrated Health and Social Care Service 

 Day to day operation of the All Age Integrated Health and Social Care Service  

 the functions of the Council with regard to its responsibilities for the 
safeguarding of children and young people, including:  

o receiving and responding to referrals where there is concern about the 
welfare and safety of individual children and young people;  

o investigating referrals for child protection and children-in-need and 
taking appropriate action to safeguard children and young people’s 
safety and welfare;  

o maintaining an up-to-date Child Protection Register.  
.  
 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Children and Families portfolio:  
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers, the responsibilities of the Lead 
Member for Children’s Services and other provisions set out in Part 3 of the 
Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Children’s Services is responsible 
for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility as set out above, to the extent that 
they comprise Executive functions, including in particular 
 
1. Political accountability for the effectiveness, availability and value for money of 

all children’s services; 
  

2. Leadership to engage and encourage local communities in order to improve 
services and outcomes for children and young people both within the local 
authority and externally with partner organisations;  
 

3. Safeguarding and promoting welfare of children across all agencies;  
 

4. The commissioning of public health services for children and young people as 
mandated in the Health and Social Care Act 2012; 
 

5. The functions, powers and duties of the Council as a Children’s Services 
Authority, including specific areas such as:  

 

 Child protection  

 Children and families – social care  

 Looked after children  

 Foster care and adoption services  

 Provision of preventative services such as outreach services, family 
support services  

 Supporting vulnerable and at-risk children and young people, their 
families, schools and partner agencies;  

 

Page 111



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 38 

6. The functions, powers and duties of the Council’s social care services for 
children including:  

 

 Child protection  

 Provision of a social work service to children, young people, families and 
carers in the community  

 Provision of specialist fieldwork social services to children with disabilities, 
their families and carers, and arranging respite facilities;  

 Looked after children  

 Foster care and adoption services  

 Provision of a range of preventative services through family aides, family 
support workers, outreach services etc.  

 Provision of a field social work service to children looked after on a 
medium and long-term basis and placed for adoption;  

 a range of preventative services field social work service to children 
looked after on a medium and long-term basis and placed for adoption;  

 Supporting care leavers  

 Supporting vulnerable and at-risk children and young people, their 
families, schools and partner agencies;  

 
6.  The provision and commissioning of interventions and services for young 

people aged 11-19/25 (25 for young people with additional needs) including 
‘one-stop-shops’; street-based work; school-based work and partnerships with 
the voluntary sector; 

 
7.  The functions, powers and duties of the Council with regard to the Youth 

Offending Service including: 
 

 working with and reporting to the Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership;  

 preventing children and young people being involved in offending or anti-
social behaviour, and re-offending;  

 supporting those young people who have offended through assessment; 
court reports; and non-custodial sentences such as final warnings, 
restorative justice, involvement of victims and referral orders; and 
education; and  

 supporting young people serving custodial sentences and on release from 
custody;  

 
8.  Oversight and monitoring of all statutory functions related to the delivery and 

commissioning of services for children and young people, including the 
continued integration of children and adults social care and health services as 
embodied in the current section 75 agreement, as detailed in The Children Act 
2004, Working Together to Safeguard Children 2013, The Children and 
Families Act 2014 and other relevant and appropriate policy, guidance and 
legislation.  

  
9.  The functions, powers and duties of the Council as a local education authority, 

including specific areas within the Councils core duties such as:  

Page 112



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 39 

 

 Special educational needs provision  

 Education welfare service  

 Educational Psychology Service  

 Early years sufficiency  

 School admissions  

 School attendance and provision for pupils not in school 

 Asset management planning  

 Funding of schools 

 Sufficiency of school places  

 To receive schools OFSTED reports and subsequent Action Plans  

 To ensure an effective response to the OFSTED inspection of the LEA on 
SEND  

 
10.  The functions, powers and duties of the Council with regard to the availability of 

advice and information for 13 to 19 year olds.  
 
 
To submit to the Executive:  
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 

 
 
 

Lead Member with special responsibility for Education 
Terms of Reference 

 
GENERAL 

 
The Member with Special Responsibility for Education is responsible for supporting 
the Executive Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services in all matters relating to the 
Council’s affairs in respect of Education. In particular this will involve:- 
 
1. Liaising with members of the Executive, particularly where education matters 

could impact upon other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 
 
2. Advising the Executive Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services in the 

development and implementation of key safeguarding policy. 
 

3. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny in all matters relating to the 
Council’s affairs in respect of Education. 

 
4. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 

 
5. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader or the Executive Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services. 
 

Page 113



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 40 

6. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 
of reference. 

 
7. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections within the remit of 

these terms of reference. 
 

8. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and ensuring progress 
toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 

 
9. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the terms of reference. 
 
Working with the Executive Member for Children’s Services  
 
In accordance with the statutory guidance on the role and responsibilities of Lead 
Members for Children’s Services the Executive Member for Children’s Services, who 
acts as the authority’s statutory Lead Member for Children’s Services, is supported 
by the Member with Special Responsibility for Education “to assist in the exercise of 
his/her (the Executive Member for Children’s Services) functions and duties”.  The 
Executive Member for Children’s Services, however, will need to maintain “effective 
overview and overall political accountability for the full range of local authority 
children’s services”.   
 
This will be achieved by the Member with Special Responsibility for Education:  
 

 having delegated responsibilities for aspects of the Lead Member for 
Children’s Services role; and  

 reporting on a regular basis to the Executive Member for Children’s Services 
on how these delegated responsibilities are being exercised.  

 
The Member with Special Responsibility for Education is responsible for 
championing all aspects of education across the council. They will provide advice 
and support to the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services in fulfilling their 
responsibilities in relation to Education and undertake certain activities on their 
behalf. 
 
Specific roles and responsibilities will be:- 
  

 The functions, powers and duties of the Council as a local education authority, 
including specific areas within the Councils core duties such as:  

 

 Special educational needs provision  

 Education welfare service  

 Educational Psychology Service  

 Early years sufficiency  

 School admissions  

 School attendance and provision for pupils not in school 

 Asset management planning  

 Funding of schools 

Page 114



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 41 

 Sufficiency of school places  

 To receive schools OFSTED reports and subsequent Action Plans  

 To ensure an effective response to the OFSTED inspection of the LEA on 
SEND  

 
The functions, powers and duties of the Council with regard to the availability of 
advice and information for 13 to 19 year olds. 

Page 115



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 42 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Portfolio – Communities and Partnerships  
(with responsibility for the Trafford Poverty Strategy)  

 
 
GENERAL 
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of the Communities and Partnerships portfolio and has special 
responsibility for Trafford’s Poverty Strategy.  As such, the Executive Portfolio holder 
is responsible for: 
 

1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within the 
portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 

 
2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio. 
 

3. Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, Annual 
Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the Portfolio holder. 

 
4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 
 

5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services within 
the portfolio. 

 
6. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 

 
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the  Borough 

 
8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy and 

any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
 

10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms of 
office. 

 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 

13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 
within the portfolio. 

 
 

Page 116



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 43 

 
 

Areas of Responsibility 
 

 

 Community Strategy and the Local Strategic Partnership 

 Partnership and neighbourhood working  

 Poverty Strategy 

 Locality Services  

 Community Partnerships 

 Community Cohesion 

 Community Safety 

 Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel   
 

 Youth services 

 Voluntary Sector Grants 
 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Communities and Partnerships portfolio: 
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the Local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to Officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Communities and 
Partnerships is responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility set out 
above to the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:- 
 

1. Leading and overseeing the promotion of a neighbourhood and area focus 
across the Council and the Borough.  
 

2. The promotion and development of a Trafford Partnership Strategy 
 

3. The development and implementation of a Poverty Strategy for Trafford 
 

4. Community safety including: 
 
(a) Development of policy guidelines for the management of Council policies 

regarding crime and community safety and monitoring the implementation 
of such guidelines. 
 

(b) Links to Police Service, Probation Service etc. through membership of the 
Safer Trafford Partnership Board 

 
(c) Crime reduction initiatives (both social and physical) across the Executive 

portfolios. 
 
(d) Prevention of offending and re-offending in partnership with key Criminal 

Justice services. 
 
(e)Tackling Anti-social behaviour including appropriate consultations,  

interventions and enforcement. 
 
(f) 24hour Control Room and CCTV network. 

Page 117



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 44 

 
5. Development of Safer and Stronger Communities (including tackling Domestic 

Violence, Race and Hate crime). 
 
6. Ensuring the delivery of the aims and objectives of the Local Strategic 

Partnership through the agreed delivery arrangements. 
 

7. Matters concerning Youth Services 
 
8. All aspects of the Council’s corporate communications including: 

 

 Publicity 

 Consultation and engagement 

 Resident engagement 
 
 

To submit to the Executive: 
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 

Page 118



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 45 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Portfolio – Covid -19 Recovery and Reform 
  

 
GENERAL 
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of the Covid -19 Recovery and Reform portfolio.  As such, the 
Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for: 

 
1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within the 

portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 
 

2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 
policy within the remit of the portfolio. 

 
3. Approving in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, Annual 

Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the Portfolio holder. 
 

4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 

 
5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services within 

the portfolio. 
 

6. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
 

7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the  Borough. 
 

8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy and 
any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 

 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
 

10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms of 
office. 

 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections within the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12. Exercise a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 

13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 
within the portfolio. 

 
 
 
 

Page 119



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 46 

Areas of Responsibility 
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 
 

 Covid 19 Recovery Plan 

 Civil Contingencies and Business Continuity 

 Adult Education, Life Long Learning and tackling worklessness and skills 

 Customer Services/Relations 

 Digital and Website engagement  

 Policy and Performance Improvement 
 
 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Covid 19 Recovery and Reform portfolio 
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the Local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to Officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Covid 19 Recovery and 
Reform is responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility set out 
above to the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:- 
 

1. Leading on and overseeing Trafford’s recovery from the Covid 19 pandemic 
including; 

 The development and implementation of a Trafford Covid 19 Recovery Plan; 

 Chairing the Covid 19 Public Engagement Board  
 

2. Supporting and promoting economic strategies and initiatives to tackle 
worklessness and skills   
 

3. Identification of and support for employment initiatives 
 

4. Encouragement and support for Adult Education and Lifelong Learning provision 
across Trafford and of initiatives to support accessibility of and engagement in 
Adult Education and Lifelong Learning. 

 
5.  The functions of the Council under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and 

responsibility for ensuring appropriate business continuity planning across the 
Council. 

 
6.  Ensuring the delivery of performance improvements and efficiencies to support 

the delivery of the Council’s priorities in accordance with the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 

 
7.  Ensuring that the highest standards of customer care are delivered 
 
8.  All aspects of the Council’s customer relations including: 

 

 Performance and development of Access Trafford  

 Development and implementation of Customer Standards and the Customer 
Pledge 

 Corporate Compliments and Complaints 

Page 120



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 47 

 
9. The development and implementation of the Council’s Digital Strategy. 

 
10. Ensuring the delivery of effective and efficient ICT services  

 
11.  Ensuring the delivery of effective and efficient Performance Services including the 

development and improvement of systems and processes for business planning 
and performance improvement 

 
 
To submit to the Executive: 
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 

Page 121



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 48 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Portfolio – Culture and Leisure 
 
 

GENERAL 
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of Leisure and Culture. 
 
As such, the Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for: 
 
1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 
 
2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio. 
 
3. Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, 

Annual Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the 
Portfolio holder. 

 
4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 
 
5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio. 
 
6. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
 
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 
 Borough 
 
8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
 
10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office. 
 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 
13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio. 
 

Page 122



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 49 

Responsibilities: 
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 

 Arts – Theatres – Waterside Arts Centre 

 Festivals 

 Libraries 

 Social Studies, local history and heritage  

 Leisure Centres 

 Sports Development 

 Parks and Green Spaces 

 “Friends” Groups (parks) 

 Allotments 

 Trafford Arts Association 

 Culture and tourism and events 

 The Music Service 
 

Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Culture and Leisure Portfolio 
 

In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Leisure and Culture is 
responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility as set out above, to 
the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:- 
 

1. Matters concerning the provision, development, monitoring and promotion of 
leisure, recreation, tourism, events, arts and culture and entertainment in the 
Borough. 
 

2. The strategic management and development of sports and leisure facilities 
and sports development. 
 

3. Liaison with Trafford Leisure CIC and other sporting and leisure organisations. 
 

4. All matters concerning the provision and management of public libraries. 
 

5. Matters relating to the strategic management of parks and green spaces and 
liaison with Friends of Parks Groups; 
 

6. The promotion of the Borough’s heritage and history through support for 
social and local studies and its heritage assets 

 

To submit to the Executive: 
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 

Page 123



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 50 

 
EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 

 

Portfolio – Environmental and Regulatory Services  
 
GENERAL 
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of Environmental and Regulatory Services  
. 
 As such, the Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for: 
 
1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 
 
2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio. 
 
3. Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, Annual 

Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the Portfolio 
holder. 

 
4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 
 
5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio. 
 
6. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
 
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 
 Borough 
 
8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
 
10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office. 
 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 
13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio. 
 

Page 124



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 51 

 
Areas of Responsibility 
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 

 Engineering and construction services 

 Highways, Traffic and transportation 

 Passenger transport 

 Road safety 

 Bridges and structures 

 Environmental enforcement 

 Environmental services 

 Environmental partnerships 

 Waste Management 

 Pollution 

 Environmental Health 

 Trading standards 

 Executive Licensing functions   
 

 
 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Environmental and Regulatory Services 
Portfolio 
 

In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Environmental and 
Regulatory Services is responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility 
as set out above, to the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in 
particular:- 
 
1. The functions, powers and duties of the Council as Highway Authority including: 

 
a) detailed highways and transportation schemes and proposals  
b) traffic calming, street lighting, road safety, new bus routes and priorities, 

station improvements, traffic regulation and network   management 
c) management of decriminalised parking enforcement and car parking 

facilities 
  

2. Highways inspections and maintenance. 
 
3. Highways and engineering planning and development. 
 
4. Transport for Greater Manchester matters.  

 
5. Integration of public/private transport. 

 
 

6. Sewers and drainage including flood and water management 
 

Page 125



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 52 

 
7. Waste collection, management, disposal and recycling. 
 
8. Health and Safety (excluding Council employee health and safety) 
 
 
9. Clean neighbourhoods including street cleansing and collection of litter. 
 
10. Tackling environmental crime including appropriate consultations, interventions 

and enforcement. 
 

11.  Environmental health, protection and standards including: 
a) food safety and control 
b) control and monitoring of pollution and statutory nuisances 
c) animal health and welfare  
d) pest control 
e) private sector housing standards (in liaison with the Housing and 

Regeneration portfolio holder) 
 

12. Trading Standards including:  
a) consumer advice 
b) weights and measures 
c) fair trading 
d) consumer credit and safety 
e) consumer complaints 

 
13. Any functions under any licensing legislation including safety at sports grounds 

which are Executive functions and which do not fall within the remit of any other 
Executive Member. 
 

14. Ecological protection and environmental improvements. 
 
 
To submit to the Executive: 
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 

Page 126



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 53 

 
 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Portfolio – Finance and Governance 
 
 
GENERAL 
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of the Finance and Governance portfolio.  As such, the Executive 
Portfolio holder is responsible for: 
 
1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 
 
2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio. 
 
3. Approving in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, 

Annual Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the 
Portfolio holder. 

 
4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 
 
5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio. 
 
6. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
 
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 
 Borough. 
 
8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
 
10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office. 
 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections within the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12. Exercise a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 
13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio. 

Page 127



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 54 

 
 
 
Areas of Responsibility 
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 

 Corporate Finance 

 Accountancy 

 The Investment Strategy 

 Benefits and Local Taxation 

 Procurement (STAR) 

 Delivery of value for money services 

 Strategic Human Resources 

 Pension Fund 

 Occupational Health and Safety 

 Operational Services for Education 

 Traded Services     

 Corporate Governance and Constitution  

 Legal and Governance Services – including Registration Services and liaison 
with the Coroner’s Service 

 Information Governance 
 

 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Finance and Governance portfolio 
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the Local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to Officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Finance and Governance 
is responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility set out above to the 
extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:- 
 
1. The Council’s budget planning framework, including the medium term 

financial plan and strategy. 
 
2. The effective and efficient use of the Council’s financial resources. 

 
3. Financial (including investment and insurance) management. 
 
4. Powers and duties of the Council in relation to national non domestic rates, 

local taxes and the administration of the benefits’ schemes. 
 
5. The functions of the Council as accountable body in respect of any schemes 

supported by EU and SRB funding. 
 
6. Effective corporate procurement arrangements. 

 
7. Ensuring the delivery of effective and efficient corporate and support services 

including: 
 

Page 128



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 55 

 Legal Services 

 Governance Services 

 Strategic HR Services 
 

8. Ensuring that the Council has effective corporate governance, including: 
 

 Internal audit assurance 

 Risk management 

 Information governance 
 
9. Operational services for Education (TSE) including   

 
 a) Support services  

b) School catering services 
 c) Cleaning and caretaking Services 
 d) School crossing patrols  
 
10. Bereavement Services 
 
11. Traded Services including outdoor media advertising 

 
 

To submit to the Executive: 
 
1.   Recommendations concerning the formulation of the Council’s Budget 

 Framework 
 

2. Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by 
these terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the 
Council. 

 

Page 129



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 56 

EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

Portfolio – Health and Wellbeing and Equalities 

GENERAL 
  
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to Health and 
Wellbeing and Equalities, including acting as the Lead Member for Community 
Health and Wellbeing Services in accordance with best practice guidance.  
 
As such, the Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for:  
 
1.  Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally.  
 
2.  Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio.  
 
3.  Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, 

Annual Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the 
Portfolio holder.  

 
4.  Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area.  
 
5.  Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio.  
 
6.  Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
  
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 

Borough. 
  
8.  Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and on any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
  
9.  Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader.  
 
10.  Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office.  
 
11.  Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder.  
 
12. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 
13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio.  
 

Page 130



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 57 

Areas of Responsibility  
 
1. Community Health and Wellbeing Services including:  
 

 The Health and Wellbeing Board  

 Public health functions  

 Delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy  

 Liaison with NHS commissioning bodies and NHS strategic partners  

 Liaison with voluntary and community sector organisations in relation to 

health and  wellbeing  

 Championing health and wellbeing issues on behalf of the Council and 
Trafford  Partnership   

 

2. Mental Health Services – to act as the Council’s champion for all matters relating 
to mental health.  
 

3. Equality and Diversity – to act as the Council’s champion for all matters relating 
to Equality and Diversity 

 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Health and Wellbeing and Equalities 
Portfolio:  
 
In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing and 
Equalities is responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility as set out 
above, to the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:-  
 
1. The powers and duties of the Council with regard to public health functions.  
 
2. Meeting the Council’s responsibilities in relation to prevention, health 

improvement and the reduction of health inequalities.  
 
3. Liaison with the Clinical Commissioning Group to ensure that they are provided 

with appropriate support to deliver public health objectives and priorities in 
Trafford.  

 
4. To ensure that a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment is in place and that it informs 

commissioning strategies.  
 
5. To act as the Council’s Mental Health Champion.  

 
6.  Promotion of equality and diversity and ensuring compliance with the Council’s 

equalities duties.   
 

 
To submit to the Executive:  
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 

Page 131



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 58 

 
EXECUTIVE TERMS OF OFFICE 

 

Portfolio – Housing and Regeneration   
 

 
GENERAL 
 
The Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for all matters relating to the Council’s 
affairs in respect of Housing and Regeneration. 
 
As such, the Executive Portfolio holder is responsible for: 
 
1. Liaising with other members of the Executive, particularly where matters within 

the portfolio affect other aspects of Council business or the Borough generally. 
 
2. Providing the Executive’s lead in the development and implementation of key 

policy within the remit of the portfolio. 
 
3. Agreeing, in conjunction with the relevant Corporate Director or Director, 

Annual Service Improvement Plans for the services within the remit of the 
Portfolio holder. 

 
4. Participating as necessary in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees and promoting the value of Scrutiny within their service area. 
 
5. Ensuring that spending is in line with the approved budget for the Services 

within the portfolio. 
 
6. Representing and acting as an ambassador for the Council. 
 
7. Promoting a neighbourhood and area focus across the Council and the 
 Borough 
 
8. Representing the Council’s views on matters of corporate or strategic policy 

and any other matters which are within the Portfolio holder’s terms of office. 
 
9. Working with other Members of the Executive on matters, as directed by the 

Leader. 
 
10. Ensuring effective partnership working in respect of matters within these terms 

of office. 
 
11. Overseeing the timely progress of reviews or inspections with the remit of the 

Portfolio holder. 
 
12. Exercising a monitoring role regarding performance and budgets and ensuring 

progress toward meeting the Executive’s key objectives in these areas. 
 
13. Ensuring appropriate consultation with partners and the community on matters 

within the portfolio. 

Page 132



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 59 

 
Areas of Responsibility relating to Housing 
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 

 Strategic Housing 

 Homelessness and housing advice 

 Housing Register 

 Empty Properties 

 Housing Standards 

 Asylum Seekers and Refugee Readiness 
 
 
Areas of Responsibility for Regeneration and Strategic Planning  
 
To have overall responsibility for: 
 

 Property acquisition 

 Resource procurement 

 Strategic asset management 

 Planning policy and strategic and / or sub-regional planning 

 Land use and development in the Borough 

 Sustainable Development 

 Heritage assets 

 Building Control 

 Planning Enforcement 

 Economic growth, development and regeneration 

 Transport strategy 

 Town centres 

 Parking services 

 Resource Procurement 

 Conservation and building preservation 

 Property disposal 

 Community Buildings 

 Architectural services 

 Corporate Landlord 
 

 
Key Roles and Responsibilities of the Housing and Regeneration Portfolio 
 

In accordance with section 15(4) of the local Government Act 2000, but subject to 
legislation, the Scheme of Delegation to officers and other provisions set out in Part 
3 of the Council’s Constitution, the Executive Member for Housing and Regeneration 
is responsible for all matters within their Areas of Responsibility as set out above, to 
the extent that they comprise Executive functions, including in particular:- 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 60 

1. The strategic management of the Council’s property assets including: 
 

 The acquisition, management and development of land and property 
acquired for the general purposes of the Council until required for the 
specific functions of another service or until disposal of the land or property 
 

 The acquisition, management and development of land and property for the 
purposes of economic development, regeneration or in accordance with the 
Council’s Investment Strategy  

 

 The control and management or disposal of land and property surplus to 
service requirements by receiving (if necessary) a transfer or an 
appropriation of such land or property 

 

 The management and control of the municipal estates, the municipal 
buildings forming the Waterside Centre, Sale and buildings used as offices 
by the Council 

 
2. The furtherance of trade, commerce and general industrial and physical 

development within the Borough, including assisting with the relocation and 
development of industry, commerce and business, the making of grants in 
respect of business security, environmental improvement, commercial 
improvement and related matters. 

 
3. To promote economic growth within the Borough through effective working with 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority, AGMA and other North West regional 
partners and agencies. 

 
 
4. Development of economic strategies. 
 
5. The initiation, development and monitoring of industrial and commercial 

development projects and the encouragement of development of land in 
furtherance of the Council’s policies and objectives. 

 
6. Development and implementation of the Transport Strategy. 
 
7. Obtaining external funding through e.g. AGMA funding streams including 

regional, national, European and lottery funding. 
 
8. Monitoring regeneration programme performance. 
 
9. Liaison with the Chair of the Planning and Development Management Committee 

on the relationship between strategic planning issues and emerging policies and 
development management. 

 
10. The development and management of the town centres. 

 
11. Planning Enforcement. 
 
12. The encouragement and support of community economic development initiatives. 

Page 134



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 61 

 
13. The management of the Council’s market functions. 

 
14. The repair and maintenance of buildings in accordance with the Council’s 

Corporate Landlord approach. 
 
 
To submit to the Executive: 
 
Recommendations in respect of key decisions concerning matters covered by these 
terms of reference unless otherwise authorised by the Leader of the Council. 
 

Page 135



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 62 

4.  SCHEME OF DELEGATION TO OFFICERS 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1. The purpose of this scheme is to provide arrangements for delegations to officers of the 
 Council's Executive and Non-Executive functions. 
 
2. The Scheme of delegation set out below has been compiled in accordance with Section  
 101 Local Government Act 1972 and the requirements of the Local Government Act  
 2000. The designated officers, or those authorised to act in their place, are authorised to  
 discharge the functions delegated to them in this Scheme. 
 
3. The following powers and duties are delegated to the officers named. Subject to any 
 restriction imposed by the Council or Executive, those officers can delegate further as 
 appropriate to any officer in his/her Service any power or duty which the Council or 
 Executive has already delegated to them. 
 
4. Notwithstanding any decision of the Council or Executive in relation to the delegation of  any 

item to any officers of the Council, that item shall cease to be delegated if that officer has 
declared a personal or financial interest in that item. 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
1. All officer delegations are to be exercised in accordance with the Constitution, and 
 consistently with the approved Policy and Budgetary Framework. 
 
2. Any delegation to an officer to take action under a particular statutory provision shall be 

deemed to authorise action under any statutory re-enactment or amendment of that 
provision, and any statutory regulations, order, or direction made under that provision both 
before and after the date of this Constitution. References to statutory requirements in this 
scheme include relevant European legislation and directives as applicable. 

 
3. In deciding whether or not to exercise delegated powers, officers should have regard to  the 

desirability of consulting with the appropriate Executive Portfolio Holder or Committee Chair. 
Officers will always be entitled to refer matters for decision to the Council, the Executive or 
relevant Committee, as appropriate, where they consider it expedient to do so. 

 
4. Significant decisions taken by Officers should be published in accordance with the provisions 

of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 and guidance issued by the Corporate Director of Governance 
and Community Strategy. 

 
5. With regard to situations which arise between Committee or Executive meetings  and 

require emergency action which cannot reasonably await the next meeting, the Chief 
Executive, Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy or relevant Corporate 
Director has authority to take such action in consultation with the Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Opposition Spokesperson of the Committee concerned (or with such of the latter as are 
available for consultation) or with the relevant Executive Portfolio Holder and subject to a 
subsequent report to the next meeting of the Committee or the Executive. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 63 

WHO IS 
RESPONSIBLE 
 

FUNCTION 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
 

A.   GENERAL MATTERS 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 

1. To undertake all matters associated with the professional management of 
the Council. 

 
2. To exercise any power delegated to any officer at any time when that officer 

is unable or unwilling to act. 

 
3. To give a decision on the applicability of any delegated power in any 

specific case. 

 
4. To require any officer of the Council to refer a matter to a Committee or the 

Executive for decision notwithstanding the fact that the officer may have 
delegated authority to deal with that matter. 

 
5. The taking of any necessary action, including the incurring of expenditure, in 

connection with an emergency or disaster in the Borough. (Note: This 
delegation is also exercisable by all Corporate Directors.) 

 
6. To determine, in conjunction with the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Systems, whether representation to the relevant Government Department 
should be made for activation of the “Bellwin” Scheme of Emergency 
Financial Assistance to Local Authorities for any expenditure relating to 
major incidents which occur in Trafford. 

    
7. To deal with matters relating to the development of the Community Strategy 

and Corporate Plan. 
 
8. To appoint replacement members to the Independent Remuneration Panel 

whenever necessary and agree their terms of reference, in consultation with 
the Political Group Leaders. 

 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
 

B.  ELECTIONS  
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 

9. In consultation with the relevant ward councillors and Group Leaders to 
discharge the function of dividing electoral divisions into polling districts at 
local government elections and altering such districts and to be responsible 
for the ongoing review of polling districts, polling places and polling stations 
between the 4 yearly reviews for parliamentary elections (Sections 18A, 18B 
and 31 of the Representation of the People Act 1983). 

 
10. To determine fees and conditions for the supply of copies of extracts of 

elections documents.  (Rule 48(3) Local Elections (Principal Areas) Rules 
1986 and Rule 48(3) Local Elections (Parishes and Communities) Rules 
1986.) 

 
 

Page 137



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 64 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

C.   HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

11. In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 

 

12.  The overall direction of all human resource matters. 
 
13. The administration and implementation of the Council’s organisational,        

employee development and human resource plans. 
 

 

Page 138



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 65 

 
CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
AND 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTORS 
 

1. The management and administration of the services for which they are 
responsible and the incurring of expenditure for such purposes within the 
approved budget. 

 
2. In relation to any matters delegated to them, to take any action which is         

calculated to facilitate or is conducive or incidental to the discharge of the         
Council’s functions within their service area. 
 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
AND 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTORS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTORS 
AND 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
STRATEGY 
AND 
RESOURCES 
(5,6,7,9) 
CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE(7,
9) 
 
COUNCIL (8) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A.    HUMAN RESOURCES  
 
The following delegations are subject to: 
  

(a) the corporate human resources policies adopted by the Council. 
 
(b) any statutory provisions or requirements. 
 
(c) any other instructions given from time to time by the Chief       

Executive or Corporate Director of Strategy and Resources where 
overriding       corporate, financial or recruitment controls are to be 
strictly       observed. 

 
3. To implement all the Council’s policies relating to the employment of staff. 
 
4. The creation of a maximum of 3 new posts up to and including Band 12 and 

deletion of posts up to and including band 12 i.e. where the job description 
has previously been agreed and evaluated by HR. 
 

5. The creation/change of up to 3 new posts up to and including Band 12 for 
which there is no approved job description and the duties are substantially 
new.  
 

6. Responsibility for all Service Reviews – including the creation/re-grading 
and deletion of posts above Band 12. 
 

7. Responsibility for directorate wide reviews and the development of 
corporate and cross cutting proposals. 
 

8. Decisions on proposals affecting Director level posts are subject to the prior 
approval of the Chief Executive. 

 
9. Before referring any matters deemed by the Chief Executive to be of 

strategic significance to the Employment Committee for consideration 
and/or determination, the Chief Executive shall consult with, and obtain the 
views of the Executive. 

 
10. To act in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s locally-agreed 

arrangements, including the appointment to posts below Head of Service 
level. 
 

11. To act in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s locally-agreed 
arrangements, including:- 

   
(a) To determine those groups of employees who can participate in the 

flexible working hours schemes. 
 

Page 139



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 66 

 
 
 
CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
AND 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTORS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(b) To  determine the arrangements that should apply in respect to the 
carry forward of up to five days from one leave year to the next and to 
approve any carry forward of leave in excess of five days. 

   
(c) To determine the arrangements in respect to the attendance of 

employees at courses and professional meetings for periods not 
exceeding five days, at the expense of the authority. 

 
(d) To determine the arrangements in respect to the payment of 

subsistence allowances in appropriate cases in accordance with the 
provisions of the National Scheme of Conditions of Service and the 
Supplemental Conditions of Service. 

 
(e) To determine the arrangements for the granting of payment at the 

standard mileage rate in respect of the use of cars for specific 
approved journeys. 

 
(f) To take disciplinary action against an employee, including suspension 

and dismissal, in consultation with appropriate Human Resources 
officers, in accordance with the agreed disciplinary procedure. 

 
(g) To determine payments to officers temporarily undertaking additional 

duties. 
 

(h)  To approve or disapprove temporary appointments of 12 months or 
less. Temporary appointments for periods in excess of 12 months to 
be agreed by the Chief Executive. 

 
(i)   To approve the discretionary application of the Council’s relocation 
        Scheme for Newly Appointed Officers. 
 
(j) To determine the arrangements for the approval of job sharing 

arrangements, reduced hours, term time working or other flexible 
working arrangements in appropriate circumstances, subject to there 
being no detrimental effect on the service. 

 
(k) To determine the arrangements for the approval of applications for 

facilities for courses leading to a qualification, including time off (day 
release etc.) subject to being satisfied that the courses are appropriate 
to the work of the officers. 

 
(l) To determine the arrangements for the granting of leave in accordance 

with the Special Leave for Dependents and Bereavement Policy. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
STRATEGY 
AND 
RESOURCES 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice,  National Care Standards and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
Human Resources 

 
1. Authority, after consultation where appropriate with the Portfolio Holder, 

Chair of the Employment Committee, Trade Unions and staff 
representatives, to approve revisions and amendments which are not 
significant to corporate human resources strategies and policies in so far as 
they relate to the appointment, terms and conditions of employment and 
dismissal of staff. 

Page 140



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 67 

 
2. Excluding those policies which must be approved by Council, the authority 

to approve all other corporate human resources strategies, policies and 
procedures. 

 
3. To determine discretionary termination compensation payments up to 66 

weeks of pay. 
 

4. To act in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s locally-agreed 
arrangements, including:- 

   
(a)  To determine the arrangements for the granting of leave with pay to 

officers for attendance at meetings of approved outside bodies. 
 

(b)  To determine the arrangements for the granting of leave in accordance 
with the Special Leave for Public Duties Policy. 

 
(c)  To grant leave with pay to not more than three officers appointed as 

delegates to attend annual conferences of their Trade Unions, together 
with any member of staff who is a member of the National Executive. 

 
(d)  To grant leave with or without pay for trade union purposes including 

training in accordance with the ACAS Code of Practice on Time Off for 
Trade Union Duties and Activities. 

 
(e)  To grant leave with pay to staff serving on Staff Councils or other Joint 

Negotiating Bodies. 
 

(f)  To approve a long service award in those cases where the exact length 
of an employee’s service contract cannot be verified. 

 
5. To consider and make payments, not exceeding £500, in respect of claims 

by employees for loss of, or damage to, personal property arising from their 
official duties. 

 
6. To enter into settlement agreements with employees. 

 
7. Directorate wide service reviews and development of corporate proposals, 

including decisions relating to the creation/re-grading and deletion of posts 
above Band 12. 

 
• In exceptional circumstances, decisions on proposals affecting Statutory 

and non-Statutory Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer level posts 
(exceptional circumstances to be determined by the Proper Officer in 
consultation with the Chair of the Employment Committee); 

 
•  Other than in exceptional circumstances, decisions on proposals 

affecting Statutory and non-Statutory Chief Officer or Deputy Chief 
Officer level posts are subject to the prior approval of the Proper Officer 
and Employment Committee. 

 
• In exceptional circumstances  decisions in respect of the  preparation of 

the statement of  duties and qualifications, advertisement and 
appointment of internal and external candidates to the role of statutory 
and non-statutory Chief Officers or Deputy Chief Officers in accordance 
with Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC)  Conditions of Service and 

Page 141



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 68 

Council and government policies and procedures (exceptional 
circumstances to be determined by the Proper Officer in consultation 
with the Chair of the Employment Committee): 

 
o Appointments of internal candidates may be on an interim or a 

permanent basis; 
o Appointments of external candidates shall be on an interim basis 

only: 
o All decisions shall be reported to the Employment Committee prior to 

reporting to Full Council. 
      

• Decisions relating to salary packages for new posts above £100,000, 
such decisions shall then be subject to full Council approval. In addition, 
decisions relating to any severance arrangements agreed in line with the 
relevant policies that exceed £100,000, such decisions shall then be 
subject to full Council approval. 

 
8. In the absence of a Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources, the 

Proper Officer would assume the responsibilities. 
 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
AND 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTORS 
 

B.    FINANCIAL, COUNCIL AND CONTRACT PROCEDURES 
 
9. To act as indicated in the Council’s:- 

Financial Procedure Rules 
Council Procedure Rules 
Contract Procedure Rules 
Internal Code of Practice on Financial Management 

 
10. To incur revenue expenditure within budgets as delegated and approved at 

the Budget setting Council. 
 
11. To incur expenditure on individual capital schemes as approved in the 

Capital Programme approved by Council. 
 
12. To approve price variations under contracts. 
 
13. Disposing of a surplus or obsolete capital asset, other than land and 

property at the best price obtainable in accordance with the procedures 
agreed with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems. 

 
14. To write-off stocks and stores up to a book value of £50,000 in consultation 

with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems and in accordance with 
the Finance Procedure Rules. 

 
(Note: Each designated officer must ensure that the Financial and Contract 
Procedure Rules set out in the Constitution are observed throughout his/her 
Directorate. He/she shall also ensure that all relevant staff are fully aware of 
and accept the content of such aspects of financial management. Designated 
officers must maintain a record of those officers to whom this Scheme has been 
issued, thus providing a framework of financial administration and control that 
facilitates compliance with Section 151 Local Government Act 1972). 
 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
AND 
CORPORATE 

C.   PLANNING PERMISSION AND PROPERTY 
 
15. Under the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 to seek 

planning permission for development by the Council or in respect of land 

Page 142



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 69 

DIRECTORS 
 

vested in the Council. 
 
16. The management of buildings and facilities under their control, subject to 

advice and guidance from the Corporate Director of Place in relation to the 
strategic and corporate use of assets. 

 
17. To permit the casual use of property by outside organisations, in      

accordance with the policy of the Council.  
 

CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
AND 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTORS 
 

D.   GENERAL MATTERS   
 
18. To deal with lost or uncollected property. 
 
19. To authorise, in writing, officers of the Council and named individuals who 

are not officers of the Council who are acting on behalf of the Council, to 
exercise statutory rights of entry on to property in pursuance of their duties. 

 
20. To take necessary measures to ensure that high standards of health, safety 

and welfare are achieved in the activities of the Council and its service 
areas, in compliance with the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and 
the Council’s Health and Safety Policies. 

 
21. To nominate appropriate officers who can authorise surveillance under the     

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 in pursuance of the Council’s      
statutory duties and in accordance with the Scheme of Authorisation made 
in accordance with the Act. Surveillance shall be authorised in advance of 
any such activity being undertaken by the relevant Officer. 

 
22. To authorise staff possessing such qualifications as may be required by law     

or in accordance with the Council’s policy to take samples, carry out      
inspections, enter premises, form opinions, issues notices and fixed       
penalties and generally perform the functions of a duly authorised Officer of      
the Council (however described) under the statutory codes relating to: 

 
public health, mental health, children and young persons, social 
services, housing, education, town planning, rating, licensing, trading 
standards and consumer services, highways, building control, shops, 
food safety, environmental health, animal health and welfare, health 
and safety at work,  

 
under the provisions of the Greater Manchester Act 1981 or relating to any 
other statutory function or duty of the Council and to issue any necessary 
Certificates of Authority. In relation to any powers delegated to the Chief 
Executive which require to be dealt with by a Solicitor of the Supreme 
Court, his/her power shall in turn be delegated to the Corporate Director of 
Governance and Community Strategy if necessary.   
 

23. To deal with requests for access to personal files and data in accordance 
with the relevant legislation and regulations. 

 
24. In consultation with the appropriate Executive Portfolio Holder, to authorise 

attendance by councillors/co-opted members at conferences/seminars. 
 
25. To sign and serve documents and notices on behalf of the Council. 
 
26. The taking of any necessary action, including the incurring of expenditure, in 

Page 143



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 70 

connection with an emergency or disaster in the Borough. 
 

 

Page 144



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 71 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision, to take necessary and 
appropriate action in respect of  the following:  
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; 
OR DIRECTOR OF 
GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
STRATEGIC 
GROWTH 
 

A Economic Growth 
 

1. To prepare and submit applications for regeneration funding to any 
providers of external funding for which the Council may become eligible, 
and with regard to European Funding, the power to sign off public authority 
certificates. 

 
2. To manage and deliver all business grant or loan applications which comply 

with the agreed criteria. Any other grant or loan applications to be referred 
to the Executive Portfolio Holder. In consultation with the Executive Portfolio 
Holder to deal with all business grant or loan applications which comply with 
the agreed criteria. Any other grant or loan applications to be referred to the 
Executive. 

 
3. In consultation with the Executive Portfolio Holder to generate revenue from 

economic growth services, activities, initiatives and programmes in 
accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance and 
Codes of Practice’. 

 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; 
OR DIRECTOR OF 
GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
STRATEGIC 
GROWTH 
 

B    Strategic Housing 
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
1. All matters concerning the relationship between the Council and Trafford 

Housing Trust limited and other Registered Pproviders. 
 
2. To discharge the Council’s functions under legislation relating to homeless 

persons including the delivery and management of service provisionTo 
discharge the Council’s statutory functions relating to homeless persons. 

 
3. To deal with special circumstances not adequately provided for within the 

Council’s aAllocations pPolicy. 
 
4. To prepare and submit applications for funding to any providers of external 

funding for which the Council may become eligible. 
 
45. In consultation with the Executive Portfolio Holder to: 
 
        i)  add further Section 106 planning agreement commuted sums and CIL 

 payments to the Capital Programme, and: 
 

ii)    ii)  approve future Registered Providers schemes for grant funding. 
 

iii) approve grant or loan applications for the provision of social rented 
housing and other affordable housing provision. 

  
 
 
 

Page 145



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 72 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; 
OR DIRECTOR OF 
GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
STRATEGIC 
GROWTH 
 

C        Strategic Planning 
 
1. In consultation with the Executive Portfolio Holder to: 
 

i) develop, produce and monitor plans and policies and reports to meet the 
Council’s statutory obligations under relevant legislation and government 
guidance including, but not restricted to, Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004, Localism Act 2011, National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012. 

 
ii) meet Neighbourhood Plan obligations under the Localism Act 2011. 
 
iii) contribute to the development of sub-regional plans and policies, 

including the statutory Greater Manchester Strategic Framework. 
  

2   In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice to manage and monitor the implementation of Section 
106 and CIL. 

 
3.  To produce the Local Development Scheme. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; 
OR DIRECTOR OF 
GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

D Housing Renewal 
 
 
1. To issue licences and certificates as appropriate for licensing and 

accreditation schemes for privately rented properties. 
 
2. To authorise all action required to address public health concerns within 

private sector housing including statutory nuisances, filthy and verminous 
premises, pest control, local drainage concerns and accumulations. 

 
1.3. To determine applications for grants to improve properties and to take all 

necessary steps to ensure that any action relating to the implementation of 
renewal areas, grants and necessary repairs of properties is carried out. 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; 
OR DIRECTOR OF 
GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

E Asset Management 
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
Land and Property 
 
1. To undertake estates management functions, including dealing with    

applications to develop, alter or assign property, where the Council’s    

Page 146



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 73 

consent as landlord is required, and to determine whether action should be 
taken under relevant property related legislation. 

 

2. To be responsible for progressing all land and property transactions. 
 
3. To take action to protect the Council’s legal or financial position in relation 

to the management of property. 
 
4. Strategic Land ReviewSales Programme: 
 

i) In respect of the Strategic Land ReviewSales Programme, as approved 
from time to time, authority to: 

 
a) Engage external resources where this will assist in implementation 

                 Of   the programme. 
 b)  Submit for planning consent on any of the properties included in  

 the programme where this will assist in marketing. 
 c)  Negotiate and accept bids. 
 d)  Advertise the intention to dispose of a site in the event that it 

 comprises open space as defined by the Town and Country Planning 
 Act 1990, in accordance with relevant statutory procedure and if any 
 objections are received to refer them to the Executive for 
 consideration. 

 e) Offset eligible disposal costs against the capital receipts.in accordance 
 with capital regulations up to a maximum of 4% of the value of the 
 receipt. 

 
ii) In respect of the Strategic Land ReviewSales Programme, in 

consultation with the Executive Portfolio Holder, authority to 
 

a) Approve the substitution or addition of sites to the Strategic Land 
Review Sales Programme. 

b) Approve the hiring of security services or the demolition of any 
property should this become necessary. 

c) Authorise an alternative method of sale where appropriate. 
 
5. Subject to compliance with the Council’s agreed arrangements,             

appropriate budgetary provision and to securing the best consideration that 
can be obtained: 

 
            a)  to approve the taking of, or the grant, renewal, assignment,  
                 transfer, surrender, taking of surrenders, review, variation and  
                 terminations of any leases, licences, easements and wayleaves,  
                 consents and rights in land, for a consideration that does not  
                 exceed £25,000 per annum or a premium of £499,000. 
             b)  to approve the acquisition and disposal of land, buildings or other  
                  property interests for a consideration not exceeding £499,000. 
 
6. To approve the purchase price and all compensation payable in respect         

of land and buildings included in Compulsory Purchase Orders, including 
home loss and disturbance payments, and to authorise acquisitions by 
agreement as an alternative to the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order. 

 
7. All rent reviews and lease renewals. 
 
8. Sale of freeholds in accordance with the Leasehold reform Act 1967, in 

Page 147



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 74 

accordance with the prevailing rate of capitalisation. 
 
9. The installation of wireless apparatus, Telecom installations, Water Authority 

installations, electricity sub-stations, gas governors and other minor works in 
or on properties under the management of the Asset Management Service. 

 
10. Where the sale of that property has been authorised, to place for auction any 

miscellaneous properties where such a course of action is expedient to effect 
a sale of the land/property. 

 
11. To appoint consultants for small works in line with agreed policy. 
 
12. To authorise the repair and maintenance of Council property in accordance 

with the approved budget or the use of virement. 
 
13. To settle claims under Part 1 of the Land Compensation Act 1973 and       

Claims resulting from the laying of sewers and other apparatus under the 
Public Health Act 1936, Water Acts and Land Drainage Acts. 

 
14. To agree terms and conditions of re-purchase of defective former Council or 

public authority dwellings under Part XVI, Housing Act 1985. 
 
15. The acquisition and disposal of Chief Rents on Council property. 
 
16. The Authority to make proposals, objections and agreements in respect of 

rating assessments on corporate land and property including, where       
necessary, attendance at Valuation tribunals and Lands Tribunals. 

 
17. To prioritise works in respect of access for the disabled and fire precaution 

work. 
 
18. To approve the appointment of estate agents for residential disposals on the 

basis agreed by the Council. 
 
19. To manage all building services for the Council’s administrative buildings. 
 
20. To act in the best interests of the Council in relation to energy management. 
 
21. To repair and maintain buildings and grounds within approved revenue    

estimates for these purposes. 
 
22. To authorise statutory authorities to carry out essential works. 
 
23. To determine requests for inscriptions to be added to Cenotaphs throughout 

the Borough. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 

 

Markets 
 
24. To be responsible for the management of any markets that the Council may 

operate in the Borough, including the letting, transfer and surrender of stalls, 
applications for change of trade, collection of charges and any matters under 
the market regulations. 

 
25. To licence or refuse temporary markets in accordance with the policy 

approved by the Council 
 

Page 148



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 75 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 

 

Lettings and Public Halls 
 
26. To control the range and frequency of events in public halls, subject to 

obtaining planning permission when necessary. 
 
27. To approve lettings and concessions of Council accommodation for hire,         

in accordance with the Council’s approved scheme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE;  DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F   PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT  
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision, to take necessary and 
appropriate action in respect of  the following:  
 
1.  Definitions 
 
       For the purposes of this scheme and for the avoidance of doubt: - 

a) ‘planning application’ means: 
 
 Applications for Outline Planning Permission, Full Planning Permission and 

Approval of Reserved Matters 
 Applications for development within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse 
 Applications for minerals and waste development (including Review of 

Minerals Permissions) 
 Applications under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to 

vary, modify or remove a planning condition, including minor material 
amendments and applications to extend the time limit on a permission. 
Applications under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2011 

 Applications requiring the completion of a legal agreement / planning 
obligation under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act or any other 
enabling power.  

 Applications for ‘relevant demolition’ in a conservation area. 
 Applications for Listed Building Consent and other heritage consents under 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 

 Applications for consent to display Advertisements (under the Town and 
Country Planning (Control of Advertisement) Regulations 2007 

 Applications for non-material amendments under S96A of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 

 Applications for permission under the Town and Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992 

 Application for Hazardous Substances Consent under the Planning 

Page 149



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 76 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Hazardous Substances) Act 1990.  
 Applications for prior approval under the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015. 
 Applications for permission in principle and technical details consent under 

the Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order 2017 as 
amended. 

 Inclusion of a site on Part 2 of the Council’s brownfield land register under the 
Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017. 

 Applications for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects under the 
Planning Act 2008 (as amended) where the Local Planning Authority is a 
consultee and a Local Impact Report is required. 

 Applications for approval of details under the High Speed 2 Act(s) (or 
howsoever those provisions are enacted). 

 
b) ‘‘application to be determined by committee’ means (other than 

applications fully delegated to officers and excluded by Part 3):- 
 

i)    Applications where six or more representations* contrary 
to the Officers’ recommendation have been received from 
separate addresses within the prescribed period. 

 
* For the purposes of this section a representation shall be taken to mean a 

letter, a signature on a petition or e-mail. 
 

ii) Where an application has been “called in” for determination 
by the Committee by either (i) a Member who represents a 
ward within the same Locality Partnership area in which the 
application site lies, or (ii) by the Chair of the Committee. 
For the avoidance of doubt there is no geographical limit to 
the call in powers of the Chair. Such call-ins are to be 
made in writing with planning reasons provided within the 
period of 28 days of the date of issue of the relevant 
Weekly List of Applications submitted to the Council and 
the Member to attend the meeting of the Committee when 
the application is considered.  
Proposals considered to be a material departure from the 
provisions of the Development Plan or of other 
Development Plan Documents which officers are minded to 
approve and where the officer recommendation is for 
approval, save where (i) Development Plan policies are 
‘out of date’ (in National Planning Policy Framework terms) 
and the proposal is in accordance with national policy and / 
or (ii) the proposals comprise a minor departure from the 
standards set out in adopted SPGs and SPDs or their 
successor documents.   

 
iii) Applications in which a Member or Officer has declared a 

personal or pecuniary interest. Applications for the 
enlargement, improvement or other alteration of existing 
dwellinghouses will not normally be referred to Committee 
unless: 
  

            (i)  the Officer concerned is:  

 employed in the Place Directorate; 

  employed in Governance Services; 

  Head of Service level and above in any 

Page 150



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 77 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Directorate; or 

 any other employee who has involvement in the 
Council's determination of planning applications; or 
 

(ii) One or more objection has been received that is 
material.  

 
iii)iv) Applications for development by or on behalf of the Council 

(including a Local Authority controlled school) to which an 
objection has been made which is material to the 
development proposed. 

 
c) ‘planning permission’ includes approvals and consents issued in 

respect of a ‘planning application’ as defined in section 1(a)  
  

d)  ‘the prescribed period’ means the period within which consultees 
and residents are required to submit representations following 
consultation/notification and/or publicity of applications in 
accordance with statute and the Council’s approved 
arrangements. 

  
e) ‘the Act’ means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990  

  
f) ‘the Order’ means the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015  
 

g) ‘the Committee’ means the Planning and Development 
Management Committee 

  
h) Any reference to an Act, Order or Regulation in this Part D shall be 

interpreted to mean any amendment or replacement to the said 
Act, Order or Regulation 

 
 
 
2. Arrangements For Exercising Delegated Powers 

 
The powers delegated to officers in this scheme shall be exercisable by the 
Corporate Director of Place, Director of Growth and Regulatory Services or Head 
of Planning and Development except where on his/her written instruction, or in 
the event of his/her absence for a period exceeding 24 hours, they shall be 
exercisable by other senior managers within the Place Directorate. 
 
3.     Planning Applications 
 
3.1 Processing Planning Applications 
 

a) To discharge the Local Planning Authority’s duties under the Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015. 
 

b) To discharge the Local Planning Authority’s duties under the Town 
and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order 2017 as 
amended, or the Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land 
Register) Regulations 2017. 

 

Page 151



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 78 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c) To determine the validity of any planning or other application made 
to the Local Planning Authority. 

 
d) To determine whether an applicant has carried out necessary pre-

application consultation under S61W of the Act. 
 

e) To determine what consultation, notification and publicity is 
appropriate and to carry this out in accordance with statute and the 
Council’s approved arrangements.  

  
f) To maintain for inspection registers of applications and associated 

matters, brownfield land, works to protected trees and decision 
notices as required by statute. 

 
g) To determine whether or not an application appears to be a 

departure from the Development Plan and to take appropriate 
procedural action. 

 
h) To determine whether or not an Environmental Impact 

Assessment is required, stipulate the minimum information needed 
and, if necessary, require additional information on receipt of a 
statement under the Act and the provisions of the Town and 
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011. 

 
i) To determine on the receipt of Outline Applications whether further 

information is required under the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 . 

 
j) Jointly with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems to 

operate the system of charging fees for planning applications, pre-
application advice, site visits, Planning Performance Agreements, 
High Hedge complaints under Part 8 of the Anti-social Behaviour 
Act 2003 and the High Hedges (Appeals) (England) Regulations 
2005 and any other charging fees within the remit of the Planning 
Service including the assessment and receipt of fees under the 
charging scheme. 

 
k) To issue all decision notices when exercising powers under the 

Act and other relevant legislation.  
 

l) To take all steps necessary to implement the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) (“CIL”) 
including (without limitation) all necessary enforcement action 
under CIL. 

 
3.2 Determination of Planning Applications 
 
To determine all planning applications except those falling under the provisions in 
1(b) ‘Applications to be determined by Committee’.  

 
For the avoidance of doubt the following planning applications are fully delegated 
to officers and the provisions in 1(b) do not apply:-  
 

a) Applications for prior approval under the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015. 

Page 152



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 79 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT  
 
 

 
b) Applications for permission in principle and technical details consent 

under the the Town and Country Planning (Permission in Principle) Order 
2017 as amended. 
 

c) Inclusion of sites on Part 2 of the Council’s brownfield land register under 
the Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 
2017. 
 

 
d) Applications for advertisement consent under the Town and Country 

Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 2007. 
 
e) Non-material amendments under Section 96A of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 

f) Repeat applications for proposals which have previously been subject to a 
determination by the Local Planning Authority / Planning Inspectorate, are 
of fundamentally the same nature and description, there has been no 
material change in planning circumstances and the officer 
recommendation remains in accordance with the previous decision (where 
there is any doubt, the Chair of the Committee should be consulted) For 
the avoidance of doubt this provision does not include S73 applications. 
 

In addition the following functions are delegated to officers:- 
 
g) Screening and scoping opinions under the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011. 
 

h) To decline to determine planning applications under the provisions of 
Section 70(A) of the Act and Section 81A of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

 
i) To attach conditions (and associated reasons) to planning permissions 

determined under this delegation and to make modifications to the 
standard planning conditions as necessary.  
 

j) To approve or refuse details and plans submitted to discharge conditions 
attached to  planning permissions, including deemed planning 
permissions and those imposed by an Order, Direction or statute. 
 

k) To finally dispose of applications. 
 

k)l) To determine Applications for Certificates of Lawful Development under 
Section 192 of the Act which requests a determination as to whether 
development would be lawful by virtue of permission being granted by 
Schedule 2, Part 1 or 2 of the Town and Country (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015. 
 
 

3.3 Minerals Applications 
 

l)m) To make Orders in respect of the control of minerals development 
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
 

Page 153



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 80 

3.4 Response To Consultations 
 

m)n) To respond to consultations from the Secretary of State in respect 
of Crown Development under S293 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
n)o) To respond to consultations from neighbouring Councils on 

applications received by those Councils for development where the 
response would accord with the provisions of the Development Plan, or 
where development plan policies are out of date, national planning policy.  
 

   
o)p) To respond to consultations under Section 36 of the Electricity Act 

1989 and the Electricity Generating Stations (Variation of Consents) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2013 where the response would accord 
with the provisions of the Development Plan, or where development plan 
policies are out of date, national planning policy.   
 

p)q) To respond to consultations under Section 37 of the Electricity Act 
1989 (overhead electricity lines of less than 132kV or less than 2km in 
length) where the response would accord with the provisions of the 
Development Plan, or where development plan policies are out of date, 
national planning policy.   
 

q)r) To respond to consultations under the Planning Act 2008 in respect of 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects where the response would 
accord with the provisions of the Development Plan, or where 
development plan policies are out of date, national planning policy, save 
where a Local Impact Report is required where such consultations will be 
subject to the provisions in 1(b). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 81 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
IN CONSULTATION 
WITH CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
IN CONSULTATION 
WITH CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 
 

r)s) To determine applications for Certificates of Lawfulness in relation to    
existing and proposed uses or development under the Act. Exceptions to 
these are specified in paragraph 3.2 (l). 
 

s)t) To determine applications for Certificates of Lawfulness of Proposed 
Works to a Listed Building under the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 
t)u) To determine applications for Certificates of Appropriate Alternative 

Development. 
 

v) To agree variations and/or modifications to planning agreements/ 
obligations by agreement or application under section 106A or 106BA of 
the Act or through formal or informal dispute resolution provisions. 
 

u)w) To revoke planning permissions under section 97 of the Act where 
revocation is unopposed. 

 

4.     Planning Appeals / Secretary of State call in 
 
4.1 To defend the decisions of the Council at appeal (including applications 

‘called in’ for determination by the Secretary of State’) through 
engagement with all necessary steps of the process. 

 
4.2 To decide whether the Council requests that a particular appeal be dealt 

with by the local inquiry, informal hearing or the written representations 
procedure. 

 
4.3 To agree matters arising during the process which do not conflict with the 

provisions of the Development Plan / national policy or the resolution of 
the Committee in order to best present the Council’s case. 

 
4.4 To appoint consultants to assist the Council where necessary, with the 

agreement of the Chair of the Planning and Development Management 
Committee if the decision has been made by that Committee.  

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

5.    Enforcement Of Planning Control  
 
5.1  Generally:- 

 
a) To maintain for inspection registers of enforcement notices as required 

by statute. 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 

 
b) To take initial action to deal with breaches of planning control 

including the service of Planning Contravention Notices / notices 
under Section 330 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to 
obtain relevant information in order to assess whether or not a breach 
of planning control has occurred. 

 

Formatted Table

Page 155



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 82 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
JOINTLY WITH 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c) To serve notice regarding powers of entry onto land and to issue 
authorisation to officers of the Council to enter land for enforcement 
purposes. 

  
c)d) To serve Planning Contravention Notices. 

 
d)e) To serve Breach of Condition Notices. 

 
e)f) To serve Enforcement Notices and Listed Building Enforcement 

Notices. 
 

f)g) To withdraw, modify and reissue any Enforcement Notice including 
following a decision by the Committee to grant permission for 
development / work which affect that Enforcement Notice or Listed 
Building Enforcement Notice. 

 
g)h) To serve Stop Notices and Temporary Stop Notices. 

 
h)i)  To make applications for Planning Enforcement Orders in respect of 

deliberately concealed unauthorised development. 
 

i)j) To bring prosecutions in respect of breaches of planning and listed 
building control.  

 
j)k) To make applications for an injunction to restrain breaches of 

planning and listed building control. 
 

k)l) To take all necessary enforcement action under the Planning 
(Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 and any amendment thereto. 

 
l)m) To serve Building Preservation Notices where there is an imminent 

threat of demolition of a building. 
 
m)n) To maintain for inspection registers of enforcement notices as 

required by statute. 
 
n)o) To determine the expediency of planning enforcement action. 

 
np)  To serve completion notices. 

 
5.2   Advertisements:- 
 

a) To serve Discontinuance Notices and removal notices under the Act 
and the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) 
Regulations 2007. 
 

b) To enforce the control of fly-posting through the obliteration and/or 
removal of any unauthorised placard or poster on private land. 

 
c) To bring prosecutions in respect of breaches of the Advertisement 

Regulations. 
 
5.3  Neglected/ Untidy Land:- 
 

a) To take action, including the service of Notices under Section 215 of 
the Act, requiring owners/ occupiers to carry out proper maintenance 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No
bullets or numbering

Page 156



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 83 

of land where its condition detracts from the amenity of the area, and 
to carry out such works in the event that the owners/ occupiers fail to 
do so. 

 
b) To authorise entry onto land to carry out works required by a Section 

215 Notice and to recover expenses reasonably incurred in doing so. 
 
c) To bring prosecutions in respect of breaches of Section 215 Notices. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
JOINTLY WITH 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

6.    Heritage  
 
6.1 To approve or refuse requests for grant aid for works to Listed Buildings or 

buildings within Conservation Areas within the approved budget. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
JOINTLY WITH 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

 

 
6.2 To issue Listed Building Repair Notices. 
 
6.3 To issue Notices for Urgent Works to Listed Buildings and buildings in 

Conservation Areas and to retrieve the Council’s reasonable costs for 
works carried out. 
 

6.4 To enter into Listed Building Heritage Partnership Agreements. 
 

6.5 To make Local Listed Building Consent Orders. 
 

6.6 To bring prosecutions in respect of breaches of Listed Building Repair 
Notices and Urgent Works Notices.  

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 

7      Trees And Hedgerows  

 
7.1   Applications for works 
  

a) To determine applications for works to, including felling of, trees 
protected by Tree Preservation Orders including the imposition of 
any conditions. 

Page 157



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 84 

PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
JOINTLY WITH 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 

 
b) To process notices under S211 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (notices for works to trees in a conservation area). 
 

c) To determine applications under the Hedgerow Regulations 2007.  
 

d) To approve or refuse requests for grant aid for works to protected 
trees and new planting within the approved budget. 

 
e) To maintain for inspection a register of Tree Preservation Orders as 

required by statute. 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
JOINTLY WITH 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

 
 
7.2  Orders and Notices 
 

a) To make, confirm and amend Tree Preservation Orders subject to 
confirmation (or otherwise) by the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition 
Spokesperson in those cases where the Order is opposed. 
 

b) To serve Tree Replacement Notices under Section 207 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 

c) To make and confirm Hedgerow Retention and Replacement 
Notices. 

d) To bring prosecution proceedings for breach of tree preservation or 
hedgerow control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7.3 High Hedges 
 
a) To carry out all necessary procedures under Part 8 of the Anti-social 

Behaviour Act 2003 and High Hedges (Appeals) (England) 
Regulations 2005 in respect of high hedge complaints, including the 
bringing of legal and prosecution proceedings and the carrying out of 
works in default. 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

 
b) To take initial action to deal with high hedge complaints under Part 8 

of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 and High Hedges (Appeals) 
(England) Regulations 2005 to obtain relevant information in order to 
assess whether or not a notice should be served.  

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 

G     BUILDING CONTROL  
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision, to take necessary and 
appropriate action in respect of  the following:  
 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at:
1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.27
cm + Indent at:  1.9 cm

Page 158



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 85 

HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES  

1.    Building Regulation Applications 
 
1.1 Processing Building Regulation Applications. 
 
1.2 Jointly with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems to operate the 

system of charging fees for applications, including ensuring that the correct 
fee has been paid under the approved charging scheme. 

 
1.3 To issue all decision notices relating to the determination of building 

regulation applications. 
 
1.4 Determination of Building Regulation Applications. 
 
1.5 To determine applications under the Building Regulations. 
 
1.6 To determine applications for relaxation of the Building Regulations. 
 
1.7 To issue conditional notices of approval. 
 
1.8 To determine amendments to approved schemes and to determine whether 

the variation requires a further application and fee. 
 
1.9 To issue Certificates of Completion of Work. 
 
1.10 To deal with the submission of Building Notices under the Building Act. 
 
1.11 To deal with the submission of Initial Notices under the Building Act. 
 
1.12 To deal with applications under the LANTAC scheme. 
 
 
2.    Other Building Control Matters 
 
2.1 To approve or refuse minor amendments to Building Regulation applications 

not requiring a new application. 
 
2.2 To exercise all other functions under the Building Act. 
 
2.3 To enter into Partnership schemes. 
 
 
 
 
3.     Contraventions 
 
3.1   To authorise action, including legal proceedings to ensure compliance with 

building control requirements. 
 
3.2   In respect of building control and general powers, to serve notices or to 

approve or reject plans under the Highways Act 1980, Section 180 for 
pavement lights and ventilators. 

 
4.       Miscellaneous Planning And Building Control Matters 
  
4.1 To sell service publications in accordance with the Council’s scheme of 

charging. 

Page 159



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 86 

 
4.2 Authority to sell departmental publications to the general public at printing 

or copying cost, plus postal charges where applicable, but that no charge 
be made for the issue of copies to Members and other Council departments 
and first copies of guidelines, etc. to architects, estate agents, civic 
societies and similar persons or voluntary organisations. 

 

 

Page 160



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 87 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice and subject to overall budget provision, to take necessary 
and appropriate action in respect of  the following: 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H. ENVIRONMENT 
 
Regulatory Services 
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
1. To carry out the functions, duties and powers of the Council in relation 

to statutory nuisances, offensive trades, pest control, infectious 
diseases, food and drugs, poisons, animal health, welfare and safety, 
environmental protection, pollution control, air quality, smoke-free 
legislation, health and safety at work, shops, consumer protection, 
trading standards, housing standards, houses in multiple occupation, 
and the management of on and off street parking, abandoned vehicles 
and environmental enforcement. 

 
2. To carry out all licensing, registration and enforcement functions, 

including determining applications and imposing conditions in 
connection with scrap yards, hairdressers and barbers, street traders, 
acupuncturists, tattooists, ear piercers and electrolysists, pet shops, 
animal boarding establishments, animal trainers and exhibitors, zoos, 
caravan sites, slaughter houses, riding establishments, dog breeders 
and dangerous wild animals. 

 
3. Authority to carry out the all duties of the Council’s Chief Inspector of 

Weights & Measures is delegated to the Regulatory Services Manager 
(Trading Standards and Licensing). 

 
4. To take direct action to remove unlawful itinerants’ encampments from 

Council-owned and other land in certain circumstances. 
 

5. To authorise all action required repairing and/or improving conditions in 
private sector housing, to protect the health, safety and welfare of the 
occupants and persons visiting the premises, to bring long term empty 
domestic properties back into use and to investigate harassment and 
illegal eviction of private sector tenants. 

 
6. Except where otherwise specified, authority to exercise all functions, 

powers and duties includes the authority take appropriate enforcement 
action, including issuing notices and cautions and, in consultation with 
the Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy, 
bringing proceedings under any appropriate legislation, statutory 
provisions and by-laws. 

Page 161



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 88 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

Licensing  
 
7. To grant, renew, transfer, suspend and vary, where no objections have 

been received, and to make conditions in relation to annual licences, 
occasional licences, registrations, certificates, permits, permissions and 
consents relating to: 

 
  Amusement with prizes 
 Betting and Gaming 
 Certificates of Suitability 
 Cinema and Cinema Clubs 
 Dealers in Game 
 Door Staff 
         Entertainment Clubs (Part IX) 

Gambling 
 Hackney Carriage Drivers and Proprietors 
 House-to-House Collections 
          Late Night Refreshment Houses 
 Lotteries 
 Motor Salvage Operators 
 Nurses Agencies 
 Performances of Hypnotism  
 Pools Promoters 
 Premises for the solemnisation of marriage 
         Private Hire Drivers, Proprietors and Operators 
 Prize Bingo 
            Scrap Metal Dealers 
 Street Collections 
 Theatre Licences 
 Track Betting 
 
8.  In accordance with the Licensing Act 2003, authority to determine: 
 

(a) Applications for personal licences provided no objection is 
made; 

(b) Applications for premises licences/club premises certificates, 
provisional statements and to vary premises licences/club 
premises certificates provided no relevant representation is 
made; 

(c) Applications to vary designated premises’ supervisor, for 
transfer of premises licences and for interim authorities 
provided that no police objection is made, and 

(d) Requests to be removed as designated premises supervisor 
 
9. To award penalty points (up to a maximum of 150 points) to hackney 

carriage/private hire drivers, proprietors and operators in accordance 
with the current penalty point system. 

Page 162



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 89 

 
10. To suspend the licence of a vehicle for reasonable cause where the 

vehicle owner has failed to renew the certificate of compliance. 
 
11. To suspend vehicle licences under Section 68 of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 where he/she is not satisfied as to 
the fitness of the vehicle to be used as a hackney carriage or private 
hire vehicle. 

 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

Safety at Sports Grounds 
 
12. Authority to make all decisions relating to the content, issue, service, 

review and amendment of General Safety Certificates and Special 
Safety Certificates under the provisions of the Safety at Sports Grounds 
Act 1975 as amended, and authority to sign such Certificates. 
 

13. Authority to serve prohibition notices under Section 10 of the Safety at 
Sports Grounds Act, as amended by the Fire Safety and Safety at 
Places of Sports Act 1987.  This is in respect of sports grounds in the 
Borough where it is considered that spectator safety is seriously at risk, 
on the understanding that any such notice would be served only after 
full consultation with the Police Ground Commander and other 
emergency services as appropriate. 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

Public Health 
 
14. To appoint suitably qualified persons as proper officers under the 

following legislation: 
 
 Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 and regulations 
 made  thereunder 
 National Assistance Act 1948 
 National Assistance (Amendment) Act 1951 
 
15. To appoint suitably qualified persons to act as Public Analyst under 

Section 27 of the Food Safety Act 1990. 
 
16. To appoint suitably qualified persons to act as Agricultural Analyst 

under Section 67 of the Agriculture Act 1970. 
 
17. Authority to act on behalf of the Council in respect of the following       

legislation:- 
 
 Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 and all Regulations 
 made thereunder. 
 National Assistance Act 1948. 
 National Assistance (Amendment) Act 1951 
 
 is delegated to the Consultant for Communicable disease Control (Also 

to include Director of Public Health and Consultants in Public Health      
Medicine). 

 
 
 
 

Page 163



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 90 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I.  Highways, Engineering And Traffic Management 
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
1. To exercise the Council’s functions, powers and duties in respect of:   
  

(a) regulation of the use of the highway 
(b) protection of highways and highway users  
(c) the adoption of highways 
(d) the maintenance and improvement of public highways 
(e) dangerous or dilapidated buildings or structures, dangerous 

excavations and dangerous trees on land accessible to the 
public  

(f) abandoned vehicles 
(g) private streets and unadopted highways 
(h) interference with highways and streets 
(i) footpaths, cycleways and bridleways 
(j) sewers and land drainage 
(k) the management of on and off street parking 
(l) transport 
(m) fleet management and maintenance 
(n) Traffic Management Statutory Duty 

 
including the authority to  grant or refuse privileges, licences, permits, 
approvals and consents relating to matters in, on, over or under the 
highway, serve, receive and advertise notices, execute works, recover 
costs and authorise any appropriate enforcement and legal action. 

 

2. In relation to road traffic orders: 
 

(a) To make and implement temporary road traffic orders under 
the provisions of any relevant legislation. 

(b) Subject to there being no unresolved objection, to make and 
implement traffic regulation orders. 

 
3. To arrange for the temporary prohibition or restriction of traffic on roads 

by temporary traffic regulation order or notice and the temporary 
diversion of rights of way. 

 
4. To deal with all matters relating to the private street works code and to 

inspect and adopt sewers following private street works. 
 
5. To exercise the Council’s powers to name streets and require the 

renumbering of buildings in streets, subject to consultation with Ward 
Councillors. 

Page 164



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 91 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 
 

 
6. To exercise the Council’s powers and duties in relation to the safety of 

reservoirs. 
 
7. To be the lead Local Flood Authority, responsible for the powers 

transferred from the Environment Agency, including ordinary 
watercourse regulation under the Flood Risk Regulation 2009 and 
Flood and Water Management Act 2010. 

 
 

8. To be responsible for operation of the Council’s policy with respect to 
sewer ownership and water resources (non-mains water) and oversee 
the Council’s obligations as a riparian owner. 

 
9. To serve notices of approval or rejection of plans under Sections 263 

and 264 of the Public Health Act 1936. 
 
10. To recover the cost of maintaining certain lengths of public sewers             

under Section 24 of the Public Health Act 1936. 
 
11. The power to make arrangements with the appropriate statutory 

undertakers to ensure the provision of utilities to service developments 
promoted by the Council or to localities within the area of the Council 
where the Council deems such provision to be necessary.  

 
12. To deal with applications for easements and wayleaves affecting 

highways. 
 
13. To negotiate with prospective sponsors with regard to charges which 

may be made for advertisements on sponsored litter bins, together with 
locations and other pertinent commercial matters. 

 

14. To exercise functions required by the Road Traffic Act 1974 to promote 
road safety:- 

 
(a) to carry out studies into accidents arising out of the use of 

vehicles on roads or parts of roads other than trunk roads 
within the Borough, and 

 

(b) following consultation with the Executive Portfolio Holder, 
authorisation to disseminate information and advice relating 
to the use of roads and to give practical training to road users 
or any class or description of road users in the light of such 
studies (other measures to be reported to the Executive). 

 
15. In consultation with the Police, to approve the siting of temporary school 

crossing patrol points in such circumstances, for example, as road 
works and royal visits. 

 

16. To determine all applications for signs within the Borough. 
 
17. Authority in consultation with local Ward Members, the Chair, the Vice-

Chair and the Opposition Spokesperson of the Planning Development 
Control Committee and the Police to consider applications for the 
placing of tables, chairs and certain associated furniture on the 
highway. If the application is considered suitable to serve notices, 

Page 165



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 92 

obtain necessary consents from owners and occupiers and, if no 
objections are received, to grant permission subject to such conditions 
as he/she considers appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
IN CONSULTATION 
WITH CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

1. To determine applications for Definitive Map Modification Orders. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 
 
 
 

J.   Environmental Services 
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
1. To manage and maintain the Council’s parks, play areas and open 

spaces. 
 
2. To give authorisation for events in the Borough’s Parks, [in consultation 

with the Executive Portfolio Holder.] 
 
3. Authority to let facilities in parks and recreation grounds. 
 
4. To arrange exhibits for horticultural shows as required. 
 
5. To exercise the Council’s functions, powers and duties in relation to 

cemeteries, crematoria, burial grounds and memorials. 
 
6. To exercise the Councils functions, powers and duties in relation to: 
 

(a) Refuse collection and recycling 
(b) Waste management 
(c) Street cleaning, including litter, refuse and controlled waste 

 
7. To fix charges for refuse collection and recycling. 

 
8. To exercise the Council’s functions, powers and duties in relation to: 

 
(a) Nuisance vehicles 
(b) Graffiti and fly posting 
(c) Abandoned vehicles 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 

K.    Sports, and Leisure And Arts 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, 
Codes of Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 

Page 166



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 93 

 

General 
 

1. All matters concerning the relationship between the Council, Trafford 
Leisure CiC Ltd and other sports and leisure providers with whom we 

have a contractual arrangement. 
 

2. With the exception of facilities operated by Trafford Leisure CiC Ltd 
and facilities within parks, the management and control of all the 
Council’s sports, and leisure and arts facilities. This includes: 

 
(a) authorising the emergency closure of premises and facilities, 

without notice, in the interests of public safety; 
 

(b) permitting and organising exhibitions. 
 
3. The development of sport and arts services throughout the Borough. 
 
4. To fix charges for any occasional activity, sale of goods over the counter 

or by machine, hire of equipment and other permitted use not contained 
in the approved list of charges. 

 
5. To set ticket prices for arts events. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 

L.     Operational Services for Education  

 
1. All matters relating to the supply of school milk and school meals. 

 
2. To negotiate with prospective suppliers with regard to charges which 

may be made for out-door media advertisements. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE; DIRECTOR 
OF GROWTH AND 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES; OR 
HEAD OF 
REGULATORY 
SERVICES 
 

M.   Housing Renewal  

 
1. To issue licences and certificates as appropriate for licensing and 

accreditation schemes for privately rented properties. 
 
2. To authorise all action required to address public health concerns within 

private sector housing including statutory nuisances, filthy and 
verminous premises, pest control, local drainage concerns and 
accumulations. 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
PLACE 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime And Policing Act 2014 

 
1. The exercise of all functions, powers and duties relating to Community 

Safety, including the taking of any appropriate enforcement action. 
 

2. The issuing of notices and cautions and bringing proceedings under any 
appropriate legislation, statutory provisions and by-laws. 

 

 

Page 167



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 94 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
CHILDREN 
AND 
FAMILIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporate Director of Children and Families is appointed as the Council’s 
statutory Director of Children’s Services under Section 18 of the Children Act 
2004. Accordingly, he/she has the responsibility for all the functions of the 
statutory Director under that Act and all other relevant legislation. 
 
A.   EDUCATION SERVICES 
 
In accordance with Council policy, statutory requirements and guidance and 
relevant Codes of Practice, to take necessary and appropriate action in respect of  
the following:  
 
General 
 
1.   To discharge the functions conferred on or exercisable by the Council in       

its capacity as local education authority. 
 
2. To discharge the functions of the Council in relation to early years’       

development and provision. 
 
3. To deal with administrative matters arising from the management of the 

Education Service which includes all matters relating to admission to 
maintained and controlled schools in the Borough. 

 
4. To take necessary action to ensure measures are in place to promote good 

attendance. 
 
5. To approve or disapprove applications for grants, awards, fees, concessions 

or allowances by or for pupils or students. 
 
6. In consultation with the Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy, to authorise proceedings in respect of irregular or non-attendance 
at school. 

 
7. To administer the regulations regarding the employment of children. 
 
8. In exceptional circumstances and in consultation with the School, to take 

decisions to ensure the appropriate provision of education for pupils which 
may involve, where risks of disruption are unacceptable, the closure of 
school buildings for a temporary period. 

 
9. To maintain and revise the Scheme for the Local Management of Schools in 

accordance with the resourcing and other relevant policies of the Council. 
 
10. To maintain the mechanisms by which a continuing positive dialogue may 

take place with non-Local Education Authority institutions. 
 
11. The provision of home/school transport for pupils. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 168



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 95 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
CHILDREN 
AND 
FAMILIES  
 
Except item 12 
which is the 
responsibility 
of the 
Corporate 
Director of 
Strategy and 
Resources 
and item 14 
which is the 
responsibility 
of Access 
Trafford under 
the Corporate 
Director of 
Place 
 
 

School Support Services 
 
12. All the Council’s functions in relation to the employment of teachers and other 

school based staff including appointment, termination of appointment and 
reimbursement of expenses properly incurred. 
 

13. To arrange the secondment and transfer of staff with the approval of the 
Governors concerned. 

 
14. To implement a scheme for assessing the eligibility of applicants for free 

school meals. 
 

 Special Education – Education Health and Care Plans 
 
15. Arrangements for determining whether a child is in need of an Education, 

Health and Care Plan 
 
16. Preparation of Education, Health and Care Plans and provision. 
 
17. Arrangements to implement special education provisions specified in 

Education, Health and Care Plans. 
 
18. To approve grant aid for parental visits at appropriate times to children with 

special needs in residential schools and colleges. 
 
19. The provision of education to individual pupils “otherwise than in school”. 
 

 School Improvement 
 
20.  Arrangements for the monitoring of school performance.  
 
21. Arrangements for intervening in schools under Special Measures or 

otherwise causing concern in accordance with the School Standards 
Framework Act 1998. 

 
22. To exercise the Council’s reserve power under the School Standards and 

Framework Act 1998 to prevent a breakdown of discipline 
 
23. Arrangements for receiving OFSTED reports. 
 

 
 
 

Young People's Services 
 
24. To discharge the duty of the Council in relation to young people’s services   

Page 169



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 96 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
CHILDREN 
AND 
FAMILIES 

 
25. To ensure voluntary youth organisations and youth welfare services have 

access to facilities in Trafford to enable them to deliver services. 
 
26. To approve remission of fees for youth service courses in cases not already 

covered, where payment of the fee would cause unnecessary hardship. 
 

 Miscellaneous 
 
27. To fix charges for any occasional activity, sale of goods over the counter or 

by machine, hire of equipment and other permitted use not contained in the 
approved list of charges. 

 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
CHILDREN 
AND 
FAMILIES  
 

B.  CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, relevant 
Codes of Practice, National Care Standards and subject to  overall budget 
provision to exercise all relevant children social services functions as conferred 
by; the Children Act 1989, the Adoption and Children Act 2002, the Local 
Authority Social Services Act 1970, the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 and the 
Protection of Children Act 1999 in the interests of safeguarding and promoting the 
welfare of children and young people: 
 

 General 
 

1. To exercise the Council’s Children’s Services’ functions, powers and duties 
under the Children Act 1989, Children Act 2004 and all other legislation 
relevant to the safety and welfare of children and their families. 

 
2. To discharge any function exercisable by the Authority under Section 75 of 

the National Health Service Act 2006 on behalf of an NHS body, so far as 
those functions relate to children and young people and any functions 
exercised pursuant to an arrangement made under S10 of the Children Act 
2004 to include making arrangements for the management of services 
provided. 

 
3. To manage the Council’s Children’s Services’ establishments 
 
4. To give all necessary consents in relation to the education, emigration, 

medical treatment (including operations), absence abroad on holiday, 
adoption of careers, marriage and all other similar matters relating to children 
looked after by or on behalf of the Council. 

 
5. In consultation with the Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy, the commencement of proceedings, appearances at court as 
appropriate, making of applications and representations, and the imposition 
of any requirements in relation to any matters relating to the protection, safety 
and welfare of children. 

 
6. To make arrangements for the hearing and determination of any complaint 

relating to the discharge of children’s services’ functions, whether from a 
client or a member of the public. 

 
7. Administering grants, loans, charges and other forms of assistance. 
 

Page 170



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 97 

 
8. The determination of individual applications for provision under community 

care legislation and the implementation of such provision. 
 
9. The administration of services for the welfare of children and young people 

with disabilities or mental health needs and their carers. 
 
10. The receipt into the guardianship of the Council of such people with mental 

health problems for whom this may be appropriate. 
 

11. To be consulted and offer objection or no objection to an application for 
hospital admission or guardianship under the Mental Health Act 1983 as 
nearest relative of a child in the care of the Council. 

 
 Adoption Services 

 
12.  To establish and maintain an Adoption Agency and engage fully in the 

development of the Regional Adoption Agency. 
 
13. To exercise all the Council’s functions as an adoption agency subject to 

future legislative changes related to Regional Adoption Agencies.  
 
14. To establish and maintain an adoption service to meet the needs of children 

who have been or may be adopted, parents and guardians of such children 
and persons who have adopted or may adopt such a child up until the 
Regional Adoption Agency is fully operational. 

 
15. After taking note of the recommendations of the Adoption Panel, and subject 

to the leave of the Court where necessary, to apply for Orders to place 
children for adoption. 

 
 Fostering Services 

 
16.  To establish and maintain a Fostering Agency. 
 
17. To exercise all the Council’s functions as a fostering agency. 
 
18. To establish and maintain a fostering service to meet the needs of children 

who have been or may be fostered, parents and guardians of such children 
and persons who have fostered or may foster such a child.  

 
19. After taking note of the recommendations of the Family Placement Panel, 

and subject to the leave of the Court where necessary, to place children for 
fostering. 

 
 Secure Accommodation  

 
20. The function of placing and reviewing the placement of children and young 

persons in secure accommodation. 
 
21. To provide or arrange with another local authority the provision of 

sufficient secure accommodation. 
 
22. Arrangements for the provision of accommodation, where necessary, with     

other authorities or organisations. 
 

Page 171



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 98 

 
 Day Care 

 
23.  To provide day care to children in need who have not reached 

compulsory school age, and to provide school children in need with care 
outside school hours or during school holidays. 

 
 Private Fostering 

 
24. All matters relating to the supervision of privately fostered children 

including being satisfied as to the welfare of privately fostered children and 
to visit them as laid down in regulations. 

 
25. To approve foster parents’ payments in respect of the community fostering 

programme pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Foster Placement (Children) 
Regulations 1991 and Section 23(2)(a)(I) Children Act 1989. 

 
26. To apply the provisions of Schedule 7 to the Children Act 1989, with 

regard to the permitted number of foster children for whom a foster parent 
may care. 

 
27. Approving, where required, applications by foster parents for residence          

orders and to pay appropriate allowances to foster parents. 
 

 Investigation and Social Reports 
 
28. To investigate a child’s circumstances at the request of a court and to 

report to that court. 
 
29. To make enquiries into the circumstances of any child the subject of an 

emergency protection order. 
 
30. To investigate where the local authority may have reasonable grounds to 

believe that a child may be suffering significant harm, to allow the authority 
to decide what action to take to promote the welfare of the child. 

 
 Review of Children’s Cases 

 
31. To review the cases of children looked after within the appropriate 

timescales. 
 

 Charging for Services 

 
32. Decisions regarding charging for services to children. 
 

 Miscellaneous 
 
33. To act on behalf of the Executive in statutory consultation with the Local 

Education Authority for the purposes of Section 36(8) of the Children Act 
1989. 

 
34. To safeguard and promote the welfare of children in need in accordance 

with Section 17 Children Act 1989:- 
 

a) By providing services or undertaking functions consistent with the 
duties identified in Part 3 of the Act and Schedule 2 within budgetary 

Page 172



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 99 

provision with the exception of:- 
 
   Schedule 2, paragraph 18(1), relating to the power to guarantee 
   apprenticeship and articles of clerkship for children in need. 
 
b) By undertaking the duties of the Local Authority mentioned in Parts 4 

and 5 of the Children Act 1989. 
 
35. To express an opinion, when asked by the Education, Health and Care 

(EHC) Assessment Service, as to whether a child with an EHC plan has 
disabilities. 

 
36. To make arrangements for the assessment, within specified time limits, of 

children who are regarded as disabled and who are about to leave full-
time education in regard to needs for which provision of services is 
required by one or more of: Part III of The National Assistance Act 1948; 
Section 2 of the Chronically Sick Disabled Persons Act 1970; Schedule 8 
to the National Health Services Act 1977. 

 
37. To be consulted by the Court in regard to remands of individual children in 

criminal proceedings. 
 
38. To make application to a Court for a declaration that a child should be 

remanded in a remand centre or a prison for the protection of the public. 
 

39. When in force to make applications in relation to the remand of individual 
children under the Children and Young Persons Act 1969, Section 23. 

 
 Matters Relating to Income and Expenditure 

 
40. To deal with matters relating to the collection of income as follows:- 
 

(a) To determine the contribution to be made by a young person 
accommodated by the department. 

 
(b) Parental Contribution – To decide on the issue, withdrawal or reissue 

of contribution notices in respect of maintenance charges for persons 
liable to contribute in respect of children looked after and the 
enforcement of those charges through the Court. 

 
41. Authority to incur expenditure in relation to children looked after in 

residential and family settings and young people provided with aftercare, 
within budgetary provision subject to the following. 

 
(a) To dispense in any year to any family under Section 17 The Children 

Act 1989 the equivalent of 10 weeks payment of the boarding out 
scales at the highest rate and rounded to the nearest £5. 

 
(b) To make payments and allowances for children in residential or 

fostering placements in accordance with the regional schedules and 
Council policy as below: 

 
  (i) Boarding Out Allowances 
 
 To increase future boarded out rates annually, in line with 

Northwest Association of Social Services Authorities 

Page 173



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 100 

recommendations, subject to adequate budgetary provision. 
 
  (ii) Discretionary Grants 
 

(c) To make payments to non-parents looking after a child under 
residence orders. 

 
(d) Authority to incur expenditure as appropriate following burial and 

cremation under the Children Act 1989, Schedule 2, paragraph 20. 
 
42.  To authorise:-  
 

(a) the placing of contracts for the residential care of children with such 
establishments as he/she considers will meet the assessed needs of 
the child, for an appropriate fee and within the approved budgetary 
provision. 

 
(b)  the placing of contracts for the domiciliary and day care of children 

with such organisations or individual as he/she considers will meet the 
assessed needs of the child, for an appropriate fee and within the 
approved budgetary provision.  

 
43. In respect of day nurseries, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, 

and in consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 
and the Executive Portfolio Holder, to deal with requests for abatement 
from assessed minimum charges to nil assessment, each case being 
judged on its individual circumstances. 
 

44. To agree to disregard up to the full amount of the attendance allowance or 
disabled living allowance received in appropriate cases. 

 
CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE  
 

Local Safeguarding Children Board 

 
45. Responsibility for ensuring that the Local Safeguarding Children Board is 

an effective vehicle for the promotion of child protection and the 
safeguarding of children in Trafford. 

 
46. To appoint or remove the chair of the Trafford Safeguarding Children 

Board in partnership with TSCB members and hold the chair to account 
for the effective work of the board, drawing on TSCB  information as 
appropriate 

 
 
 

Reporting Arrangements 
 
47. Mandatory reporting to the relevant Government departments, agencies 

and inspectorates. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 174



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 101 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
ADULT 
SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporate Director of Adult Services is appointed as the Council’s statutory 
Director of Adult Social Services under the Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970 with responsibility for local authority Social Services functions in respect of 
adults. Accordingly, he/she has the responsibility for all the functions of the 
statutory Director under that Act and all other relevant legislation. 
 
MATTERS RELATING TO ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES  
 
In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice,  National Care Standards and subject to overall budget provision to 
provide the following directly or through delegated authority (other than integration 
and co-operation, Safeguarding and power to charge): 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
ADULT 
SERVICES 
 

General 
 
1. To manage the Council’s Adult Social Services’ functions and establishments. 
 
2. To discharge the Council’s functions and duties and exercise the Council’s 

powers under relevant legislation relating to the care of older people, people 
with physical disabilities, people with learning difficulties and persons who are 
mentally ill, instituting legal proceedings where appropriate in consultation with 
the Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy. To take into 
account the needs of carers in so doing. 

 
3. To discharge the Council’s functions and duties and exercise the Council’s 

powers under the Care Act 2014 including, instituting legal proceedings, 
where appropriate, in consultation with the Corporate Director of Governance 
and Community Strategy. 

 
4. To ensure the provision of community and home based services.  
 
5. The provision of equipment and adaptations to property. 
 
6. The determination of individual applications for provision under the Care Act 

and the implementation of such provision. 
 

7. The hearing and determination of any complaint or representation relating to 
the discharge of Adult Services’ functions, whether from a client or a member 
of the public. 

 

8. Arrangements for the provision of accommodation, where necessary with 
other authorities or organisations. 

 

9. Administering grants, loans, charges and other forms of assistance, in 
accordance with Council policy and legislation. 

 

10. The exercise of the Council’s functions under Mental Health legislation, 
including guardianship, the appointment of approved social workers, the 
exercise of the function of nearest relative and the authorisation of individual 
social workers to act in that capacity and the authorisation of deprivation of 
liberty.  

 

11. Arrangements for the burial or cremation of persons in the care of the Council, 
or where no other person takes responsibility. 

 

Page 175



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 102 

 

12. The development of support and health improvement initiatives throughout the 
Borough, either independently or in partnership with local health bodies. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
ADULT 
SERVICES 
 

Safeguarding 
 

13. To be responsible for ensuring appropriate practices and procedures are in 
place for safeguarding vulnerable adults. 
 

14. To carry out a safeguarding enquiry, or cause others to do so, where a person 
is experiencing or is at risk of abuse and neglect to decide what action, if any, 
is necessary and by whom. 
 

15. To arrange an independent advocate for adults who are subject to a 
safeguarding enquiry or Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR). 

 
16. To set up a Safeguarding Adults Board or similar partnership vehicle to 

develop strategic safeguarding policy and practice. 
 
17. To cooperate with relevant partners to protect adults. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
ADULT 
SERVICES 

Miscellaneous Matters 
  
18. To establish a complaints procedure and to give publicity to this procedure, 

pursuant to Section 7B of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970 and the 
Complaints Directions 1990, as reformed by The Local Authority Social 
Services and NHS Complaints (England) Regulations 2009. 

 
19. Dealing with requests for access to personal files in accordance with the 

relevant legislation and regulations.  
 

DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC 
HEALTH 

PUBLIC HEALTH  
 
Without prejudice to the specific delegations to the Director of Public Health the 
Corporate Director of Adult Services will maintain a strategic overview of the 
discharge of the Council’s functions in relation to public health. 
 
The holder of the post of Director of Public Health shall be responsible for the 
public health commissioning functions and the management of the public health 
consultant function within the Children, Families and Well-beingAdult Services 
Directorate and the discharge of the statutory responsibilities of the Director of 
Public Health. This includes:  
 
20. Preparing the annual report on the health of the local population  
21. Responsibility for all of the Council’s duties to take steps to improve public 

health 
22. Responsibility for the delivery of any of the Secretary of State’s public health 

protection or health improvement functions that s/he delegates to local 
authorities, either by arrangement or under regulations – these include 
services mandated by regulations made under section 6C of the 2006 Act, 
inserted by section 18 of the 2012 Act.  

23. Exercising the Council’s functions in planning for, and responding to, 
emergencies that present a risk to public health, their local authority’s role in 
co-operating with the police, the probation service and the prison service to 
assess the risks posed by violent or sexual offenders.  

24. Carrying out of such other public health functions as the Secretary of State 

Page 176



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 103 

specifies in regulations  
25. Being responsible for the Council’s public health response as a responsible 

authority under the Licensing Act 2003, such as making representations about 
licensing applications.  

26. If the local authority provides or commissions a maternity or child health clinic, 
then regulations made under section 73A(1) will also give the Director of 
Public Health responsibility for providing Healthy Start vitamins (a function 
conferred on local authorities by the Healthy Start and Welfare Food 
Regulations 2005 as amended).  

27. Being a member of the Health and Well Being Board.  
 

DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC 
HEALTH  
 

The following mandatory (prescribed functions) and other (non prescribed) public 
health services will be commissioned by the Integrated StructurePublic Health 
team with clinical oversight and advice provided by the Public Health Consultant 
function under the guidance of the Director of Public Health: 
 
Mandatory (Prescribed Functions)  
 
28. Appropriate access to sexual health services (i.e., comprehensive sexual 

health services (including testing and treatment for sexually transmitted 
infections, contraception outside of the GP contract and sexual health 
promotion and disease prevention) 

29. Steps to be taken to protect the health of the population, in particular, giving 
the local authority a duty to ensure there are plans in place to protect the 
health of the population.  

30. Ensuring NHS commissioners receive the public health advice they need 
31. The National Child Measurement Programme 
32. NHS Health Check assessment. 
 

DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC 
HEALTH  
 

Other (Non Prescribed Functions) 
 
33. Tobacco control and smoking cessation services 
34. Alcohol and drug misuse services 
35. Public health services for children and young people aged 5-19 (including 

Healthy Child Programme 5-19) (and in the longer term all public health 
services for children and young people) 

36. Interventions to tackle obesity such as community lifestyle and weight 
management services 

37. Locally-led nutrition initiatives 
38. Increasing levels of physical activity in the local population 
39. Public mental health services 
40. Dental public health services 
41. Accidental injury prevention 
42. Population level interventions to reduce and prevent birth defects 
43. Behavioural and lifestyle campaigns to prevent cancer and long-term 

conditions 
44. Local initiatives on workplace health 
45. Supporting, reviewing and challenging delivery of key public health funded and 

NHS delivered services such as immunisation and screening programmes 
46. Local initiatives to reduce excess deaths as a result of seasonal mortality 
47. The local authority role in dealing with health protection incidents, outbreaks 

and emergencies 
48. Public health aspects of promotion of community safety, violence prevention 

and response 
49. Public health aspects of local initiatives to tackle social exclusion 
50. Local initiatives that reduce public health impacts of environmental risks. 

Page 177



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 104 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance and 
Codes of practice, and subject to overall budget provision: 
 

 General 
 

1. To be the Council’s Chief Finance Officer as required and described in s151 
of the Local Government Act 1972, responsible for the effective financial 
administration of the Council. 
 

2. To administer the General Fund and the Collection Fund and to collect and        
disburse monies from these funds as appropriate, and/or determine 
procedures and controls for the proper financial administration of any parts 
of these funds administered by other officers, and in all cases to ensure that 
there is an effective internal audit function to review and monitor compliance 
with rules, procedures, policies, directives and controls. 

 
3. To prepare the annual Statement of Accounts and to ensure that the 

Council, it’s appropriate Committees, the Executive and the Corporate 
Management Team receives appropriate and regular monitoring reports on 
the Councils’ financial performance. 

 
4. To make such entries as are required, in the Council’s accounts to comply 

with relevant regulations and codes of best practice that have the weight of 
law. 
 

5. To create reserves, execute accounting transactions and make  
      adjustments:- 
 

a. Up to £500,0002,000,000 per transaction; 
 

b. Between £500,0012,000,001 - £1,500,0004,000,000 per 
transaction – delegation to be exercised in consultation with the 
Executive portfolio holder; 
 

c. Over £1,500,0004,000,000 per transaction – delegation to be 
exercised in consultation with the Leader of the Council, Deputy 
Leader of the Council and Executive portfolio holder. 

 
6. To determine and arrange all insurance cover for Council requirements and 

in consultation with the Director of Governance and Community Strategy as 
appropriate to determine all claims made on the self-insured fund. 
 

7. To consider and determine applications for virement between revenue        
or capital budgets, and to otherwise maintain budget plans on the Councils’ 
ledger system consistent with the approved plans and management 
information needs of the Council. 

 
8. To be the Council’s authorised signatory for all grant claims, requests and 

lease arrangements (except for property related leases under a value to be 
determined in consultation with the Corporate Director of Place) made by 
the Council. 

 

Page 178



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 105 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

9. To prosecute, initiate and appear on behalf of the Council in any legal       
proceedings relating to national non-domestic rates and Council Tax and        
any other similar matters. 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

Borrowing and Investment 

 
10. To raise money by any means permitted by statute and intra vires as is most     

appropriate at the relevant time. 
 

11. To proactively manage the Council investment and debt portfolio, including 
the early repayment of debt, in accordance with the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy and within the approved prudential indicators. 
 

12. To act as Registrar for the Council’s Mortgage, Bonds and similar schemes. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

Debt Recovery 
 
13.  To administer the Council’s procedures to deal with debt recovery. 

 
14. Following consultation with appropriate Directors, to request the Corporate 

Director of Governance and Community Strategy to take any action 
necessary for the recovery of arrears of claims and other appropriate debts 
due to the Council, including appearance in the Magistrates’ Court in person 
or by his duly authorised officer and including actions for the recovery of 
possession of mortgaged property. 
 

15. To write-off individual items of irrecoverable income of up to £25,000100,000 
(excluding VAT) as specified in the Finance Procedure Rules.  
 

16. To write off any income that is irrecoverable due to liquidation, bankruptcy       
or insolvency. 
 

17. In consultation with the and the Executive Member for Finance, to write off 
any other income due to the Council (e.g., any individual item in excess of 
£25,000100,000) 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

National Non-Domestic Rates 
 
18.  To charge, collect and recover any non-domestic rates payable. 

 
19. To consider and determine applications for relief under Section 43 of the 

Local Government Finance Act 1988 (mandatory charitable relief). 
 

20. To consider and determine applications made under Section 44A of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989) (granting relief for unoccupied parts of 
hereditaments). 
 

21. To consider and determine applications for relief under Section 47 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 as amended by Clause 69 of the 
Localism Act 2011 having regard to the guidelines previously laid down 
(discretionary rate relief). 
 

22. To consider and determine applications made under Section 49 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1988 (reduction or remission of liability on the 

Page 179



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 106 

grounds of hardship). 
 

23. To prosecute and appear on behalf of the Council at any legal proceedings. 
 
 

24. To exercise reasonable discretion in making suitable arrangements for the     
collection of rates by instalments within the context of statutory provisions      
and the Council’s resolutions. 
 

25. To annually estimate and set the Non-Domestic Rate Tax Base for local and 
national requirements pursuant to the relevant legislation and Council 
policy. 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

Council Tax 

 
26. To charge, collect and recover any Council Tax payable. 

 
27. To establish and maintain a list of liable persons and to request certain 

information in order to achieve this objective in accordance with legislation. 
 

28. To consider, determine, grant (as appropriate) and review any application for 
statutory and discretionary discounts, relief, reductions and exemptions. 
 

29.  To impose penalties in certain instances.  
 

30.  To attend Valuation Tribunals. 
 

31. To prosecute and appear on behalf of the Council at any legal proceedings.  
 
32. To exercise reasonable discretion in making suitable arrangements for the        

collection of rates by instalments within the context of statutory provisions         
and the Council’s resolutions. 
 

33. The determination of the Council Tax base in accordance with Section      
33(1) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

 
34. To annually estimate and set the Council Tax Base for local and national 

requirements pursuant to the relevant legislation and Council policy. 
 

35. To annually determine the level of available Collection Fund Surplus. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Tax Support and Housing Benefit Rent Allowances and Rent 
Rebates) 

 
36. To administer the Council Tax support and housing benefits scheme and 

make all determinations necessary for its proper administration including: 
a. determining the period benefit is awarded for, subject to any 

statutory maximum. 
b. determining applications for benefit to be backdated 
c. consider and determine the granting of additional relief in 

exceptional circumstances 
d. determining overpayments and pursuing recovery where 

appropriate 
e. considering appeals and attending Appeal Tribunals if required 
f. considering awards of extra Housing Benefit under discretionary 

powers  

Page 180



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 107 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

g. where otherwise “exceptional hardship” would be caused.      
 
37. To cancel applications where insufficient information has been received at        

any time after a minimum of 4 weeks has elapsed, from the further written        
request for the necessary information being made. 
 

38. To withhold benefit in circumstances to be defined in consultation with the       
Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy. 
 

39. In respect of Housing Benefit to determine the appropriate level of rent to      
be met by the scheme having regard to rents which are unreasonable. 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 

 

Appeals  
 

40. To consider and determine all appeals against decisions of the Corporate 
Director of Finance and Systems relating to NNDR, Council Tax and Council 
Tax support. 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS (IN 
CONSULTATIO
N WITH 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
ADULT 
SERVICES) 
 
 

Adult Social Care  - Matters Relating to Income and Expenditure 
 
41. To assess for and collect charges under the Care and Support (Charging 

and Assessment of Resources) Regulations 2014 and the Care and Support 
and Aftercare (Choice of Accommodation) Regulations 2014. 
 

42. To offer deferred payments in line with the Care and Support (Deferred 
Payments Agreements) Regulations 2014. 

 
43. To ensure debt recovery is pursued in line with the Care Act and the 

Council’s Care & Residential Services Debt Management & Recovery 
Policy. 

 
44. To protect the property of adults being cared for away from home in 

accordance with Section 47 of the Care Act. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

 

Discretionary Welfare Assistance 
 
45. To administer the Discretionary Housing Payments Scheme including the 

setting of criteria, making payments and establishing a review procedure. 
 
46. To administer and determine the award of discretionary Council Tax Support 

in accordance with Council policy. 
 
47. To administer the Trafford Assist fund, including the setting of criteria, 

issuing awards and establishing review procedures. 
 

Page 181



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 108 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
STRATEGY 
AND 
RESOURCES IN 

CONSULTATION 
WITH 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

 

Human Resources 
 
48. To act in accordance with the Council’s locally-agreed arrangements, 

including:- 
 

a. To administer the payment of all remuneration, compensation 
and other emoluments to employees of the Council. 

b. To make deductions from employees’ salaries in respect of sums 
or debts lawfully due to the Council, in accordance with statute, 
the relevant contract of employment, by agreement and/or in 
accordance with Council policy determined by Members. 

c.  In consultation with the Chief Executive, to implement national 
and provincial pay awards within approved estimated. 

d.  To approve or refuse applications for staff car leases in 
accordance with the Council’s Salary Sacrifice Car Lease 
Scheme and applications for other salary sacrifice schemes. 

 
49. To determine requests received from employees under the terms of the 

council’s Voluntary Redundancy and Early Retirement Scheme, including 
requests for flexible retirement and ill-health retirement, where total costs 
associated with the request do not exceed £100,000150,000 and the 
payback period does not exceed 5 years (the Employment Committee will 
determine all requests where costs exceed £150,000 or the payback period 
exceeds 5 years). 

 

Page 182



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 109 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE AND 
SYSTEMS 

 

Miscellaneous Matters 
 
50. To revise the financial limits in the scheme to assist schools to purchase       

items of school equipment if the need arises in the light of experience. 
 

51. In consultation with the Corporate Director of Children and Families to deal 
with all classes of improvement grants. 
 

52.  In consultation with the Corporate Director of Children and Families, 
determine, administer and action the Council’s Scheme for Financing 
Schools. 
 

53. To be the Council’s authorised signatory for all grant claims and bids made 
by the Council. 
 

54. To determine and issue  any protocols, rules, procedures, guidance and 
best practice for the effective discharge of proper financial administration in 
a devolved environment, including determining all relevant accounting 
practices and instructions. 

 
55. To be and to select other officers under the Corporate Director of Finance 

and System’s direct managerial control to be bank signatories. 
 

56. To approve holders of Credit and Purchase cards in the Council’s name. 
 

57. To approve all leases or similar credit arrangements (excluding property 
related). 
 

58. To exercise the following privileges, and to extend these privileges to other 
officers who are under the Corporate Director of Finance and System’s 
direct managerial control: 

a.  Enter any Council premise at any time pursuant to investigations 
of financial irregularity and/or to secure any asset or 
documentation 

b. To request any Council officer or Member to produce and 
release any Council monies, instruments, stocks, financial record 
or other asset immediately 

c. To give instruction to any Council officer of Member pursuant to 
investigations of financial irregularity and/or to prevent financial 
loss or liability being incurred 

d. To remove and/or instruct on the security of any document 
and/or asset in furtherance of any investigation of financial 
irregularity and/or to prevent loss or liability being incurred 

e. To determine whether any matter of financial irregularity and/or 
corruption will be brought to the attention of the Police 

f.   To require any officer of the Council to fully cooperate with any 
investigation of financial irregularity 

 
DEPUTY 
DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE 

In the absence of the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, for example, 
due to holidays or sickness, the Deputy Director of Finance shall assume the 
responsibility for all the delegations of the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems. 
 

Page 183



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 110 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 
General 

 
1. To institute, conduct, prosecute and defend any legal proceedings on behalf 

of the Council and make applications to court as required. 
 
2. To make any order or direction, give or serve any notice, or sign on behalf 

of the Council, or witness the sealing of any document necessary to give 
effect to any decision lawfully taken by or on behalf of the Council. 

 
3. To grant authority for someone (other than an admitted solicitor) to appear 

in the Magistrates' Court, on behalf of the Council, under Section 223 of the 
Local government Act 1972. 

 
4. To institute criminal proceedings in respect of offences against any 

legislation (including by-laws) that the Council is authorised to enforce and 
to institute and respond to any appeals arising out of such proceedings. 

 
5. In consultation with the relevant Director, to serve any notices required in 

pursuance of the Council’s functions or powers. 
 
6. To approve, in consultation with the relevant Director, the payment of 

financial compensation not exceeding £1,000, in order to resolve a 
complaint submitted in accordance with the Council’s Complaints’ 
Procedure. 

 
7. On the instructions of a Director, to take all necessary steps to secure the 

removal of any person or persons from land. 
 
8. To grant authority to officers to enter premises in exercise of statutory 

powers and duties. 
 
9. To establish and administer appeal committees to determine statutory 

education and exclusion appeals; to appoint additional members to the 
Panel as necessary and to appoint panel members to act as chairs of the 
committees. 

 
10. To execute documents under Seal and to authorise other officers, as 

necessary, to do the same. 
 
11. To settle claims against the Council in consultation with the relevant 

Director. 
 
12. To certify and settle claims under the Land Compensation Act 1973. 
 
13. To serve requisitions as to ownership of property under various statutory 

provisions. 
 
14. To attach the Council’s Seal to Tree Preservation Orders made under 

delegated powers. 
 
15. To administer the Council’s responsibilities under the Data Protection and 

Freedom of Information legislation. 

Page 184



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 111 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 
 

 
16. To maintain the Local Land Charges’ register, respond to local searches 

and deal with the registration of Common Land etc. 
 
17. To apply for injunctions in appropriate cases in pursuance of the Council’s 

statutory functions and duties or to protect people or property. 
 
18. Authority to act jointly with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 

in respect of paragraph 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011. 
 

19. To administer the Members’ Scheme of Allowances. 
 

20. To set a reasonable fee for supplying a copy of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel’s report to interested parties. 

 
CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

Planning and Highways 

 
21. In consultation with the Corporate Director of Place to enter into agreements 

and bonds with developers or others in accordance with planning and 
highway legislation 

 
22. Jointly with the Head of Planning and Development authority to determine 

applications for Certificates of Lawful Use or Development. 
 
23. Jointly with the Head of Planning and Development authority to issue Stop 

Notices and take further enforcement action and, in other cases, serve 
Enforcement Notices, Stop Notices or Breach of Condition Notices. 

 
24. To accept blight notices where all statutory requirements are met and to 

serve counter notices in response to purchase notices and blight notices 
served on the Council. 

 
25. Authority to lodge objections to vehicle operators’ licences, in consultation 

with the Corporate Director of Place, where it appears that the operating 
centre is not suitable and if necessary, to appear at any hearing into the 
grant of an Operators’ Licence. 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

Mortgages 
 
26. At the request of the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems to take 

action (including the institution and prosecution of Court proceedings), 
against mortgagors who are persistently in default. 

 
27. Approval of occasional variations of first mortgages given by a building 

society for the purchase of Council houses by tenants to enable the society 
to charge a higher rate of interest for further advances on the same 
properties.  

 
28. In consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, to 

consider and determine applications from owners of former Council 
dwellings for the Council’s approval to Building Society further advances 
taking priority over the Council’s claim for repayment of discount, subject to 
both officers being satisfied that the Council’s financial interests are 
safeguarded in each case. 

 
 

Page 185



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 112 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

Asset Management 
 
29. At the request of the Chief Officer responsible for the property concerned, to 

serve notice to quit on tenants, to recover possession of property, and to 
terminate the leases of business premises required for demolition or 
redevelopment. 

 
30. To confirm Compulsory Purchase Orders in accordance with section 14A of 

the Acquisition of Land Act 1981, where empowered to do so by the 
relevant Secretary of State. 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

Libraries 
 
 

31. The management and control of all the Council’s library facilities. This 
includes: 

 
(a) in consultation with the Executive Portfolio Holder, determining 

admission charges, fees and concessions for the use of such facilities, 
and to agree variations from standard charges; 

 
(b) authorising the emergency closure of premises and facilities, without 

notice, in the interests of public safety; 
 
(c) to agree seasonal and other variations in the hours of opening of 

facilities, and the closure of facilities at bank holidays; 
 
(d) selecting of books, periodicals and newspapers for the libraries; 
 
(e) permitting and organising exhibitions. 

 
32. The development of library services throughout the Borough. 

 
33. To fix charges for any occasional activity, sale of goods over the counter or 

by machine, hire of equipment and other permitted use not contained in the 
approved list of charges. 

 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

Local Government Standards 
 
34. To maintain a register of member’s interests consistent with the adopted 

Code of Conduct. 
 
35. To decide on whether to investigate or reject or informally resolve a 

complaint and to arrange an investigation (having consulted with the 
Independent Person). 

 
36. To refer an investigation finding of breach to the Standards Committee for 

hearing (having consulted with the Independent Person). 
 
37. To determine requests for dispensation on grounds 1-3 below, subject to a 

member’s right to appeal to the Standards Committee: 
 

The grounds are: 
 

(1) So many members have disclosable personal interests (dpi’s) that it 
would impede the transaction of the business; 

Page 186



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 113 

 
(2) Without the dispensation the strengths of political groups on the body 

would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote on the 
matter; 

 
(3)  Without the dispensation, every member of the Executive would have a 

(dpi) prohibition from participating. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

Arts 
 

In accordance with Council policies, statutory requirements, guidance, Codes of 
Practice and subject to overall budget provision: 
 

General 
 

38. The management and control of all the Council’s arts facilities. This 
includes: 

 
(a) authorising the emergency closure of premises and facilities, without 

notice, in the interests of public safety; 
 

(b) permitting and organising exhibitions. 
 
39. The development of arts services throughout the Borough. 

 
40. To fix charges for any occasional activity, sale of goods over the counter or 

by machine, hire of equipment and other permitted use not contained in the 
approved list of charges. 

 
41. To set ticket prices for arts events. 
 

CORPORATE 
DIRECTOR OF 
GOVERNANCE 
AND 
COMMUNITY 
STRATEGY 
 

General 
 
38.42. To grant or refuse applications for use of the Borough Badge. 

 
39.43. To take necessary action to implement the Equality Standard for 

Local Government. 
 

 
  

Page 187



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 114 

Appointment of Officers 

1. As set out in Article 12 of the Constitution, the following designations have been 
made: 

a) The Chief Executive is designated Head of Paid Service in accordance with 
 section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

b) The Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy is designated 
Monitoring Officer in accordance with section 5 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989. The Principal Solicitor (Corporate and Commercial) is 
designated as the Deputy Monitoring Officer.  

c) The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is designated as the Statutory 
Chief Finance Officer in accordance with section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972. The Head of Financial ManagementDeputy Director of Finance is 
designated as the Deputy Statutory Chief Finance Officer.  

2. The Chief Executive is appointed Returning Officer for any constituency or part of a 
constituency coterminous with or contained in the Borough of Trafford 

3. The Chief Executive is appointed Returning Officer for the elections of Councillors for 
the Borough of Trafford and of Councillors for parishes within the Borough. 

4. The Chief Executive is appointed Registration Officer for any constituency or part of a 
constituency coterminous with or contained in the Borough of Trafford. 

5. The Chief Executive following consultation with the Leader of the Council may 
appoint a Corporate Director to the role of Deputy Chief Executive on such terms and 
conditions including remuneration, as the Chief Executive sees fit. The Deputy Chief 
Executive shall: 

1. undertake any duties delegated to him/her by the Chief Executive 

2. perform duties of the Chief Executive set out in this Constitution either; 

(i) upon the instruction of the Chief Executive; or 

(ii) upon the instruction of the Leader of the Council when the Chief Executive is 
absent from his/her duties for whatever reasons for a period of five 
consecutive working days or more. During such times, the Deputy Chief 
Executive shall undertake any of the powers of the Chief Executive set out in 
this Constitution, except where the Constitution already provides for 
deputising arrangements (for example, Proper Officer functions) 

6. The Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy is appointed as the 
officer who may do acts in respect of Registration in the event of the Chief 
Executive's absence or incapacity 

7. The Corporate Director of Children and Families is appointed as the Statutory 
Director of Children’ Services under section 18 of the Children Act 2004 

Page 188



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 115 

8. The Corporate Director of Adult Services is appointed as the Statutory Director of 
Social Service (Adults ) under section 6 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970 

9. The Governance Manager is appointed as the Statutory Scrutiny Officer under the 
Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 

10. The Director of Public Health is appointed as the Statutory Director of Public Health 
as required under the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  

11. The officers specified in the following table are appointed Proper Officer for the 
purpose of the respective functions specified in relation to them:  

Registration Service Act 1953 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S3, 9,13 & 20 Registration of Births, Deaths and Marriages Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

   

Local Government Act 1972 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S 83 Witness and receipt of declaration and acceptance 
of office 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 84 Receipt of written notice of resignation of office Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 88(2) Convening of meeting of the Council to fill a casual 
vacancy in the office of Chair of the Council 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 89(1)(b) Receipt of notice of casual vacancy in the office of 
Councillor from two local government electors 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 100B Exclusion of parts from reports open to inspection  Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

S 100C(2) Responsibility to prepare a written summary of those 
parts of the committee proceedings which disclose 
exempt information 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

S 100D Responsibility for identifying background papers and 
compiling list of such documents 

 

For each report, the 
officer named in it as 
the responsible officer 

Page 189



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 116 

S 100F(2) Decision to exclude from production to Members 
documents disclosing exempt information  

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 115 Responsibility for receipt of money due from officers Corporate Director of 
Finance and Systems 

S 146(1) Authorisation to produce a declarations and 
certificates with regard to securities  

Corporate Director of 
Finance and Systems 

S 191 Functions with regard to Ordnance Survey Corporate Director of 
Place. 

S 210 Officer in whom power in respect of a charity will 
vest as at 1 April 1974 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

S 225(1) Deposit of documents and giving of 
acknowledgements or receipts. 

 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

S 229 Certification of photographic copies of  Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

S 234(1) Authentication of documents Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

S 238 Certification of byelaws Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Para 4(2)(b) of 
Part 1 of Schedule 
12 

Officer who may sign a summons to council 
meetings 

Chief Executive (Any 
Corporate Director/ 
Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

Para 4(3) of Part 1 
of Schedule 12 

Receipt of notices from Members regarding address 
to which a summons to a meeting is to be sent 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

   

Local Government Act 1974 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S 30 (5) Publication of notice of Local Commissioner’s report 
on investigation of a complaint 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

   

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S 41 Certification of copies of resolutions, minutes and 
other documents 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Page 190



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 117 

   

Rates Act 1984 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S 7 Certification of rate Corporate Director of 
Finance and Systems 

   

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S 2 Preparation of list of politically restricted posts Corporate Director of 
Strategy and 
Resources 

S 15, 16, 17 Receipt of notices relating to political groups Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

   

Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

S 8 (1) and (5) Receipt of notice of constitution of a political group, 
or the change of name of a political group 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 9 and 10 Receipt of notice of Councillor’s membership of, or 
cessation of membership of, a political group 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

Page 191



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 118 

S 13 Officer to whom the wishes of a political group are 
expressed 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

S 14 Responsibility for notifying a political group about 
allocations and vacations of seats 

Chief Executive 
(Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy) 

   

 
The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) Regulations 2012 
 
 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

Reg 5 (2)(3)and (4) Responsibility to produce a notice giving 28 days’ 
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private.  

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 5 (6)and (7) Responsibility to gain approval from the Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee to the consideration of an item 
in private where notice in accordance with 
Regulation 5 (2) was not practical and the 
publication of the notice thereafter. 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 6 Responsibility for giving notice of the time and place 
of a public meeting.  

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 7 Responsibility to ensure that certain copy 
documents are available for public inspection 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 9 (1), (2) and 
(3) 

Responsibility to produce a notice giving 28 days’ 
notice of its intention to take a key decision. 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

 

Page 192



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 119 

Reg 10 Responsibility to inform the Chair of Scrutiny 
Committee of the intention to take a key decision 
where notice in accordance with Regulation 9 was 
not practical and the publication of the notice 
thereafter. 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 11  Responsibility for dealing with cases of special 
urgency.  

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 12 Responsibility for the recording of executive 
decisions taken at meetings 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 13(1), (2) and 
(3)and Reg 14  

Responsibility for the recording of executive 
decisions taken by individual members  

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 13 (4) and 
Reg 14  

Responsibility for the recording of executive 
decisions taken by Officers  

Relevant Corporate 
Director  

Regs 15 and 21 Responsibility for ensuring that background papers 
are available for inspection 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Reg 20 Officer who may form an opinion as to whether a 
document contains or is likely to contain information 
confidential information, exempt information or the 
advice of a political advisor or assistant 

Corporate Director of 
Governance and 
Community Strategy 

   

The Local Authorities (Referendums) (Petitions and Directions) (England) 
Regulations 2000 

 

Reference Description Proper Officer 

Reg 4  Publication of the number that is equal to 5 per cent 
of the number of local government electors for the 
authority’s area 

Head of Governance  

   

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 

Section Description Proper Officer 

Reg 3 & 4 and  
Schedule 1 

Officer for receiving notification of proposed 
appointment of certain officers, notifying executive 
members of that proposed appointment and for 
receiving and notifying of objections to the proposed 
appointment. The Chief Executive is the Proper 
Officer unless otherwise determined in the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of 
the Constitution 

Chief Executive 

12. The officer of the Council named in the second column below is appointed the Proper 
Officer of the Council in relation to references to the officer named in the first column 
in: 

(i)  any enactment passed before or during the 1971/72 session of Parliament 
other than the Local Government Act 1972 or in any instrument made before 
the 26 October 1972 which reference is to be construed as a reference to the 
proper officer of the Council; 

 

Page 193



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 120 

(ii)  any reference in any local statutory provision which, by virtue of any Order 
made under the Local Government Act 1972, is to be construed as a 
reference to the proper officer of the Council. 

 
 1.       2. 
 Reference      Proper Officer 
 
 Town Clerk or Clerk of the Council   Chief Executive 
 
 Treasurer      Corporate Director of Finance and  
       Systems 
 
 Surveyor      Corporate Director of Place 
    

13. This schedule of appointments is to be read in conjunction with the Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers (Part 3 Section 4 of the Council’s Constitution) which contains 
information about other functions delegated to, and exercisable, by officers. 

14. The Deputy Proper Officer, if any, is given in brackets after the Proper Officer. The 
Deputy Proper Officer is appointed to act where the Proper Officer is absent and/or 
unable to act for any reason. An officer appointed as a Proper Officer may also make 
arrangements for the carrying out of the relevant duties and functions by another 
officer. In the event of the Proper Officer being for any reason unable to act, carry out 
functions or the post being vacant the Chief Executive or in the Chief Executive’s 
absence, the Monitoring Officer, or in the absence of both the Chief Executive and 
the Monitoring Officer, the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall act in the 
proper officer’s stead.  

15. Until the Council decides otherwise the Chief Executive is appointed the Proper 
Officer for the purpose of all statutory provisions, whether existing or future, in 
respect of which no Proper Officer appointment has, for the time being, been made 
either in accordance with this schedule of Proper Officer functions or the Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers. 

16. The officers specified in the following table are the relevant Senior Officer for the 
Committees of the Council: 

Committee Responsible Person 

Accounts & Audit Committee Corporate Director of Finance & Systems 

Children & Young People’s Scrutiny Committee Corporate Director Children’s Services 

Employment Committee Corporate Director of Strategy and 
Resources 

Health & Wellbeing Board Corporate Director of Adult Services 

Health Scrutiny Committee Corporate Director of Adult Services 

Licensing Committee Corporate Director of Place  

Licensing Sub-Committee Corporate Director of Place 

Planning & Development Management 
Committee 

Corporate Director of Place 

Public Protection Sub-Committee Corporate Director of Place 

Safety at Sports Grounds Sub-Committee Corporate Director of Place 

Scrutiny Committee Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Standards Committee Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy 

STAR Joint Committee Corporate Director of Finance & Systems 

Town/Village Green Sub-Committee Corporate Director of Place 

Page 194



 
 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020          Part 3: Page 121 

 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020 
 Part 4 Page 1 
 

 

PART 4 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
 

Note: Temporary Emergency Provisions for the duration of the 
Coronavirus Pandemic are shown in red. Unless these provisions are 
renewed or cancelled, they will become inoperable and shall cease to 

have effect on 19 March 2021. 

 
 

Page 197



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 2 
 

 COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 
          (ALSO KNOWN AS STANDING ORDERS) 

 
RULES FOR THE REGULATION OF PROCEEDINGS AND BUSINESS 

 
CONTENTS 

 
Rule            
 

1.  Annual Meeting of the Council  

2.  Ordinary meetings  

3. Extraordinary meetings  

4. Appointment of substitute members of committees and 
           sub-committees  

5.  Time and place of meetings  

6.  Notice of and summons to meetings  

7.  Chair of meeting  

8.  Quorum  

9.  Duration of meeting  

10.  Questions by members  

11  Motions on notice  

12.  Motions without notice  

13.  Rules of debate  

14.  State of the area debate  

15.  Previous decisions and motions  

16. Voting  

17. Minutes 

18.  Record of attendance 

19.  Exclusion of public 

20. Members’ conduct 

21. Disturbance by public  

22. Media 

23. Suspension and amendment of Council Procedure Rules  

24.  Application to committees and sub-committees 

25. Books 

26.  Interpretation 

27. Emergency Council Action 

Page 198



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 3 
 

 

Page 199



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 4 
 

* 1. ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
1.1 The Annual Council Meeting will be held, in years when there is an ordinary 

election of councillors within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing councillors 
and, in other years in March, April or May.  In either case, the date shall be fixed 
by the Council and, except where stated otherwise in the summons, shall take 
place at 6.00 p.m. 

  
The annual meeting will: 
 
(i) elect a person to preside if the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council are not 

present; 
 
(ii) elect the Chair of Council; 

 
(iii) elect the Vice-Chair of Council; 

 
(iv) approve the minutes of the previous meeting; 

 
(v) receive any announcements from  the Chair and/or Head of Paid Service; 

 
(vi) elect the Leader where this is necessary; 
 
(vii) note the membership of the Executive: 

 
(viii) note the membership of the Shadow Executive; 

 
(ix) appoint at least one overview and scrutiny committee, a Standards 

Committee and such other committees as the Council considers 
appropriate to deal with matters which are neither reserved to the Council 
nor are executive functions (as set out in Part 3, Table 1 of this 
Constitution); decide the size and terms of reference of those Committees 
and the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the 
political balance rules; 

 
(x) receive nominations of councillors to serve on each committee and 

outside body; appoint to those committees and outside bodies (except 
where appointment to those bodies has been delegated by the Council or 
is exercisable only by the Executive) and if it so determines, appoint from 
among the voting members appointed as a committee, a person to 
preside at the meeting of a committee and a person to preside in the 
absence of the first person; 

 
(xi) agree the scheme of delegation or such part of it as the Constitution 

determines it is for the Council to agree (as set out in Part 3 Table 3 of 
this Constitution); 

 
(xii) approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for the year; 

and 
 

(xiii) consider any business set out in the notice convening the meeting. 

Page 200



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 5 
 

 
*2. ORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a 
programme decided at the Annual Council Meeting.  Ordinary meetings will: 

 
(i) elect a person to preside if the Chair and Vice-Chair are not present; 
 
(ii) approve the minutes of the last meeting; 

 
(iii) receive any declarations of interest from members; 

 
(iv) receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader, members of the 

Executive, Chairs of Scrutiny Committees or the Head of Paid Service; 
 

(v) deal with any business from the last Council meeting; 
 

(vi) deal with questions asked under Rule 10.2; 
 

(vii) receive any reports from the Executive, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees and the Standards Committee and receive questions and 
answers on any of those reports; 

 
(viii) receive reports about and receive questions and answers on the business 

of joint arrangements and external organisations; including external and 
community partnerships; 

 
(ix) consider motions; and 

 
(x) consider any other business specified in the summons to the meeting. 

 
*3. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
3.1 Calling extraordinary meetings 
 

Those listed below may request the Head of Paid Service to call Council 
meetings in addition to ordinary meetings: 

 
(i)  the Council by resolution; 
(ii) the Chair of the Council; 
(iii) the Monitoring Officer; and 
(iv) any five members of the Council if they have signed a requisition 

presented to the Chair of the Council and he/she has refused to call a 
meeting or has failed to call a meeting within seven days of the 
presentation of the requisition. 

Page 201



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 6 
 

3.2 Business 
 

No business other than that specified in the summons to the meeting may be 
considered at an extraordinary meeting. The summons to the meeting may not 
include the consideration of the minutes of previous meetings. 

 
*4. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES AND SUB-

COMMITTEES 
 
4.1 Allocation 

As well as allocating seats on committees, the Council may, at the same time, or 
at a subsequent meeting, allocate seats for substitute members for any 
committees except Standards Committee. 

 
4.2 Number 

For each committee, the Council may appoint substitutes in respect of each 
political group, in proportion to the number of members as that group holds 
ordinary seats on that committee, up to a maximum of 5. 

 
4.3 Powers and duties 

Substitute members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary member 
of the committee but will not be able to exercise any special powers or duties 
exercisable by the person they are substituting. 
 

4.4     Health and Wellbeing Board 
Appointing bodies and the Leader of the Council may appoint a substitute 
member for each appropriate position on the Health and Wellbeing Board.   

 
4.5 Substitution 

Substitute members may attend meetings in that capacity only: 
 

(i) to take the place of the ordinary member for whom they are the 
designated substitute; 

(ii) where the ordinary member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; 
and 

(iii) after giving notification of the intended substitution to the Head of Paid 
Service in writing, to be delivered or submitted electronically, by 9.00 a.m. 
on the day of the meeting. 

 
5.  TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS 
 

Unless the Head of the Paid Service determines otherwise and notifies a 
different time in the summons, Council meetings will be held at 7.00 p.m. and 
other meetings will be held at 6.30 p.m. The place of meetings will be 
determined by the Head of the Paid Service and notified in the summons. 

 
6.  NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS 
 

The Head of Paid Service will give notice to the public of the time and place of 
any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Rules.  At least five 
clear working days before a meeting, the Head of Paid Service will send a 

Page 202



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 7 
 

summons signed by him/her or on his/her behalf to every member of the 
Council, or Committee either by    
 

(i) sending it to, or leaving it at the member’s usual place of residence; or 
 
(ii) where the member has specified an address other than their usual 
place of residence, by sending it to, or leaving it at, that other address; or 
 
(iii) where the member has given consent for the summons to be 
transmitted in electronic form to a particular electronic address (and 
consent has not been withdrawn) sending it in electronic form to that 
address. 

 
The summons will give the date, time and place of each meeting and specify the 
business to be transacted, and will be accompanied by such reports as are 
available. 

 
7. CHAIR OF MEETING 
 
7.1 Chair of the Council 
 

The Mayor for the time being is the Chair of the Council and is elected at the 
Annual Council Meeting. 
 

7.2 Chairs of Committee and Sub-Committees 
 
(a) If no persons are appointed under Rule 1(x) then the Committee, at its 

first meeting after the Annual Council Meeting, will appoint a person from 
among its voting members to preside at its meetings together with a 
person to preside in the absence of the first person. 

 
(b) A committee may appoint from among the voting members a person to 

preside at the meetings of any sub-committee appointed by them 
together with a person to preside in the absence of the first person.  If a 
committee does not make any such appointments then the sub-
committees will make the appointments at its first meeting. 

 
(c) If the persons appointed under Rules 1(x), 7.2(a) or 7.2(b) are absent 

then a meeting of a committee or sub-committee will appoint a person to 
preside at that meeting from among the voting members present. 

 
7.3  The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of the 

Chair.  The rule of the Chair as to the application or construction of any of these 
Rules of Procedure shall not be challenged at any meeting.  Where these rules 
apply to committee and sub-committee meetings, references to the Chair also 
include the Chair of committees and sub-committees.   

 
7.4  The order of business shall be as set out in the agenda but (subject to any 

statutory requirements) may be varied by the Chair at his or her discretion. 
 

 

Page 203



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 8 
 

8. QUORUM 
 

(a) Council 
 

The quorum of a meeting of the Council will be one quarter of the whole 
number of members. 
 
Temporary Emergency Amendment 
 
In the event that a scheduled meeting of the Council is inquorate the 
functions of Council shall be delegated to the Chief Executive, to enable 
the Chief Executive to, in consultation (where possible) with the Mayor or 
Chair of the meeting, complete the business set out on the Agenda for 
that meeting. 

 
(b) Committees and Sub-Committees 
 

The quorum of meetings of committees (except Standards Committee 
and Appointment and Appeals Committees) and sub-committees shall be 
one quarter of the membership of the committee or sub-committee 
subject to a minimum of four voting members being present at a 
committee and two at a sub-committee. 
 
Temporary Emergency Amendment 
 
In the event that a scheduled meeting of a Committee is inquorate the 
functions of that Committee shall be delegated to the (relevant Senior 
Officer), to the extent necessary for the (relevant senior officer) to, in 
consultation (where possible) with the Chair of the Committee, complete 
the business set out on the Agenda for that meeting. 
 
Relevant Senior Officers for the Council’s Committees 
 
Committee Responsible Person 

Accounts & Audit Committee Corporate Director of Finance & 
Systems 

Children & Young People’s 
Scrutiny Committee 

Corporate Director Children’s Services 

Employment Committee Corporate Director of Strategy and 
Resources 

Health & Wellbeing Board Corporate Director of Adult Services 

Health Scrutiny Committee Corporate Director of Adult Services 

Licensing Committee Corporate Director of Place  

Licensing Sub-Committee Corporate Director of Place 

Planning & Development 
Management Committee 

Corporate Director of Place 

Public Protection Sub-
Committee 

Corporate Director of Place 

Safety at Sports Grounds Sub-
Committee 

Corporate Director of Place 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy 

Page 204



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 9 
 

 

Standards Committee Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy 

STAR Joint Committee Corporate Director of Finance & 
Systems 

Town/Village Green Sub-
Committee 

Corporate Director of Place 

 
 

(c) Standards Committee 
 

(i) A meeting of the Standards Committee (or any sub-committee) 
shall not be quorate unless at least three members, including at 
least one independent member of that committee (or sub-
committee) are present. 

 
(ii) where at least one independent member would have been present 

for the duration of the meeting but for the fact that (s)he was 
prevented or restricted from participating in any business of the 
authority by virtue of the code of conduct, the requirement in (i) for 
the quorum to include at least one independent member shall not 
apply. 

 
(iii) if no Parish Council sub-committee has been appointed then, if 

matters relating to parish councils or the members of parish 
councils are being considered at the Standards Committee, one 
parish member must be present when those matters are 
considered. 

 
Temporary Emergency Amendment 
 
In the event that a scheduled meeting of the Standard Committee is 
inquorate the functions of that Committee shall be delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy, to the extent 
necessary for the Corporate Director of Governance and Community 
Strategy to, in consultation (where possible) with the Chair of the 
Committee, complete the business set out on the Agenda for that 
meeting. 
 

(d) Appointment and Appeals Committees 
  

For meetings of Appointment and Appeal Committees the quorum shall 
be as follows: 

 
(i) for a committee comprising 3 members the quorum shall be 2 
(ii) for a committee comprising 5 members the quorum shall be 3 
(iii) in all other cases the quorum shall be 4 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 205



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 10 
 

 
(e) Health and Wellbeing Board  
 

The quorum of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be a 
minimum of five members with at least two Local Authority members and 
two Clinical Commissioning Group members present.  
 
Temporary Emergency Amendment 
 
In the event that a scheduled meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
is inquorate the functions of that Committee shall be delegated to the 
Corporate Director of Adult Services, to the extent necessary for the 
Corporate Director of Adult Services to, in consultation (where possible) 
with the Chair of the Committee, complete the business set out on the 
Agenda for that meeting. 

  
If, during any meeting, the Chair counts the number of members present and 
declares there is not a quorum present, then the meeting will adjourn 
immediately.  Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by 
the Chair.  If he/she does not fix a date, the remaining business will be 
considered at the next ordinary meeting. 

 
9. DURATION OF MEETING 
 
9.1 Interruption of the meeting 
 
9.1.1 Except in respect of 9.1.2 below if the business of the meeting has not been 

concluded by 9.30 p.m., the Chair must interrupt the meeting and any member 
speaking must immediately sit down.  The Chair will at his/her discretion either 
call for the vote immediately on the item under discussion, (the vote will then be 
taken in the usual way without any further discussion) or adjourn the meeting to 
a date and time to be agreed by the members present.  In the absence of a 
decision by the Members, the Head of the Paid Service, in consultation with the 
Chair, shall fix the date and time of the resumed meeting. 

 
9.1.2 Nothing in paragraph 9.1.1 shall prevent the Chair of any regulatory committee 

from allowing that committee to proceed to the determination of a matter already 
under discussion after 9.30 p.m. 

 
9.1.3 A regulatory committee is a committee which carries out functions set out in 

Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 
Regulations 2000. 

 
10. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 
 
*10.1 On reports of the Executive or committees 
 

A member of the Council may ask the Leader, a Member of the Executive or the 
Chair of a committee any question without notice upon an item of the report of 
the Executive or a committee when that item is being received or is under 
consideration by the Council. 

Page 206



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 11 
 

 
*10.2 Questions on notice at full Council 
 

Subject to Rule 10.4, a member of the Council may ask: 
 

 the Chair; 

 a member of the Executive ; or 

 the Chair of any committee or sub-committee 
 

a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or 
duties or which affects the Borough. 

 
10.3 Questions on notice at committees and sub-committees 
 

Subject to Rule 10.4, a member of a committee or sub-committee may ask its 
Chair a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or 
duties or which affect the Borough and which falls within the terms of reference 
of that committee or sub-committee. 

 
10.4 Notice of questions 
 

A member may only ask a question under Rule 10.2 or 10.3 if: 
 
(a) the question does not relate to a matter currently under review by an 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and 
 
(b) notice of the question has been given to the Head of Paid Service in writing 

not later than 4.00 p.m. one clear working day before the date of the 
meeting; or 

 
(c) where the question relates to urgent matters, he/she has the consent of the 

Member to whom the question is to be put and the content of the question is 
given to the Head of Paid Service by 12 noon on the day of the meeting. 

 
Every question shall be put and answered without discussion, but the person to 
whom a question is put may decline to answer. 

 
10.5 Response 
 

An answer may take the form of: 
 
(a) a direct oral answer; 
 
(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other 

published work, a reference to that publication; or 
 

(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer 
circulated later to the questioner. 

 
 
 

Page 207



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 12 
 

 
10.6 Supplementary question 
 

A member asking a question under Rule 10.2 or 10.3 may ask one 
supplementary question without notice of the member to whom the first question 
was asked. The supplementary question must arise directly out of the original 
question or the reply. 

 
11. MOTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
11.1 Notice 
 

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 12, written 
notice of every motion, signed by at least 2 members, or with electronic consent  
of at least 2 members must be delivered or submitted electronically to the Head 
of Paid Service not later than 4.00 p.m. six clear working days before the date of 
the meeting.  These will available for public inspection. 

 
11.2 Motion set out in agenda 
 

Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda summons 
in the order in which notice was received, unless the member giving notice 
states, in writing, that they propose to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it. 

 
11.3 Scope 
 

Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a responsibility or 
which affect the Borough. 

  
12. MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE 

 
The following motions may be moved without notice: 

 
(a)  to appoint a Chair of the meeting at which the motion is moved; 

 
(b)  in relation to the accuracy of the minutes; 

 
(c)  to change the order of business in the agenda summons; 

 
(d)      to refer something to an appropriate body or individual; 
 
(e) to appoint a committee, sub-committee or members thereof arising from 

an item on the agenda for the meeting; 
 
(f)  to receive reports or adoption of recommendations of committees or 

officers and any resolutions following from them; 
  

(g)  to withdraw a motion; 
 

(h)  to amend a motion; 
 

Page 208



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 13 
 

(i)  to proceed to the next business; 
 

(j)  that the question be now put; 
 

(k)  to adjourn a debate; 
  

(l)  to adjourn a meeting; 
 

(n) to suspend a particular Council procedure rule in accordance with Rule 
23.1 

 
(o) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 

Information Rules; 
 

(p)  to not hear further a member named under Rule 20.3 or to exclude them 
from the meeting under Rule 20.4; and 

 
(q)  to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by this 

Constitution. 
 

13. RULES OF DEBATE 
 
13.1 No speeches until motion or amendment seconded 
 

No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and 
explained the purpose of it until the motion or amendment has been seconded. 

 
13.2 Right to require motion in writing 
 

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Chair may require it to 
be written down and handed to him/her before it is discussed. 

 
13.3 Content, length and number of speeches 
 

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a personal 
explanation or point of order.  The Chair will have overall control over the length, 
content and number of speeches where necessary and shall decide when a 
matter has been discussed enough for the debate to be closed and a vote taken.  
In limiting the number of members speaking in the debate and the time of 
speeches, the Chair shall have regard to the need to complete the business 
within the time set. 

 
13.4 Amendments to motions 
 
      (a) An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either 

be: 
 

(i)  to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for 
consideration or reconsideration; 

 
(ii)  to leave out words; 

Page 209



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 14 
 

 
(iii)  to leave out words and insert or add others; or 

 
(iv)  to insert or add words. 

  
as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is not to negate the motion. 
 

(b) It is recommended that any amendments put forward to the Executive’s 
recommendations for the Council’s budget must be 
costed and that the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems should 
confirm that the proposals in the amendment are robust. 

 
(c)  Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time.  No 

further amendment may be moved until the amendment under discussion 
has been disposed of. 

 
(d)  If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion 

may be moved. 
 

(e)  If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of the 
original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any further 
amendments are moved. 

 
(f)  After an amendment has been carried, the Chair may, for the purpose of 

clarity, read out the amended motion before accepting any further 
amendments, or if there are none, putting it to the vote. 

 
13.5 Alteration of motion 
 

(a)  A member may alter a motion of which he/she has given notice with the 
consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified without 
discussion. 

 
(b)  A member may alter a motion which he/she has moved without notice 

with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s 
consent will be signified without discussion. 

 
(c)  Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be made. 

  
13.6  Withdrawal of motion 
 

A member may withdraw a motion which he/she has moved with the consent of 
both the meeting and the seconder. The meeting’s consent will be signified 
without discussion. No member may speak on the motion after the mover has 
asked permission to withdraw it unless permission for withdrawal is refused. 

  
13.7 Right of reply 
 

(a) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate on the 
motion, immediately before it is put to the vote. 

 

Page 210



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 15 
 

(b) If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the right 
of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment. 

 
(c)  The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on his or 

her amendment. 
 
13.8  Motions which may be moved during debate 
 

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except the 
following procedural motions.  With the exception of motions under (g) and (h) 
below, such motions can only be moved at the end of any speech currently in 
progress: 

 
(a)  to withdraw the motion; 

 
(b)  to amend the motion; 

 
(c)  to proceed to the next business; 

  
(d)  that the question be now put; 

 
(e)  to adjourn the debate; 

 
(f)  to adjourn the meeting; 

 
(g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 

Information Rules; and 
 

(h)  to not hear further a member named under Rule 20.3 or to exclude them 
from the meeting under Rule 20.4. 

 
13.9 Closure motions 

 
(a)  A member may move, without comment, the following motions at the end 

of a speech of another member: 
 

(i)  to proceed to the next business; 
 

(ii)  that the question be now put; 
 

(iii) to adjourn the debate; or 
 

(iv) to adjourn the meeting. 
 
(b) If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Chair thinks 

the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will give the mover of the 
original motion a right of reply and then put the procedural motion to the 
vote. 

 
(c) If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Chair thinks 

the item has been sufficiently discussed, he/she will put the procedural 

Page 211



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 16 
 

motion to the vote.  If it is passed he/she will give the mover of the 
original motion a right of reply before putting his/her motion to the vote. 

 
(d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is seconded 

and the Chair thinks the item has not been sufficiently discussed and 
cannot reasonably be so discussed on that occasion, he/she will put the 
procedural motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original 
motion the right of reply. 

 
(e)      An equivalent procedure will be followed where the closure motion is  

moved during the debate on an amendment. 
 

13.10 Point of order 
 

A member may raise a point of order at any time.  The Chair will hear that 
Member immediately.  A point of order may only relate to an alleged breach of 
these Council Rules of Procedure or the law. The member must indicate the rule 
or law and the way in which he/she considers it has been breached. The ruling 
of the Chair on the matter will be final. 

 
13.11 Personal explanation/Clarification of previous speech 
 

A member may make a personal explanation at any time. A personal 
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech by the 
member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present debate. 
The ruling of the Chair on the admissibility of such personal 
explanation/clarification will be final. 

 
*14.   STATE OF THE AREA DEBATE 
 
14.1 Calling of debate 
 

The Leader may call a state of the area debate to be held once in any municipal 
year on a date to be agreed with the Chair. 

 
14.2 Form of debate 
 

The Leader will decide the form of the debate with the aim of enabling the widest 
possible public involvement and publicity. This may include holding workshops 
and other events prior to or during the state of the area debate and may be 
undertaken in conjunction with the local strategic partnership. 

 
14.3 Chairing of debate 
 

The debate will be chaired by the Chair of the Council. 
 

14.4 Results of debate 
 

The results of any such debate will be: 
 

Page 212



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 17 
 

(i) disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to agencies 
and organisations in the area; and  

 
(ii)  considered by the Leader in proposing the budget and policy framework 

to the Council for the coming year. 
 
15. PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS 
 
15.1 Motion to rescind a previous decision 
 

Unless needed to ensure that the Council complies with the law, a motion to 
rescind a decision made at a Council meeting within the past six months cannot 
be moved unless the notice of motion is signed by at least 16 members. 

 
15.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected 
 

Unless needed to ensure that the council complies with the law, a motion in 
similar terms to one that has been rejected at a Council meeting in the past six 
months cannot be moved unless the notice of motion under Rule 11 is signed by 
at least 16 members. Once the motion is dealt with, no one can propose a 
similar motion or amendment for six months. 

 
15.3 Changed Circumstances 
 

A motion which has the effect of negativing a decision made at a meeting of 
Council within the preceding six months cannot be moved unless there is some 
fresh information or other changed circumstances which justify such a course.  
The ruling of the Chair as to what is fresh information or changed circumstances 
shall be binding on the meeting. 
 

16. VOTING 
 
16.1 Majority 
 

Unless the law provides otherwise any matter will be decided by a simple 
majority of those members voting and present in the room at the time the 
question was put. 

 
16.2 Chair’s casting vote 
 

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair will have a second 
or casting vote.  There is no restriction on how the Chair chooses to exercise a 
casting vote. 

 
16.3 Method of voting 
 

Unless a ballot or recorded vote is demanded under Rules 16.4 and 16.5, the 
Chair will take the vote by show of hands, or by the use of an electronic voting 
system, or if there is no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting. 

 
 

Page 213



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 18 
 

16.4 Ballots 
 

The vote will take place by ballot if a majority of the members present at the 
meeting demand it.  The Chair will announce the numerical result of the ballot 
immediately the result is known. 

 
16.5 Recorded vote 
 

If 3 members present at the meeting demand it, the names for and against the 
motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and 
recorded in the minutes.  A demand for a recorded vote will override a demand 
for a ballot. A recorded vote on the annual budget will be taken down and 
recorded in the minutes.  

 
16.6 Right to require individual vote to be recorded 
  

Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, their vote will 
be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they voted for or against the 
motion or abstained from voting.  

 
16.7 Voting on appointments 
 

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled and 
there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then the name of 
the person with the least number of votes will be taken off the list and a new 
vote taken. The process will continue until there is a majority of votes for one 
person. 

 
17. MINUTES 
 
17.1 Signing the minutes 
 

The Chair will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next suitable meeting.  
The Chair will move that the minutes of the previous meeting be signed as a 
correct record.  The only aspect of the minutes that can be discussed is their 
accuracy. 

 
17.2  No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at extraordinary 

meeting 
  

Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing the 
minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 12 to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next following 
meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be 
treated as a suitable meeting for the purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of 
schedule 12 relating to signing of minutes. 

 
17.3 Form of minutes 
 

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and order the 
Chair put them to the vote. 

Page 214



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 19 
 

 
18. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 
 

All members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign their 
names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every meeting to 
assist with the record of attendance. 

 
19. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in accordance 
with the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution or Rule 
21(Disturbance by Public). 

  
20. MEMBERS’ CONDUCT 
 
*20.1 Standing to speak 
 

When a member speaks at a Council meeting they must stand (unless 
prevented by illness or otherwise) and address the meeting through the Chair. If 
more than one member stands, the Chair will ask one to speak and the others 
must sit. Other members must remain seated whilst a member is speaking 
unless they wish to make a point of order or a point of personal explanation. 

 
*20.2 Chair standing 
 

When the Chair stands during a debate, any member speaking at the time must 
stop and sit down. The meeting must be silent. 
 

20.3 Member not to be heard further 
 

If a member persistently disregards the ruling of the Chair by behaving 
improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Chair may move 
that the member be not heard further. If seconded, the motion will be voted on 
without discussion. 

 
20.4 Member to leave the meeting 
 

If the member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is carried, the 
Chair may move that either the member leaves the meeting or that the meeting 
is adjourned for a specified period. If seconded, the motion will be voted on 
without discussion. 

 
20.5 General disturbance 
 

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, the Chair 
may adjourn the meeting for as long as he/she thinks necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 215



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 20 
 

21. DISTURBANCE BY THE PUBLIC 
 
21.1 Removal of member of the public 
 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chair will warn the person 
concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chair will order their removal from 
the meeting room. 

 
21.2 Clearance of part of meeting room 
 

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the 
public, the Chair may call for that part to be cleared. 
 

22. MEDIA 
 
22.1 The Council will make reasonable facilities available for the reporting of the 

proceedings of any meeting.  Any reporting of discussions of items covered by 
Section 10 of the Access to Information procedure rules is prohibited.  

 
(1) While a meeting of the Council, Executive, a Committee or Sub Committee 

is open to the public, any person attending is permitted to report on the 
meeting by filming, photographing or making an audio recording of 
proceedings at the meeting. They may also use any other means for 
enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at such a meeting 
as it takes place or later and may use any communication method, including 
the internet, to publish, post or otherwise share the results of the person’s 
reporting activities. 

 
(2) Should a person cause a disturbance at a meeting whilst reporting on the 

proceedings, for example by: 
 

•        moving to areas outside the areas designated for the public without the 
consent of the Chair,  

•        making excessive noise in recording or setting up or re-siting 
equipment during the debate/discussion,   

•        intrusive lighting and use of flash photography; or  

•        asking for people to repeat statements for the purposes of recording  

then the provisions of rule 21 (disturbance by the public) shall apply. 
 

(3) Nothing in this rule shall allow any person to report on any part of a meeting, 
without the consent of the meeting, whilst the public is excluded to allow it to 
debate confidential or exempt matters. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 216



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 21 
 

23 SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
23.1 Suspension 
 

All of these Council Rules of Procedure except Rules 9.1.1, 16.6 and 17.2 may 
be suspended by motion on notice or without notice if at least one half of the 
whole number of members of the Council are present.  Suspension can only be 
for the duration of the meeting. 

  
23.2 Amendment 
 

(a) Unless paragraph (b) applies any motion to add to, vary or revoke these 
Council Rules of Procedure will, when proposed and seconded, stand 
adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the Council. 

 
(b) If a recommendation to add to, vary or revoke these Rules is made by the 

Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer the matter will be 
considered at the same meeting of the Council. 

 
24. APPLICATION TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES 

 
All of the Council Rules of Procedure apply to meetings of full Council.  None of 
the rules apply to meetings of the Executive. Only Rules 5–13, 15–23 (but not 
Rule 20.1) apply to meetings of committees and sub-committees. 

 
25.     BOOKS 

 
All books referred to in these Procedure Rules shall be kept by the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
26. INTERPRETATION 
 
26.1 Throughout these Procedure Rules the phrase “working day” shall mean 

Monday to Friday in any week except public holidays or any other days when 
the offices at Trafford Town Hall are officially closed. 

 
27. EMERGENCY COUNCIL ACTION 
 

With regard to situations which arise between Council meetings and require 
emergency action which cannot reasonably await the next Council meeting, the 
Chief Executive, Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy or 
relevant Corporate Director has authority to take such action in consultation with 
the Leader of the Council and the Leaders of the other groups of the Council (or 
with such of the latter as are available for consultation) and subject to a 
subsequent report to the next meeting of the Council meeting. 

 
N.B.  Those Rules marked * apply to meetings of the full Council only. 

 

Page 217



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 22 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1. SCOPE 
  

These rules apply to all meetings of the Council, overview and scrutiny 
committees, the Standards Committee, regulatory committees, Health and 
Wellbeing Board and public meetings of the Executive and its committees 
(together called meetings). 

  
2. ADDITIONAL RIGHTS TO INFORMATION 
 

These rules do not affect any more specific rights to information contained 
elsewhere in this Constitution or the law. 

 
3. RIGHTS TO ATTEND MEETINGS AND ASK QUESTIONS  
 

Members of the public may attend all meetings subject only to the exceptions in 
these rules. 

 
Members of the public may ask questions of the Chair at any meeting of the 
Executive or Committee subject to  

 
a) The questions being within the remit of the Executive or Committee or that 

they relate to a matter under discussion at the meeting.  
b) The questions being submitted to the Council via email by 4pm on the day 

before the meeting.  
c) That the time to be allowed for all questions to be put and answered is 

limited to 15 minutes at the start of the meeting.  
 

4.       NOTICES OF MEETING 
 

The Council will give at least five clear days notice of any meeting by posting 
details of the meeting at its main administrative building and on its website. 
 

5. ACCESS TO SUMMONS AND AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE THE 
MEETING 

 
The Council will make copies of the summons or agenda and reports open to 
the public available for inspection at the designated office and on its website at 
least five clear days before the meeting.  If an item is added to the summons or 
agenda later (where reports are prepared after the summons has been sent out) 
the revised summons or agenda will be open to inspection from the time the 
item was added to the summons or agenda. The designated officer shall make 
each such report available to the public as soon as the report is completed and 
sent to councillors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 218



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 23 
 

6. SUPPLY OF COPIES 
 

The Council will supply copies of: 
  

(a) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection; 
(b) any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the nature of 

the items in the agenda; and 
(c) if the Head of Paid Service thinks fit, copies of any other documents 

supplied to councillors in connection with an item 
(d) to any person on payment of a charge for postage and any other costs. 

 
7.  ACCESS TO MINUTES AND RECORDS OF DECISIONS 
 

The Council will make available copies of the following for six years after a 
meeting and make them available on the website: 

 
(a) the minutes of the meeting or records of decisions taken, together with 

reasons, for all meetings of the Executive, excluding any part of the 
minutes of proceedings when the meeting was not open to the public or 
which disclose exempt or confidential information; 

(b) a summary of any proceedings not open to the public where the minutes 
open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and coherent 
record;  

(c) the agenda for the meeting; and 
(d)  reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public. 

 
8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
8.1 List of background papers 
 

The appropriate Corporate Director or Director will set out in every report a list of 
those documents (called background papers) relating to the subject matter of 
the report which in his/her opinion: 

 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of 

the report is based; and 
(b) which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report  

but does not include published works or those which disclose exempt or 
confidential information (as defined in Rule 10) and, in respect of 
executive reports, the advice of a political advisor. 

 
8.2 Public inspection of background papers 
 

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date 
of the meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background 
papers and make them available on its website.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 219



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 24 
 

9.  SUMMARY OF PUBLIC’S RIGHTS 
 

A written summary of the public’s rights to attend meetings and to inspect and 
copy documents must be kept at and available to the public at the Council’s 
main administrative building. 

  
10.  EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO MEETINGS 
 
10.1  Confidential information – requirement to exclude public 
 

The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that 
confidential information would be disclosed. 

 
10.2  Exempt information – discretion to exclude public 
 

The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that 
exempt information would be disclosed. 

 
Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or 
adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 
establishes a presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private 
hearing is necessary for one of the reasons specified in Article 6. 

 
10.3  Meaning of confidential information 
 

Confidential information means information given to the Council by a 
Government Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or 
information which cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order. 

 
10.4  Meaning of exempt information 
 

Exempt information means information falling within the following categories 
(subject to the public interest test): 

 

1 Information relating to any individual. 
 

2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 

3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any 
labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of 
the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the authority. 
 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

Page 220



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 25 
 

6 Information which reveals that the authority proposes— 

(a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 
requirements are imposed on a person; or 

(b) to make an order or direction under any enactment. 
 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection 
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
 

8 Qualifications 

Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information 
by virtue of that paragraph if it is required to be registered under— 

(a) the Companies Act 1985; 
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974; 
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992; 
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978; 
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or 
(f) the Charities Act 1993. 
 

9 Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed 
development for which the local planning authority may grant itself 
planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning General Regulations 1992. 
 

10 Information which – 
 
(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and 

(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 
above, 

is exempt information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

  
11. EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO REPORTS 
 

If the proper officer thinks fit, the Council may exclude access by the public to 
reports which in his/her opinion relate to items during which, in accordance with 
Rule 10, the meeting is likely not to be open to the public. Such reports will be 
marked “Not for publication” together with the category of information likely to be 
disclosed.   

 
12. APPLICATION OF RULES TO THE EXECUTIVE 
 

In addition to Rules 1-11 the Executive and its committees must also comply 
with Rules 13 – 21 unless Rule 15 (general exception) or Rule 16 (special 
urgency) applies.  

 

Page 221



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 26 
 

13. PROCEDURES PRIOR TO MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE OR ITS 
COMMITTEES 

 
13.1 Subject to Rule 10, a decision-making meeting of the Executive or its 

committees must be held in public. Notice of the meeting will be given in 
accordance with Rule 4 (notices of meeting) and also be published on the 
Council’s website at least five clear days before the meeting or where the 
meeting is convened at shorter notice, at the time that the meeting is convened. 
In addition to Rule 5 (access to agenda and reports before the meeting) the 
Council will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the public available 
on its website. 

 
13.2 Subject to Rule 16 (special urgency), where a decision-making meeting is to be 

held in private, a notice of the intention to hold a meeting in private, including a 
statement of the reasons for the meeting to be held in private, will be made 
available at the Council offices and published on the website at least 28 clear 
days before the meeting. A further notice of the intention to hold the meeting in 
private will be made available at the Council offices and published on the 
website at least 5 clear days before the meeting and will include: 

 
(a) a statement of the reasons for the meeting to be held in private; 
(b) details of any representations received about why the meeting should be 

open to the public; and 
(c) a statement of the Executive’s response to any such representations. 

 
This requirement does not apply to meetings whose sole purpose is for officers 
to brief members. 
 

14. PROCEDURE BEFORE TAKING KEY DECISIONS 
 

Subject to Rule 15 (general exception) and Rule 16 (special urgency), a key 
decision may not be taken until a notice has been made available at the Council 
offices and published on the website at least 28 clear days before the meeting 
stating: 
 
(a) that a key decision is to be made; 
(b) the matter in respect of which the decision is to be made; 
(c) where the decision maker is an individual, that individual’s name and title 

if any and where the decision maker is a decision-making body, its name 
and a list of its members; 

(d) the date on which, or the period within which, the decision is to be made; 
(e) a list of the documents submitted to the decision maker for consideration 

in relation to the matter in respect of which the key decision is to be 
made; 

(f) the address from which, subject to any prohibition or restriction on their 
disclosure, copies of, or extracts from, any document listed is available; 

(g) that other documents relevant to those matters may be submitted to the 
decision maker; and 

(h) the procedure for requesting details of those documents (if any) as they 
become available. 

 

Page 222



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 27 
 

Where a key decision is to be taken in private, the above notice must contain 
particulars of the matter but does not require the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information or advice from a political assistant. 
 
A key decision is as defined in Article 13.03 of this Constitution. 
 

15.  GENERAL EXCEPTION 
 

If a matter which is likely to be a key decision has not been included in the 
notice referred to in Rule 14 (procedure before taking key decisions), then 
subject to Rule 16 (special urgency), the decision may still be taken if: 

 
(a)  the proper officer has informed the Chair of a relevant overview and 

scrutiny committee, or if there is no such person, each member of that 
committee by notice in writing, of the matter about which the decision is to 
be made; 

 
(b)  the proper officer has made copies of the notice referred to in (a) 

available to the public at the offices of the Council and on the Council’s 
website; and 

 
(d)  at least 5 clear days have elapsed since the proper officer complied with 

(b). 
 

As soon as reasonably practical after compliance with the above, a notice 
setting out the reasons why a key decision has not been included in the notice 
referred to in Rule 14 (procedure before taking key decisions) will be made 
available at the Council offices and published on its website.  

 
16.  SPECIAL URGENCY 
 

If by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken Rule 15 (general 
exception) cannot be followed and/or is a matter to be determined in private 
which has not been included in the notice referred to in Rule 13.2 (procedures 
prior to meetings of the Executive or its Committees, then the decision can only 
be taken if the decision taker (if an individual) or the Chair of the body making 
the decision, obtains the agreement of the Chair of a relevant overview and 
scrutiny committee that the taking of the decision is urgent and cannot be 
reasonably deferred. If there is no Chair of a relevant overview and scrutiny 
committee, or if the Chair of a relevant overview and scrutiny committee is 
unable to act, then the agreement of the Chair of the Council, or in his/her 
absence the Vice-Chair of the Council will suffice. 
 
As soon as reasonably practical after compliance with the above, a notice 
setting out the reasons why the making of a key decision is urgent and cannot 
reasonably be deferred will be made available at the Council offices and 
published on its website. 

 
 
 
 

Page 223



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 28 
 

17. REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
17.1  When an overview and scrutiny committee can require a report 
 

If an overview and scrutiny committee thinks that a key decision has been taken 
which was not: 

 
(a)  included in the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions  orDecisions or 

in a notice                                                       to the relevant Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee where this was impractical 

(b)  the subject of the general exception procedure; or 
(c)  the subject of an agreement with a relevant overview and scrutiny 

committee Chair, or Chair/Vice-Chair of the Council under Rule 16; 
 

the committee may require the Executive to submit a report to the Council within 
such reasonable time as the committee specifies. The power to require a report 
rests with the committee, but is also delegated to the proper officer, who shall 
require such a report on behalf of the committee when so requested by the 
Chair.  Alternatively the requirement may be raised by resolution passed at a 
meeting of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee. 

 
17.2  Executive’s report to Council 
 

The Executive will prepare a report for submission to the next available meeting 
of the Council.  However, if the next meeting of the Council is within 7 working 
days of receipt of the written notice, or the resolution of the committee, then the 
report may be submitted to the meeting after that.  The report to Council will set 
out particulars of the decision, the individual or body making the decision, and if 
the Leader is of the opinion that it was not a key decision the reasons for that 
opinion. 
 

17.3 Reports on special urgency decisions 
 

In any event the Leader will submit at least one report annually to the Council on 
the Executive decisions taken in the circumstances set out in Rule 16 (special 
urgency) during the period since the last report was submitted.  The report will 
include the number of decisions so taken and a summary of the matters in 
respect of which those decisions were taken. 

 
18.  RECORD OF DECISIONS 
 

After any meeting of the Executive or any of its committees, whether held in 
public or private, the proper officer or, where no officer was present, the person 
presiding at the meeting, will produce a record of every decision taken at that 
meeting as soon as practicable.  The record will include a statement of the 
reasons for each decision and any alternative options considered and rejected 
at that meeting.  

 
 
 
 

Page 224



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 29 
 

 
19. ATTENDANCE AT PRIVATE MEETINGS OF THE EXECUTIVE 
 
19.1 Executive Members 
  

a)  All members of the Executive will be served notice of all private meetings 
of committees of the Executive, whether or not they are members of that 
committee. 

 
b) All members of the Executive are entitled to attend a private meeting of 

any committee of the Executive. 
 
19.2 Other Members 
 

a) Members other than executive members will be able to attend and/or 
speak at private meetings of the Executive and its committees if invited to 
do so by the Leader but only Members of the Executive may vote. 

 
19.3 Officers 
 

a)  The Head of Paid Service, the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems and the Monitoring Officer, and their nominees are entitled to 
attend any public meeting of the Executive and its committees.  The 
Executive may not meet in public or private unless the proper officer has 
been given reasonable notice that a meeting is to take place. 

 
b)  A private executive meeting will usually take place in the presence of the 

proper officer or his/her nominee with responsibility for recording and 
publicising the decisions. 

  

There is no requirement for the Executive to meet in the presence of an 
officer. 
 
The provisions of Rule 18 (recording and publicising decisions) will apply 
in respect of private meetings of the Executive. 

  
20.  DECISIONS BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE AND 
 OFFICERS 
 
20.1  Reports intended to be taken into account 
 

Where an individual member of the Executive receives a report which (s)he 
intends to take into account in making any key decision, then (s)he will not make 
the decision until at least 5 clear days after receipt of that report. 

 
20.2  Provision of copies of reports to overview and scrutiny committees 
 

On giving of such a report to an individual decision maker, the person who 
prepared the report will give a copy of it to the Chair of every relevant overview 
and scrutiny committee as soon as reasonably practicable, and make it publicly 
available at the same time. 

Page 225



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 30 
 

 
20.3  Record of individual decision 
 

As soon as reasonably practicable after an executive decision has been taken 
by an individual member of the Executive or a key decision has been taken by 
an officer, he/she will prepare, or instruct the proper officer to prepare, a record 
of the decision, a statement of the reasons for it and any alternative options 
considered and rejected.  The provisions of Rules 7 and 8 (inspection of 
documents after meetings) will also apply to the making of decisions by 
individual members of the Executive and officers.  This does not require the 
disclosure of exempt or confidential information or advice from a political 
assistant. 

21. ACCESS TO INFORMATION FOR NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS 

 
21.1 Rights to Copies 
 

All Members and co-opted Members will be entitled to inspect and have copies 
of any document which is in the possession of or under the control of the 
Executive or its committees and which contains material relating to:- 

 
a) any business transacted at a decision-making meeting 
b) any decision made by an individual Member of the Executive 
c) any decision made by an officer in accordance with executive 

arrangements 
 
The Executive will provide such documents as soon as reasonably practicable 
and in any case no later than 10 clear days after it receives the request. 

In addition, all Members will be entitled to receive a copy of the agenda and 
reports for public meetings of the Executive and its committees and Rule 21.2(b) 
will not as such apply to such reports. 

21.2 Limit on Rights 

 
Members and co-opted Members will not be entitled to inspect or take copies 
of:- 

 
a) any document that is in draft form 
b) any document or part of a document that contains exempt information 

falling within paragraphs 1 to 6, 9,11,12 and 14 of the categories of 
exempt information unless that document is relevant to an executive 
decision that is subject to the call in procedure. 

c) any document that contains the advice of a political adviser 
 
21.3 Additional Rights for Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committees are also entitled to documents 
containing exempt or confidential information if that information is relevant to an 
action or decision (s)he is reviewing or scrutinising or is relevant to any reviews 
contained in that Committee’s work programme. 

Page 226



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 31 
 

 
21.4 Executive Statement in Respect of No Right of Access 
 

 Where the Executive determines that a Member or co-opted Member is not 
entitled to a copy of a document or part of any such document for a reason set 
out in 21.1 – 21.3, it will provide the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a 
written statement setting out its reasons for that decision. 

 
21.5 Definition of ‘document’ 
 

‘Document’ as referred to above means any report or background papers, other 
than that in draft form, taken into consideration in relation to an executive 
decision which has been or is to be made. 

 
21.6 Nature of rights 
 

These rights are additional to any other rights a Member may have. 
 
21.7 Proper Officer 
 

For the purpose of these rules the Proper Officer is the Monitoring Officer. 

  
 
 

Page 227



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 32 
 

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1.     The framework for executive decisions 
 

The Council will be responsible for the adoption of its Budget and Policy 
framework as set out in Article 4.  Once a budget or a policy framework is in place, 
it will be the responsibility of the Executive to implement it. 
 

2. Process for developing the framework 
 

The process by which the policy and budgetary framework shall be developed is: 
 
(1) The Executive will publicise by setting out a timetable for making proposals 

to the Council for the adoption of any plan, strategy or budget that forms part 
of the Budget and Policy framework, and any arrangements for consultation 
after publication of initial proposals.  The Chairs of overview and scrutiny 
committees will also be notified.  

 
(2) If a relevant overview and scrutiny committee wishes to respond to the 

Executive in any consultation process then it may do so.  As the overview 
and scrutiny committees have responsibility for fixing their own work 
programme, it is open to the overview and scrutiny committee to investigate, 
research or report in detail with policy recommendations before the end of 
any consultation period.  The Executive will take any response from an 
overview and scrutiny committee into account in drawing up firm proposals 
for submission to the Council, and its report to Council will reflect the 
comments made by consultees and the Executive’s response. 

 
(3) Once the Executive has approved the firm proposals for any plan, strategy 

or budget, the proper officer will refer them at the earliest opportunity to the 
Council for decision. 

 
(4) In reaching a decision the Council may, subject to rule 8, adopt the 

Executive’s proposals, amend then, refer them back to the Executive for 
further consideration or substitute its own proposals in their place. 

 
(5) The Capital Strategy will be considered as part of the budget process and 

the capital budget will be considered as a rolling programme by the 
Executive at various stages throughout the year. 

 
(6) In approving the budget and policy framework, the Council will also specify 

the extent of virement within the budget and degree of in-year changes to 
the policy framework which may be undertaken by the Executive, in 
accordance with rules 5 and 6.  Any other changes to the budget and policy 
framework are reserved to the Council. 

  
3.  Decisions outside the budget or policy framework 
 

(1) Subject to the provisions of rules 4 to 6 the Executive, committees of the 
Executive, individual members of the Executive and any officers, or joint 
arrangements discharging executive functions may only take decisions 

Page 228



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 33 
 

which are in line with the budget and policy framework.  If any of these 
bodies or persons wishes to make a decision which is contrary to the policy 
framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget 
approved by full council, then that decision may only be taken by the 
Council.  
 

(2)  If the Executive, committees of the Executive, members of the Executive 
and any officers, or joint arrangements discharging executive functions want 
to make a decision as set out in (1) above, they shall take advice from the 
Monitoring Officer and/or the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems as 
to whether the decision they want to make would be contrary to the policy 
framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget. If the 
advice of either of those officers is that the decision would not be in line with 
the existing budget and/or policy framework, then the decision must be 
referred by that body or person to the Council for decision, unless the 
decision is a matter of urgency, in which case the provisions in rule 4 shall 
apply. 

 
4.  Urgent decisions outside the budget or policy framework 
  

(1)  The Executive, a committee of the Executive, an individual member of the 
Executive or officers, or joint arrangements discharging executive functions 
may take a decision which is contrary to the Council’s policy framework or 
contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget approved by full 
Council if the decision is a matter of urgency.  However, the decision may 
only be taken: 

 
i) if it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full Council; 
 

and  
 

ii) if the Chair of a relevant overview and scrutiny committee agrees that the 
decision is a matter of urgency. In the absence of the Chair of a relevant 
overview and scrutiny committee the consent of the Chair of the Council 
and, in the absence of both the Vice-Chair of the Council, will be 
sufficient. 

 
The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of full 
Council and the Chair of the relevant overview and scrutiny committees’ 
consent to the decision being taken as a matter of urgency must be noted 
on the record of the decision.   

  
(2) Following the decision, the decision taker will provide a full report to the next 

available Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it and why 
the decision was treated as a matter of urgency. 

 
5.  Virement 
 

(1) The Council’s budget heads will be established by the Council from time to 
time and set out in the Council’s Revenue Budget. 

 

Page 229



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 34 
 

(2) Steps taken by the Executive, an individual member of the Executive or 
officers, or joint arrangements discharging executive functions to implement 
Council policy shall not exceed those budgets allocated to each budget 
head.  However, subject to statutory constraints such bodies or individuals 
shall be entitled to vire across budget heads up to a maximum of 10% of the 
gross budget of the budget head from which the virement is taken.  Beyond 
that limit, approval to any virement across budget heads shall require the 
approval of the full Council as long as there is no change to the overall net 
budget and it is done in accordance with the limits contained within the 
Finance Procedure Rules. Changes to the overall net revenue budget and to 
the Capital Programme, where it is due to additional prudential borrowing, 
shall require approval of full Council. 

 
6.  In-year changes to policy framework 
 

The responsibility for agreeing the budget and policy framework lies with the 
Council, and decisions by the Executive, a committee of the Executive, an 
individual member of the Executive or officers, or joint arrangements discharging 
executive functions must be in line with it.  No changes to any policy and 
strategy which make up the policy framework may be made by those bodies or 
individuals except those changes: 

 

(a) which will result in the closure or discontinuance of a service or part of 
service to meet a budgetary constraint; 

(b) necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial direction or 
government guidance; 

(c) in relation to the policy framework in respect of a policy which would 
normally be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but where 
the existing policy document is silent on the matter under consideration. 

(d)  which relate to policy in relation to schools, where the majority of school 
governing bodies agree with the proposed change. 

 
7.  Call-in of decisions outside the budget or policy framework 
 

(1) Where an overview and scrutiny committee or the Chair of such a committee 
is of the opinion that an executive decision is, or if made would be, contrary 
to the policy framework, or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the 
Council’s budget, then it shall seek advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, who may prepare a report. 

 
(2) In respect of functions which are the responsibility of the Executive, the 

Monitoring Officer’s report and/or Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems’ report shall be to the Executive with a copy to every member of the 
Council. Regardless of whether the decision is delegated or not, the 
Executive must meet to decide what action to take in respect of such a 
report and prepare a report to: 

 
i) Council in the event that the Monitoring Officer or the Corporate Director 

of Finance and Systems conclude that the decision was a departure, 
and 

 

Page 230



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 35 
 

ii) to the relevant overview and scrutiny committee if the Monitoring Officer 
or the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems conclude that the 
decision was not a departure. 

 
(3) If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet 

implemented, and the advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is that the decision is or would 
be contrary to the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget, the overview and scrutiny committee or Chair 
should refer the matter to Council.  In such cases, no further action will be 
taken in respect of the decision or its implementation until the Council has 
met and considered the matter.  The Council shall meet within 10 working 
days of the request by the overview and scrutiny committee unless the next 
ordinary meeting of council will take place within 14 days in which case the 
request will be considered at that meeting.  At the meeting it will receive a 
report of the decision or proposals and the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
and/or the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems. The Council may 
either: 

 
i) endorse a decision or proposal of the Executive decision taker as falling 

within the existing budget and policy framework.  In this case no further 
action is required, save that the decision of the Council be minuted and 
circulated to all councillors in the normal way; or 

 
ii) amend the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules or policy concerned to 

encompass the decision or proposal of the body or individual 
responsible for that executive function and agree to the decision with 
immediate effect. In this case, no further action is required save that the 
decision of the Council be minuted and circulated to all councillors in the 
normal way; 

 
iii) where the Council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary to 

the policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the 
budget, and does not amend the existing framework to accommodate it, 
require the Executive to reconsider the matter in accordance with the 
advice of either the Monitoring Officer/Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems. 

 
8. Dispute Resolution 
 

(1) Where, following consideration of the Executive’s proposals for any plan or 
strategy, the Council has any objections to them, the Council must take the 
action set out in 8 (2). 

 
(2) Before the Council __ 

 
(a) amends a proposed plan or strategy; 
 
(b) approves, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State or 

any Minister of the Crown for his/her approval, any plan or strategy 

Page 231



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 36 
 

(whether or not in the form of a draft) of which any part is required to be 
so submitted; or 

 
(c) adopts (with or without modification) a proposed plan or strategy, 

 
it must inform the Executive Leader of any objections which it has to the 
proposals and must give to him/her instructions requiring the Executive to 
reconsider, in the light of those objections, the proposals submitted to it. 
 

(3) Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with 8(2), it must specify 
a period of at least five working days beginning on the day after the date on 
which the Executive Leader receives the instructions on behalf of the 
Executive within which the Executive Leader may __ 

 

(a) submit a revision of the proposals as amended by the Executive (the 
“revised proposed plan or strategy”) with the Executive’s reasons for 
any amendments made to the proposals, to the Council for the 
Council’s consideration; or 

 
(b) inform the council of any disagreement that the Executive has with any 

of the Council’s objections and the Executive’s reasons for any such 
disagreement. 

 
(4) When the period specified by the Council, referred to in 8(3) has expired, the 

Council must meet within a reasonable time, the date being agreed by the 
Chair of the Council and the Head of Paid Service.  When __ 

 
(a) amending the proposed plan or strategy or, if there are any revisions, 

the revised proposed plan or strategy; 
 
(b) approving, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State or 

any Minister of the Crown for his/her approval, any plan or strategy 
(whether or not in the form of a draft or revised draft) of which any part 
is required to be so submitted; or 

 
(c) adopting (with or without modification) the proposed plan or strategy, 
 
the Council must take into account any amendments made to the proposals 
that are included in any revised proposed plan or strategy, the Executive’s 
reasons for those amendments, any disagreement that the Executive has 
with any of the Council’s objections and the Executive’s reasons for that 
disagreement, which the Executive Leader submitted to the Council, or 
informed the Council of, within the period specified. 

 
(5) Subject to 8(9) below where, in any financial year, the Executive submits to 

the Council for its consideration in relation to the following financial year  
 
 

(a) estimates of the amounts to be aggregated in making a calculation 
(whether originally or by way of substitute) in accordance with any of 

Page 232



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 37 
 

sections 32 to 37 or 43 to 49, of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992; 

 
(b) estimates of other amounts to be used for the purposes of such a 

calculation;  
 

(c) estimates of such a calculation; or 
 

(d) amounts required to be stated in a precept under Chapter IV of Part 1 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.   

 
and following consideration of those estimates or amounts the Council has 
any objections to them, it must take the action set out in 8 (6). 

 
(6)    Before the Council makes a calculation (whether originally or by way of a  

substitute) in accordance with any of the sections referred to in 8(5)(a), or 
issues a precept under Chapter IV of Part I of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, it must inform the Executive Leader of any objections 
which it has to the Executive’s estimates or amounts and must give to 
him/her instructions requiring the Executive to reconsider, in the light of 
those objections, those estimates and amounts in accordance with the 
Council’s requirements. 

 
(7) Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with (6), it must specify 

a period of at least five working days beginning on the day after the date on 
which the Executive Leader receives the instructions on behalf of the 
Executive within which the Executive Leader may __ 

 
(a) submit a revision of the estimates or amounts as amended by the 

Executive (“revised estimates or amounts”), which have been 
reconsidered in accordance with the Council’s requirements, with the 
Executive’s reasons for any amendments made to the estimates or 
amounts, to the Council for the Council’s consideration; or 

 
(b) inform the Council of any disagreement that the Executive has with any 

of the council’s objections and the Executive’s reasons for any such 
disagreement. 

 
 (8) When the period specified by the Council, referred to in 8(7) has expired, the 

Council must, when making calculations (whether originally or by way of 
substitute) in accordance with the sections referred to in paragraph 8(5)(a), 
or issuing a precept under Chapter IV of Part I of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, take into account:- 

 
(a) any amendments to the estimates or amounts that are included in any 

revised estimates or amounts; 
 
(b) the Executive’s reasons for those amendments 

 
(c) any disagreement that the Executive has with any of the authority’s 

objections; and 

Page 233



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 38 
 

 
(d) the Executive’s reasons for that disagreement, 

 
which the Executive Leader submitted to the Council, or informed the 
Council of, within the period specified. 
 

(9)  Paragraphs (5) to (8) shall not apply in relation to __ 

 
(a) calculations or substitute calculations which an authority is required to 

make in accordance with section 52I, 52J, 52T or 52U of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992; and 

 
(b) amounts stated in a precept issued to give effect to calculations or 

substitute calculations made in accordance with Section 52J or 52U of 
that Act. 

 

Page 234



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 39 
 

EXECUTIVE PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1.  How the Executive operates 
 
1.1  Who may make executive decisions 
 

The arrangements for the discharge of executive functions may be set out in the 
Executive arrangements adopted by the Council.  If they are not set out there, 
then the Leader may decide how they are to be exercised.  In either case, the 
arrangements or the Leader may provide for executive functions to be 
discharged by: 

 
i)  the Executive as a whole; 
ii)  a committee of the Executive; 
iii)  an individual member of the Executive; 
iv)  an officer; 
v)  joint arrangements; or 
vi)  another local authority. 

 
1.2  Delegation by the Leader 
 

At the Annual Meeting of the Council, the Leader will present to the Council a 
written record of delegations made by him/her for inclusion in the Council’s 
scheme of delegation at Part 3 to this Constitution.  If this is not practicable the 
Leader will present such a record to the first ordinary meeting of the Council 
after the Annual Meeting.  The documents presented by the Leader will contain 
the following information about executive functions in relation to the coming 
year: 

 
i)  the extent of any authority delegated to executive members individually, 

including details of the limitation on their authority; 
ii)  the terms of reference and constitution of such executive committees as 

the Leader appoints and the names of executive members appointed to 
them; 

iii)  the nature and extent of any delegation of executive functions to any 
other authority or any joint arrangements and the names of those 
executive members appointed to any joint committee for the coming year; 
and 

iv) the nature and extent of any delegation to officers with details of any 
limitation on that delegation, and the title of the officer to whom the 
delegation is made. 

 
1.3  Sub-delegation of executive functions 
 

(a)  Where the Executive, a committee of the Executive or an individual 
member of the Executive is responsible for an executive function, they 
may delegate further to joint arrangements or an officer. 

 
(b)  Unless the Council directs otherwise, if the Leader delegates functions to 

the Executive, then the Executive may delegate further to a committee of 
the Executive or to an officer. 

Page 235



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 40 
 

 
(c)  Unless the Leader directs otherwise, a committee of the Executive to 

whom functions have been delegated by the Leader may delegate further 
to an officer. 

 
(d)  Even where executive functions have been delegated, that fact does not 

prevent the discharge of delegated functions by the person or body who 
made that delegation. 

 
1.4  The Council’s scheme of delegation and executive functions 
 

(a)  Subject to (b) and (c) below, the Council’s scheme of delegation of 
executive functions will be subject to adoption by the Council and may 
only be amended by the Council.  It will contain the details required in 
Article 7 and set out in Part 3 of this Constitution. 

 
(b)  If the Leader is able to decide whether to delegate executive functions, 

(s)he may amend the scheme of delegation relating to executive 
functions at any time during the year.  To do so, the Leader must either 
make the amendment at a meeting of the Executive attended by the 
proper officer or the proper officer’s representative or give written notice 
to the proper officer.  The person, body or committee to whom the 
delegation is given must be informed by the Proper Officer. Any written 
notice must set out the extent of the amendment to the scheme of 
delegation, and whether it entails the withdrawal of delegation from any 
person, body, committee or the Executive as a whole.  The proper officer 
will present a report to the next ordinary meeting of the Council setting 
out the changes made by the Leader. 

 
1.5 The delegations referred to in paragraphs 1.2 and 1.4 need only be set out in 

Part 3 of this Constitution or reported to the Council if they will exceed, or are 
capable of exceeding, 6 months in duration. 

 
1.6  Conflicts of Interest 
 

If the exercise of an executive function has been delegated to a committee of 
the Executive, an individual member or an officer, and a conflict of interest 
arises, then the function will be exercised in the first instance by the person or 
body by whom the delegation was made. 

 
1.7 Place and time of Executive Meetings 
 

The Executive will meet at times to be agreed by the Leader.  The Executive 
shall meet at the Council’s main offices or another location to be agreed by the 
Leader. 

 
1.8  Quorum 
  

The quorum for a meeting of the Executive shall be 3. The quorum for a meeting 
of a committee of the Executive shall be 2. 
 

Page 236



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 41 
 

Temporary Emergency Amendment 
 
In the event that a scheduled meeting of the Executive is inquorate the functions 
of the Executive shall be reserved to the Leader of the Council, in consultation 
with the Chief Executive, Corporate Director of Governance and Community 
Strategy or relevant Corporate Director (where possible), to complete the 
business set out on the Agenda for that meeting. 

 
1.9 Decision Making 
 

(a) Executive decisions shall be taken in accordance with the principles set 
out in Article 13 of the Constitution. 

 
(b) Executive decisions which have been delegated to the Executive as a 

whole will be taken at a meeting convened in accordance with the Access 
to Information Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 
(c) Where executive decisions are delegated to a committee of the Executive 

the rules applying to executive decisions taken by them shall be the same 
as those applying to those taken by the Executive as a whole. 

 
2.  The conduct of Executive meetings 
 
2.1  Chair of meeting 
  

If the Leader is present (s)he will chair the meeting.  In his/her absence, then the 
Deputy Leader will chair the meeting. In the absence of both, a person 
appointed to do so by those present shall chair the meeting. 

  
2.2  Attendance 
 

Attendance shall be as set out in the Access to Information Rules in this part of 
the Constitution. 

 
2.3  Business to be conducted 
 

At each meeting of the Executive the following business will be conducted: 
 

ii) consideration of the minutes of the last meeting; 
 
iii) matters referred to the Executive (whether by an overview and scrutiny 

committee or by the Council) for reconsideration by the Executive in 
accordance with the provisions contained in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules set 
out in this part of this Constitution; 

 
iii) consideration of reports from overview and scrutiny committees; and 

 
iv) matters set out in the agenda for the meeting; and 

 
v)  if the meeting is held in public the agenda shall indicate which are key  

Page 237



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 42 
 

decisions and which are not in accordance with the Access to Information 
Procedure rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 

2.4  Consultation 
 

All reports to the Executive from any member of the Executive or an officer on 
proposals relating to the budget and policy framework must contain details of the 
nature and extent of any consultation with stakeholders and relevant overview 
and scrutiny committees, and the outcome of that consultation.  Reports about 
other matters will set out the details and outcome of consultation as appropriate. 
The level of consultation required will be appropriate to the nature of the matter 
under consideration. 

 
2.5  Rights to place items on the Executive agenda 
 

(a) The Leader will decide upon the timetable for the meetings of the 
Executive and may call extraordinary meetings if (s)he believes it 
necessary. (S)he may put on the agenda of any executive meeting any 
matter which (s)he wishes, whether or not authority has been delegated 
to the Executive, a committee of it or any member or officer in respect of 
that matter. The proper officer will comply with the Leader’s requests in 
this respect. 

  
(b) Any member of the Executive may, after discussion with the Leader 

require the proper officer to make sure that an item is placed on the 
agenda of the next available meeting of the Executive for consideration.  
If he/she receives such a request the proper officer will comply. 

 
(c) There will be a standing item on the agenda of each meeting of the 

Executive for matters referred by the full Council or by overview and 
scrutiny committees for reconsideration.  However there may only be up 
to 3 such items per executive meeting. 

 
(d) There will be a standing item on the agenda of each meeting of the 

Executive for matters referred by the full Council or by overview and 
scrutiny committees for consideration.  However there may only be up to 
3 such items per executive meeting. 

 
(e) The number of items which can be placed on an agenda under (c) and (d) 

above may, at the discretion of the Leader, be increased in respect of any 
Executive agenda. 

 
(f) Any member of the Council through the Leader of their political group (or, 

if not in a political group, direct to the Leader of the Council) may ask the 
Leader of the Council to put an item on the agenda of an executive 
meeting for consideration, and if the Leader agrees, the item will be 
considered at the next available meeting of the Executive.   

 
(g) The Monitoring Officer and/or the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Systems may include an item for consideration on the agenda of an 
executive meeting and may require the proper officer to call such a 

Page 238



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 43 
 

meeting in pursuance of their statutory duties. In other circumstances, 
where any two of the Head of Paid Service, Corporate Director of Finance 
and Systems and Monitoring Officer are of the opinion that a meeting of 
the Executive needs to be called to consider a matter that requires a 
decision, they may jointly include an item on the agenda of an executive 
meeting.  If there is no meeting of the Executive soon enough to deal with 
the issue in question, then the person(s) entitled to include an item on the 
agenda may also require that a meeting be convened at which the matter 
will be considered. 

 
(h) Notwithstanding the above the Chief Executive, in the circumstances set 

out at Rule 12(a) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, can 
place an item on the agenda. 

 
2.6 Time and Duration of the Meeting 
 

Meetings of the Executive that take place in public will begin at 6.30 p.m. unless 
the Leader determines otherwise and will finish no later than 9.30 p.m. If any 
business remains outstanding the Leader will fix a date and time for a resumed 
meeting. 

 
3. The Conduct of Executive Committee meetings 
 
3.1 Chair of the meeting 
 

The person appointed by the Executive to be the Chair of the committee shall 
chair the committee.  In his/her absence, or if no such person has been 
appointed, a person appointed to do so by those present shall chair the meeting. 

 
3.2 Attendance and speaking at meetings 
 

i)     Attendance shall be as set out in the Access to Information Rules in this part 
of the Constitution. 

 
ii)  Members of the public, including councillors who are not members of the 

committee of the Executive, may speak at meetings of the Executive held in 
public if invited to do so by the Leader, or other Executive Member chairing 
the meeting. Questions by members of the public should adhere to the 
following.:following: 

 
a) The questions being within the remit of the Executive or that they relate to 

a matter under discussion at the meeting.  
b) The questions being submitted to the Council via email by 4 p.m. on the 

day before the meeting.  
c) That the time to be allowed for all questions to be put and answered is 

limited to 15 minutes at the start of the meeting.  
 

iii)  Councillors who are not members of the Executive may remain in such a 
meeting of the Executive when exempt information is discussed if invited to 
do so by the Leader, or other Executive Member chairing the meeting 

 

Page 239



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 44 
 

3.3 Business to be conducted 
 

i)  consideration of the minutes of the last meeting (if any); 
 
ii) matters referred to the Executive (whether by an overview and scrutiny 

committee or by the Council) for reconsideration by the Executive in 
accordance with the provisions contained in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules set 
out in this part of this Constitution; 
 

iii)  Public Questions  
 
iv) consideration of reports from overview and scrutiny committees;  
 
v) matters set out in the agenda for the meeting, and  

 
vi) if the meeting is held in public the agenda shall indicate which are key 

decisions and which are not in accordance with the Access to Information 
Procedure rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 
3.4 Rights to place items on Executive Committee agendas 
 

(a) The Chair of the committee, or the Leader if there is no Chair, will decide 
the dates upon which the committee will meet.  The Chair or the Leader 
may put on the agenda of the committee any matter which (s)he wishes 
provided it is within the delegated authority of that committee.  The proper 
officer will comply with the requests of the Leader and the Chair in this 
matter. 

 
4. Arrangements for the absence of the Leader 
 
4.1 In the absence of the Leader the Deputy Leader will exercise responsibility as if 

all references to the Leader in this Constitution were references to the Deputy 
Leader with the exception of those responsibilities which by law can only be 
exercised by the Leader. 

 
5. Proper Officer 
 

The Proper Officer for the purposes of these Procedure Rules is the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 240



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 45 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1.  Number and arrangements for overview and scrutiny committees 
 

(a) The Council will have the overview and scrutiny committees set out in 
Article 6 and will appoint to them as it considers appropriate from time to 
time.   
 

(b) Overview and scrutiny committees may also be appointed for a fixed 
period, on the expiry of which they shall cease to exist. Joint Committees 
may also be appointed by Council for specific purposes and shall cease 
to exist when that purpose has been fulfilled.  

 
(c) A set of Overview and Scrutiny Protocols are included in this Constitution 

under Part 5 (Codes and Protocols). 
 
2.  Membership of overview and scrutiny committees 
 

All Councillors, except Members of the Executive, are eligible to be appointed to 
the Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Committee, Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Committee and any Groups that either Committee may 
establish. However, no Member may be involved in scrutinising a decision in 
which he/she has been directly involved.  

 
3.  Co-optees 
 

Each overview and scrutiny committee shall be entitled to appoint up to 3 people 
as non-voting co-optees. 

 
4. Education representatives 

 
The Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee when dealing with 
education matters shall include in its membership the following voting 
representatives: 

 
(a)  1 Church of England diocese representative; 

 
(b)  1 Roman Catholic diocese representative; and 

 
(c)  3 parent governor representatives. 

 
When the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee deals with matters 
that do not relate to the authority’s education functions, the above-mentioned 
representatives shall not vote on those matters, though they may stay in the 
meeting and speak.  

 
5.  Meetings of the overview and scrutiny committees 
 

Ordinary meetings of the Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Committee and 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee shall be as agreed by the 
Council. In addition, extraordinary meetings may be called from time to time as 

Page 241



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 46 
 

and when appropriate. A meeting may be called by the Chair of the relevant 
Committee or by the Corporate Director of Governance and Community 
Strategy. A meeting of the Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Committee or 
Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee may be called by any three 
Members of the Committee of which they hold membership. 

 
6.  Quorum 
 

The quorum for an overview and scrutiny committee shall be as set in the 
Council Procedure Rules in this part of this Constitution. 

 
7. Chairs and Vice-Chairs of overview and scrutiny committee meetings 
 

The Chair of the Scrutiny Committee will be drawn from the ruling group on the 
Council. The Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny Committee will be a Member of the main 
opposition group on the Council.  
 
The Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee will be drawn from the largest 
opposition group on the Council. The Vice-Chair of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee will be a Member of the ruling group on the Council. 
 
The Chair of the Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee will be drawn 
from the ruling group on the Council. The Vice-Chair of the Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Committee will be a Member of the main opposition group on 
the Council. 
 
The Chairs of each Scrutiny Committee are appointed as ex-officio Members of 
the other scrutiny committees.   
 
The Chair of the Scrutiny Committee will be consulted by the Health Scrutiny 
Committee and will hold the power of veto in respect of any proposed referral of 
a substantial variation as defined in the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to the 
Secretary of State.  
 

8.  Work programme 
 

The work programme for the Overview and Scrutiny function will be approved, 
amended as appropriate and kept under review by the appropriate Scrutiny 
Committee in accordance with the arrangements described in Section 3 of Part 
3 of this Constitution. In developing any such programme, the Scrutiny 
Committee will have regard to the wishes of the Members of the Scrutiny 
Committee (including those who are not Members of the ruling group on the 
Council) and other non Executive Members who do not serve on that 
Committee.  
 
The Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Committee and Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Committee, as soon as work programmes permit, will consider 
requests from the Council or the Executive to undertake review work. 
 
 
 

Page 242



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 47 
 

9.  Agenda items 
 

(a)  (i) Any member of an overview and scrutiny committee shall be entitled to 
give notice to the proper officer that (s)he wishes an item relevant to 
the functions of that committee to be included on the agenda for the 
next available meeting of the committee.   

 
Before making such a request members are encouraged to discuss 
any such item with the Chair of the committee to determine the best 
way of dealing with the item. 

 
(ii) On receipt of such a request the proper officer shall inform the     Chair 

of the relevant scrutiny committee of the request and make 
arrangements for the matter to be included on the agenda at the next 
available meeting of that committee. It will then be for the committee to 
determine how that item shall be dealt with. 

 
(b) (i) Any other members of the Council (i.e. those who are not members of 

the relevant committee shall, after having had regard to any relevant 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State, be entitled to give notice to 
the proper officer that (s)he wishes a local government matter (as 
defined in S21A of the Local Government Act 2000 as amended) 
relevant to the functions of that committee to be included on the 
agenda for the next available meeting of the committee.  

 
(ii)  On receipt of such a request the proper officer shall inform the Chair of 

the relevant committee of the request and make arrangements for the 
matter to be included on the agenda at the next available meeting of 
that committee. It will then be for the committee to determine how that 
matter shall be dealt with. 

 
(c) Any 3 members of the Council who are not members of the overview and 

scrutiny committees may make a written request to the Chair of the 
relevant overview and scrutiny committee that they wish an item to be 
included on the agenda of that committee.  If the Chair accepts the 
request (s)he shall give the proper officer notification of the request and 
the proper officer will include the item on the first available agenda of that 
overview and scrutiny committee for consideration. 

 
(d) As soon as their work programme permits, the committees shall also 

respond to requests from the Council and, if it considers it appropriate, 
the Executive, to review particular areas of Council activity.  Where they 
do so, the committee shall report their findings and any recommendations 
back to the Executive and/or Council. The Council and/or the Executive 
shall consider the report of the committee at its next available meeting. 

 
10. Policy review and development 
  

(a)  The role of the overview and scrutiny committees in relation to the 
development of the Council’s budget and policy framework is set out in 
detail in the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 

Page 243



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 48 
 

 
(b)  In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other matters 

not forming part of its policy and budget framework, overview and scrutiny 
committees may make proposals to the Executive for developments in so 
far as they relate to matters within their terms of reference. 

 
(c) Overview and scrutiny committees may hold enquiries and investigate the 

available options for future direction in policy development and may 
appoint advisers and assessors to assist them in this process.  They may 
go on site visits, conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, 
commission research and do all other things that they reasonably 
consider necessary to inform their deliberations.  They may ask 
witnesses to attend to address them on any matter under consideration 
and may pay to any advisers, assessors and witnesses a reasonable fee 
and expenses for doing so. 
 

11.  Reports from overview and scrutiny committee 
 

(a) Once it has formed recommendations on proposals for development, an 
overview and scrutiny committee will prepare a formal report and submit it 
to the Chief Executive for consideration by the Executive (if the proposals 
are consistent with the existing budgetary and policy framework), or to the 
Council as appropriate (e.g. if the recommendation would require a 
departure from or a change to the agreed budget and policy framework). 

 
(b) If an overview and scrutiny committee cannot agree on one single final 

report to the Council or Executive as appropriate, then up to one minority 
report may be prepared and submitted for consideration by the Council or 
Executive with the majority report. 

 
12.  Consideration of overview and scrutiny reports by the Executive  
 

(a) Once an overview and scrutiny committee has completed its deliberations 
on any matter it will forward a copy of its final report to the Chief 
Executive who will allocate it to either or both the Executive and the 
Council for consideration, according to whether the contents of the report 
would have implications for the Council’s budget and policy framework.  

 
(i) If the Chief Executive refers the matter to Council, (s)he will also 

serve a copy on the Leader with notice that the matter is to be 
referred to Council. The Executive will have 6 weeks in which to 
respond to the overview and scrutiny report, and the Council shall 
not consider it within that period.  When the Council does meet to 
consider any referral from an overview and scrutiny committee on 
a matter which would impact on the budget and policy framework, 
it shall also consider the response of the Executive to the overview 
and scrutiny proposals.  The Council shall meet to consider any 
referral from an overview and scrutiny committee within 8 weeks of 
the report being submitted to the Chief Executive. 

 

Page 244



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 49 
 

(ii) If the Chief Executive refers the matter to the Executive, the 
Executive shall consider the report at its next available meeting.  
Where the Executive does not consider the matter within 8 weeks 
after referral by the Chief Executive, the Chief Executive will place 
the item on the agenda of the next meeting of the Executive. 

 
   (b)  Where an overview and scrutiny committee prepares a report for 

consideration by the Executive in relation to a matter where the Leader or 
Council has delegated decision-making power to another individual 
member of the Executive, then the overview and scrutiny committee will 
submit a copy of their report to that individual for consideration.  At the 
time of doing so, the overview and scrutiny committee shall serve a copy 
on the proper officer and the Leader.  If the member with delegated 
decision making power does not accept the recommendations of the 
overview and scrutiny committee then he/she must then refer the matter 
to the next available meeting of the Executive for debate before 
exercising his/her decision-making power and responding to the report in 
writing to the overview and scrutiny committee.  The Executive member 
to whom the decision making power has been delegated will respond to 
the overview and scrutiny committee within 6 weeks of receiving the 
report. A copy of his/her written response to it shall be sent to the proper 
officer and the Executive member will attend the future meeting of the 
relevant Overview and Scrutiny committee at which their response is 
considered. 

  

     (c) Overview and scrutiny committees will in any event have access to the 
Executive’s forward plan and timetable for decisions and intentions for 
consultation.  Even where an item is not the subject of detailed proposals 
from an overview and scrutiny committee following a consideration of 
possible policy/service developments, the committee will at least be able 
to respond in the course of the Executive’s consultation process in 
relation to any key decision.  Any report of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in relation to an item on the forward plan shall be taken into 
account by the Executive, or other decision maker, in making the 
decision. 

 
13.  Rights of overview and scrutiny committee members to documents 
 

(a)  In addition to their rights as councillors, members of overview and 
scrutiny committees have the additional right to documents, and to notice 
of meetings as set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 
(b)  Nothing in Rule 12 prevents more detailed liaison between the Executive 

committee and overview and scrutiny committees as appropriate 
depending on the particular matter under consideration. 

 
14.  Members and officers giving account 
 

(a)  Any overview and scrutiny committee may scrutinise and review 
decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any 

Page 245



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 50 
 

Council functions within its terms of reference.  As well as reviewing 
documentation, in fulfilling the scrutiny role, it may require any member of 
the Executive, the Head of Paid Service, any Director, Head of Service 
and/or any other appropriate senior officer to attend before it to explain in 
relation to matters within their remit: 

 
(i)  any particular decision, future decision as set out in the Forward 

Plan or series of decisions; 
 

(ii)  the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; 
and/or 

 
(iii)  their performance. 

 
and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required. 

 
(b)  Where any member or officer is required to attend an overview and 

scrutiny committee under this provision, the Chair of that committee will 
inform Statutory Scrutiny Officer.  The Statutory Scrutiny Officer shall 
inform the member or officer in writing giving at least 10 working days 
notice of the meeting at which he/she is required to attend.  The notice 
will state the nature of the item on which he/she is required to attend to 
give account and whether any papers are required to be produced for the 
committee.  Where the account to be given to the committee will require 
the production of a report, then the member or officer concerned will be 
given sufficient notice to allow for preparation of that documentation. 

  
(c)  Where, in exceptional circumstances, the member or officer is unable to 

attend on the required date, then the overview and scrutiny committee 
shall in consultation with the member or officer arrange an alternative 
date for attendance. 

 
15. Attendance by others 

 
An overview and scrutiny committee may invite people other than those people 
referred to in Rule 14 above to address it, discuss issues of local concern and/or 
answer questions. It may for example wish to hear from residents, stakeholders 
and members and officers in other parts of the public sector and shall invite such 
people to attend. 

. 
16.  Call-in  
  

(a) Subject to Rule 16(k) when a decision is made by the Executive 
(including by the Executive meeting in public) an individual member of the 
Executive, a committee of the Executive, or under joint arrangements, or 
a key decision is made by an officer with delegated authority from the 
Executive, the decision notice shall be published, including where 
possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the main offices of 
the Council normally within 2 working days of being made.   Copies of all 
such decision notices will be sent to all members of the relevant Overview 

Page 246



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 51 
 

and Scrutiny Committee within the same timescale, by the person 
responsible for publishing the decision.   

 

(b) Decision notices will bear the date on which they are published and will 
specify that the decision will come into force, and may then be 
implemented, on the expiry of 5 working days after the publication of the 
decision, unless called in accordance with the following procedure. 
 
Call-in Procedure 

 
(c) During the period of 5 working days from the publication of a decision 

notice, a request to call in the decision may be initiated in writing by the 
Chair or, in his/her absence, the Vice Chair of the Scrutiny Committee. 
The Chair, or where appropriate, the Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny 
Committee can be requested to exercise the right to call in a decision by 
any 3 Overview and Scrutiny Members.  

 
Call-in should only be used in exceptional circumstances where Members 
have evidence which suggests that a decision was taken where: 

 
(a)      inaccurate information of a substantial nature was given to the  

  decision taker; 
(b) inadequate consultation was carried out; 
(c) alternative options were not given sufficient consideration or were 

inadequately appraised; or 
(d) insufficient information was available 

 
and 
 
a decision may only be called in if the Chair, or Vice-Chair as appropriate, 
of the Scrutiny Committee accepts that any of the above criteria are met 
in relation to a decision. 

 
During that 5 working day period, the Chief Executive shall call-in a 
decision for scrutiny by the committee if so requested by the Chair or, 
where appropriate, the Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny Committee, and shall 
then notify the decision-taker of the call-in.  (S)he shall call a meeting of 
the scrutiny committee to meet on such date as (s)he may determine, 
where possible after consultation with the Chair of the committee, and in 
any case within 7 working days of the request to call-in being agreed.   

 
(d) If, having considered the decision, the scrutiny committee is still 

concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision maker for 
reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its concerns or refer 
the matter to full Council.  Matters should only be referred to full Council if 
the overview and scrutiny committee consider the decision to be contrary 
to the policy framework or contrary or not wholly in accordance with the 
budget. 

 
If the matter is referred to full Council the Chief Executive shall call a 
meeting of full Council to meet on such date as (s)he may determine, 

Page 247



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 52 
 

where possible after consultation with the Chair of Council, and in any 
case within 7 working days of the referral by the scrutiny committee.  If an 
ordinary meeting of the Council is due to take place within a reasonable 
period after the date of the referral of the scrutiny committee, the 7 day 
period can be varied with the agreement of the Leader of the Council, the 
Chair of the relevant overview and scrutiny committee and the Chair of 
the Council. 

 
(e) If referred to the decision maker they shall then reconsider within a further 

5 working days, amending the decision or not, before adopting a final 
decision.  If the decision maker is an individual and is unavailable during 
this period the decision shall be reconsidered by the Executive. 

 
(g) If, following the call-in of a decision, the scrutiny committee does not meet 

in the period set out above, or does meet but does not refer the matter 
back to the decision making person or body or to full Council, the decision 
will become effective on the date of the scrutiny committee meeting, or on 
the expiry of the period in which the overview and scrutiny committee 
meeting should have been held, whichever is the earlier.  

 
(h) If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not object 

to a decision which has been made, then no further action is necessary 
and the decision will be effective in accordance with the provision below.  
However, if the Council does object, it cannot make decisions in respect 
of an executive decision unless it is contrary to the policy framework, or 
contrary to or not wholly consistent with the budget.  Unless that is the 
case, the Council will refer any decision to which it objects back to the 
decision maker together with the Council’s views on the decision.  The 
decision maker shall then reconsider the decision as set out in paragraph 
(f) above. 

 
(i)  If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the decision 

back to the decision maker, the decision will become effective on the date 
of the Council meeting or expiry of the period in which the Council 
meeting should have been held, whichever is the earlier. 

 
EXCEPTIONS 

 
CALL-IN AND URGENCY 

 
(k) The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision 

being taken by the Executive is urgent or if the decision is a 
recommendation of the Executive to be referred to full Council for 
approval.  A decision will be urgent if any delay likely to be caused by the 
call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the publics 
interests.   Examples of circumstances which would be deemed urgent 
include: 

 

 the likelihood of material financial loss 

 the risk of incurring legal liability or delay in taking legal action 

 the need to comply with statutory or other legal requirements 

Page 248



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 53 
 

 to prevent or reduce the risk of damage to person or property 
 
(Please note that the above are by way of illustration only and are not a 
definitive list) 
 
The decision notice shall state whether in the opinion of the decision 
making person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and therefore not 
subject to call-in.   Any written report considered by the decision making 
person or body shall specify the nature of any urgency. 

 
(l) When a decision deemed to be urgent by the decision maker is being 

published, the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny Committee shall be 
notified that an urgent decision has been taken. 

 
(m) The operation of the provisions relating to call-in and urgency shall be 

monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for 
review if necessary.  However, if at any time, the Scrutiny Committee 
determine that these provisions are not being used appropriately it may 
after discussing the matter with the Leader and the Monitoring Officer, 
make a report to the next ordinary meeting with recommendations. 

 
17.  The party whip 
 

(a) The “party whip” means any instruction given by or on behalf of a political 
group to any councillor who is a member of that group as to how that 
councillor shall speak or vote on any matter before the Council or any 
committee or sub-committee, or the application or threat to apply any 
sanction by the group in respect of that councillor should he/she speak or 
vote in any particular manner. 

 
(b)  When considering any matter in respect of which a member of an 

overview and scrutiny committee is subject to a party whip, the member 
must declare the existence of the whip, and its nature before the 
commencement of the committee’s deliberations on the matter.  The 
declaration, and the detail of the whipping arrangements, shall be 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 

 
18.  Procedure at overview and scrutiny committee meetings* 
 

* The Council’s three scrutiny Committees were suspended as a result of the 

Coronavirus Pandemic until initially the 30th  September 2020 and Ssubsequently the 
end of December 2020. and tThe Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee has been 
established to carry out the Scrutiny function in the intervening period, as outlined in 
Table 1 below. 
 

(a)  Overview and scrutiny committees shall consider the following business: 
 

(i)  minutes of the last meeting; 
 

(ii)  declarations of interest (including whipping declarations); 
 

Formatted: Superscript

Page 249



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 54 
 

(iii)  consideration of any matter referred to the committee for a 
decision in relation to the call-in of a decision; 

 
(iv)  responses of the Executive to reports of the overview and scrutiny 

committee; and 
 
(v)  the business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting. 

 
(b)  Where the overview and scrutiny committee conducts investigations (e.g. 

with a view to policy development), the committee may also ask people to 
attend to give evidence at meetings which are to be conducted in 
accordance with the following principles: 

 
(i)  that the investigation be conducted fairly and all members of the 

committee be given the opportunity to ask questions of attendees, 
and to contribute and speak; 

 
(ii)  that those assisting the committee by giving evidence be treated 

with respect and courtesy; and 
 

(iii) that the investigation be conducted so as to maximise the 
efficiency of the investigation or analysis. 

  
  (c) Following any investigation or review, the committee shall prepare or 

approve a report, for submission to the Executive and/or Council as 
appropriate. 

 
19.  Matters within the remit of more than one overview and scrutiny 

committee 
 

Where a matter for consideration by an overview and scrutiny committee falls 
within the remit of one or more other overview and scrutiny committee, the 
decision as to which overview and scrutiny committee will consider it will be 
resolved by discussion by the Chairs of the Scrutiny Committee and the Health 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
20. Proper Officer 
 

The Proper Officer for the purpose of this Rule is the Corporate Director of 
Governance and Community Strategy. 

Page 250



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 55 
 

TABLE 1: 
 
MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES  
 

Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee 
 

Terms of reference 
 
During the ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic a dedicated Scrutiny 
Committee has been set up to ensure democratic accountability and good 
governance around Council decision making is maintained during this period. 
 
1. Title 

 
The Committee to be named the Trafford Pandemic Scrutiny Committee 
(TPSC).  

 
2. Operation 

 
The TPSC will stand in place of Trafford Council’s normal scrutiny 
function until 30 September 2020 and the arrangement will be subject to 
review after 3 months. (Note: the operation of the TPSC was extended 
until the end of 2020 by Council on 30 September with a further review of 
arrangements in December 2020.) There will be one meeting each 
month. All meetings will take place in working hours, virtually, with a 
meeting scheduled to take place 7 working days after any meeting of the 
Executive principally to provide both pre and post decision scrutiny in 
relation to decisions. The other scheduled meetings will focus principally 
on topics proposed in agenda setting meetings to be held as set out 
below.  
 

3. Scope and function 

 
The Committee will be appointed to discharge the functions conferred by 
Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. The principal functions of 
the Committee will be to act as a critical friend to the Executive through 
the scrutiny of decisions taken during the period that the Council is 
obliged to operate under restricted measures and to add value through 
the pre-decision scrutiny of key decisions.  
 
Within its scope and function the Scrutiny Committee will: 
 
A. Review and/or scrutinise policies; proposals; and decisions made or 

to be taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s 

functions. 

 
B. Make reports and/or recommendations to the Executive and/or 

Council where appropriate in connection with the discharge of any of 

the Council’s functions; 

 

Page 251



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 56 
 

 
C. Add value to the Council through pre-decision scrutiny of key 

decisions through using the 28-day notice. 

 
D. Consider any urgent matter in relation to Covid-19 affecting the area 

or its inhabitants. 

 
E. Provide for appropriate scrutiny of issues of concern arising during 

the course of the ongoing pandemic 

 
F. Promote collaborative working with the Executive. 

 
G. Consider items that would normally have been considered by the 

substantive Committees where there is a legal requirement that 

such matters are reviewed/considered during the period of this 

emergency 

 
4. Work Programme 

 

 The core function of the TPSC will be to review and add value to 

the Council’s decision making during a time of national emergency; 

to consider urgent Covid related matters; and to provide 

appropriate scrutiny in relation to issues of concern arising during 

the ongoing pandemic. The relevant Portfolio holder/Chief Officer 

will provide Members with a verbal report in respect of any decision 

which is being reviewed, or which is proposed to be made at the 

following Executive meeting, or in relation to any issue/matter 

subject to review. 

 
The Work of the TPSC will focus on; 

 
 Public Questions - relating only to items on the Agenda 

 Post Decision Scrutiny - Members will receive an overview of 

recent key, delegated and urgent decisions that have been taken 

since the last meeting of the Executive and will have the 

opportunity to review such decisions.  

 Pre – decision Scrutiny - Members will be given an overview of 

key decisions that are expected to be taken over the following 

month and will have the opportunity to feed back any comments or 

concerns in relation to such proposed decisions to the Executive 

through the relevant Portfolio holder/Chief Officer. 

 Focussed Scrutiny – Members will be given an overview of 

agenda items which relate to urgent matters relating to the Covid 

pandemic or issues of concern arising during the ongoing 

pandemic  

 
 
 
 

Page 252



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 57 
 

 
5. Agenda Setting  

 
The Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee, together with the Chairs of 
the suspended Children’s and Health Scrutiny Committees will meet 
regularly with the Statutory Scrutiny Officer in order to agree the agendas 
for the meetings taking place during the operation of the TPSC 
 

6. Task Groups 

 
As the TPSC has been constituted to perform specific functions around 
decision making and will meet frequently for that purpose during the 
pandemic, it will not undertake Task and Finish work. 
 

7. Membership 

 
The TPSC will have a membership of 17 Councillors who are not 
members of the Executive, appointed on a Proportional Representation 
basis by Council. Currently 8 Labour, 5 Conservatives, 1 Liberal 
Democrat and 1 Green, to be nominated by group leaders. In addition the 
Chairs of the suspended Children’s Scrutiny Committee and Health 
Scrutiny Committees will be members of the Committee with full voting 
rights 
 
Co-optees 
 
The Committee will have no co-optees, but at the discretion of the Chair 
can invite co-optees of the suspended Children’s and Health Scrutiny 
Committees if a relevant item is to be considered by the TPSC. 
 

8. Substitutes 

 
There will be no substitutes allowed in order to aid the efficient short-term 
operation of the Committee. 

 
9. Chair and Vice Chair 

 
The Committee will be chaired by the current chair of the main Scrutiny 
Committee and the Vice Chair will be the current vice chair of that 
committee. 
 

10. Quorum 

 
The quorum shall be a third of Members of the Committee. 
 
Where a meeting is inquorate those Members in attendance may meet 
informally but any decisions shall require appropriate ratification at the 
next quorate meeting of the TPSC. 

 
 
 

Page 253



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 58 
 

 
11. Public speaking 

 
If a Member of the public wishes to ask a question on any item on the 
Agenda, they are required to indicate they wish to speak by 12 noon the 
day before the meeting, this is to allow Governance Services the 
necessary time to enable them to join a meeting and facilitate when they 
can speak. They can submit a written question that the Chair will ask 
instead, as long as it is received by Governance Services by 12 noon the 
day before the meeting.  

Page 254



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 59 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Temporarily suspended for the Coronavirus Pandemic) 
 
Terms of Reference  
 
1. To act as the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Crime and 

Disorder Committee for the purposes of all relevant legislation including, but not 
limited to, the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended), and Police and Justice 
Act 2006.   

 
General Role 
 
2. Subject to statutory provision, to review and scrutinise decisions made or actions 

taken in connection with the discharge by the Council of its functions and by 
relevant partner authorities. 

 
3. In relation to the above functions: 
 

a) to make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council, Executive of 
the Council, any joint committee or any relevant partner authority as 
appropriate 

 
b) to consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants 

 
4. In relation to any function within the remit of this Committee:- 
 

a) as set out in (b) below to exercise the power to call in, for reconsideration, 
executive decisions made but not yet implemented set out in Section 
21(3) of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 
b) The call-in of an executive decision is to be exercised as follows:- 

 
i) the decision must not have been designated as urgent by the 

decision taker 
 
ii) the request to call in a decision must be made within 5 working days 

of the decision being published 
 
iii) any 3 members of an overview and scrutiny committee or select 

committee can ask the Chair of this Committee or, in his/her 
absence, the Vice-Chair to call in an executive decision 

 
iv) in deciding whether or not to approve the request to call in a 

decision, the Chair or Vice-Chair may consult the Vice-Chair and the 
chairs of the Select Committees as appropriate 

 
v) if the Chair, or Vice-Chair as appropriate, approve the call in of a 

decision the request to call in the decision must be made to the 
Chief Executive within the timescale set out in (ii) above 

 
vi) the Chair may decide, after consulting as appropriate, to call in a 

decision whether or not a request under (iii) has been received. 

Page 255



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 60 
 

 
5. To put in place and maintain a system to ensure that referrals from overview and 

scrutiny to the Executive, either by way of report or for reconsideration, are 
managed efficiently and do not exceed the limits set out in the Constitution. 

 
6. At the request of the Executive, to make decisions about the priority of referrals 

made in the event of reports to the Executive exceeding limits in the Constitution, 
or if the volume of such reports creates difficulty for the management of executive 
business or jeopardises the efficient running of Council business. 

 
7. To report annually to full Council on its workings, set out their plans for future 

work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate. 
 
Specific functions 
 
8. Maintain a strategic overview of progress towards the achievement of the 

ambitions and priorities within Trafford’s Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
9. Identify the Committee’s strategic priorities and determine the Overview and 

Scrutiny work programme to facilitate constructive evidence based critical-friend 
challenge to policy makers and service providers within the resources available. 

 
10. Assist and advise the Council in the continued development of the Overview and 

Scrutiny function within Trafford. 
 
11. Receive, consider and action as appropriate requests: 
 

a) from the Executive in relation to particular issues; and 
 

b) on any matters properly referred to the Committee  
 
12. Identify areas requiring in-depth review and allocate these to an appropriate Topic 

Group. The Committee in consultation with the leader of the relevant Topic Group 
will set the terms of reference, scope and time frame for the review by the Topic 
Group.  

  
13. In relation to the terms of reference of the Committee it may: 
 

a) assist the Council and the Executive in the development of its budget and 
policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues; 

 
b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 

Executive and/or committees and Council officers both in relation to 
individual decisions and over time; 

 
c) review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 

objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas; 
 

d) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area 
and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the overview 

Page 256



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 61 
 

and scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and 
performance; 

 
e) conduct research, community and other consultation as it deems 

appropriate in the analysis of policy issues and possible options; 
 

f) question and gather evidence from any other person with their consent. 
 

g) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 
community participation in the development of policy options; 

 
h) question members of the Executive and/or committees, senior officers of 

the Council and representatives of relevant partner authorities on relevant 
issues and proposals affecting the area and about decisions and 
performance;  

 
i) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 

national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 
enhanced by collaborative working; and 

 
j) undertake any other activity that assists the Committee in carrying out its 

functions. 
 
Delegation 
 
14. The Scrutiny Committee shall have all delegated power to exercise the power and 

duties assigned to them in their terms of reference. 

Page 257



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 62 
 

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Temporarily suspended for the Coronavirus 
Pandemic) 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To act as the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the purposes of all 

relevant legislation including, but not limited to the Health and Social Care Act 
2001 and the National Health Service Act 2006.  

  
2. All health scrutiny powers provided under the Health and Social Care Act 2001 

are delegated to the Health Scrutiny Committee.  
 
3. The Health Scrutiny Committee will have the power to refer a proposed 

substantial variation in service delivery to the Secretary of State. If the Committee 
wish to exercise this power, then this must also be agreed by the Chair of the 
Scrutiny Committee who will be an ex-officio member of the Health Committee 
and will hold the power of veto in respect of any proposed referral of a substantial 
variation to the Secretary of State.  

 
 General Role 
 
4. Subject to statutory provision, to review and scrutinise decisions made or actions 

taken in connection with the discharge by the Council of its functions and by 
relevant partner authorities in relation to health and well-being issues. 

 
5. In relation to the above functions: 
 

a) to make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council, Executive of 
the Council, any joint committee or any relevant partner authority as 
appropriate 

 
b) to consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants 

 
6. To put in place and maintain a system to ensure that referrals from the Health 

Scrutiny Committee to the Executive, either by way of report or for 
reconsideration, are managed efficiently and do not exceed the limits set out in 
the Constitution. 

 
7. At the request of the Executive, to make decisions about the priority of referrals 

made in the event of reports to the Executive exceeding limits in the Constitution, 
or if the volume of such reports creates difficulty for the management of executive 
business or jeopardises the efficient running of Council business. 

 
8. To report annually to full Council on its workings, set out their plans for future 

work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate. 
 
Specific functions 
 
9. Maintain a strategic overview of progress towards the achievement of the 

ambitions and priorities within Trafford’s Sustainable Community Strategy in 
relation to health and well-being matters. 

Page 258



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 63 
 

 
10. Identify the Committee’s strategic priorities and determine the Overview and 

Scrutiny work programme to facilitate constructive evidence based critical-friend 
challenge to policy makers and service providers within the resources available. 

 
11. Assist and advise the Council in the continued development of the Overview and 

Scrutiny function within Trafford. 
 
12. Receive, consider and action as appropriate requests: 
 

a) from the Executive in relation to particular issues; and 
 

b) on any matters properly referred to the Committee  
 
13. Identify areas requiring in-depth review and allocate these to an appropriate Topic 

Group. The Committee in consultation with the leader of the relevant Topic Group 
will set the terms of reference, scope and time frame for the review by the Topic 
Group. 

 
14. In relation to the terms of reference of the Committee it may: 
 

a) assist the Council, Executive and shadow Health and Well-being Board  in 
the development of its budget and policy framework by in-depth analysis of 
policy issues; 

 
b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 

Executive and/or committees and Council officers both in relation to 
individual decisions and over time; 

 
c) review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 

objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas; 
 

d) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area 
and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the overview 
and scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and 
performance; 

 
e) conduct research, community and other consultation as it deems 

appropriate in the analysis of policy issues and possible options; 
 

f) question and gather evidence from any other person with their consent. 
 

g) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance 
community participation in the development of policy options; 

 
h) question members of the Executive and/or committees, senior officers of 

the Council and representatives of relevant partner authorities on relevant 
issues and proposals affecting the area and about decisions and 
performance;  

 

Page 259



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 64 
 

i) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 
enhanced by collaborative working; and 

 
j) undertake any other activity that assists the Committee in carrying out its 

functions. 
 
Delegation 
 
15. The Health Scrutiny Committee shall have all delegated power to exercise the 

power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference. 
 

Page 260



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 65 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Temporarily 
suspended for the Coronavirus Pandemic) 
 
Terms of Reference  
 
1. The Committee will be responsible for the review and scrutiny of decisions made 

or actions taken in connection with the provision, planning and management of 
education in the borough of Trafford and, in particular, all of the functions of the 
Council as an education authority under the Education Acts, School Standards 
and Framework Act 1998 and all other relevant legislation in force from time to 
time. Co-opted Members will be appointed to discuss education matters and will 
attend the Scrutiny Committee when they consider education matters. 

 
2. To review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with: 
 

(a) the provision, planning and management of children’s and young people’s 
services and community lifelong learning in the borough of Trafford; 

 
(b) all functions of the council insofar as they relate to the provision of 

opportunities for education, training and learning outside the school 
environment, including pre-school, adult and community learning. 

 
3. The development of the council’s LEA Strategic Plan (incorporating the Education 

Development Plan) and the Early Years Development Plan. 
 
 
General Role 
 
4. Subject to statutory provision, to review and scrutinise decisions made or actions 

taken in connection with the discharge by the Council of its functions and by 
relevant partner authorities. 

 
5. In relation to the above functions: 
 

(a) to make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council, Executive of the 
Council, any joint committee or any relevant partner authority as appropriate. 
 

(b) to consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants. 
 
6. To put in place and maintain a system to ensure that referrals from the Children 

and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee to the Executive, either by way of report 
or for reconsideration, are managed efficiently and do not exceed the limits set 
out in the Constitution. 

 
7. At the request of the Executive, to make decisions about the priority of referrals 

made in the event of reports to the Executive exceeding limits in the Constitution, 
or if the volume of such reports creates difficulty for the management of executive 
business or jeopardises the efficient running of Council business. 

 
8. To report annually to full Council on its workings, set out their plans for future 

work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate. 

Page 261



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 66 
 

 
Specific functions 
 
9. Identify the Committee’s strategic priorities and determine the Overview and 

Scrutiny work programme to facilitate constructive evidence based critical-friend 
challenge to policy makers and service providers within the resources available. 

 
10. Assist and advise the Council in the continued development of the Overview and 

Scrutiny function within Trafford. 
 

11. Receive, consider and action as appropriate requests: 
 

(a) from the Executive in relation to particular issues; and 
 

(b) on any matters properly referred to the Committee. 
 

12. Identify areas requiring in-depth review and allocate these to an appropriate Topic 
Group. The Committee in consultation with the leader of the relevant Topic Group 
will set the terms of reference, scope and time frame for the review by the Topic 
Group.  

  
13. In relation to the terms of reference of the Committee it may: 
 

(a) assist the Council and the Executive in the development of its budget and 
policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues; 
 

(b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the 
Executive and/or committees and Council officers both in relation to 
individual decisions and over time; 

 
(c) review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy 

objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas; 
 

(d) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and 
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the overview and 
scrutiny committee and local people about their activities and performance; 

 
(e) conduct research, community and other consultation as it deems appropriate 

in the analysis of policy issues and possible options; 
 

(f) question and gather evidence from any other person with their consent. 
 

(g) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community 
participation in the development of policy options; 

 
(h) question members of the Executive and/or committees, senior officers of the 

Council and representatives of relevant partner authorities on relevant 
issues and proposals affecting the area and about decisions and 
performance;  

 

Page 262



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 67 
 

(i) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether 
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are 
enhanced by collaborative working; and 

 
(j) undertake any other activity that assists the Committee in carrying out its 

functions. 
 
Delegation 
 
The Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee shall have all delegated power 
to exercise the power and duties assigned to them in their terms of reference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 263



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 68 
 

FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The Council’s Financial Procedure Rules should be read in conjunction with 
other regulations and guidance published by the council, including, but not 
limited to, the Constitution. Specific reference is made to the Scheme of 
Delegation to Officers which specifies the relative roles and responsibilities of 
key officers. 
 
The Corporate Directors of each Directorate are responsible for ensuring that all 
staff are aware of the existence and content of such documents and for 
compliance with them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 264



Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 69 
 

 
FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES INDEX 

 
RULE 
1 - 2 

 
Business and Financial Planning 

 

 - Budgeting  
 - Maintenance of Reserves  
3 - 4 Budget Management  
 - Budgetary Control & Monitoring  
 - Virement  
5 Accounting  
6 Final Accounts  
7 Value for Money/Efficiency  
8 Treasury Management  
9 - 11 External Arrangements  
 - Partnerships  
 - Trust Funds  
 - External Funding  
12 Control of Income  
13 Internal Audit  
14 Preventing Fraud & Corruption  
15 Inventories  
16 Requirements for Competitive Quotations  
17 Contracts  
18 Orders for Work, Goods and Services  
19 Payments for Work, Goods and Services  
20 Payments to Staff  
21 Custody of Stocks and Stores  
22 Petty Cash / Imprest Accounts  
23 Capital Assets  
24 Insurance  
25 Risk Management  
26 Taxation  
27 Document Retention Periods  

 
 Date of Approval  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 265



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 70 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 These Financial Procedure Rules are a written code of procedures approved by Trafford 

Borough Council (the Council) to provide a framework for proper financial management. 
The Financial Procedure Rules form part of the Council’s Constitution and set out rules 
on accounting, audit, administrative procedures and budgeting systems. Importantly, 
they will be continuously updated and refined in the context of the Council’s changing 
structure and methods of operating. 

 
1.2 To conduct its business efficiently, the Council needs to ensure that it has sound 

financial management policies in place and that they are strictly adhered to. Part of this 
process involves the establishment of Financial Regulations that set out the Council’s 
financial policies. 

 
1.3 All decisions which have financial implications must have regard to proper financial 

control and value for money. If there is any doubt as to whether a financial proposal is 
appropriate, or whether a financial action is correct, this must be clarified with the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems in sufficient time to allow for appropriate 
consideration in advance of the decision or action being taken. 

 
1.4 Failure to follow Financial Procedure Rules or financial instructions issued by the 

Corporate Director of Finance and Systems under Financial Procedure Rules may result 
in action under the Council’s disciplinary procedures. 

 
1.5 The Council’s governance structure is laid down in its Constitution, which sets out how 

the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures that are to be 
followed. 

 
1.6 As part of authorities’ governance arrangements, there is a statutory requirement for 

each Council to appoint an officer to be responsible for its financial affairs. For Trafford 
Council this officer is the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems. 

 
1.7 These Financial Procedure Rules must be followed by all officers of the Council, in 

conjunction with the Council's Constitution and the Accounts and Audit Regulations. All 
financial arrangements should also comply with current relevant statutory requirements 
and European legislation. 

 
1.8 These Financial Procedure Rules do not apply to schools. Financial Procedure Rules 

for Schools are detailed in a separate document which has been provided to all 
maintained schools. 

 
1.9  In line with the CIPFA Good Practice guidance, each section of the Financial Procedure 

Rules follows the format set out below: 
 

• Why is this important? 
• Financial Procedure Rules (FPR) 
• Responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 
• Responsibilities of Management 

 

Page 266



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 71 
 

2 STATUS OF FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES 
 
2.1 Financial Procedure Rules provide the framework for managing the Council’s financial 

affairs. They apply to every Member and Officer of the Council and anyone acting on its 
behalf. 

 
2.2 The Financial Procedure Rules identify financial responsibilities of individuals including; 

Executive Members, Council Members, Officers, the Chief Executive, the Corporate 
Director of Governance and Community Strategy, the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems, other Directors and Budget Holders. Any delegation of the financial 
responsibilities described in these Financial Procedure Rules must be recorded in 
writing. 

 
2.3 Where such responsibilities are delegated, the officer to whom the responsibilities have 

been delegated must provide sufficient information to the Executive Member or relevant 
Director on request, in order to give assurance that all responsibilities and decisions 
have been performed in accordance with these Financial Procedure Rules.  Where 
decisions have been delegated or devolved to other responsible officers, references to 
the relevant Member or Officer in the Rules should be read as referring to them. 

 
2.4 All Members and Officers of the Council have a general responsibility for taking 

reasonable action to provide for the security of the assets under their control, and for 
ensuring that the use of these resources is legal, is properly authorised, and provides 
value for money. 

 
2.5 The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is responsible for maintaining a 

continuous review of the Financial Procedure Rules and submitting any additions or 
changes necessary to the full Council for approval.  The Corporate Director of Finance 
and Systems is also responsible for reporting, where appropriate, breaches of the 
Financial Procedure Rules to the Council and/or to the Executive Members. The 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall be authorised to temporarily suspend 
application of the Financial Procedure Rules in exceptional circumstances. 

 
2.6 The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is responsible for issuing advice and 

guidance to underpin the Financial Procedure Rules that Members, Officers and others 
acting on behalf of the Council are required to follow. 

 
2.7 Any person charged with the use or care of the Council’s resources and assets should 

inform themselves of the Council’s requirements under Financial Procedure Rules, with 
any queries being referred to the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems. 

 
2.8 All Corporate Directors should ensure that any financial procedures/guidelines produced 

by their departments in support of financial control are fully compliant with the Financial 
Procedure Rules and the agreement of the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 
should be obtained where such financial procedures are developed. 

 
2.9 The word ‘should’ in the Financial Procedure Rules implies a duty or obligation to act in 

the way outlined. 
 
2.10 Any proposals for changes or amendments to the Financial Procedure Rules must be 

forwarded to the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems for consideration. 

Page 267



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 72 
 

 
2.11 All Council employees must report to their manager, supervisor or other responsible 

senior officer, any illegality, impropriety, breach of procedure or serious deficiency 
discovered in the following of financial procedures. Managers must notify immediately 
and confidentially the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, or if not appropriate 
the Chief Executive or Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy (the 
Monitoring Officer), where it appears that such a breach has occurred. 

 
 
3 GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 AND SYSTEMS 
 
3.1 Subject to the overall control of the Council and the Executive on matters of policy, the 

Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is responsible for the proper administration 
of the Council’s financial affairs through: 

 
(i) advising the full Council, Executive and all Committees and officers on accounting 

and financial matters; 
(ii) supervising the arrangements for the receipt of monies due to the Council, 

payment of monies due from the Council, and the Council's treasury management 
and insurances; 

(iii) the format and preparation of the annual estimates and the presentation of these 
to the Executive and the Council, ensuring that a balanced, robust and sustainable 
budget has been set; 

(iv) the preparation and presentation of the statement of accounts of the Council; 
(v) the operation of bank accounts. 

 
3.2 The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is responsible for approving and 

controlling all accounting and financial systems in all departments of the Council, 
including the form of any documents and records used. 

 
3.3 All Directors must notify the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems as soon as 

possible of any matter within their area of responsibility which may affect the financial 
position of the Council. 

 
3.4 When any changes in service are contemplated, a report must be prepared, in 

conjunction with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, containing financial 
appraisals prior to submission to the Executive. 

 
3.5 The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems is responsible for ensuring that there is 

an effective Financial Scheme of Delegation and that this scheme is followed in practice 
within Trafford. 

 
3.6 Only the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, or Officers specifically nominated 

and authorised by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, are to undertake the 
general responsibilities outlined in this section. It is contrary to the Financial Procedure 
Rules for any other officer to assume or to allow others to believe that they have 
assumed these responsibilities. 

 
 
 

Page 268



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 73 
 

 
 

Page 269



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 74 
 

FPR1 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PLANNING 
 
The Council’s and Executive’s responsibilities in respect of budget and policy are set out in the 
‘Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules’ contained in the Council’s Constitution.  
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Planning is a dynamic and continuous process and is a fundamental tool in the management 
and control of the organisation. Financial planning is a key part of this process, setting out the 
financial consequences of the actions planned to meet the objectives and targets set within the 
plan. 
 
The financial plans do not stand in isolation, and in essence are the evaluation of major 
strategic plans of the Council, which must be developed within the framework of the budget 
and the Corporate Plan. This will be a two-way process with the development of these specific 
plans influencing the development of the budgets and Corporate Plan, and vice versa. This 
evaluation is critical to the organisation, as the availability of finance is often the critical factor 
in determining the pace of development towards key objectives. 
 
Budgeting 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council is a complex organisation responsible for delivering a wide variety of services.  It 
needs to plan effectively and to develop systems to enable scarce resources to be allocated in 
accordance with carefully weighed priorities.  The budget is the financial expression of the 
Council’s plans and policies. 
 
The revenue budget must be constructed so as to ensure that resource allocation properly 
reflects the service plans and priorities of the Council. Budgets (spending plans) are needed 
so that the Council can plan, authorise, monitor and control the way money is allocated and 
spent.  It is illegal for a Council to budget for a deficit. 
 
Capital expenditure involves acquiring or enhancing fixed assets with a long-term value to the 
Council, such as land, buildings, and major items of plant, equipment or vehicles. Capital 
assets shape the way services are delivered in the long term and create financial 
commitments for the future in the form of financing costs and revenue running costs.  As 
capital expenditure can involve very large sums of money it is important that capital projects 
are carefully appraised and managed to ensure that the project objectives are delivered. 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 established a system for capital financing based on a 
prudential framework.  Local authorities have the freedom to borrow funds to finance their 
capital programmes, without Government consent, subject to local authorities ensuring that 
their plans are affordable, prudent, sustainable and based upon sound treasury management. 
Capital expenditure should form an essential part of the Council’s asset management strategy 
and should be carefully prioritised in line with Council policy in order to maximise the benefit of 
scarce resources. 
 
As set out in the ‘Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules’, each year, the Executive 
must submit its revenue and capital estimates of expenditure and income to the Annual Budget 
Meeting of the Council. 

Page 270



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 75 
 

 
 
The rules for revenue and capital budgets are:  
 
1.1 Budget Holders are defined as the Chief Executive, Corporate Directors, Directors, 

Heads of Service and Strategic Leads, together with any other Officer with the relevant 
delegated authority to control and monitor budgets. Budget Holders must be consulted 
in the preparation of the budgets for which they are responsible and accountable for; 

 
1.2 Budget Holders are responsible for the day to day control of income and expenditure 

against a set budget for a cost centre, or group of cost centres that make up the area for 
which they have operational responsibility; 

 
1.3 as part of the monitoring process, Budget Holders must review regularly the 

effectiveness and operation of revenue budget preparation and ensure that any 
corrective action is taken; 

 
1.4 under the Local Government Act 2003, the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 

is required to prepare a report, for use when the Council is deciding its annual budget 
and council tax, on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of the Council’s 
reserves.  The Government has a back-up power to impose a minimum level of 
reserves on a Council that it considers to be making inadequate provisions; 

 
1.5 each year the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, in consultation with Directors 

and Heads of Service, will roll forward the Capital Investment Programme. The 
Executive shall consider all proposals for capital spending against available resources. 
The Capital Investment Programme is approved annually in February by the Council. 
Any increase to the total approved budget must be agreed by the Full Council, unless 
the increase is financed from external resources; 

 
1.6 any new proposals involving capital investment need to be evaluated and are subject to 

the prioritisation and appraisal process as referred to in the Council's Capital Strategy 
before being considered for inclusion in the Programme; 

 
1.7 if the acceptable tender amount is below the approved estimate, no works other than 

those included in the tender will be included without the express approval of the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 

 
1.8 the Council’s de-minimis level for any single item of capital expenditure is £10,000. 

Anything below this should be treated as revenue expenditure. Exceptions to this level 
will be made for items of capital expenditure that are financed by specific grant. 

 
 
 

Page 271



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 76 
 

FPR2 MAINTENANCE OF RESERVES 
 
Why is this Important? 
Every authority must decide upon the level of general reserves (balances) it wishes to maintain 
before it can decide the level of council tax.  Reserves are maintained as a matter of prudence.  
They enable the Council to provide for unexpected events and thereby protect it from 
overspending, should such events occur.  Reserves for specific purposes may also be 
maintained.  When a Council is deciding its annual budget and council tax level it is required 
by statute to take into account a report from the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems on 
the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and robustness of the budget.  The Government has a 
reserve power to impose a minimum level of reserves on a Council that it considers to be 
making inadequate provisions. 
 
The rules for Maintenance of Reserves are: 
 
2.1 the Council must establish and maintain reserves in accordance with the Local 

Government Act 2003, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended Practice (CIPFA/LASAAC) and agreed 
accounting policies; 

 
2.2 requests for reserves and provisions must be submitted by Directors to the Corporate 

Director of Finance and Systems for approval. This does not apply to underspend 
amounts required to be carried forward in accordance with the Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP); 

 
2.3 for each reserve established, the purpose, usage and basis of transactions must be 

clearly identified and agreed with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 
 
2.4 when requested and in any event, always at the financial year end, the Directors shall 

provide the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems with a statement of reserve 
balances held and movements therein. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 272



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 77 
 

FPR3 BUDGET MANAGEMENT 
 
Budgetary Control & Monitoring 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Budgetary control and monitoring ensures that once the budget has been approved by the 
Council, resources allocated are used for their intended purposes and are properly accounted 
for. Budgetary control is a continuous process, enabling the Council to review and adjust its 
budget targets during the financial year. It also provides the mechanism that calls to account 
managers responsible for defined elements of the budget. 
 
By continuously identifying and explaining variances against budgetary targets, the Council 
can identify changes in trends and resource requirements at the earliest opportunity, enabling 
remedial action to be taken, where necessary. The Council itself operates within an annual 
budget allocation, approved when setting the overall budget.  To ensure that the Council in 
total does not overspend, each service is required to manage its own expenditure and income 
within the budget allocated to it (i.e. controllable budget). 
 
For the purposes of budgetary control by Budget Holders, a budget will normally be split into 
controllable and non-controllable for a service area or cost centre, with the service managers 
being held accountable for the controllable elements of the budget. 
 
Budgetary Control & Monitoring rules 
 
Procedure rules for managing and controlling the revenue budget are: 
3.1 the responsibility of the Council for budget monitoring and control, under the Local 

Government Act 2003 is acknowledged; 
 
3.2 every budget should have an appointed Budget Holder – ideally only one;  
 
3.3 Budget Holders shall be accountable for the budgets under their control; 
  
3.4 Budget Holders must accept accountability for their budgets and the level of service to 

be delivered and understand their financial responsibilities; 
 
3.5 Budget Holders will follow an approved certification process for all expenditure; 
 
3.6 Budget Holders shall ensure that income and expenditure must be properly recorded 

and accounted for; 
 
3.7 Budget Holders shall ensure that performance levels/levels of service are monitored in 

conjunction with the budget and necessary action is taken to align service outputs and 
budget; 

 
3.8 the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems in consultation with the Executive 

Member for Finance shall establish an appropriate format and frequency for monitoring 
the Council’s financial performance in compliance with regulations and best practice. 

 
 

Page 273



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 78 
 

3.9 Budget Holders may not incur any expenditure in excess of budget (taken as an 
aggregate amount across all areas of the revenue budget in their control, after correct 
and proper accounting adjustments) without a robust plan to recover such overspending 
(or under achievement of income) over the following accounting period. Any expenditure 
in excess of the budget must be specified in the appropriate financial reports as 
determined by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Finance. 

 
Procedure rules for managing and controlling the capital budget are: 
 
3.10 each capital scheme must have a named Budget Holder who is accountable for it; 
 
3.11 the accountable named officer must advise the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Systems as soon as appropriate of all proposed variations to approved budgets; 
 
3.12 the accountable named officer must notify the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Systems: 
 

• if a significant alteration of the nature of works is recommended 
 
• a significant extension of time is granted or a significant delay has arisen 
 
• a contractor or other body has submitted a claim which would result in a final 

account sum of £10,000 or more above the original contract sum 
 
• the contractor has ceased trading or is in liquidation 

 
3.13 Budget Holders are responsible, with the assistance of the Corporate Director of 

Finance and Systems, to explain any variances of financial performance from gross 
budgets which are in excess of £100,000 in terms of operational activity; 

 
3.14 the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall report to the Executive on a 

quarterly basis detailing progress of capital schemes against approved budget as well 
as general scheme progress, and include any variations to the overall budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 274



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 79 
 

FPR4 VIREMENT 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The scheme of virement is intended to enable the Executive, Directors and their staff to 
manage budgets with a degree of flexibility within the overall policy framework determined by 
the Full Council, and therefore to optimise the use of resources. 
 
Virement rules: 
 
4.1 the overall budget is agreed by the Executive and approved by the Council.  Budget 

Holders are therefore authorised to incur expenditure in accordance with the remits of 
the approved budget.  The Financial Procedure Rules below cover virement; that is, the 
reallocation of financial resources after approval by the Council between approved 
estimates or heads of expenditure.  For the purposes of these Financial Procedure 
Rules, revenue budget heads are defined by Council, usually listed in the annual budget 
report as the  budget categorised objectively and similarly capital virements are 
movements between project heads, also defined by the Council and listed in the budget 
report; 

 
4.2 a virement does not create additional overall budget liability.  Budget Holders are 

expected to exercise their discretion in managing their budgets responsibly and 
prudently.  For example, they should aim to avoid supporting recurring expenditure from 
one-off sources of savings or additional income, or creating future commitments, 
including full-year effects of decisions made part way through a year, for which they 
have not identified future resources.  Budget Holders must plan to fund such 
commitments from within their own budgets; 

 
4.3 Budget Holders shall be subject to the delegated authority, limits and specific 

procedures for virements specified below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 275



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 80 
 

 

Virements - Instructions to Budget Holders  
 
A virement is a transfer of funds between cost centres.  There are two types: 
permanent and temporary. 
 
Temporary virements are on a non-recurring basis and permanent virements are recurring 
year on year, this distinction is important as permanent virements effect planning budgets as 
well as in year budgets. 
 
For a permanent virement that has a part year effect and to ensure that the planning budget 
(2) is accurate, the whole of the permanent virement must be input in plans V1 and 2 and then 
plan V1 amended by a temporary virement for the part of year. 
 
Printouts from the financial system, from before and after the transaction, must be held with 
the virement form and kept on record for inspection and audit trail purposes. 
 
Virements must not be used to move centrally apportioned budgets (non-controllable 
recharges) as required under Service Accounting Code of Practice (SERCOP) to directly 
controllable budgets and vice versa; 
 
 
Authorisation of virements must adhere to the following rules: 

 
VIREMENT TYPE 

 
MAXIMUM 
DELEGATED LIMIT  

 
AUTHORISER 

 
Level 1 Virement - 
Movements within a 
cost centre. 

 
Any 

 
Budget Holder.  

 
Level 2 Virement 
Between cost centres, 
but within the same 
Budget Head as 
categorised objectively. 

 
Any 

 
All respective Executive portfolio holders, 
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, 
Executive Directors, Directors, Strategic Leads 
and Heads of Service. 

 
Level 3 Virement - 
Between Budget 
Head as categorised 
objectively. 

 
up to £500k 

 
(Revenue) All respective Executive portfolio 
holders, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief 
Executive, Executive Directors, Directors.  
 
(Capital) Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems if expenditure is supported by 
Grant, Developer Contribution or capital 
receipt. 
 

Page 276



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 81 
 

 
Level 4 Virement -
Between Budget 
Head as categorised 
objectively. 

 
Between £500k and 
£1,500k if no change to 
net budget.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Over £1,500k if no 
change to net budget. 

 
(Revenue) Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems in consultation with Executive 
Portfolio holder.  
 
(Capital) – Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems in consultation with Executive 
Portfolio holder if expenditure is supported by 
Grant, Developer Contribution or capital 
receipt. 
 
 
 
(Revenue) Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council, Deputy Leader and Executive 
Portfolio holder. 
  
(Capital) – Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council, Deputy Leader and Executive 
Portfolio holder if expenditure is supported by 
Grant, Developer Contribution or capital 
receipt.  

Level 5 Virement -
Between Budget 
Head as categorised 
objectively. 

 
Any if it results in a 
change to net budget.  
 
 
 
 

 
(Revenue) Council  
 
 
(Capital) – Council for any new capital 
expenditure supported by borrowing or 
discretionary resources. 

 
 

Page 277



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 82 
 

FPR5 ACCOUNTING 
 
Why is this important? 
 
Secure and reliable records and systems are important so we can: 
 

• process and record financial transactions and information; 
 
• support how we use public money; and 
 
• meet regulations and best practice. 

 
Accounting rules 
  
The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall: 
 
5.1 determine accounting systems and procedures and the form of financial records; 
 
5.2 provide guidance and advice on all accounting matters; 
 
5.3 monitor accounting performance to ensure an adequate standard for all services; 
 
5.4 certify financial returns, grant claims and other periodic financial reports required of the 

Council; 
 
5.5 approve grant bids and any financial arrangement which could impose a financial 

liability on the Council including lease arrangements. 
 
Directors shall: 
 
5.6 adhere to accounting procedures and adopt the form of financial records and 

statements as determined by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 
 
5.7 complete and pass to the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems financial returns 

and other financial reports requiring certification; 
 
5.8 maintain an effective and appropriate control environment for staff with finance 

responsibilities as advised by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 
 
5.9 report changes to operational procedures or circumstances which affects the control 

environment to the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 278



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 83 
 

 
FPR6 FINAL ACCOUNTS 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council is required to: 
(a) Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. For 
the Council, that officer is the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 

(b) Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; 

(c) Prepare and approve the statement of accounts in accordance with proper accounting 
practices. 

 
The Council has a statutory responsibility to prepare its own accounts to present fairly its 
operations during the year.  The Accounts & Audit Committee is responsible for approving the 
statutory annual statement of accounts. 
 
Requirements for Final Accounts 
 
Annual statement of accounts: 
 
6.1 the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall make arrangements for the proper 

administration of the Council’s financial affairs and the Council shall secure that one of 
its officers (the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems) has the responsibility for 
the administration of these affairs; 

 
6.2 the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems in consultation with the Council’s 

Monitoring Officer (Corporate Director of Governance and Community Strategy) shall 
ensure that the Council complies with relevant financial legislation and best practice 
which has the weight of law e.g.   Accounts and Audit Regulations and CIPFA Codes of 
Practice, which set out the statutory dates for approval and publication of the annual 
accounts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 279



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 84 
 

 
FPR7 VALUE FOR MONEY / EFFICIENCY 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Public money should be spent with demonstrable probity and in accordance with the Council's 
Finance Procedure Rules. With limited funding for Council services and service user 
expectations increasing, it is paramount that the Council looks at ways of providing and 
demonstrating value for money and efficiency, with authorities having a statutory duty to 
achieve best value in the use of their resources. The Council's procedures should also help to 
ensure that services obtain value for money from their procurement and purchasing 
arrangements. 
 
Rules for securing value for money and efficiency are set out as follows: 
 
7.1 Service Reviews should be undertaken by aligning business planning, financial planning 

and risk management; 
 
7.2 the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules must be adhered to; 
 
7.3 the Council’s Procurement Strategy must be taken into consideration, as appropriate; 
 
7.4 Internal Audit must assess the adequacy of internal controls as a contribution to the 

proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources; 
 
7.5 All decisions relating to the disposal of Council assets must be authorised by the 

Corporate Director of Finance and Systems prior to engaging with interested parties, 
except for property, when surplus to requirements, which will be included in the Land 
Sales Programme as approved by the Executive.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 280



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 85 
 

FPR8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Treasury Management is an important part of the overall financial management of the 
Council’s affairs, incorporating the management of the organisations investments and 
cashflowscash flows, bankings, money market and capital market transactions, and the 
effective control of the risks associated with these activities and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks. 
 
CIPFA’s ‘Treasury Management in Public Services: A Code of Practice’, governs the 
appropriate way of administering these funds.  These aim to provide assurances that the 
Council’s money is properly managed in a way that balances risk with return, but with the 
overriding consideration being given to the security of the Council’s capital sum. 
 
The Council is responsible for approving the Treasury Management Policy Statement and 
annual Treasury Management Strategy, setting out the matters detailed in section 6 of 
CIPFA’s, ‘Treasury Management in Public Services: A Code of Practice’.  The policy statement 
and annual Treasury Management Strategy is proposed to the Full Council by the Executive, 
after prior scrutiny by the Accounts and Audit Committee.  
 
The Local Government Act 2003 established a new system for capital financing having regard 
for CIPFA’s prudential code framework (this framework includes prudential indicators, of which 
a number relate directly to treasury management). Local Authorities now have the freedom to 
borrow funds to finance their capital programmes, without Government consent, subject to 
local authorities ensuring that their plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable and based 
upon sound treasury management. 
 
Rules for Treasury Management 
 
The Council’s borrowings and investments must comply with: 
 
8.1 the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in Local Government; 
 
8.2 the Council’s Treasury Policy Statement (including the Treasury Management Practices 

and Schedules); 
 
8.3 the Annual Treasury Management Strategy (including the treasury management 

prudential indicators). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 281



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 86 
 

 
FPR9 EXTERNAL ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Partnerships 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Partnerships are likely to play a key role in delivering community strategies and in helping to 
promote and improve the well-being of the area.  Local authorities frequently work in 
partnership with others – public agencies, private companies, community groups and voluntary 
organisations. Local authorities still deliver some services, but their distinctive leadership role 
is to bring together the contributions of the various stakeholders. They therefore need to 
deliver a shared vision of services based on user wishes. 
 
Local authorities will mobilise investment, bid for funds, champion the needs of their areas and 
harness the energies of local people and community organisations. Local authorities will be 
measured by what they achieve in partnership with others. 
 
Procedure rules for Partnership arrangements are: 
 
9.1 before entering into a partnership it must be ensured that the partnership has 

appropriate governance arrangements in place; 
 
9.2 partners must be aware of their responsibilities under the Council’s Financial and 

Contract Procedure Rules; 
 
9.3 risk management processes must be in place to identify and assess all known risks; 
 
9.4 project appraisal processes must be in place to assess the viability of the project in 

terms of resources, staffing and expertise; 
 
9.5 the roles and responsibilities of each of the partners involved in the project must be 

formally agreed and accepted before the project commences; 
 
9.6 there must be regular communication with other partners throughout the project so that 

problems can be identified and shared to achieve their successful resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 282



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 87 
 

 
FPR10 TRUST FUNDS 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
These sums of money have been donated to the Council and can only be spent for the 
purpose for which they were given. They do not form part of the Council’s accounts. 
 
Rules for Trust Funds 
 
10.1 The arrangements for Trust Funds are for the Council to be aware of the specific 

requirements for which these sums of money have been donated. 
 
10.2 The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems will determine the appropriate financial 

governance arrangements for Trust Funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 283



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 88 
 

FPR11 EXTERNAL FUNDING 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
External funding is potentially a very important source of income, but funding conditions need 
to be carefully considered to ensure that they are compatible with the aims and objectives of 
the Council.  Local authorities are increasingly encouraged to provide seamless service 
delivery through working closely with other agencies and private sector providers.  Funds from 
external agencies such as the National Lottery, and Central Government sources provide 
additional resources to enable the Council to deliver services to the local community. However, 
in some instances, although the scope for external funding has increased, such funding is 
linked to tight specifications and may not be flexible enough to link to the Council’s overall 
plan. 
 
Procedure rules when accounting for External Funding are: 
 
11.1 key conditions of funding and any statutory requirements must be complied with and 

that the responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly understood; 
 
11.2 funds shall only be to meet the priorities approved in the policy framework by the 

Council; 
 
11.3 any match-funding requirements must be given due consideration prior to entering into 

long-term agreements and that future revenue budgets reflect these requirements; 
 
11.4 the statutory responsibility to maintain adequate records in relation to all claims must be 

followed; 
 
11.5 other than for property related leases, only the Corporate Director of Finance and 

Systems and officers delegated by him/her may approve grant bids and any other 
arrangement which could impose a financial liability on the Council; 

 
11.6 all claims for grant (both final and interim) must be certified by the Corporate Director of 

Finance and Systems. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 284



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 89 
 

FPR12 CONTROL OF INCOME 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Income can be a vulnerable asset and effective income collection systems are necessary to 
ensure that all income due is identified, collected, receipted and banked properly. It is 
preferable to obtain income in advance of supplying goods or services as this improves the 
Council’s cashflowcash flow and also avoids the time and cost of administering debts. 
 
Income raised through levying fees and charges is a significant proportion of the Council’s 
overall income budget and as well as its power to target subsidy and raise resources, fees and 
charges have the power to affect the way that services are delivered. It can facilitate or deny 
access to services, change resident and user behaviour, or enable service managers to 
develop and improve service response to users. 
 
Income Rules 
Responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 
 
12.1  to agree arrangements for the collection of all income due to the authority and to 

approve the procedures, systems and documentation for its collection; 
 

12.2  to approve the form of all methods of receiving income, whether electronic or manual, 
and to satisfy himself or herself regarding the arrangements for their control; 
 

12.3  to establish and initiate appropriate recovery procedures, including legal action where 
necessary, for debts that are not paid promptly; 
 

12.4  to ensure money collected and deposited is reconciled to the bank account on a 
regular basis; 
 

12.5 to ensure adequate arrangements are in place to fully protect the banking data of the 
council’s customers, in particular those standards set out by the Payment Card Industry 
(PCI);  

 
12.6  to agree the write-off of bad debts up to an approved limit as specified in the Officers 

Scheme of Delegation; 
 

12.7  to keep a record of all sums written off up to the approved limit;  
 

12.8  to ensure that appropriate accounting adjustments are made following write-off action. 
 
Responsibility of each Director of Service 
Each Director of Service within their own department shall make and maintain adequate 
arrangements to ensure: 
 
12.9 all income due to the Council is identified and charged correctly, in accordance with an 

approved departmental charging policy. The charging policy should include the 
appropriate charging of VAT, and reviewed annually, in line with corporate policies; 

 

Page 285



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 90 
 

12.10 all income shall be collected from the correct person, promptly, using the correct 
procedures and the appropriate stationery/systems as approved by the Corporate 
Director of Finance and Systems; 

 
12.11  wherever possible/practical, income should be obtained in advance, or at the time of 

service provision.  Where credit is given, Directors must ensure that the credit status of 
each customer is satisfactory. Directors are responsible for issuing debtor accounts in 
a form approved by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems immediately a 
debt falls due. Each Director, in conjunction with the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems must maintain adequate records to ensure that all credit income due to the 
Council is promptly recovered.  

 
12.12 appropriate staff are identified to act as accountable officers to be custodians of 

money collected on behalf of the Council and ensure that:  
 

 all money received by an employee shall be banked without delay (by deposit 
directly into the Council’s bank account or given to an approved security company 
appointed by the Council) and properly recorded; 
 

 the responsibility for cash collection should be separated from the reconciliation of 
the amount due to the amount received; 

 

 details entered on the pay-in-slip and duplicate or counterfoil should include, 
particulars of such payment, including in the case of each cheque paid in, the 
amount of the cheque, the invoice number if one exists or relevant reference 
number;  

 

 an official receipt is issued promptly and other documentation maintained for 
income collection where appropriate; 
 

 all income is banked intact and without deductions of any kind; 
 

 Income is not used to cash personal or other cheques. 
 

 staff lock away all income to safeguard it against loss or theft; 
 

 where amounts in hand exceed the insurance limit, they shall be banked forthwith 
using the Council’s security services. Directors must ensure by liaison with the 
Insurance Section, that the insurance limit on their safe is adequate to cover the 
value of money received and held; 

 

 income should be checked to the sales records such as till rolls, receipts issued, 
attendance records; 
 

 access to cash is restricted to as few staff as practicably possible and suitable 
handover arrangements are in place where cash is handed over to a second 
person. 

 

Page 286



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 91 
 

12.13 any apparent patterns of cash discrepancies are investigated promptly. Where such 
discrepancies are in excess of £100 individually, or in total within any period of one 
month, the Director concerned must immediately investigate and notify the Corporate 
Director of Finance and Systems who may undertake such investigations as he/she 
deems appropriate; 

 
12.14 effective action must be taken to pursue non-payment within defined timescales; 
 
12.15 credit notes may be issued by Managers to correct for errors in raising debt due, and 

to the extent allowed by Council procedures in other circumstances.  They must never 
be used to write down or write off income that is properly due to the Council.  Where 
the issue of a credit note would reduce income such that it would not cover costs 
incurred by the Council, the permission of the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems must be sought first; 

 
12.16 formal approval for debt write-off is obtained in accordance with the procedures as 

defined by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems, and outlined in the Officers 
Scheme of Delegation in the Council’s constitution. 

 
12.17 appropriate write-off action is taken within defined timescales. The 'writing off' of a debt 

does not absolve a Director of the responsibility to collect such debts, and the position 
in relation to such debtors is to be monitored by the Director; 

 
12.18 appropriate accounting adjustments are made following write-off and VAT recovery 

action; 
 
12.19 all appropriate income documents must be retained and stored for the defined period 

in accordance with the document retention periods; 
 
12.20 money collected and deposited is reconciled to the bank account and/or general 

ledger system by a person who is not involved in the collection or banking process; 
 
12.21 all controlled stationery associated with income collection (e.g. receipt books, paying in 

books etc.) must be held in a controlled environment; 
 
12.22 the setting of fees and charges must be in line with legislation, best practice and 

guidance issued by the Council, Executive or the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems; 

 
12.23   to the maximum extent possible income is collected by electronic means. This means 

that positive action should be taken to promote the use of customer payment by direct 
debit, card payments via the web, at the point of order for one-off items, and 
continuous debit arrangements for ongoing services provision;  

 
12.24  full compliance with all practices necessary to fully protect the banking data of the 

council’s customers, in particular those standards set out by the Payment Card 
Industry (PCI).  

 
 
 
 

Page 287



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 92 
 

FPR13 INTERNAL AUDIT 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The requirement for an internal audit function for local authorities is implied by Section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972, which requires that authorities “make arrangements for the 
proper administration of their financial affairs”.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, 
more specifically require that a “relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking 
into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. 
 
Accordingly, internal audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective 
opinion to the organisation on the control environment by evaluating its effectiveness in 
achieving the organisations objectives.  It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the 
adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and 
effective use of resources.  Internal Audit’s remit includes: 
 

(a) assessing if operations are being carried out as planned, and if objectives/goals are 
being achieved; 

(b) assessing the adequacy of systems established to ensure compliance with policies, 
plans, procedures, laws and regulations, i.e. rules established by the management 
of the organisation or externally; 

(c) assessing the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both financial 
and operational; 

(d) assessing the extent to which the council’s assets, data and interests are properly 
accounted for and safeguarded from losses of all kinds, including fraud, corruption, 
waste, extravagance, abuse, ineffective management and poor value for money; 

(e) assessing the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are 
deployed. 

 
Internal Audit Rules 
 
Requirements are: 
 
13.1 that it is independent in its planning and operation; 
 
13.2 the Audit and Assurance Manager must have direct access to,to and freedom to report 

in his/her own name and without fear or favour to, the Chief Executive, all levels of 
management and directly to elected Members; 

 
13.3 the Audit and Assurance Manager or his/her authorised representative has authority to 

access all the Authority’s establishments or operating bases, to access all relevant 
records and is entitled to pursue such enquiries as he/she considers necessary; 

 
13.4 all officers, representatives and Members of the Council are required to fully cooperate 

with Internal Audit at all stages in the conduct of their reviews; to respond to draft 
Internal Audit reports and to take action to implement agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations; 

 
13.5 the internal auditors must comply with the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) and associated guidance on PSIAS published by CIPFA. 

Page 288



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 93 
 

FPR14 PREVENTING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council will not tolerate fraud, theft, bribery or corruption in the administration of its 
responsibilities, whether from inside or outside the Council. 
 
The Council’s expectation of propriety and accountability is that Members and Officers at all 
levels will lead by example in ensuring adherence to legal requirements, rules, procedures and 
practices and by being aware of their personal role in preventing and detecting fraud, theft, 
bribery and corruption. 
 
The Council also expects that individuals and organisations (e.g. suppliers, contractors, 
service providers and partners) with whom it comes into contact will act towards the Council 
with integrity and without thought or actions involving fraud, theft, bribery or corruption. 
 
All senior officers and managers are responsible for ensuring that responsibilities within their 
service area are clearly identified, for raising awareness to fraud and corruption and for 
establishing an anti-fraud and corruption culture that is embedded in working practices. 
 
Rules for Preventing Fraud and Corruption are that: 
 
14.1 the Council must have in place an effective ‘Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy and 

Policy which all Members and officers should adhere to, and maintains a culture that will 
not tolerate fraud or corruption; 

 
14.2 the Council must have a ‘Confidential Reporting Code and Policy’ that defines whistle 

blowing procedures and which operates effectively and in accordance with the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act 1998; 

 
14.3 it is the duty of Members and officers who suspect fraud, corruption or irregularity to 

report it promptly in accordance with the Council’s Fraud Response Plan; 
 
14.4 all Members and staff must act with integrity and lead by example. All must sign up to 

and abide by the appropriate Code of Conduct and the ICT Acceptable Use Policy; 
 
14.5 all suspicions of fraud, theft, bribery and corruption must be reported promptly in 

accordance with the Council’s Fraud Response Plan.  The Audit and Assurance 
Manager will be informed of such cases, and in accordance with the Fraud Response 
Plan, liaise with other relevant services to agree the appropriate investigation approach; 

 
14.6 in cases of theft, fraud, financial misconduct, serious and intentional breaches of the 

Financial and Contract Procedure Rules, bribery or corruption committed by employees, 
the Council will seek disciplinary action for gross misconduct.  This includes fraud 
relating to employment with the Council as well as other forms of engagement e.g. 
through benefit claims made to the Council by employees or Members. 

 
14.7 The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems will determine whether any matter of 

financial irregularity and/or associated corruption is reported to the Police; 
 

Page 289



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 94 
 

14.8 high standards of conduct shall be promoted amongst Members by the Standards 
Committee; 

 
14.9 registers of interests, gifts and hospitality in which any interest or offers of gifts or 

hospitality are recorded must be maintained by the monitoring officer for Members and 
officers in accordance with the appropriate Code of Conduct. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 290



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 95 
 

FPR15 INVENTORIES 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council holds furniture, fittings, equipment, plant, machinery and other attractive items of 
significant value. It is important that these assets are safeguarded and used efficiently in 
service delivery. It is therefore important that these assets are recorded in an inventory in 
order to verify; location, review condition and to take action in relation to surpluses or 
deficiencies, annotating the inventory accordingly. 
 
Rules for Inventories 
 
15.1 it is the responsibility of service managers in consultation with the Corporate Director of 

Finance and Systems to determine whether or not an inventory is to be maintained; 
 
15.2 if an inventory is established, managers must ensure that it is properly maintained and 

regularly checked and missing items reported to the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 291



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 96 
 

 
FPR16 REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPETITIVE QUOTATIONS 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Public money should be spent with demonstrable probity and in accordance with the Council's 
Procurement Strategy and Policies. Authorities have a statutory duty to achieve value for 
money and the Council's procedures should help to ensure that services obtain value for 
money from their procurement and purchasing arrangements. 
 
Contract procedure rules set out the Council’s requirements for obtaining competitive 
quotations and going out to tender for the procurement of work, goods and services. 
 
Rules for obtaining competitive quotations 
 
16.1 The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules must be complied with when undertaking 

procurement of work, goods and services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 292



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 97 
 

 
FPR17 CONTRACTS 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Public money should be spent with demonstrable probity and in accordance with the Council's 
Procurement Strategy and Policies. The Council spends sizable amounts of public money on 
contracts, therefore it is essential that procedures and processes are in place to ensure value 
for money and fairness, evaluate risk and adhere to all relevant procurement rules. 
 
Contract Procedure Rules deal with arrangements for tendering and the form of contracts. 
 
Rules for entering Contracts 
 
17.1 The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules must be complied with when entering into 

contracts for the provision of works, goods and services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 293



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 98 
 

 
FPR18 ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council spends a large amount of public money on the procurement of work, goods and 
services. It is therefore important that ordering of work, goods and services is strictly regulated 
to ensure monies are spent prudently and correctly.  Cash flow is important to business, 
particularly small to medium enterprises, and the Council has particular regard to the needs of 
local business.  It is a statutory requirement as well as a Council key performance indicator to 
pay all undisputed invoices within 30 days, and for additional effort to pay local businesses 
even sooner.  It is therefore imperative that not only are these rules followed, but they are 
followed quickly and that all records are properly maintained.  This need is reinforced by the 
key objective to provide value for money, correcting and administering systemic error and 
queries in the payment system rarely adds value, and the need to do it quickly, correctly and 
first time cannot be understated. 
 
Rules for ordering works, goods and services 
 
18.1 ordinarily the Council will only pay for goods or services, and/or make other payments, 

in arrears.  No officer may undertake a contract or order which would include for a 
payment in advance without the prior approval of the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems; 

 
Directors shall be responsible for all orders for works, goods and services emanating from their 
own departments and must ensure: 
 
18.2 controls are in place to ensure orders can only be placed for the procurement of Council 

works, goods and services; 
 
18.3 procedures laid down in the Council’s Purchase to Pay guidelines are adhered to; 
 
18.4 official orders must be used for requisitioning works, goods and services; 
 
18.5 an official order must be raised using the approved electronic ordering system for the 

procurement of all work, goods and services, unless specifically exempted by the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 

 
18.6 all orders for works, goods and/or services are approved by an authorised officer, in 

accordance with  thewith the Council’s Scheme of Delegation; 
 
18.7 adequate budget provision must be available before an official order is raised; 
 
18.8 delivery notes must be obtained when delivery of goods made and goods must be 

checked promptly for quality/compliance to specifications and checked against the 
official order and the appropriate system must be correctly and speedily updated within 
one working day. 

 
18.9 Purchase Cards are a relevant method of payment for certain purchases, rather than the 

use of cash imprests or for the payment of invoices from suppliers. The Corporate 
Director of Finance and Systems is responsible for:  

Page 294



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 99 
 

• providing Purchase Cards to be used for agreed purposes and to be allocated to 
nominated members of staff  

• prescribing procedures and guidelines for the use of purchase cards, management 
review, and accounting arrangements for recording and monitoring expenditure incurred 
with cards issued 

• withdrawing Purchase Cards in the event of improper use outside of the prescribed 
procedures.  

 
18.10 Corporate Directors are responsible for ensuring the correct use of Purchase Cards in 

accordance with the procedures and guidelines issued by the Corporate Director of 
Finance and Systems. 

 
 

Page 295



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 100 
 

FPR19 PAYMENTS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council spends a large amount of public money on the procurement of work, goods and 
services. It is therefore important that payment of work, goods and services is strictly regulated 
to ensure monies are spent prudently and correctly.  Payments relating to purchases made 
through the Council’s electronic ordering system are automatically authorised for payment up 
to the values awarded to the original authorising officer.  This section relates to the payment of 
accounts that have been exempted from the Council’s primary ordering system. 
 
Rules for Payment of accounts 
 
Directors shall ensure arrangements are made for the prompt certification and processing of 
invoices for all works, goods and services for which they are responsible for and must ensure: 
 
19.1 that adequate controls are in place to ensure that undisputed payments: are promptly 

made to the correct supplier; are made for the correct amount; that all purchases are 
coded correctly both for the finance ledger and any procurement database; and are paid 
within the relevant time period (i.e. complies with regulation and any internal target); 

 
19.2 procedures laid down in the Council’s Purchase to Pay guide are adhered to and 

payments are not made unless goods have been received by the Council at the correct 
price, quantity and quality standards; 

 
19.3 manual invoices must be signed by an authorised officer; 
 
19.4 the signing of cheques is subject to the limits set within the Council’s banking contract 

as follows. Individual cheques below £50,000 require one authorised bank signatory, 
£50,000 or above require two authorised bank signatories; 

 
19.5 all expenditure, including VAT, must be accurately recorded against the correct budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 296



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 101 
 

 
FPR20 PAYMENTS TO STAFF 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
Staff costs are the largest item of expenditure for most Council services.  It is therefore 
important that payments are accurate, timely, made only where they are due for services to the 
Council and that payments accord with individuals’ conditions of employment.  It is also 
important that all payments are accurately and completely recorded and accounted for. 
 
Rules for making payments to staff: 
 
20.1 all payments to employees of the Council should be in compliance with the Council’s 

established procedures as advised by the Corporate Director of Strategy and 
Resources; 

 
20.2 proper authorisation procedures must be in place and there must be adherence to 

corporate timetables in relation to: 
• starters 
• leavers 
• variations 
• enhancements 

 
20.3 frequent reconciliation of payroll expenditure against approved budget and bank 

account must take place; 
 
20.4 all appropriate payroll documents must be retained and stored for the defined period; 
 
20.5 HM Revenue and Customs regulations must be complied with; 
 
20.6 car mileage and expense re-imbursement payments must be paid to employees of the 

Council in line with Council policy; 
 
20.7 a list of authorised signatories together with specimen signatures relative to specific 

documentation in the payroll system should be retained by payroll service, and 
Corporate Director of Strategy and Resources should ensure this list is regularly 
reviewed and updated. 

 
 
 
 

Page 297



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 102 
 

 
FPR21 CUSTODY OF STOCKS AND STORES 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council holds stocks and stores of significant value.  It is important that these assets are 
safeguarded and used efficiently in service delivery, and that there are arrangements for the 
security of both assets and information required for service operations. 
 
Rules for the security of stocks and stores 
 
Directors shall be responsible for the custody, recording and physical control of stocks and 
stores held in their department and ensure: 
 
21.1 stocks and stores shall be used only for the purposes of the Council and are properly 

accounted for; 
 
21.2 they shall be available for use when required; 
 
21.3 stocks and stores no longer required are disposed of in accordance with the regulations 

of the Council so as to maximise benefits; the writing down or writing off of stock must 
be done in consultation with the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 

 
21.4 a stocks and stores inventory is maintained for the Council, which records when they 

are acquired by the Council and this record is updated as changes occur with respect to 
the location and condition of the stocks and stores; 

 
21.5 all Officers shall be made aware of their responsibilities with regard to safeguarding the 

security of the Council’s stocks and stores; 
 
21.6 Any missing stock or stores are reported immediately to the Corporate Director of 

Finance and Systems. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 298



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 103 
 

 
FPR22 PETTY CASH AND IMPREST ACCOUNTS 
 
Why is this important? 
 
The Council holds cash sums at various premises in order to allow services operational 
flexibility needed for minor purchases and reimbursements to staff. It is important that cash is 
safeguarded and properly recorded and accounted for in order to allow services to operate 
effectively. 
 
Procedure rules for petty cash and imprest accounts are: 
 
22.1 Directors shall be responsible for the safe custody, recording and physical control of 

petty cash and imprest accounts held in their department.  For each cash holding the 
following roles must be assigned to different Officers: (“ the Imprest Holder”) who shall 
be responsible for physically holding and issuing the cash and maintaining the 
appropriate records (there can be more than one holder per cash holding for practical 
purposes but it should be kept to asa minimum a number as possible); (“the manager” 
who must be senior to the Imprest Holder and who will be responsible for ensuring that: 
the rules concerning cash holdings are followed; reconciliations are checked; 
reimbursements are certified; requests for cash increases are made; and that missing 
cash is reported; 

 
22.2 all requests for imprest account monies must be made to the Corporate Director of 

Finance and Systems by the Directors concerned. Any subsequent changes to the 
financial level must be approved by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 

 
22.3 the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems must maintain a record of all imprest 

accounts and the approved current level; 
 
22.4 no sums received on behalf of the Council may be paid into an imprest account but shall 

be banked or paid promptly in accordance with financial procedure rule 12; 
 
22.5 payments from imprest accounts shall be limited to minor items, except with prior 

approval of the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems or authorised officer; 
 
22.6 all cash advances and disbursements shall be supported by vouchers and all 

expenditure by receipts; 
 
22.7 the Manager responsible shall regularly check that the level of bank, cash, vouchers 

and receipts reconcile to the approved level of the petty cash holding; reporting any 
missing cash to the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems immediately.  The 
regularity of check should be at least monthly for petty cash when the holding should be 
certified for reimbursement.  For disbursements, the regularity and format of check 
should be balanced against the level of the holding and the frequency of disbursements.  
Such regularity may be advised by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems for 
each such holding. 

 
22.8 when requested, but always at the financial year end, the Manager shall provide the 

Corporate Director of Finance and Systems with certificates of holdings;  
 

Page 299



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 104 
 

22.9 reimbursements of petty cash / imprest will only be made upon receipt of relevant 
documentation and supporting evidence which shall be made to the Corporate Director 
of Finance and Systems or their authorised Officer; 

 
22.10 on leaving the Council’s employment or otherwise ceasing to be entitled to hold a petty 

cash advance, the Holder shall account to the Corporate Director of Finance and 
Systems for the amount advanced to him or her; 

 
22.11 any cash holding can be removed by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems or 

authorised Officer at any time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 300



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 105 
 

FPR23 CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council holds capital assets in the form of land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and other 
items worth many millions of pounds. It is important that assets are safeguarded and used 
efficiently in service delivery, and that there are arrangements for the security of both assets 
and information required for service operations. An up-to-date asset register is a prerequisite 
for proper fixed asset accounting and sound asset management. 
 
Rules relating to the security of capital assets such as land, buildings, fixed plant 
machinery, equipment, software and information are: 
 
23.1 capital assets must be used only for the purposes of the Council and must be properly 

accounted for; 
 
23.2 capital assets must be available for use when required; 
 
23.3 capital assets no longer required must be disposed of in accordance with the Asset 

Management Plan and Land Sales Programme of the Council so as to maximise 
benefits; 

 
23.4 an asset register must be maintained for the Council, assets must be recorded when 

they are acquired by the Council and this record is updated as changes occur with 
respect to the valuation, disposal, location and condition of the asset; 

 
23.5 all employees of the Council must be aware of their responsibilities with regard to 

safeguarding the security of the Council’s capital assets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 301



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 106 
 

FPR24 INSURANCE 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
All organisations, whether private or public sector, face risks to people, property and continued 
operations.  Risk is the chance or possibility of loss, damage, injury or failure to achieve 
objectives caused by an unwanted or uncertain action or event. 
 
Insurance is a major element within risk management, enabling risks from adverse events to 
be mitigated through taking out cover policies.  However, these are not without cost, and risk 
prevention is always preferable to paying higher premiums, where this is possible. 
 
An ex-gratia payment is a payment made to an individual in respect of loss or damage in a 
situation where the Council accepts no liability for the loss or damage but is willing to make 
some reimbursement without accepting liability. Most commonly such payments are made to 
employees in respect of personal property (including clothing or personal items such as 
spectacles) damaged or lost accidentally. Ex-gratia payments are not made in situations where 
the loss is fully insured, either by the individual or the Council. 
 
Insurance Rules 
 
The Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall ensure that: 
 
24.1 procedures are in place to identify, assess, prevent or contain material known risks, and 

these procedures are operating effectively throughout the Council; 
 
24.2 provision is made for losses that might result from the risks that remain; 
 
24.3 procedures are in place to investigate claims within required timescales; 
 
24.4 acceptable levels of risk are determined and insured against where appropriate; 
 
24.5 ex-gratia payments are made in line with Council policy; 
 
24.6 a register is maintained of all insurances and the property or risks covered. 
 
Directors shall: 
 
24.7 report all instances of possible claims and losses in accordance with timescales and 

procedures set by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 
 
24.8 provide timely information required by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems 

or the Council’s insurers on any insurance related matters. 
 
 
 

Page 302



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 107 
 

 
FPR25 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
All organisations, whether private or public sector, face risks to people, property and continued 
operations.  Risk is the chance or possibility of loss, damage, injury or failure to achieve 
objectives caused by an unwanted or uncertain action or event. Risk management is the 
planned and systematic approach to the identification, evaluation and control of risk.  Its 
objectives are to secure the assets of the organisation and to ensure the continued financial 
and organisational well-being of the organisation.  In essence it is, therefore, an integral part of 
good business practice.  Risk management is concerned with evaluating the measures an 
organisation already has in place to manage identified risks and then recommending the action 
the organisation needs to take to control these risks effectively. 
 
It is the overall responsibility of the Executive to promote a culture of risk management 
awareness throughout the Council. The Council’s Risk Management Strategy is approved by 
the Corporate Leadership Team and Accounts and Audit Committee. 
 
Rules for risk management are: 
 
25.1 procedures must be in place to identify, assess, prevent or contain material known risks, 

and these procedures must be operated effectively throughout the Council; 
 
25.2 a monitoring process must be in place to review regularly the effectiveness of risk 

reduction strategies and the operation of these controls.  The risk management process 
must be conducted on a continuing basis; 

 
25.3 managers know that they are responsible for managing relevant risks and must ensure 

they have all relevant information on risk management initiatives; 
 
25.4 risk management reporting should be carried out in accordance with the Council’s risk 

management reporting protocols set out in the Risk Management Strategy; 
 
25.5 significant changes in risk management processes or policy should be notified to the 

Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 
 
25.6 procedures must be in place to investigate claims within required timescales; 
 
25.7 the Council has identified business continuity plans for implementation in the event of 

disaster that results in significant loss or damage to its resources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 303



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 108 
 

FPR26 TAXATION 
 
Why is this Important? 
 
The Council is responsible for ensuring its tax affairs are in order.  Tax issues are often very 
complex and the penalties for incorrectly accounting for tax are severe.  It is therefore very 
important for all officers to be aware of their role. 
 
The Council incurs VAT on a range of goods and services purchased. The Council also 
charges VAT on some services that it provides and on the sale of certain goods. The Council 
has a duty to declare these VAT transactions to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC). 
 
In performing its payroll function, the Council will collect deductions from employees’ pay in 
relation to both PAYE and National Insurance contributions. The Council has a responsibility to 
pay and provide information on these deductions to HMRC on a timely basis. 
 
The Council may also incur Corporation Tax (and associated forms of taxation) where it 
operates trading companies. The Council has a responsibility to pay and provide information of 
such taxation to HMRC on a timely basis. 
 
Procedure rules for Taxation 
 
26.1 managers must be provided with relevant information and kept up to date on tax issues; 
 
26.2 tax related documentation must be stored and be readily accessible for examination in 

accordance with the Council’s document retention policy and/or as directed by the 
Corporate Director of Finance and Systems; 

 
26.3 all taxable transactions must be identified, properly carried out and accounted for within 

stipulated timescales; 
 
26.4 returns must be made to the appropriate authorities within the stipulated timescale. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 304



Trafford Council Constitution - NovemberSeptember 2020Part 4 Page 109 
 

FPR27 DOCUMENTATION RETENTION PERIODS 
 
Why this is Important? 
 
The main reason for retaining financial records is to provide evidence that income and 
expenditure recorded in the Council’s financial statements is valid, accurate and complete.  
This is necessary to satisfy the requirements of internal and external audit enquiries, and also 
the tax authorities. 
 
Following the Freedom of Information Act 2000, all public bodies (including local authorities) 
have a statutory duty to provide recorded information within a prescribed timeframe, following 
a written request. From January 2005 any person who makes a request to the Council must be 
informed whether the Council holds that information and can be supplied with that information 
(subject to exemptions). It is therefore important that the Council is able to provide the 
information requested. This Act has re- emphasised the need for adequate records. 
 
Rules for Retention of documents: 
 
27.1 the documentation retention periods must be regularly reviewed; 
 
27.2 the documentation retention periods must be agreed with the third parties i.e. 

internal/external audit, HM Revenue and Customs; 
 
27.3 all employees of the Council must be made aware of the document retention periods; 
 
27.4 all employees of the Council must be made aware of the requirements placed on the 

Council in relation to the freedom of information act; 
 
27.5 the Council issues employees of the Council guidance in relation to compliance with the 

freedom of information act; 
 
27.6 financial records must not be disposed of other than in accordance with arrangements 

approved by the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems and under no 
circumstances prior to the closure of the audit of accounts for the relevant year by the 
external auditor. 

 
The Council’s documentation retention periods for financial records is 6 years plus current, 
with the exception of schemes supported by European funding which must be retained 
indefinitely. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 305



 

Trafford Council Constitution – September November 2020 
 Part 4 Page 110 
 

DATE OF APPROVAL 
 
These Finance Procedure Rules were approved by Full Council on 24th May 2017 
and came into effect on 25th May 2017.  

Page 306



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 111 
   

   

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES 

 
Contents  

 

 

1. Introduction  

2. Interpretations and Definitions  

3. Basic Principles and Responsibilities  

3.1 Basic Principles  

3.2 The Responsibilities of Officers and Members  

4. Contracts to which these Rules do not apply  

5. Pre-procurement Process  

5.1 Authority to carry out procurement activity  

5.2 Appraisal of the procurement activity  

5.3 Framework Agreements and DPS  

5.4 Pre-Procurement Market Research and Consultation  

5.5 Estimating the Total Value of a Contract, Framework Agreement or DPS 

5.6 Standards and Award Criteria  

6. Quotes  

6.1 Requests for Quotes  

6.2 Submission and Receipt of Quotes  

6.3 Amendments to Quotes  

6.4 Evaluation of Quotes  

6.5 Contract Award – through a Quotation Process  

7. Tenders  

7.1 Invitations to Tender  

Page 307



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 112 
   

7.2 Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures  

7.3 Submission and Receipt of Tenders  

7.4 Verifying and Opening Tenders  

7.5 Amendments to Tenders  

7.6 Evaluation of Tenders  

7.7 Contract Award – through a Tender process  

7.8 Enquiries about the Tender process  

8. Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities  

8.1 Contract Provisions  

8.2 Contract Formalities  

8.3 Contracts under Seal  

8.4 Transfer of Contracts  

9. Exemptions and Modifications  

9.1 Exemptions  

9.2 Procedure for Exemptions  

9.3 Modifications to a Contract, Framework Agreement or DPS  

9.4 Procedure for Modifications  

10. Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption  

11. Contract Management  

12. Retaining Relevant Documents  

SCHEDULE 1  

 

Page 308



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 113 
   

1. Introduction 

1.1 Stockport Council, Tameside Council, Trafford Council and Rochdale Council have 

agreed, through an Inter Authority Agreement (“IAA”) to facilitate the joint delivery of 

Procurement Functions with a view to the attainment of a more economical, efficient 

and effective discharge of its Procurement Functions via a shared procurement service to 

be identified as “STAR”. Each of the STAR members have agreed to establish and 

participate in a joint committee (the “Joint Committee”) and have agreed to delegate their 

Executive and Non-Executive functions relating to the operation of STAR to the Joint 

Committee. Other authorities may, from time to time, join the IAA. 

 

1.2 These Rules are standing orders made pursuant to Section 135 of the Local Government Act 

1972. Compliance with the Rules and observance of European and domestic law from which 

they emanate (in particular the principles relating to non-discrimination, equal treatment 

and transparency) is mandatory for all Officers and Members. The Rules ensure that 

procurement activity is undertaken in a legally compliant, transparent, fair and competitive 

manner.  

 

1.3 Decisions relating to procurement are among the most important decisions that can be 

made by the Council its Members and Officers because the money involved is public money 

and the Council is concerned to ensure that high quality Supplies, Services and the execution 

of Works are procured. Efficient use of resources in order to achieve Best Value is therefore 

an imperative.  

 

1.4 These Rules shall apply to all procurement activity where the Council is to procure any 

Supplies, Services or the execution of Works, or enters into a Concessions Contract as either 

a contracting authority or commissioner of such, regardless of the origin of funding (such as 

external grants, partnership funding, pooled or joint budgets for example). 

 

1.5 For the avoidance of doubt, these Rules shall apply to Framework Agreements, DPS and to 

any arrangement made by, or on behalf of the Council (including Schools) for the carrying 

out of Works or for the supply of Supplies or Services.  

 

1.6 Where relevant, the Council shall have regard to the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

(“the Act”). This requires commissioners and procurers at the pre-procurement stage to 

consider how what is to be procured may improve social, environmental and economic well-

Page 309



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 114 
   

being of the Council’s relevant area, how it might secure any such improvement and to 

consider the need to consult. The Council and Officers should refer to the Procurement 

Handbook for further guidance. 

 

1.7 The Joint Committee shall monitor compliance with the Rules and undertake an annual 

review of the Rules. The Joint Committee may present recommendations for amendments 

to the Rules to the Council from time to time and any such amendments shall be subject to 

the Council’s own ratification procedures. Any failure to comply with any of the provisions of 

these Rules must be reported immediately to the SRO for Legal. Failure by any Officer or 

Member to comply with the provisions of these Rules may lead to disciplinary action being 

taken against them. 

 

1.8 These Rules must be read in conjunction with the Council’s Constitution and in particular the 

Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations, , Procurement Handbook, any relevant guidance 

documents endorsed by the Council and the Council’s local Rules as identified in section 1.9 

below. 

 

1.9 A number of local Rules can be found in the attached Schedule 1 and which form part of 

these Rules. 

 

Further Information 

Further advice can be sought from STAR: 

General Enquiries  - email:  procurement@STAR-procurement.gov.uk 

     tel: 0161 9121616 

 

Legal Enquiries   - email:  STARlegal@trafford.gov.uk 

     tel: 0161 9124229 

 

Page 310

mailto:procurement@star-procurement.gov.uk


 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 115 
   

2. Interpretations and Definitions 

2.1 In the event of any conflict between EU law, English law and these Rules and Council Policy, 

the requirements of EU law shall prevail over English law and the requirements of English 

law shall prevail over these Rules and Council Policy. 

2.2 Any reference to legislation, primary or secondary, shall include any 

amendments/replacements made from time to time. 

2.3 All figures specified in these Rules are exclusive of VAT. 

2.4 In the event of any doubt as to the interpretation of these Rules, or as to proper procedure 

to be followed, advice should be sought from STAR in the first instance. 

2.5 In these Rules the words and phrases below have the following meanings: 

 

 “APO” 
 
 
  
 
 
“ASO” 
 
 
 
 
“Best Value” 
 
 
 
“Bidder” 
 
 
“Call-off” 
 
 
 
“CM” 
 
 
“Concessions” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

means Authorised Procurement Officer and is 
the relevant STAR Officer who is responsible for 
the Supplies, Services, execution of Works or 
Concessions Contract for which the Specification 
relates. 
 
means Authorised Service Officer and is any 
Officer, within a directorate of the Council, who 
has delegated authority to undertake 
Procurement Functions. 
 
has the same meaning as that defined in the 
Local Government Act 1999 as amended from 
time to time. 
 
means any Economic Operator that submits a 
Quote. 
 
means an order made/call-off Contract entered 
into under a Framework Agreement or DPS and 
are subject to the application of Rule 5.1. 
 
means the Category Manager or similar role with 
equivalent experience and seniority within STAR 
 
means the granting of a right (exclusive or 
otherwise) to an economic operator to exploit 
works or services provided for their own gain 
with or without payment. Further guidance on 
Concession Contracts can be found in the 
Procurement Handbook 
 
 
 

Page 311



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 116 
   

“Contract” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Contractor” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Contracts Finder” 
 
 
 
“DPS” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Economic Operator” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“EIR” 
 
 
“Electronic Purchasing System” 
 
 
“EU Procurement Directives” 
 
 
 
 
“Exemption” 
 
 
 
 

means a legally binding agreement between the 
Council and the Contractor for the procurement 
by the Council of all Supplies, Services, the 
execution of Works and which incorporates the 
terms and conditions under which the Supplies, 
Services, execution of Works and Concessions 
will be provided. 
 
shall mean the Bidder or Tenderer who the 
Council enters into a Contract with following the 
submission of a Quote or Tender and who is 
appointed by the Council to provide the 
Supplies, Services, execution of Works or 
Concessions Contract. They may also be referred 
to as ‘suppliers’, ‘providers‘ or ‘service providers‘ 
within certain Council departments. 
 
means the web-based portal provided for the 
purposes of Part 4 of the Regulations by or on 
behalf of the Cabinet Office. 
 
Means Dynamic Purchasing System which is an 
electronic system procured using the restricted 
procedure for the purchase of commonly used 
Supplies Services or Works which are generally 
available on the market and objectively defined 
to which all bidders who meet the requirements 
of the selection criteria must be admitted during 
the entire period of the validity of the system 
 
means any natural or legal person or public 
entity or group of such persons and/or entities, 
including any temporary association of 
undertakings, which offers the execution of 
Works and/or a work, the supply of Supplies or 
the provision of Services on the market 
 
means the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004 
 
means purchases made online or via a telephone 
system 
 
means the Public Contracts Directive 
2014/24/EU, the Concessions Directive 
2014/23/EU and other relevant Directives in 
force from time to time 
 
means the release of the obligation to comply 
with these Rules 
 
 
 

Page 312



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 117 
   

“Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“FOIA” 
 
“Framework Agreement” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Invitation to Tender” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Key Decision” 
 
 
“Modification” 
 
 
“Modification Form” 
 
 
 
“Officer” 
 
 
 
“OJEU” 
 
“PID” 
 
 
 
 
“Post Tender Report” 
 
 
“PQQ” 
 
 
 

means the written code of procedures forming 
part of the Council’s constitution which provide a 
framework for proper financial management and 
which set out the rules on accounting, audit, 
administrative procedures and budgeting 
systems. 
 
means the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
 
means an agreement between one or more 
authorities and one or more economic 
operators, the purpose of which is to establish 
the terms governing Call-off Contracts to be 
awarded during a given period, in particular with 
regard to price and, where appropriate, the 
quantity envisaged. 
 
means an invitation issued by the Council to 
Tenderers to submit a Tender or a quote for the 
provision of Supplies, Services, the execution of 
Works or a Concessions Contract in accordance 
with the Specification or request for those 
Supplies, Services, execution of Works or 
Concessions Contract. 
 
has the same meaning as set out in the Council’s 
constitution 
 
means any variation to a Contract, DPS or 
Framework Agreement, including an extension. 
 
means the form supplied by STAR for the 
purpose of recording the authorisation of a 
Modification. 
 
means any employee of the Council which shall 
include any person engaged by the Council to act 
as an agent or consultant on its behalf 
 
means the Official Journal of the European Union 
 
means a Procurement Initiation Document 
providing details of the procurement activity and 
the authority to commence it as required in 
accordance with Rule 5.1. 
 
means a summary of the outcomes delivered by 
the procurement activity 
 
means “pre-procurement questionnaire” and is 
the document used by the Council to screen 
potential Tenderers in accordance with the 
Regulations. 

Page 313



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 118 
   

 
“Procurement Functions” 
 
 
“Procurement Handbook” 
 
 
 
 
 
“Procurement Policy” 
 
 
 
“Purchasing Cards” 
 
 
 
“Quote” 
 
 
 
 
“Regulations” 
 
 
 
 
“Regulations Threshold” 
 
 
 
 
 
“Rules” 
 
“Scheme of Delegation” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“SCM” 
 
 
 
“Services” 
 
 
 
 
 

 
means the Delegated Functions as defined by 
the IAA 
 
means the document which STAR Procurement 
may issue after having obtained the consent of 
the SRO Legal of each authority from time to 
time to set out the procedure to achieve the 
Council’s procurement objectives 
 
means the document which the Council may 
issue from time to time to set out how it will 
achieve its procurement objectives 
 
means charge cards which work in a similar way 
to credit cards and can be used by and ASO to 
purchase Supplies and/or Services. 
 
means a formal offer submitted by a Bidder to 
supply Supplies, Services, execute Works or 
operate a Concessions Contract at a defined 
price  
 
means the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 
SI2006/5, as amended or replaced from time to 
time, which implement the EU public 
procurement directives.  
 
means the financial threshold identified by the 
EU Procurement Directives, as amended from 
time to time,  and where applicable, requires the 
procurement activity to be subject to the 
Regulations. 
 
means these Contract Procedure Rules 
 
means the scheme identified within the Council’s 
constitution which delegates powers and duties 
of the Council to Officers under Section 101 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and all other 
powers enabling such delegation necessary for 
the discharge of the Council’s functions. 
 
means the Senior Category Manager or similar 
role with equivalent experience and seniority 
within STAR 
 
means the time, effort and expertise required by 
the Council, from time to time, and supplied by a 
Contractor.  
 
 
 

Page 314



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 119 
   

“Specification” 
 
 
 
 
“SRO” 
 
 
 
 
“SRO for Legal” 
 
 
 
 
 
“SRO for Finance” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“STAR Legal Officer” 
 
 
 
 
“STAR” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“STAR Councils” 
 
 
 
Supplies 
 
 
“Tender” 
 
 
 
 
“Tenderer”  
 

means the outputs, outcomes and the scope and 
nature of Supplies, Services, execution of Works 
or Concessions Contract required by the Council 
from a procurement activity. 
 
means “Senior Responsible Officer” and is the 
Officer delegated in the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation for the relevant service with the 
responsibility for the award of the Contract. 
 
means the “Senior Responsible Officer for Legal” 
and is the most senior Officer delegated in the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Legal Services 
or in default of such delegation, the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
means the “Senior Responsible Officer for 
Finance” and is the most senior Officer 
delegated in the Council’s Scheme of Delegation 
for the Finance Services or in default of such 
delegation, the Officer appointed by the Council 
pursuant to s151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
means a member of the legal team jointly 
funded by all participating Council’s in 
accordance with the IAA, whose role is to 
provide legal support to STAR. 
 
means the shared procurement service hosted 
by Trafford Borough Council on behalf of 
Trafford Borough Council, Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council, Stockport 
Metropolitan Borough Council and Tameside 
Metropolitan Borough Council and other public 
authorities as determined from  time to time 
whose function and remit is described in these 
Rules, the IAA and the Councils’ constitutions 
 
means those local authorities who have resolved 
to delegated their Procurement Functions to the 
STAR Joint Committee.  
 
means an inherently useful tangible item 
required by the Council, from time to time. 
 
means a formal offer submitted by a Tenderer to 
the Council at a stated price in response to a 
Specification to supply Goods, Supplies, execute 
Works or operate a Concessions Contract.  
 
means any Economic Operator that submits a 
Tender. 

Page 315



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 120 
   

 
“The Chest” 
 
“TUPE” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Value for Money” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Works” 
 
 
 
 
“Writing” 
 
 
 

 
means the Council’s eProcurement system. 
 
means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection 
of Employment) Regulations 2006 as amended 
from time to time together with any EU 
Directives including but not limited to the 
Acquired Rights Directive 2001/23/EC, as 
amended from time to time. 
 
means the optimum combination of whole-life 
costs, price, quality and benefits to meet the 
Council‘s requirement. Such a term equates to 
the EU procurement requirement of most 
economically advantageous offer as well as the 
duty of Best Value as defined by the Local 
Government Act 1999 as amended from time to 
time. 
 
means the provision of physical activity which is 
directed toward the production or 
accomplishment of something by the Contractor, 
from time to time.  
 
the requirement that any document should be in 
writing is satisfied where (apart from the usual 
meaning of that expression) the text of it is 
created and transmitted by electronic means, in 
legible form, and capable of being used for 
subsequent reference.  

3. Basic Principles and Responsibilities  

3.1 Basic Principles  

3.1.1 All procurement activity must comply with all of the following principles of European Union 

(EU) Law: 

 

a. free movement of Supplies and Services; 

b. non-discrimination; 

c. openness/transparency; 

d. equal treatment for all; and 

e. proportionality 

 

3.1.2 All procurement activity must be compliant with the latest EU laws, national legislation, the 

Council Constitution and the local policies in Schedule 1, and have regard to: 

 

Page 316



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 121 
   

a. The need to achieve accountability through effective mechanisms which enable Officers 

and Members of the Council to maintain the highest standards of integrity and honesty 

and to enable them to discharge their responsibility on issues of procurement risk and 

expenditure of public money; 

b. The need to provide consistent procurement policy to suppliers and achieve 

competitive supply;  

c. The need to meet commercial, regulatory and Corporate Priorities of the Council; 

d. The need to achieve efficiencies by administering procurement processes which are 

cost effective; 

e. The need to ensure Value for Money 

f. The need to ensure fair-dealing by ensuring that suppliers are treated fairly and without 

unfair discrimination, including protection of commercial confidentiality where 

compatible with the Council’s obligations under FOIA and EIR; 

g. The need to maintain integrity by excluding corruption or collusion with suppliers or 

others from procurement processes; 

h. The need to ensure informed decision-making based on accurate information;  

i. The need to ensure legality in the administration of procurement processes and award 

of contracts; 

j. The need to promote responsiveness by endeavouring to meet the aspirations, 

expectations and needs of the community served by the procurement processes; 

k. The need to provide transparency by ensuring that there is openness and clarity on the 

Council’s procurement policy and its delivery. 

l. The need to create and retain an audit trail in relation to each procurement activity 

 

3.2 The Responsibilities of Officers and Members 

3.2.1 Officers and Members involved in procurement activity must comply with these Rules, the 

Council’s Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations, the Council’s Employees Code of 

Page 317



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 122 
   

Conduct/Members Code of Conduct. They must also have due regard to any guidance 

provided by STAR. 

3.2.2 Officers must ensure that any agents, consultants and contractual partners acting on their 

behalf, also comply with these Rules. 

4. Contracts to which these Rules do not apply 

4.1 Where there is any doubt regarding the application of these Rules, Officers must seek 

guidance from STAR. 

4.2 These Rules do not apply to the following: 

a. employment contracts for Officers engaged on a PAYE basis; 

b. Contracts relating solely to the disposal or acquisition of securities;  

c. Contracts for the acquisition of an interest in land and property; 

d. Contracts for the appointment of Counsel or the appointment of experts for the purpose 

of legal, or potential legal proceedings by the SRO for Legal Services; 

e. qualifying Contracts between entities within the public sector. 

5. Pre-Procurement Process 

5.1 Authority to carry out procurement activity 

5.1.1 The ASO must ensure that all necessary decisions have been made and that the correct 

authorisation to procure has been properly obtained prior to the initiation of any 

procurement activity. Any procurement activity carried out on behalf of the Council must be 

carried out by an ASO with the appropriate delegated authority as set out in the Scheme of 

Delegation. . The ASO may be required to provide evidence of any decisions made, any 

reports concerning and all authorisations granted in respect of the relevant procurement 

activity. The ASO must submit  a PID to STaR prior to starting the relevant procurement 

activity. By submitting the PID the ASO confirms that they have the authority to carry out the 

procurement activity. 

Page 318



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 123 
   

5.2 Appraisal of the procurement activity 

5.2.1 The ASO, together with the APO, must conduct an options appraisal of the route to market 

and consider the following: 

a. Value for Money; 

b. The need for the expenditure and its priority; 

c. The objectives of the purchase; 

d. Whether it is a Key Decision 

e. Any risks associated with the purchase and how to manage them; 

f. The market; 

g. TUPE and pensions;  

h. Which procurement method is most likely to achieve the purchasing objectives; 

i. Existing and compliant Framework Agreements, DPS or other arrangements; and 

j. The economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the borough and the benefit which 

the procurement process can bring to the community and  have regard to the duty to 

secure continuous improvement in accordance with Best Value. 

 

5.2.2 Where award for a Contract for services may result in employees of the Council or its 

Contractor transferring to a new employer, the advice of the SRO for Human Resources and 

the SRO for Legal must be obtained before the commencement of the procurement activity 

to ensure compliance with TUPE, and other related legislation, and to assess the implications 

in respect of pension arrangements. 

 

5.2.3 The APO must ensure that an appropriate Specification or request for a Quote 

commensurate to the scope of the Supplies, Services, execution of Works or Concessions 

Contract required is written prior to the commencement of any procurement activity. Advice 

from STAR must be sought where it is proposed that a Specification or request for a Quote is 

not used. 

 

Page 319



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 124 
   

5.2.4 For procurement under the Regulations Thresholds, the use of PQQs is no longer permitted 

by the Regulations. However, the Regulations do permit the use of suitability assessment 

questions where they are relevant to the subject matter of the procurement and are 

proportionate. Further guidance on suitability assessment questions may be sought from 

STAR but in any event, advice must be sought from STAR where it is proposed that such 

questions are to be used.  

5.3 Framework Agreements and DPS 

5.3.1 Where, following an options appraisal as required by Rule 5.2, a suitable Framework 

Agreement or DPS is identified, the requirements of Rule 6 (Quotes) and Rule 7 (Tenders) 

will not be applicable and the ASO must ensure that: 

a. Any Call-off Contract is entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant 

Framework Agreement or DPS; and  

b. Where applicable, a mini-competition (the tender process required by the Framework 

Agreement) is held in accordance with rules of the Framework Agreement or DPS. 

5.3.2 For the avoidance of doubt, a Framework Agreement or DPS is considered suitable where it 

has either been entered into by: 

a. the Council in compliance with these Rules; or 

b. another local authority, a local authority purchasing consortium or central government 

where the Framework Agreement or DPS has been tendered and awarded in accordance 

with EU public procurement  legislation, and the Council is identified as a contracting 

authority. 

5.3.3 Where a Framework Agreement or DPS has been set up following an EU Tender, there must 

be full compliance with EU rules when awarding Call-off Contracts under it. 

5.4 Pre-Procurement Market Research and Consultation 

5.4.1 The ASO and APO responsible for the procurement activity: 

 

a. may consult potential Bidders or Tenderers in general terms about the nature, level and 

standard of the supply, contract packaging and other relevant matters, prior to a request 

Page 320



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 125 
   

for a Quote or an Invitation to Tender provided this does not prejudice any potential 

Bidders or Tenderers; and 

b. must not seek or accept technical advice on the preparation of a request for a Quote or 

an Invitation to Tender from anyone who may have a commercial interest in the tender, 

as this may prejudice the equal treatment of all potential Bidders and Tenderers or 

distort competition.  

 

Advice must be sought from STAR in all instances. 

 

5.5 Estimating the Total Value of a Contract, Framework Agreement  or 

DPS 

5.5.1 Officers must calculate the total value of the Contract, DPS or Framework Agreement in 

order to determine which procurement activities should be commenced in accordance with 

these Rules.  The procurement activity that must be followed is prescribed in Table 1 below. 

 

5.5.2 The Council must not split Contracts, DPS or Framework Agreements in order to avoid public 

procurement rules or calculate the value of the Contract, DPS or Framework Agreement in 

such a way as to deliberately avoid exceeding the Regulation Thresholds or any threshold 

identified in these Rules. Therefore, unless otherwise agreed by the SRO Legal all Contracts, 

DPS or Framework Agreements should be dealt with according to their total value and all 

Officers must calculate the total value (excluding VAT) of any Contract.  The value of a 

Contract, DPS or Framework Agreement should be calculated as follows and applies to the 

aggregate value of the Contract, DPS or Framework Agreement: 

 

Yearly contract value X Contract Period in years (including any 

option to extend) = Total value. 

 

5.5.3 The value of a Framework Agreement and DPS means the maximum estimated amount 

payable by the users of the Framework Agreement or DPS for the Supplies, Services or 

Page 321



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 126 
   

execution of Works (excluding VAT) under Call-off Contracts entered into over the entire 

possible duration of the Framework Agreement or DPS. 

 

5.5.4 Framework Agreements must not be for more than four years (including options to extend) 

unless otherwise authorised by the SRO for Legal. 

 

5.5.5 The value of the Contract, DPS or Framework Agreement will determine which procurement 

activity to follow in accordance with Table 1 below subject to Rules 5.5.6 and 5.5.7:  

Table 1: Procurement Activities 

Supplies, Services and Concessions 

Value Band Value Procurement Activity Minimum Requirement for 

advertising the opportunity 

A £0 - £4,999.99 Minimum one Quote in 

accordance with Rule 6 - 

Quotes 

N/A* 

B £5,000 - £24,999.99 Minimum three Quotes in 

accordance with Rule 6 – 

Quotes following consultation 

with STaR 

N/A* 

C £25,000 and up to 

Regulation Threshold 

Minimum three Quotes in 

accordance with Rule 6 – 

Quotes and subject to risk-

based sourcing. Route to 

market to be agreed in 

conjunction with STaR 

The Chest^ 

In accordance with Rule 7 – 

Tenders and subject to risk-

based sourcing. Route to 

market to be agreed in 

conjunction with STaR 

The Chest and Contracts 

Finder 

D Above the Regulation 

Thresholds 

Most appropriate procedure 

permitted by the Regulations 

OJEU Notice and Contracts 

Finder 

 

Page 322



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 127 
   

Works and Public Works Concessions 

Value Band Value Procurement Activity Minimum Requirement 

for advertising the 

opportunity 

A £0 - £4,999.99 Minimum one Quote in 

accordance with Rule 6 - 

Quotes 

N/A* 

B £5,000 - £24,999.99 Minimum three Quotes in 

accordance with Rule 6 – 

Quotes following consultation 

with STaR 

N/A* 

C £25,000 – up to the 

Regulation Threshold 

Minimum three Quotes in 

accordance with Rule 6 – 

Quotes and subject to risk-

based sourcing. Route to 

market to be agreed in 

conjunction with STaR 

 

The Chest 

In accordance with Rule 7 – 

Tenders and subject to risk-

based sourcing. Route to 

market to be agreed in 

conjunction with STaR 

The Chest and Contracts 

Finder 

D Not Required   

E Above the Regulation 

Thresholds 

Most appropriate procedure 

permitted by the Regulations 

OJEU notice and Contracts 

Finder 

 

*WHERE ANY OPPORTUNITY OVER £25K IS OPENLY ADVERTISED, IT MUST BE PLACED ON 

CONTRACTS FINDER  

 

5.5.6 Where the Contract value falls within Value Band B or C for Supplies, Services and Concession 

Contracts or Value Band B or C  for Works and Public Works Concession Contracts within Rule 

Page 323



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 128 
   

5.5.5 Table 1, the ASO and the APO shall jointly determine which procurement activities 

should be undertaken. 

 

5.5.7 Where the value of the Contract is above the Regulation Thresholds, the ASO and the APO 

will determine which procurement activity to follow in accordance with the Regulations. 

 

5.5.8 Irrespective of the value in Rule 5.5.5 Contracts and Framework Agreements that are subject 

to European Union grant funding requirements shall be advertised in accordance with 

published guidance, ERDF National Procurement Requirements (ERDF-GN-1-004) as amended 

from time to time. 

 

5.5.9 The ASO and APO shall ensure that, where proposed Contracts or Framework Agreements, 

irrespective of their value, might be of interest to potential Economic Operators located in 

other member states of the European Union, a sufficiently accessible advertisement is 

published.   

 

5.6 Standards and Award Criteria  

5.6.1 Before inviting Quotes or Tenders, the ASO, with support from the APO, must ascertain any 

relevant British, European or international standards which apply to the subject matter of 

the Contract. The ASO must include those standards or equivalent where they are necessary 

to describe the required quality. In any instances of uncertainty, STAR can be consulted if it is 

proposed to use standards other than European standards. 

 

5.6.2 The ASO must define award criteria that is appropriate to the procurement activity and 

designed to secure an outcome giving Value for Money for the Council. The basic award 

criteria shall include one of the following: 

a. Most economically advantageous tender (“MEAT”) - where considerations other than 

price also apply; 

b. Lowest price - where payment is to be made by the Council; 

Page 324



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 129 
   

c. Highest price - if payment is to be received. 

 

If MEAT is the chosen award criteria, advice must be obtained from STAR to ensure that it is 

compatible with the EU Directives and the Regulations.  

 

5.6.3 The ASO must seek advice from STAR to ensure any award criteria are compliant with 

relevant legislation and best practice. 

 

6. Quotes 

6.1 Requests for Quotes 

6.1.1 All Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, must be 

confirmed in writing before a decision to award can be made and all Quotes must be stored 

on The Chest.  

6.1.2 When requesting a Quote, an appropriate description of the Supplies, Services, execution of 

Works or Concessions (commensurate with the value of the Contract) setting out the 

Council’s requirements in sufficient detail must be provided to prospective Bidders to enable 

the submission of competitive Quotes.  

6.1.3 The request for a Quote shall also make reference to or include the following as a minimum: 

a. the terms and conditions of Contract that will apply; and 

b. notification that Quotes are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are compiled 

at the Bidder’s expense; and 

c. a description of the award criteria as appropriate and in accordance with Rule 5.6; and 

d. the date and time by which a Quote is to be submitted by; and 

e. that the Council is not bound to accept any Quotes submitted. 

 

6.1.4 The proposed form of Contract must comply with Rule 8 and where possible the Council’s 

standard terms and conditions of Contract must be used. Advice must be sought from a 

Page 325



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 130 
   

STAR Legal Officer and approval given by the SRO for Legal where alternative terms and 

conditions are used. 

 

6.1.5 Where requests for a Quote are sought from more than one prospective Bidder, where 

possible, the request must be sent to each Bidder at the same time and contain the same 

conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the same basis. 

6.2 Submission and Receipt of Quotes 

6.2.1 Bidders must be given a reasonable period in which to prepare and submit a proper Quote, 

consistent with the complexity of the Contract requirement. 

6.2.2 In the event that an abnormally low Quote is received, the ASO must take advice from STAR 

on how to proceed. 

 

6.2.3 Any Quote (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and time 

for submission of Quotes shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in exceptional 

circumstances and only with agreement from the SRO for Legal Services. 

6.2.4 If fewer than the minimum number of Quotes is received as stipulated in Table 1 in Rule 5.5, 

then advice must be sought from the Director of Procurement (STAR) as to whether to 

proceed. Any decision must be recorded in writing and stored on The Chest. 

6.3 Amendments to Quotes 

6.3.1 The Council may accept amendments to Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under 

Framework Agreements, providing they are received prior to the closing date for 

submissions. In such circumstances, any alterations must be made by resubmitting a new 

Quote and clearly highlighting which Quote (and associated documents) is correct and which 

should be considered as part of the procurement activity. 

 

6.3.2 A Quote may be amended after the closing date for submission if the amendment is made 

only in order to correct an arithmetical error. Such amendments may only be made with the 

prior approval of the Director of Procurement (STAR). 

Page 326



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 131 
   

6.4 Evaluation of Quotes 

6.4.1 All compliant Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 

must be checked by the ASO to ensure they are arithmetically correct. The ASO may seek 

advice from STAR if there is any doubt. If arithmetical errors are found they should be 

notified to the Bidder, who should be requested to confirm or withdraw their Quote. 

Alternatively, if the rates in the Quote prevail over the overall price, an amended Quote may 

be requested to accord with the rates given by the Tenderer. 

 

6.4.2 Where MEAT is used as the award criteria, all evaluations including an explanation of the 

reasons for the scores should be recorded on The Chest. The ASO must then confirm to STAR 

that the Contract can be awarded in accordance with Rule 6.5 by updating the PID. 

6.4.3 Officers must ensure transparency and fairness during the evaluation process. 

6.4.4 In accordance with the Council’s risk-based sourcing policy, the ASO and/or APO may require 

a best and final offer from the Tenderer whosewho’s submitted Quote is the most 

economically advantageous, the lowest price or the highest price in accordance with Rule 

5.6.2. 

6.5 Contract Award – through a Quotation Process 

6.5.1 The Contract will be awarded in accordance with the award criteria used.  

 

6.5.2 Where the Quote is not within the relevant approved budget but additional budgetary 

provision is available, the relevant ASO, with the approval of the SRO for Finance, may 

accept the Quote ensuring compliance with the Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations. 

 

6.5.3 The approval to award the Contract must be given in accordance with the Council’s Scheme 

of Delegation.  

 

6.5.4 All award decisions must be recorded in the PID, signed and dated by the ASO, the APO and 

the SRO for the relevant service.  

Page 327



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 132 
   

 

6.5.5 Once the decision has been made and the approval given to award the Contract, the ASO 

must send a Contract award letter to the winning Bidder(s). 

 

6.5.6 Prior to commencement of the Contract, the Contract must be completed in accordance 

with Rule 8.2 unless Rule 82.5 applies.  

 

6.5.7 STAR will, where necessary, advise on the formalities for completion of the contract by 

parties other than the Council and how to ensure that the Contract is legally binding. 

7. Tenders 

7.1 Invitations to Tender 

7.1.1 All Tender opportunities must be placed on The Chest and, where appropriate, Contracts 

Finder in accordance with Table 1 at Rule 5.5. 

 

7.1.2 The Invitation to Tender, shall include the following where appropriate: 

a. A form upon which the Tenderer can provide details of its bid (“Form of Tender”); 

b. A reference to the Council’s ability to award in whole, in part or not at all;  

c. A Specification that describes the Council’s requirements in sufficient detail to enable 

the submission of competitive offers;  

d. the terms and conditions of Contract that will apply;  

e. A requirement for Tenderers to declare that the Tender content, price or any other 

figure or particulars concerning the Tender have not been disclosed by the Tenderer to 

any other party (except where such a disclosure is made in confidence for a necessary 

purpose);  

f. A requirement for Tenderers to fully complete and sign all Tender documents including 

the Form of Tender and certificates relating to canvassing and non-collusion;  

Page 328



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 133 
   

g. Notification that Tenders are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are 

compiled at the Tenderer’s expense;  

h. A description of the award procedure and the evaluation criteria to be used to assess 

Tenders including any weightings as considered appropriate and in accordance with Rule 

5.6. The evaluation criteria must be clear, concise and unambiguous and must be 

approved by the APO in consultation with the ASO. The evaluation criteria cannot be 

amended once published in the Invitation to Tender;  

i. The method by which any arithmetical errors discovered in the submitted Tenders are to 

be dealt with and in particular, whether the overall price prevails over the rates in the 

Tender or vice versa;  

j. Whether the Council is of the view that TUPE will be applicable in relation to the 

procurement activities; 

k. Whether additional arrangements will be required in relation to pension provision; 

l. Provisions relating to the Council’s termination rights in the event that corruption is 

discovered;  

m. The relevance and application of any parent company guarantees and/or bonds;  

n. That the Council is not bound to accept Tenders; and 

o. Any matters required by local polices in Schedule 1. 

 

7.1.3 The proposed form of Contract must comply with Rule 8 and where possible the Council’s 

standard terms and conditions of Contract must be used. Advice must be sought from the 

STAR Legal Officer and approval given by the SRO for Legal where alternative terms and 

conditions are used. 

 

7.1.4 All Tenderers invited to Tender must be issued with the same information at the same time 

and contain the same conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the 

same basis.  

 

Page 329



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 134 
   

7.1.5 All communications relating to Tenders must be recorded on The Chest.  

 

7.2 Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures 

7.2.1 Providing pre-Tender clarification to potential or actual Tenderers, or seeking clarification of 

a Tender, is permitted subject to Rule 7.2.3. 

  

7.2.2 Post-tender clarification may be undertaken with Tenderers only where it is essential in 

order to be completely clear about any fundamental aspect of the Tender submission before 

the completion of the Tender evaluation process and subject to Rule 7.2.3.  

 

7.2.3 All pre- and post- tender communication must be conducted either in writing or in a meeting 

recorded by the ASO or APO. All correspondence or meetings must be documented and 

retained on The Chest. Where a meeting is required, there must always be more than one 

Officer present. 

 

7.2.4 At all times during the clarification process, the Council shall consider and implement the 

principles of non-discrimination, equal treatment and transparency. 

 

7.2.5 Unless otherwise permitted by the Regulations, in no circumstances are post-award 

negotiations permitted.  

 

7.3 Submission and Receipt of Tenders  

7.3.1 Tenderers must be given a reasonable period in which to prepare and submit a proper 

Tender, consistent with the complexity of the Contract requirement and in accordance with 

the Regulations. 

 

Page 330



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 135 
   

7.3.2 Any Tender (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and time 

for submission of Tenders shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in exceptional 

circumstances and only with agreement from the SRO for Legal Services. 

 

7.3.3 All Tenders received, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 

must remain unopened until the specified closing date and time has passed. 

 

7.3.4 If less than the minimum number of Tenders is received as stipulated in Table 1 in Rule 5.5, 

then advice must be sought from the Director of Procurement (STAR) on how to proceed. 

Any decision must be recorded in writing and stored on The Chest. 

 

7.4 Verifying and Opening Tenders  

7.4.1 Tenders are to be verified by an APO who is independent of the procurement activity to 

which the Tender relates. 

 

7.4.2 Once verified, Tenders are to be opened in accordance with the following Table 2: 

 

Table 2 

Value of Contract Officers required to be present: Expected Duration 

£0 - £49,999.99 APO Within 2 working days of the deadline for 

submission 

£50,000 and above CM or SCM  Within 2 working days of the deadline for 

submission 

 

Page 331



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 136 
   

7.5 Amendments to Tenders 

7.5.1 The Council may accept amendments to Tender submissions, including those in mini-

competitions under Framework Agreements, providing they are received prior to the closing 

date for submissions. 

 

7.5.2 A Tender may be amended after the closing date for submission if the amendment is made 

only in order to correct an arithmetical error. Such amendments may only be made with the 

prior approval of the Director of Procurement (STAR). 

 

7.6 Evaluation of Tenders 

7.6.1 If a PQQ or an expression of interest prior to PQQ was used, all those Tenderers must be 

given feedback at the relevant stage.  

 

7.6.2 In the event that an abnormally low Tender is received, the ASO must take advice from STAR 

on how to proceed. 

 

7.6.3 All compliant Tenders, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 

must be checked by the ASO and the APO to ensure they are arithmetically correct. If 

arithmetical errors are found they should be notified to the Tenderer, who should be 

requested to confirm or withdraw their Tender. Alternatively, if the rates in the Tender 

prevail over the overall price, an amended Tender price may be requested to accord with the 

rates given by the Tenderer. 

 

7.6.4 Where MEAT is used as the award criteria, all evaluations including an explanation of the 

reasons for the scores should be recorded on The Chest. The ASO must then confirm to STAR 

that the Contract can be awarded by updating the PID. 

 

Page 332



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 137 
   

7.6.5 Officers must ensure transparency and fairness during the evaluation process. 

 

7.6.6 In accordance with the Council’s risk-based sourcing policy, the APO may require a best and 

final offer from the Tenderer whose submitted Tender is the most economically 

advantageous, the lowest price or the highest price in accordance with Rule 5.6.2. 

 

7.7 Contract Award – through a Tender process 

7.7.1 The winning Tender shall be awarded the Contract in accordance with the award criteria 

used.  

 

7.7.2 Where the Tender is not within the relevant approved budget but additional budgetary 

provision is available, the relevant ASO, with the approval of the SRO for Finance, may 

accept the Tender ensuring compliance with the Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations. 

 

7.7.3 The approval to award the Contract must be given in accordance with the Council’s Scheme 

of Delegation.   

 

7.7.4 All award decisions must be recorded in the PID, signed and dated by the ASO, the APO and 

the SRO for the relevant service.  

 

7.7.5 A Contract which has a contract value above the Regulation Thresholds, can only be awarded 

after a notice of the proposed award has been given to all unsuccessful Tenderers and the 10 

day standstill period has elapsed from the date the notice was given. If the 10 days expire on 

a non-working day, then the notice period will be deemed to have lapsed on the next 

working day.  

 

7.7.6 Once the decision to award a Contract is made, each Tenderer must be notified by either the 

ASO or the APO in writing of the outcome. All Tenderers must be notified simultaneously 

Page 333



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 138 
   

and as soon as possible of the intention to award the Contract to the successful Tenderer(s) 

and this should be done via The Chest. The letters must include a description of the relative 

advantages of the successful Tenderer.  

 

7.7.7 Prior to commencement of the Contract, the Contract must be completed in accordance 

with Rule 8.2 unless Rule 8.2.5 applies.  

 

7.7.8 A STAR Legal Officer will, where necessary, advise on the formalities for completion of the 

contract by parties other than the Council and how to ensure that the Contract is legally 

binding.  

 

7.7.9 The APO must publish a contract award notice in the OJEU and on the Council‘s website no 

later than 48 days after the date of award of the Contract where a Contract value exceeds 

the Regulation Threshold and has been tendered pursuant to the Regulations or is subject to 

the relevant provision of the Regulations relating to Contract award.  

 

7.7.10 Contract award letters, feedback to Tenderers and the contract Terms and Conditions, 

including any incidental documentation must be approved by the APO prior to sending 

where the value of the Contract is over the Regulation Thresholds. 

 

7.8 Enquiries about the Tender process 

7.8.1 The confidentiality of Tenders and the identity of Tenderers must be preserved at all times 

insofar as this is compatible with the Councils’ obligations under FOIA and EIR. 

 

7.8.2 If the Council receives a request for information under the FOIA as a result of the de-briefing 

process, the request must be referred to both the Director of Procurement (STAR) and the 

relevant Officer of the Council who deals with such requests. The Council will be responsible 

for responding to the request.  

Page 334



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 139 
   

 

7.8.3 Any challenges, complaints or requests for feedback, clarification or further information 

must be referred to the Director of Procurement (STAR) who will advise on how to respond 

and notify the SRO for Legal. 

  

8. Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities 

8.1 Contract Provisions 

8.1.1 All Contracts must be in writing and must set out the parties’ obligations, rights and risk 

allocations. Advice must be sought from STAR as to the appropriate form of Contract to be 

used and where possible, be on the Council’s standard terms and conditions. 

  

8.1.2 All Contracts, irrespective of value, shall, where appropriate, clearly specify as a minimum: 

a. What is to be supplied (i.e. the Works, materials, services, matters or things to be 

furnished, had or done) 

b. The provisions for payment (i.e. the price to be paid and when) 

c. The time, or times, within which the contract is to be performed 

d. The provisions for the Council to terminate the Contract and break clauses. 

e. The provision for collateral warranties from sub-contractors. 

 

8.1.3 STAR can provide advice on Contract specific terms and conditions. 

 

8.2 Contract Formalities 

8.2.1 Once a decision to award has been made in accordance with Rule 6.5.3 or 7.7.3, the Contract 

must either be signed by the Officer authorised to award the Contract under the Council’s 

Scheme of Delegation, or signed by the SRO for Legal, or sealed in accordance with Rule 

8.3.2. 

Page 335



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 140 
   

 

8.2.2 Where the Contract is to be in writing, the ASO or APO must arrange for the Contract 

including all schedules and appendices to be signed by all parties. This can be done in two 

ways: 

 

a) Sending bound hard copies of the Contract to the winning Bidder(s) or Tenderer(s) for 

signing; or 

b) Sending electronic copies of the Contract to the winning Bidder(s) or Tenderer(s) for 

printing, binding and signing. 

 

8.2.3 Before arranging for the Contract to be signed or sealed on behalf of the Council, the ASO 

must check that the returned signed Contract has not been amended or altered by the 

winning Bidder(s) or Tenderer(s) without prior written agreement by the Council. 

 

8.2.4 Rules 8.2.1 to 8.2.3 do not apply to purchases made through an Electronic Purchasing 

System (EPS). 

 

8.2.5 All Contracts which are to be formally completed in writing must be completed before the 

Supplies are supplied, or the Service, execution of Works or Concessions Contract begins, 

except in exceptional circumstances, and then only with the prior approval from the SRO for 

Legal. 

 

8.2.6 A purchase order must be raised in the appropriate eProcurement system for all Supplies, 

Services and Works requirements to be acquired through an EPS and for all Contracts. The 

purchase order must attach the terms and conditions of Contract between the Council and 

the Contractor. 

Page 336



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 141 
   

 

8.2.7 The ASO must ensure that the person signing on behalf of the Contractor has requisite legal 

authority to bind the Contractor. Where there is any doubt, the ASO must seek advice from 

the STAR Legal Officer. 

 

8.3 Contracts under Seal  

8.3.1 A Contract must be sealed where: 

a. The Council wishes to extend the liability period under the Contract and enforce its terms 

for up to 12 years; or 

b. The price to be paid or received under the Contract is a nominal price and does not 

reflect the value of the Supplies or Services; or 

c. There is any doubt about the authority of the person signing for the other contracting 

party; or 

d. The Contract value is £250,000 or above. 

 

8.3.2 The seal must be affixed in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

8.4 Transfer of Contracts 

8.4.1 No Contract should be transferred from one Contractor to another without first consulting 

STAR. Contracts can only be  transferred if approved in accordance with the table below: 

 

Value of 

Contract/Quote 

Decision Maker 

All values SRO for Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees in 

accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and 

consultation in with the Director of Procurement (STAR) 

 

Page 337



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 142 
   

9. Exemptions and Modifications 

9.1 Exemptions  

9.1.1 In limited circumstances, it may be necessary to seek an Exemption from the Rules and 

guidance from STAR must be sought before any procurement activity commences. 

 

9.1.2 An Exemption cannot be given where this would contravene the Regulations. 

 

9.1.3 Exemptions will only be considered in exceptional circumstances. Examples of circumstances 

which may be considered exceptional could include the following: 

 

a.  The arrangement is a permitted exemption from the requirement for competition 

contained in European or domestic legislation; 

b.  To comply with legal requirements; 

c.  The Contract is for Supplies, Services or the execution of Works which are required in 

circumstances of extreme urgency or unforeseeable emergency involving risks to 

persons, property or serious disruption to Council services;  

d.  Repairs or parts — if the only option is to repair or buy new parts for existing equipment 

or buildings, and there is only one supplier; 

e.  Where a Service review includes the intention to co-terminate relevant Contracts; 

f.  Proprietary or patented Supplies or Services are proposed to be purchased which, in the 

opinion of the ASO, are only obtainable from one person, and it can be demonstrated 

that no reasonably satisfactory alternative to those proprietary or patented Supplies is 

available; or 

g.  The ASO can demonstrate that no genuine competition can be obtained in respect of the 

purchase of particular Supplies, Services or execution of Works; or 

h.  The ASO is satisfied that the Services or execution of Works are of such a specialist 

nature that they can only be carried out by one person (e.g. statutory undertakers); or 

Page 338



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 143 
   

i.  Supplies are proposed to be purchased by or on behalf of the Council at a public auction; 

or 

j.  Supplies or Services are proposed to be purchased which are of a specialist or unique 

nature (such as antiquities for museums or a particular performance artist); or 

k.  Any other exceptional circumstances. 

 

9.2 Procedure for Exemptions 

9.2.1 To apply for an Exemption the ASO must fill in the Exemption Form and submit it to the STAR 

for consideration and recommendation. This Exemption Form must then be signed 

(electronically or by hand) in accordance with the table below (unless Rule 9.2.2 applies). 

  

Value of 

Contract/Quote 

Decision Maker 

All values SRO for  Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees in 

accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and in 

consultation with the Director of Procurement (STAR) 

 

9.2.2 If an Exemption requires a Key Decision, then that Key Decision must be made in accordance 

with the Council’s Constitution. Guidance from STAR must be sought if there is any doubt as 

to whether a decision is a Key Decision. 

 

9.2.3 The ASO must ensure that the Exemption Form provides full details of the request and any 

supplementary documentation to support the request.  

 

9.2.4 No commitment should be made to a potential Contractor prior to authorisation.  

 

Page 339



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 144 
   

9.2.5 The Director of Procurement (STAR) is responsible for ensuring a complete record of all 

Exemptions. A record of the decision approving an Exemption and the reasons for it must be 

stored electronically on The Chest. 

 

9.2.6 In circumstances of extreme urgency, the relevant decision maker in 9.2.1 above may 

authorise an Exemption in writing without the need to complete an Exemption Form. The 

written authorisation provided in accordance with this Rule 9.2.6 must be submitted to STAR 

to be stored electronically on The Chest. 

 

9.2.7 The ASO, in conjunction with STAR and a STAR Legal Officer, shall ensure that the Contract 

terms and conditions are appropriate taking into account all relevant factors (such as benefit 

and risk to the Council) and ensure that the Contract complies with Rule 8 

 

9.3 Modifications to a Contract or Framework Agreement   

9.3.1  Contracts and Framework Agreements may be modified during their term without a new 

procurement procedure in accordance with this Rule 9.3 in any of the following cases: 

(a) where the Modifications, irrespective of their monetary value, have been provided for 

in the initial procurement documents in clear, precise and unequivocal review clauses, 

which may include price revision clauses or options, provided that such clauses 

(i) state the scope and nature of possible modifications or options as well as the 

conditions under which they may be used, and 

(ii) do not provide for modifications or options that would alter the overall nature 

of the Contract or the Framework agreement; 

(b) for additional works, services or supplies by the original contractor that have become 

necessary and were not included in the initial procurement, where a change of 

contractor: 

(i) cannot be made for economic or technical reasons such as requirements of 

interchangeability or interoperability with existing equipment, services or 

installations procured under the initial procurement, or 

(ii) would cause significant inconvenience or substantial duplication of costs for 

the Council, 

Page 340



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 145 
   

provided that any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original 

Contract or Framework Agreement;  

(c) where all of the following conditions are fulfilled:   

(i) the need for Modification has been brought about by circumstances which a 

diligent Council could not have foreseen; 

(ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the  Contract or 

Framework Agreement; 

(iii) any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original Contract 

or Framework Agreement. 

(d) where a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had initially awarded the 

Contract or Framework Agreement as a consequence of: 

(i) an unequivocal review clause or option in conformity with sub-paragraph (a), 

or 

(ii) universal or partial succession into the position of the initial contractor, 

following corporate restructuring, including takeover, merger, acquisition or 

insolvency, of another economic operator that fulfils the criteria for qualitative 

selection initially established, provided that this does not entail other 

substantial modifications to the contract and is not aimed at circumventing 

the application of the Regulations; 

(e) where the Modifications, irrespective of their value, are not substantial within the 

meaning of Rule 9.3.5; or 

(f) where Rule 9.3.3 applies. 

 

9.3.2  Where several successive Modifications are made:—  

(a) the limitations imposed by the proviso at the end of Rule 9.3.1 (b) and by Rule 9.3.1 

(c)(iii) shall apply to the value of each Modification; and 

(b) such successive Modifications shall not be aimed at circumventing the Regulations. 

 

9.3.3  This Rule 9.3.3 applies where the value of the Modification is below both of the following 

values: 

(a) the relevant OJEU Threshold and 

Page 341



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 146 
   

(b) 10% of the initial Contract or Framework Agreement value for service and supply 

Contract or Framework Agreement and 15% of the initial Contract or Framework 

Agreement value for works contracts, 

provided that the Modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract or Framework 

Agreement  

 

9.3.4 For the purposes of Rule 9.3.3 where several successive Modifications are made, the value 

shall be the net cumulative value of the successive modifications.  

 

9.3.5  A Modification of a Contract or a Framework agreement during its term shall be considered 

substantial for the purposes of Rule 9.3.1(e) where one or more of the following conditions is 

met:  

(a) the Modification renders the Contract or Framework Agreement materially different in 

character from the one initially concluded; 

(b) the Modification introduces conditions which, had they been part of the initial 

procurement procedure, would have: 

(i) allowed for the admission of other Tenderer than those initially selected, 

(ii) allowed for the acceptance of a Tender other than that originally accepted, or 

(iii) attracted additional participants in the procurement procedure; 

(c) the Modification changes the economic balance of the Contract or Framework 

Agreement in favour of the Contractor in a manner which was not provided for in the 

initial Contract or Framework Agreement; or 

(d) the Modification extends the scope of the Contract or Framework Agreement 

considerably; 

(e) a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had initially awarded the 

Contract or Framework Agreement in cases other than those provided for in paragraph 

Rule 9.3.1(d). 

9.3.6 For the avoidance of any doubt, an extension of the term of a Contract or Framework 

Agreement should be treated as a Modification where the original Contract or Framework 

Agreement make provisions for such an extension of term; 

(a) a Contract or Framework Agreement term should not be automatically extended 

where the Contract or Framework Agreement contains provisions to extend the 

Page 342



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 147 
   

term, Furtherfurther guidance on extensions of terms should be sought by reference 

to the Procurement Handbook and STAR. 

 

9.4 Procedure for Modifications 

9.4.1 To apply for a Modification the ASO must fill in the Modification Form and submit it to the 

STAR for consideration and recommendation. This Modification Form must then be signed 

(electronically or by hand) in accordance with the table below. 

 

Value of 

Contract/Quote 

Decision Maker 

All values SRO for Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees in 

accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and in 

consultation with the Director of Procurement (STAR) 

 

9.4.2 The ASO must ensure that the Modification Form provides full details of the request and any 

supplementary documentation to support the request.  

 

9.4.3 No commitment should be made to a potential Contractor prior to authorisation.  

 

9.4.4 The Director of Procurement (STAR) is responsible for ensuring a complete record of all 

Modifications is kept and a record of the decision approving a Modification and the reasons 

for it must be submitted to STAR to be stored electronically on The Chest. 

 

10. Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption 

10.1 The Council‘s reputation with regards to procurement activity is important and should be 

safeguarded from any imputation of dishonesty or corruption.  All elected Members of the 

Council and Officers are reminded of their responsibilities in relation to gifts, hospitality and 

any conflicts of interest and should ensure they comply with the obligations set out in the 

Page 343



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 148 
   

Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct and the Officers’ Code of Conduct respectively and any 

other relevant policies, guidance or strategies relating to bribery, fraud and corruption 

issued or endorsed by the Council from time to time 

 

10.2 Any Officer or Member must declare any interest which could influence their judgement in 

relation to procurement activity in accordance with the Council’s Codes of Conduct. 

 

10.3 No gifts or hospitality should be accepted from any Bidders or Tenderers involved in 

procurement activity except in accordance with the Council’s Codes of Conduct.  

 

11. Contract Management 

11.1 All Contracts must have a Council Contract Manager (“Contract Manager”) for the entirety of 

the Contract. In the event that there is no named Contract Manager the ASO will fulfil the 

role of Contract Manager.  

11.2 The Contract Manager will be responsible for reviewing monitoring and evaluating the 

contract to ensure that its provisions and the services within it are being followed and 

performed as they should be.  

11.3 During the life of the Contract, the Contract Manager should monitor the Contract in respect 

to the following: 

a. Performance (against agreed KPIs where relevant); 

b. Compliance with specification and contract; 

c. Cost; 

d. Any Best Value duties ; 

e. Continuous Improvement; 

f. User satisfaction; and 

g. Risk management. 

 

Page 344



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 149 
   

11.4 Where the Contract is to be re-let, this information should be available early enough to 

inform the approach to re-letting the next contract. 

11.5 STAR can provide advice and support on good practice in performance management of 

Contracts.  

11.6 All Contracts must be included and published on the Contracts Register maintained by STAR 

in line with the Local Government Transparency Code 2014. This is a mandatory requirement 

and it is the responsibility of the SRO for each Service to ensure that they have informed 

STAR of the Contracts they are responsible for and provided them with the information 

necessary to update the Contracts Register accordingly. 

12. Retaining Relevant Documents 

12.1 All records in relation to the award of Contracts and the associated procurement process, 

including supporting documentation, shall be stored by STAR in an electronic filing system to 

be available for inspection by the Council’s internal and external auditors, or Officer, 

immediately upon request. Records will be retained in accordance with relevant regulations 

applicable to electronic record retention. 

12.2 Hard copies of all written contracts shall be retained as follows: 

 

12.3 If legislation related to any individual Contract stipulates a longer retention period than this, 

then the legislation requirements takes precedence over the Council’s minimum periods. 

12.4 Once executed, the Council shall retain one original of the complete Contract documents in 

line with the timescales in the table above and one copy of the complete Contract 

documents shall be provided to the Contractor.  

Contracts with a value between £5,000 

and £249,999.99 

 

for six years after the end of the Contract 

all sealed Contracts and Contracts with a 

value of £250,000 and above 

for twelve years after the end of the Contract 

Contracts that are grant funded regardless 

of value 

Must comply with retention period above or the 

terms and conditions of the grant, whichever is the 

longer 

Page 345



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 150 
   

SCHEDULE 1  

Local arrangements for Trafford Council 

There are no local arrangements. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES 
 

1.  Recruitment and appointment - General 
 

(1)  Declarations 
 

i)  The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for 
appointment as an officer to state in writing whether they are the 
parent, grandparent, partner, child, stepchild, adopted child, 
grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an 
existing councillor or officer of the Council; or of the partner of 
such persons. 

 
ii) No candidate so related to a councillor or an officer will be 

appointed without the authority of the relevant chief officer or an 
officer nominated by him/her. 

 
(2)  Seeking support for appointment. 

 
i)  The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly 

seeks the support of any councillor for any appointment with the 
Council.  The content of this paragraph will be included in any 
recruitment information. 

 
ii)  No councillor will seek support for any person for any 

appointment with the Council. 
 
 (3) Definition of Chief Officer 
 

Throughout these Officer Employment Procedure Rules the term “Chief 
Officer” shall include all officers employed on Joint Negotiating 
Committee (JNC) National Salary Framework and Conditions of 
Service Handbook for Chief Officers. 

 
2. Recruitment of Head of Paid Service, Chief Officers and Directors  

Page 346



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 151 
   

 
(1) Where the Council proposes to appoint a Head of Paid Service, Chief 

Officer or Director and it is not proposed that the appointment be made 
exclusively from among their existing officers, the Council will: 

 
(a)  draw up a statement specifying: 

 
(i)  the duties of the officer concerned; and  
(ii) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person 

to be appointed; 
(b) make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way 

as is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are 
qualified to apply for it; and 

(c)  make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in    
paragraph 1(a) to be sent to any person on request. 

 
(2) Where a post has been advertised as provided in (1) (b), the Council’s 

Appointments and Appeals Panel shall – 
 

(a) interview all qualified applicants for the post, or 
(b) select a shortlist of such qualified applicants and interview those 

included on the shortlist. 
 

(3) Where no qualified person has applied, the Council shall make further 
arrangements for advertisement in accordance with (1)(b). 

 
3. Appointment of Head of Paid Service 
 

(1) The Executive Notice and Objection Process must be followed before 
the appointment is referred to full Council for approval. 
 

(2) The full Council must approve the appointment of the Head of Paid 
Service before an offer of appointment is made following the 
recommendation of such an appointment by an Appointments and 
Appeals Panel. 

 
(3) The Executive Notice and Objection process shall be as follows: 

 
(a) the Proper Officer shall be notified of the name of the person to 

whom the Appointments and Appeals Panel wishes to make the 
offer of an appointment and any other particulars which the 
Appointments and Appeals Panel considers are relevant to the 
appointment; 

 
(b) the Proper Officer has notified every member of the Executive of 
 

(i) the name of the person to whom the offer of an 
appointment is to be made and any other relevant 
particulars notified to the Proper Officer; and  

 

Page 347



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 152 
   

(ii)  the period within which any objection to the making of the 
offer is to be made by the Executive Leader on behalf of 
the Executive to the Proper Officer; and 

 
(c)    either – 
 

(i) the Executive Leader has, within the period specified 
under (2)(b(ii), notified the Proper Officer that neither 
(s)he nor any other member of the Executive has any 
objection to the making of the offer; 

 
(ii) the Proper Officer has notified the Appointments and 

Appeals Panel that no objection was received by him/her 
within that period from the Executive Leader; or 

 
(iii) the Proper Officer is satisfied that any objection received 

from the Executive Leader within that period is not 
material or is not well-founded. 

 
4. Appointment of Corporate Directors and Directors  
 
 Other than in exceptional circumstances (exceptional circumstances to be 

determined by the Proper Officer in consultation with the Chair of Employment 
Committee): 

 
(1) An Appointments and Appeals Panel will appoint Statutory and Non-

Statutory Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers, as defined in the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989, (definitions set out below) in 
accordance with Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) Conditions of 
Service and Council and government policies and procedures. 

 
   Definitions: 
  

Statutory Chief Officer – director of children’s services, director of adult 
social services and officer with responsibility for the administration of 
the Council’s financial affairs 
 
Non-Statutory Chief Officer – a person for whom the Head of Paid 
Service is directly responsible; a person who, as respects all or most of 
their duties (excluding secretarial/clerical duties), is required to report 
directly to or is directly accountable to the Head of Paid Service or the 
Authority itself 
 
Deputy Chief Officer – a person who, as respects all or most of their 
duties (excluding secretarial/clerical duties), is required to report 
directly to or is directly accountable to the one or more of the chief 
officers 

 
(2) An offer of appointment must not be made by or on behalf of the 

Appointments and Appeals Panel until the Executive Notice and 
Objection Process has been followed. 

Page 348



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 153 
   

 
(3) All decisions shall be reported to Employment Committee prior to 

reporting to full Council. 
 
5. Other appointments 
 

  (1) Officers below Deputy Chief Officer  
 

Officers below the level of Deputy Chief Officer can only be appointed 
by the Chief Executive or officers nominated by him/her, and shall not 
be made by councillors. 

 
(2) Assistants to political groups  

 
Appointment of an assistant to a political group shall be made in 
accordance with the wishes of that political group. 

 
6. Disciplinary action 
 

(1) Suspension 
 

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
may be suspended whilst an investigation takes place into alleged 
misconduct.  That suspension will be on full pay and last no longer than 
two months. 

  
 

(2) Disciplinary action against the Head of Paid Service, 
 Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Chief Finance Officer 

 
No other disciplinary action may be taken in respect of any of the 
officers described in (1) above except in accordance with a 
recommendation in a report made by a disciplinary panel under the 
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015. The Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for Head 
of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Chief Finance 
Officer is set out as an appendix to these Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules. 

  

(3) Disciplinary action against officers below deputy chief officer 
 

Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against any 
officer below Head of Service level except where such involvement is 
necessary for any investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct.   

 

7.  Dismissal 
 

(1)       Head of Paid Service 
 

(a) Subject to 8(2) the full Council must approve the dismissal of the 
Head of Paid Service before notice of dismissal is given following 
the recommendation of dismissal by a committee or sub-

Page 349



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 154 
   

committee of the Council. That committee or sub-committee must 
include at least one member of the Executive. 

 

(b)   Notice of the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service must not be 
given by or on behalf of the committee or sub-committee (“the 
Committee”) until  __ 

 

(i) the Committee has notified the Proper Officer that they 
wish to dismiss the Head of Paid Service and of any 
particulars which the Committee considers are relevant to 
the dismissal; 

 

(ii) the Proper Officer has notified every member of the 
Executive  

 

(a) that the Committee wishes to dismiss the Head of 
Paid Service and of any other particulars relevant to 
the dismissal which the Committee has notified to 
the Proper Officer; and 

 

(b) of the period within which any objection to the 
dismissal is to be made by the Executive Leader on 
behalf of the Executive to the Proper Officer; and 

 

(iii) either – 
 

(a) the Executive Leader has, within the period specified 
in the notice under (1)(b)(ii) above, notified the 
Committee that neither (s)he nor any other member 
of the Executive has any objection to the dismissal; 

 

(b) the Proper Officer has notified the Committee that no 
objection was received by him/her within that period 
from the Executive Leader; or 

(c) the Committee is satisfied that any objection from 
the Executive Leader within that period is not 
material or well founded. 

 
    (2) Directors and Heads of Service 
 

(a) A Committee, sub-committee or another officer may discharge the 
function of the dismissal of a director or head of service.  If a 
committee or sub-committee is discharging the function that 
committee or sub-committee must include at least one member of 
the Executive. 

 
(b) Notice of the dismissal of a director or head of service must not be 

given by a committee, sub-committee or officer (“the Committee”) 
until the procedure set out in 7(1)(b)(i), (ii) and (iii) above has 
been followed. 

 
(3)      Officers below Head of Service 

 

Page 350



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 155 
   

Dismissal of officers below head of service (other than assistants to 
political groups) is the responsibility of the Head of Paid Service or 
his/her nominee, and shall not be made by Councillors. 

 
8.  Appeals 
 

(1) Nothing set out above shall prevent a councillor from serving as a 
member of any committee or sub-committee established by the Council 
to consider an appeal by  ___ 

 

(a) another person against any decision relating to the appointment of 
that person as an officer of the Council; or 

 
(b) an officer of the Council other than the Head of Paid Service 

against any decision relating to the dismissal or, or taking 
disciplinary action against, that officer. 

 
(2)     Prior to a meeting of full Council to approve the dismissal of the Head 

of Paid Service a committee to consider any appeal by the Head of 
Paid Service must be established.  The Members appointed to that 
appeal committee must not attend or participate in that part of the 
Council meeting which considers the dismissal of the Head of Paid 
Service. 

 
 
 
 
9.  Proper Officer 
 

For the purposes of these Officer Employment Procedure Rules the Proper 
Officer shall be the Head of Paid Service except: 
 

where the dismissal relates to the Head of Paid Service when the Proper 
Officer shall be the Monitoring Officer, or in the Monitoring Officer’s 
absence, the Corporate Director of Finance and Systems shall act in the 
Proper Officer’s stead. 

Page 351



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 156 
   

Appendix to the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules 

 
Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure for Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 

Officer and Section 151 Chief Finance Officer 
 
Employment Committee on 10 August 2015 adopted the procedure, as provided for 
in the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015, as follows: 
 
 
1. Where an allegation of potential misconduct is made against the Head of Paid 

Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer (the ‘protected officers’), then 

the Leader of the Council, in conjunction with the Corporate Director of Strategy 

and Resources (and Head of Paid Service, where the allegation is not related to 

them) will consider whether the issues require investigation and, where this is the 

case, determine the most appropriate person to conduct the investigatory 

process. 

2. This will ordinarily be an external, independent investigator, with the relevant 

background, skill set and experience to conduct investigations of this nature. The 

independent investigator will undertake their investigation in accordance with the 

ACAS Code of Practice. 

3. The Leader of the Council, Head of Paid Service (where appropriate) and the 

Corporate Director of Strategy and Resources, will consider whether suspension 

is appropriate or whether there are any other suitable alternative ways of 

managing the situation.  Where suspension is deemed appropriate, the Corporate 

Director of Strategy and Resources will ensure that agreed suspension protocols 

are followed. 

4. The findings from the investigation will be presented to a Panel; this Panel must 

consist of a least 2 independent persons, who must be drawn from those 

appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011.  In addition, the Panel 

will comprise of Elected Members who will ordinarily be members of the 

Employment Committee and will be politically balanced in line with the rules of 

proportionality.  The Panel will be advised by the Corporate Director of Strategy 

and Resources (or their representative). 

5. The ‘protected officers’ are entitled to make personal representations to the Panel 

and have the right to be accompanied by their Trade Union representative or a 

work colleague if they so wish. 

6. The Panel will consider the conclusions of the investigation and any 

representations from the protected officer concerned. 

7. Where it is considered by the Panel that no action or action short of dismissal 

should take place, then the Panel can progress in confirming the outcome of the 

Page 352



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 157 
   

Panel meeting and there is no requirement to put the matter forward for an 

authority vote. 

Appendix to the Officer 

Employment Procedure Rules 

8. Where the Panel determines that action short of dismissal is the appropriate 

sanction, the protected officer has the right of appeal to a politically-balanced 

Appeals Committee ordinarily made up of members of the Employment 

Committee, who were not involved in the Panel meeting.  The appeal hearing will 

take the form of a review of the case and the decision that was taken by the 

Panel. The protected officer will be invited to make their verbal/written 

representations to the Appeals Committee for consideration. Where the protected 

officer chooses to present verbally, representatives from the Panel will also be in 

attendance. The Appeals Committee will be advised by the Corporate Director of 

Strategy and Resources (or their representative). All relevant parties will be 

provided with the relevant documentation in advance of the Appeals Committee. 

9. Where the proposal is to dismiss, the Executive Objections Procedure will be 

followed prior to the matter going forward to full Council. 

10. On receipt of any objections, it is for the Panel to decide whether they are 

material and well-founded.  If they are, then the Panel will need to consider the 

effect of the objection and act accordingly.  For example, this may require further 

investigation. 

11. Where there are no objections or any objection is deemed as not material or well-

founded, the matter will then be considered at full Council, who will vote at a 

meeting on whether to approve the proposal to dismiss. There must be an 

interlude of at least 20 working days between the full Council meeting and the 

date of the original Panel meeting. 

12. At their meeting, full Council will consider the original investigation report and the 

recommendations of the Panel, along with any verbal/written representation from 

the protected officer. Where the protected officer chooses to present verbally, 

representatives from the Panel will also be in attendance.  All relevant parties will 

be provided with the relevant documentation in advance of full Council. 

13. The decision of Council will be by way of a majority vote and will be final. 

14. Where a decision to dismiss is approved by Council, then the protected officer 

has no further right of appeal.  

15. It is in the interests of all parties that the process should be conducted 

expeditiously, but fairly and that any delays in the procedure are avoided, 

wherever possible. 

Page 353



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 158 
   

16. This process will also be adopted in cases where there are issues in relation to 

capability, which are not resolved through the provision of additional guidance, 

training, development and support. 

Appendix to the Officer 

Employment Procedure Rules 

 

‘Protected Officers’ Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure Flowchart 
 
The following flowchart provides a summary of the procedure: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Initial Action 
The Leader of the Council, Head of Paid Service (where 
appropriate) and the Corporate Director of Strategy and 

Resources appoints an independent investigator  

Panel Hearing 
A Panel, comprising of 2 independent persons, together 
with Elected Members who will ordinarily be members of 

the Employment Committee and the Corporate Director of 
Strategy and Resources (or their representative in an 

advisory capacity), hears the case, including 
representations from the protected officer  

The independent investigator undertakes an investigation 
in line with ACAS Code of Practice and produces a report 

with detailed findings 
 
 

Any recommendation on no action or action short of 
dismissal can be confirmed by the Panel without any referral 

to full Council. 

Appeals Committee 
The protected officer has a right of appeal against a 
sanction of action short of dismissal to an Appeals 

Committee ordinarily made up of Employment Committee 
members who were not involved in the Panel meeting.  The 

Appeals Committee will review the case and the decision 
made, together with verbal/written representation from the 

Page 354



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 159 
   

 

 
 

 

Appendix to the Officer 

Employment Procedure Rules 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Full Council 
 Where the proposal is to dismiss, full Council considers 

all written documentation relating to the case for 
dismissal, including the advice, views and 

recommendation from the Panel, together with 
verbal/written representation from the protected officer 
and the Panel. An interlude is required of at least 20 

working days between the original Panel meeting and 
the full Council meeting. 

Executive Objections Procedure 
 

Where the proposal is to dismiss, the Executive Objections 
Procedure will be followed before the proposal being 

considered by Council 
 

Under the Executive Objections 
Procedure, members of the 

Executive have a chance to object 
to the proposed dismissal.   

If there are no objections or it is 
deemed that any objection is not 
material or well-founded, then the 
proposal to dismiss can proceed. 

It is for the Panel to decide whether 
any objections are material and 
well-founded.  If they are, then the 
Panel will need to consider the 
effect of the objection and act 
accordingly.  For example, this may 
require further investigation. 

Page 355



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 160 
   

 

 

 

Council votes on whether or not to dismiss (majority 
vote) and their decision will be final. 

Page 356



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 161 
   

Trafford Council Petition Scheme 
 
 
The petitions process allows members of the public to have direct influence on the 
political process and to raise concerns that are important to them.  
 
Members of the public can submit petitions on the following  
 

 Issues relating to the Council's responsibilities.  
 Issues which affect the borough of Trafford or its communities, as long as the 

Council is a position to exercise some degree of influence.  
 Anything relating to an improvement in the economic, social or environmental 

well-being of the borough to which any of the Council's partners could 
contribute. 

 
The Council will respond to all the petitions it receives. We will be as flexible as we 
can when handling your petition so that it is considered quickly and in the most 
appropriate way.  
 
Essentially there are three types of petitions:  
 

• “Ordinary” petitions  
 

These must be signed by at least 50 people but the Council will use its 
discretion where there are fewer than 50 signatories in cases where there is 
clear local support for action (e.g. where the residents of a small community 
have petitioned for traffic calming measures)  

 
• Petitions requiring debate  

 
Petitions which contain 300 signatures or more will be debated by the 
Executive (or the relevant Committee if the petition does not relate to an 
Executive function). 
 
Petitions which contain 500 signatures or more will be debated by full Council 

 
• Petitions to hold council employees to account  

 
Petitions which call for evidence from a senior council employee and have at 
least 1,500 signatures will trigger that response.  

 
1. How do I submit a petition?  
 
Petitions can be sent or presented to the council.  All petitions sent or presented to 
the council will receive an acknowledgement from the council within 10 working days 
of receipt. This acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the petition.  
 
A petition is defined as a communication in writing which is signed by the appropriate 
number of qualifying persons or has been created via an e-petition using the 

Page 357



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 162 
   

Council’s website or other petition website. We will treat something as a petition if it 
is identified as being a petition, or if it seems to us that it is intended to be a petition. 
 
Paper petitions can be sent to:  
 

Democratic Services 
Trafford Council 
Talbot Road 
Stretford 
Manchester 
M32 0TH  
 

Or by email democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk 
 
Or via the Council’s petition website at www.trafford.gov.uk 
 
Digital petitions created on other petition websites will be accepted so long as 
Democratic Services are informed about the petition via email or post.   The petition 
must be sent by the petition organiser.  Democratic Services must be able to verify 
that the signatories are in accordance with the requirements of the petition scheme.   
 
If you would like to present your petition to the council, or would like your councillor 
or someone else to present it on your behalf, please contact Democratic Services on 
0161 912 1387 at least 10 working days before the meeting and they will talk you 
through the process. 
 

Petitions submitted to the council must include a clear and concise statement 
covering the subject of the petition. It should state  
 

• What action the petitioners wish the council to take  
• The name and address and signature of any person supporting the petition (the 

address can be an address where a signatory lives, works or studies)  
 
Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for the 
petition organiser. This is the person we will contact to explain how we will respond 
to the petition. The contact details of the petition organiser will not be placed on the 
website. If the petition does not identify a petition organiser, we will contact the first 
signatories to the petition to agree who should act as the petition organiser.  
 
Petitions must include a signature and the signatory’s name and address. This can 
be an address where the signatory lives, works or studies.  
 
Before submitting a petition you should first check with your local councillor or with 
the Council to see if the Council is already acting on your concerns and that the 
Council is the most appropriate body to receive your petition as sometimes your 
petition may be more appropriate for another public body.  
 
Once a petition has been submitted to Democratic Services, the Council will not 
accept any updates or additional signatories.    
 
 

Page 358

http://www.trafford.gov.uk/


 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 163 
   

 
 
 
2. Who can submit a petition?  
 
Anyone who lives, works or studies in Trafford, including under 18s, can sign or 
organise a petition.  
 
3. Are there any petitions which the Council cannot accept?  
 
We believe that the vast majority of petitions we receive will be accepted but in 
certain circumstances petitions will not be accepted, including:-  
 
• If the petition applies to a planning application, certain licensing matters, is a 

statutory petition (for example requesting a referendum on having an elected 
mayor), or on a matter where there is already an existing right of appeal or a 
separate complaints process. 

• Any petition which we consider to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate. 
We will explain the reasons for this in our acknowledgement of the petition.  

• Where a person or organisation (or someone on their behalf) has submitted a 
petition which is the same or substantially the same as one submitted within the 
previous 12 months  

 
If we decide that a petition is not acceptable then we will let the petition organiser 
know our reasons.  
 
If a petition relates to the responsibilities of one of our partners then, within 10 
working days of its receipt, the petition will be forwarded to that authority for them to 
deal with, unless the petition relates to an improvement in the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the borough. In those cases the petitions will be 
considered under the Council’s scheme.  
 
It may be inappropriate for the council to deal with certain petitions during periods 
when it is subject to restrictions immediately before elections or referendums. In 
these circumstances, the petition organiser will be informed of the date when the 
petition will be considered, or when material relating to it will be published on the 
council’s website. 
 
4. What will the council do when it receives my petition?  
 
We will acknowledge the petition within 10 working days of receiving it and let the 
petition organiser know what we plan to do with the petition and when they can 
expect to hear from us again. To ensure that people know what we are doing in 
response to the petitions we receive the details of all the petitions submitted to us will 
be published on our website. Whenever possible we will also publish all 
correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be removed).  
 
If the petition needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take.  
 
Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how many 
people have signed it, but may include one or more of the following:  

Page 359



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 164 
   

 
 taking the action requested in the petition  
 considering the petition at a council meeting  
 holding an inquiry into the matter  
 undertaking research into the matter  
 holding a public meeting  
 carrying out consultation  
  holding a meeting with the petitioners  
 referring the petition for consideration by the council’s overview and scrutiny 

committee  
 writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the 

petition  
 
In addition to these steps, the council will consider all the specific actions it can 
potentially take on the issues highlighted in a petition.  
 
Your petition may be submitted to one of the Council’s formal member meetings if it 
has the relevant amount of signatures where elected councillors will decide how to 
respond to the petition. These meetings will be held in public and petitioners are 
welcome to attend the meeting to observe the proceedings. The petition organiser 
will be entitled briefly to address the meeting.   
Depending on the subject matter your petition may be submitted to the Council, the 
Executive, or one of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees*. There are 
two exceptions to this  
 

 If your petition contains more than 500 signatures then it must be debated by 
the Council.  

 If your petition is asking for a senior council employee to give evidence at a 
public meeting then it will be considered by one of the Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, provided it contains at least 1,500 signatures.  

 
*Overview and scrutiny committees are committees of councillors who are 
responsible for scrutinising the work of the council – in other words, the overview and 
scrutiny committee has the power to hold the council’s decision makers to account.  
 
If your petition is about something over which the council has no direct control (for 
example the local railway or hospital) we will consider making representations on 
behalf of the community to the relevant body. The council works with a large number 
of local partners and where possible will work with these partners to respond to your 
petition. If we are not able to do this for any reason (for example if what the petition 
calls for conflicts with council policy), then we will set out the reasons for this to you.  
 
If your petition is about something that a different council is responsible for we will 
give consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. It might consist of 
simply forwarding the petition to the other council, but could involve other steps. In 
any event we will always notify you of the action we have taken.  
 
5. Debating Petitions 
 
If a petition contains more than 300 signatures it will be debated by the Executive (or 
the relevant Committee if the petition does not relate to an Executive function).  

Page 360



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 165 
   

Petitions which contain 500 signatures or more will be debated by full Council, 
which means the issue raised in the petition will be discussed at a meeting which all 
Councillors can attend. A petition containing at least 1,500 signatures asking for a 
senior council employee to give evidence at a public meeting will be debated at an  
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting. The council will endeavour to consider 
the petition at its next meeting, although on some occasions this may not be possible 
and consideration will then take place at the following meeting.  
 
The petition organiser will be given five minutes to present the petition at the meeting 
and the petition will then be discussed by councillors for a maximum of 15 minutes. 
The council will decide how to respond to the petition at this meeting. They may 
decide to take the action the petition requests, not to take the action requested for 
reasons put forward in the debate, refer the issue to the Executive (if considered at a 
meeting other than the Executive) or to commission further investigation into the 
matter, for example by a relevant committee. The petition organiser will receive 
written confirmation of this decision which will also be published on our website.  
 
 
6. Evidence from senior council employees  
 
Your petition may ask for a senior council employee to give evidence at a public 
meeting about something for which they are responsible as part of their job. For 
example, your petition may ask a senior council employee to explain progress on an 
issue, or to explain the advice given to elected members to enable them to make a 
particular decision. The petition must relate to the employee's job, it cannot relate to 
their personal circumstances or character.  
 
If your petition contains at least 1,500 signatures, the relevant employee will give 
evidence at a public meeting of one of the council’s overview and scrutiny 
committee. This will happen within 30 days of the petition being accepted.  
 
Only the following senior employees of the Council can be called to give evidence  
 

 Chief Executive  
 Corporate Director Place 
 Corporate Director Governance and Community Strategy 
 Corporate Director Strategy and Resources  
 Corporate Director Children’s Services 
 Corporate Director Adult’s Services 
 Corporate Director Finance and Systems  

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may decide that it would be more appropriate 
for another member of staff to give evidence instead of any person named in the 
petition – for instance if the person has changed jobs. The Committee may also 
decide to call the relevant councillor to attend the meeting. Committee members will 
ask the questions at this meeting, but you will be able to suggest questions to the 
chair of the committee by contacting the Corporate Director Governance and 
Community Strategy up to three working days before the meeting.  
 

Page 361



 

Trafford Council Constitution – NovemberSeptember 2020  Part 4 Page 166 
   

After the meeting, the Committee will submit a report to the Executive which will be 
considered at the next available meeting of the Executive. The petition organiser will 
receive a copy of this report.  
 
7. What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt with properly?  
 
If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition organiser 
has the right to request that the Scrutiny Committee (one of the council’s overview 
and scrutiny committee) review the steps that the council has taken in response to 
your petition.  
 
The Scrutiny Committee will consider your request at its next meeting, although on 
some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will take place at the 
following meeting. Should the Committee feel the Council has not dealt with your 
petition adequately, it may use any of its powers to deal with the matter. These 
powers include instigating an investigation, making recommendations to the 
Executive or arranging for the matter to be considered at a meeting of the full 
Council.  
 
Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed of the 
results within seven days. The results of the review will also be published on our 
website.  
 
8.  Is there anything else I can do to have my say?  
 
As a Council we try to identify and solve problems at an early stage. We are 
committed to receiving feedback as this helps us to develop and review services. We 
recognise that petitions are just one way in which people can let us know about their 
concerns. There are a number of other ways in which you can have your say 
including  
 
• Writing to the appropriate Head of Service or Director 
•• Contacting your local councillor  
• Making a complaint through the Council’s complaints system 
 

 
 

Page 362



1 
 

 
 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:  Council 
Date:   25 November 2020 
Report for:   Information and Decision 
Report of:  Executive Member for Finance and Governance  
 
Report Title 
 

 
Trafford’s Constitutional changes in response to the Local Government Ethical 
Standards areas of best practice published by the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life in January 2019. 
 

 
Summary 
 

 
The Committee on Standards in Public Life completed an in-depth review of ethical 
Standards within local authorities in 2018. The review focused upon how Local 
Authorities had responded to the changes made by the Localism Act 2011. The final 
report was published in January 2019 and contained 15 areas of best practice which 
Local Authorities were to implement. Of the 15 areas of best practice 5 require Council 
to be notified prior to them being implemented. 
 
This report details the 5 areas of best practice, what Trafford has done to address 
each one, and the documents (Appendices 1-4) which contain the proposed changes.  
 

 
 
Recommendations 
 

 
Council are asked to; 

 
a) agree amendments to the Council’s Code of Conduct and Complaints 

procedure within the Constitution and; 
 
b) agree to adopt the decision notice and two stage public interest test for 

complaints against Members of Trafford Council. 
 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Alexander Murray 
Extension:  4250 
 
Background Papers:  None  
 
 

Page 363

Agenda Item 11b



2 
 

Implications 
 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 
 

Council’s Constitution, Members’ Code of Conduct 
and related policies and procedures.   

Financial  None   

Legal Implications: None  

Equality/Diversity Implications None 

Sustainability Implications None 

Staffing/E-Government/Asset 
Management Implications 

None  

Risk Management Implications   Revision of the Council’s Code of Conduct and 
related policies and procedures in line with the 
areas of best practice of the CSPL will reduce the 
risk of legal action being taken against the 
Council. 

Health and Safety Implications None  

 
 
1.0 Background 
 
1.1  The Committee on Standards in Public Life conducted a review of Local 

Government Ethical Standards in 2018. As part of the review all Local 
Authorities and Councillors were asked to complete a consultation document.  

 
1.2  The feedback from all Local Authorities and Councillors was taken and the 

subsequent report was published in January 2019. The report contained 15 
areas of best practice which all Councils were to enact by June 2020.  The 
Standards Committee were informed at their meeting in March 2019 that 
Trafford already met a number of these areas of best practice. An action plan 
laying out how the Council would meet all 15 areas of best practice by June 
2020 was presented to the Committee in January 2020.  

 
1.3  In March 2020 eight documents were submitted to the Standards Committee. 

The Committee suggested a number of amendments prior to agreeing the 
documents. Of the eight documents four required sign off by full Council prior to 
them being implemented.  

 
2.0  Areas of Best Practice. 
 
2.1  The four Documents attached to this report address areas of best practice 1, 2, 

3, 6, and 9 from the Local Government Ethical Standards report published by 
the Committee on Standards in Public Life in January 2019, which are detailed 
below. 

 
2.2  Best practice 1 and 2 relate to the content of the Council’s Code of Conduct 

and require that it includes: prohibitions on bullying and harassment; a 
requirement that Councillors comply with any formal standards investigations; 
and a prohibition of trivial or malicious allegations by Councillors. The Council’s 
Code of Conduct has been updated to reflect these requirements which have 
been highlighted within Appendix 1. The wording for the prohibitions on bullying 
and harassment were adapted from the Standards Commission for Scotland’s 

Page 364



3 
 

Advice for Councillors on Bullying and Harassment published in July 2018. The 
remaining wording comes directly from area of Best Practice 2. 

 
2.2 Best Practice 3 lays out how Councils should review their Code of Conduct. It 

was planned that following the acceptance of the updates to the Council’s Code 
of Conduct the revised version would be sent to interested community 
organisations, which includes Trafford’s four Parish Councils, for feedback and 
be benchmarked against Geographical and statistical neighbouring authorities. 
However, due to the outbreak of Covid 19 these actions have been postponed 
until the revision of the Code of Conduct in 2021. 

 
2.3  Best Practice 6 requires Councils to publish a clear and straight forward public 

interest test for allegations. Appendix 2 is a two stage public interest test which 
has been adapted from the Local Government Ombudsman for Wales’s 
website.  

 
2.5  Best Practice 9 requires councils to publish a decision notice as soon as 

possible once a formal investigation is completed and a decision is reached. 
Appendix 3 is the draft decision notice which has been adapted from the 
Council’s Executive Decision notice. The draft has sections to gather all the 
information requested for inclusion by the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life.  

 
2.6  The Standards Committee expressed concerns about publishing decision 

notices and the possible identification of complainants or Subject Councillors 
from the notice. To address these concerns the notice is to be sent to the 
complainant and the subject Councillor for comment and to ensure they are 
satisfied that the wording of the proposed notice sufficiently protects their 
identity. Appendix 4 is a draft version of the Council’s Members Complaints 
procedure which includes the requirement for the publication of the decision 
notice. 

 
2.7 All four of the documents were submitted to and agreed for recommendation to 

Council by the Standards Committee 4 March 2020. 
 
3.0  Recommendations  
 
3.1 Council are asked to; 
 

a) agree amendments to the Council’s Code of Conduct and Complaints 
procedure within the Constitution and; 
 

b) agree to adopt the decision notice and two stage public interest test for 
complaints against Members of Trafford Council. 

Page 365



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS  
 
Preamble to Code of Conduct for Members 
 
Trafford Council’s current Code of Conduct for Members was adopted by the Council 
on 19th September 2012. The Code sets out the conduct expected of Members of 
the Council, both elected and co-opted.  
 
Underpinning the Code of Conduct are the seven principles set out in section 28(1) 
of the Localism Act 2011. These principles define the standards that members 
should uphold and serve as a reminder of the purpose of the Code of Conduct. 
 

The General Principles 
 Selflessness  
 Integrity  
 Objectivity  
 Accountability  
 Openness 
 Honesty 
 Leadership  

 
 
  

Page 367



Appendix 1 
 

THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
Part 1 General provisions 
 
1. Introduction and interpretation  
 
1.1 This Code applies to you as a member of the Council.  
 
1.2 It is your responsibility to comply with this Code. If you fail to do so it may 

result in a sanction being applied by the Council. Failure to take appropriate 
action in respect of a disclosable pecuniary interest may result in a criminal 
conviction and a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and /or 
disqualification from office for a period of up to 5 years.  

 
1.3 In this Code - “meeting” means any meeting of: 
 
(a) the Council; 
 
(b) any of the Council’s committees or sub-committees, joint committees or joint 

sub-committees;  
 
(c) the Executive or any committee of the Executive. 
 
1.4 “Member” includes a co-opted member and an appointed member. 
 
2. Scope  
 
2.1 Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) and (3), you must comply with this Code 

whenever you are acting as a member or co-opted member of the Council or 
an appointed member of a joint committee, and, references to your official 
capacity are construed accordingly.  

 
2.2 This Code does not have effect in relation to your conduct other than where it 

is in your official capacity.  
 
2.3 Where you act as a representative of the Council—  
 
(a)  on another relevant authority, including the Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority, the Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Authority and the Greater 
Manchester Waste Disposal Authority, you must, when acting for that other 
authority, comply with that other authority’s code of conduct; or  

 
(b)  on any other body, you must, when acting for that other body, comply with this 

Code, except and insofar as it conflicts with any other lawful obligations to 
which that other body may be subject.  

 
3. General obligations  
 
3.1 You must not: 
 

Page 368



Appendix 1 
 

(a) do anything which may knowingly cause the Council to breach the Equality 
Act 2010; 

 
(b) be abusive to any person;  
 
(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be: 
 
(i) a complainant,  
(ii) a witness, or 
(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings,  
 

in relation to an allegation that a member (including yourself) has failed to 
comply with his or her authority’s code of conduct; or  

 
(d)  do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of 

those who work for, or on behalf of, the Council.  
 
(e) raise trivial or malicious allegations against other Members of the Council. 
 
4.  You must not harass anyone 
  
4.1  Harassment is any unwelcome behaviour or conduct, with no legitimate 

workplace purpose, which makes someone feel offended, humiliated, 
intimidated, frightened and / or uncomfortable at work. Harassment can be 
experienced directly or indirectly (such as being in the room while 
unacceptable conduct is being displayed and being affected by it), and can 
occur as an isolated incident or as a course of persistent behaviour.  

 
4.2  It is important to note that even unintentional behaviour can still be classed as 

harassment. Harassment is essentially about what the recipient deems to be 
offensive, not about what was intended. You should be aware, therefore, of 
the impact your conduct has on others and that what may seem harmless to 
you can be offensive to someone else.  

 
4.3  Harassment can occur through physical contact or through oral or written 

comments (including ones made online). The following list provides some 
examples but it is, by no means, exhaustive:  

• Unwelcome physical contact such as touching or invading ‘personal 
space’;  

• Inappropriate remarks or questioning such as comments about 
someone’s appearance, lewd comments, and offensive jokes (such as 
ones of a racial, sexual or sectarian nature);  

• Intrusive questioning, including the persistent discussion of a person’s 
sexual practices, misogynistic behaviour, sexual orientation or 
religious beliefs (either directly or with others); and  

• Sending unwelcome emails, messages or notes; circulating or 
displaying explicit or inappropriate images.  

 
 
 

Page 369



Appendix 1 
 

5.  You must not bully anyone 
 
5.1  Bullying is inappropriate and unwelcome behaviour which is offensive and 

intimidating, and which makes an individual or group feel undermined, 
humiliated or insulted. Again, it is the impact of any behaviour rather than the 
intent which is the key.  

5.2  Bullying usually arises as a result of an individual misusing their power 
(usually derived from status or some other position of strength) and, again, 
can occur through all means of interaction. Bullying tends to be a pattern of 
behaviour or can be a one off serious incident that becomes objectionable or 
intimidating. The examples in the following list are, by no means, exhaustive:  

 
• Unwelcome physical, verbal or non-verbal conduct;  
• Intimidating behaviour including verbal abuse or the making of threats;  
• Making someone’s working life difficult;  
• Disparaging, ridiculing or mocking comments and remarks;  
• Physical violence; and  
• Deliberately excluding an individual from conversations, work or social 

activities, in which they have a right or legitimate expectation to 
participate.  

 
6. You must not:  
 
(a) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a 
confidential nature, except where: 
 
(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;  
 
(ii) you are required by law to do so; 
  
(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 

professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the 
information to any other person; or  

 
(iv) the disclosure is:  
 
(a)  reasonable and in the public interest; and  
 
(b) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the 

Council; or  
 
(b) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that 

person is entitled by law.  
 
7.  You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 

regarded as bringing your office or the Council into disrepute. 
  
 
 

Page 370



Appendix 1 
 

8.  You: 
 
(a)  must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly to 

confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or 
disadvantage; and  

 
(b)  must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 

authority:  
 
(i)  act in accordance with the Council’s reasonable requirements; and 
  
(ii) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes 

(including party political purposes); and  
 
(c)  must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 

under the Local Government Act 1986.  
 
(d) must, in the event that a complaint or allegation has been raised against you, 

comply with any formal standards investigation as outlined in the 

“Arrangements for dealing with complaints about the Code of Conduct 

for members” within the constitution. 

 
9. 
  
(1)  When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any 

relevant advice provided to you by 
 
(a) The Council’s chief finance officer; or  
 
(b)  The Council’s monitoring officer,  

 
where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her personal statutory duties.  

  
(2) You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any 

statutory requirements and any reasonable additional requirements 
imposed by your authority.  

 
 
Part 2 - Disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
10.  Notification of disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
10.1 Within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, you must 
 notify the Monitoring Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests’. 
 
 [Note: Standing orders require existing members and co-opted members of 
 the Council to notify the Monitoring Officer of disclosable pecuniary interests 
 within 28 days of the adoption of the Code] 
 

Page 371



Appendix 1 
 

10.2 A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or of your partner if 
you are aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the 
table below. 

 
10.3 "Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are 
 living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are 
 civil partners. 
 
 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, trade, profession 
or vocation 

 

 

Sponsorship 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contracts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Land 

 

 

Licences 

 

 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain 

 

Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 
12 month period prior to notification of 
the interest in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying 
out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses.  This 
includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and 
Labour Relations (Consolidation Act) 
1992 (a). 

 

Any contract which is made between 
you or your partner (or a body in 
which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest) and the Council -  

(a) under which goods or services are 
to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and  

(b) which has not been fully 
discharged. 

 

Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of Trafford Council. 

 

Any licence (alone or jointly with 
others) to occupy land in the area of 
Trafford Council for a month or 
longer. 

Page 372



Appendix 1 
 

 

Corporate Tenancies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Securities 

 

Any tenancy where (to your 
knowledge) -  

(a) the landlord is the Council: and 

 

(b) the tenant is a body in which you 
or your partner has a beneficial 
interest. 

 

Any beneficial interest in securities of 
a body where - 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has 
a place of business or land in the 
area of Trafford Council; and 

(b) either - 

(i) the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is 
of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

 
10.4 For the purposes of the above  
 
 (a) " a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest"  
  means a firm in which you or your partner is a partner or a body  
  corporate of which you or your partner is a director, or in the   
  securities of which you or  your partner has a beneficial interest. 
 
 (b) "director" includes a member of the committee of management of  
  an industrial and provident society. 
 
 (c) "land" excludes an easement, interest or right in or over land which  
  does not carry with it a right for you or your partner (alone or jointly) 
  to occupy the land or receive income, and 
 
 (d) "securities" means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan  
  stock,  bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the  
  meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other  

Page 373



Appendix 1 
 

  securities of any description, other than money deposited with a  
  building society. 
 
11  Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 
11.1    If you are present at a meeting [of the authority, or any committee, sub-
 committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the authority, or the 
 executive or committee of the executive] and you have a disclosable 
 pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the 
 meeting, 
 

 You must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting. 

 You must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 

 If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting. 

 If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending notification, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. 

 
[Note: In addition, Standing Orders require you to leave the room where the meeting 
is held while any discussion or voting takes place, and in the case of a registered (as 
well as unregistered interest) to disclose it to the meeting]. 
 
11.2   Where an executive member may discharge a function alone and becomes 
 aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with or to be 
 dealt with by her/him, the executive member must notify the  Monitoring 
 Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
 matter. 
 
12  Offences 
 
12.1 It is a criminal offence to 
 
• Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest within 

28 days of election 
 
• Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not on the 

register 
 
• Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable pecuniary 

interest that is not on the register that you have disclosed to a meeting 
 
• Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have  a 
 disclosable pecuniary interest 
 
• As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 

disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify the Monitoring 
Officer within 28 days of the interest 

 
• As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and having a 

disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, taking any steps in relation to such 
a matter. 

Page 374



Appendix 1 
 

 
• Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or  misleading in 

notifying the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting 

 
 
12.2 The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding 

level 5 on the standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for     
up to 5 years. 

 
Part 3 - Other interests 
 
13 Notification of personal interests 
 
13.1  In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests notifiable under the  
 Localism Act 2011, you must, within 28 days of - 
 
 (a)  this Code being adopted by or applied to the Council; or 
 (b)  your election or appointment to office (where that is later), 
 notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your other personal 
 interests, where they fall within the categories set out in paragraph 11(2)
 below for inclusion in the register of interests. 
 
13.2  You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it 
 relates to or is likely to affect –  
 

(a)  any body of which you are in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 

 (b)    any body - 
  (i)  exercising functions of a public nature; 
  (ii)  directed to charitable purposes; or 
 (iii)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

 opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union),  
 
  of which you are in a position of general control or management; 
 
 (c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or  
  hospitality with an estimated value of at least £100. 
 
14 Disclosure of interests 
 
14.1 Subject to paragraphs 14.4 to 14.7, where you have a personal interest 
 described in paragraph 13.2 above or in paragraph 14.2 below in any 
 business of your authority, and where you are aware or ought reasonably  to 
 be aware of the existence of the personal interest, and you attend a 
 meeting of your authority at which the business is considered, you must 
 disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the 
 commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes 
 apparent. 
 

Page 375



Appendix 1 
 

14.2  You also have a personal interest in any business of your authority where  a 
 decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as 
 affecting your well-being or financial position or the well-being or financial 
 position of a relevant person to a greater extent than the majority of other 
 council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral ward,  affected 
 by the decision; 
 
14.3  In paragraph 14.2, a relevant person is – 
 
 (a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close 
  association; or 
 (b)  any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons,  
  any firm in which they are a partner, or any company of which they  
  are directors; 
 (c)  any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial   
  interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of  
  £25,000; or 
 (d)  any body of a type described in paragraph 13.2(a) or (b). 
 
14.4  Where you have a personal interest in any business of the Council which 
 relates to or is likely to affect a body described in paragraph 13.2(a) or 
 13.2(b)(i), you need only disclose to the meeting the existence and nature  of 
 that interest when you address the meeting on that business. 
 
14.5 Where you have a personal interest in any business of the Council of the type 

mentioned in paragraph 13.2(c), (gifts and hospitality) you need not disclose 
the nature or existence of that interest to the meeting if the interest was 
registered more than three years before the date of the meeting. 

 
 14.6  Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 18,  sensitive 

 information relating to it is not registered in your authority’s register of 
 members’ interests, you must indicate to the meeting that you have a 
personal  interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information to the 
meeting. 

 
14.7  Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you 

have made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must 
ensure that any written statement of that decision records the existence and 
nature of that interest. 

 
15  Non participation in case of prejudicial interest 
 
15.1  Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority you also 

have a prejudicial interest in that business where the interest is one which a 
member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the 
public interest and where that business – 

 
 (a)  affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or 
  body described in paragraph 14.3 ;or 

Page 376



Appendix 1 
 

 (b)  relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence,   
  permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body  
  described in paragraph 14.3. 
 
15.2  Subject to paragraphs 15.3 and 15.4, where you have a prejudicial  interest in 

any business of your authority— 
 
 a)  You must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the  
  meeting. 
 b)  You must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the  
  meeting. 
 c)  If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the  
  meeting. 

d)  If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 
28 days. 

 [Note: In addition Standing Orders require you to leave the room where the 
 meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place]. 
 
15.3  Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of the Council, you may 

attend a meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, 
answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that 
the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, 
whether under a statutory right or otherwise and you leave the room where 
the meeting is held immediately after making representations, answering 
questions or giving evidence. 

 
15.4  Subject to you disclosing the interest at the meeting, you may attend a 
 meeting and vote on a matter where you have a prejudicial interest that 
 relates to the functions of your authority in respect of— 
 
 (a)  school meals or school transport and travelling expenses, where you 
  are a parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a parent 
  governor of a school, unless it relates particularly to the school which 
  the child attends; 
 (b)  statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 
  and Benefits Act 1992, where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to 
  the receipt of, such pay; and 
 (c)  any ceremonial honour given to members.  
 (d)  housing, where you are a tenant of the Council provided that  
  those functions do not relate particularly to your tenancy or   
  lease; 
 (e) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members; 
 (f) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government   
  Finance Act 1992. 
 
15.5   Where, as an executive member, you may discharge a function alone, and 

you become aware of a prejudicial interest in a matter being dealt with, or to 
be dealt with by you, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and 

Page 377



Appendix 1 
 

must not take any steps or further steps in the matter, or seek improperly to 
influence a decision about the matter. 

 
16  Interests arising in relation to overview and scrutiny committees 
 
 In any business before an overview and scrutiny committee of the Council  (or 
 of a sub-committee of such a committee) where— 
 

(a)  that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or  
 not) or action taken by the executive or another of the authority’s  
 committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees; 
and 
 
(b)  at the time the decision was made or action was taken, you were a 
member of the executive, committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint 
sub-committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and you were present when that 
decision was made or action was taken,  you may attend the meeting of the 
overview and scrutiny committee for the  purpose of explaining the reasons for 
the decision, or answering questions or giving evidence relating to the 
business, but you cannot participate otherwise  in the discussion or in any 
vote on the matter. 
 

         Part 4 - General Matters relating to Parts 2 and 3 
 
17  Register of interests 
 
 Subject to paragraph 18 any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
 interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register of 
 interests.  A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and will 
 be published on the authority’s website. 
 
18  Sensitive interests 
 
 This paragraph applies where you consider that disclosure of the details of 
 a disclosable pecuniary interest or a personal interest could lead to you, or a 
 person connected with you, being subject to violence or intimidation, and the 
 Monitoring Officer agrees.  In these circumstances, if the interest is entered 
 on the register, copies of the register that are made available for inspection 
 and any published version of the  register will exclude details of the  interest, 
 but may state that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, the details of 
 which are withheld under Section 32(2) of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
19  Dispensations 
 

The Council may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited circumstances, 
to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest. 

 

Page 378



Appendix 2 
 

 

The Model Code of Conduct (“the Code”) for Councillors sets out the high standards 
of behavior which the public expects from its elected representatives. The Members 
Complaints procedure allows anyone who is interested the opportunity to inform the 
Council when they believe a Member has breached the Code. 

The complaints procedure is crucial in achieving standards of conduct that meet 
public expectations. Through this process the Council aims to support proper 
decision making, the proper use of public resources, and to maintain public 
confidence in the Council and the democratic process itself.  Undertaking 
investigations that do not support these wider benefits is not in the public interest.   

The Council is of the view that our limited resources should not be used to 
investigate matters which are trivial or which have little or no impact upon the public. 
It is important that we focus our investigations on matters that are serious and are 
capable of undermining the relationship between councilors and the public they 
serve such as; corruption, bullying, damaging the Councils public Image, bringing the 
Council into disrepute, or the misuse of power in public office.  

Where we are satisfied that a complaint is supported by direct evidence which, 
substantiated, would suggest that a breach may have taken place the public interest 
is considered in deciding whether a complaint against a Councillor can and should 
be investigated. We consider the public interest again during the course of an 
investigation to ensure that it should continue and when determining whether a 
matter should be referred to the Standards Committee (SC) or an Independent 
Investigator (II) for further consideration.  

There is no widely accepted definition of public interest, but it has been described as 
“something which is of serious concern and benefit to the public“. The public interest 
therefore relates to something which has an impact on the public and is not merely a 
matter the public finds to be of interest or a matter that impacts solely on an 
individual (although an individual may be more directly impacted by the matter than 
the wider public).  

The public in this context does not necessarily mean the entire population of 
Trafford. It may refer to a distinct section of the public such as a small community or 
interest group. 
 
The published public interest factors we may take into account are set out below: 

 The seriousness of the breach 

 Whether the member deliberately sought personal gain for themselves or 
another person at the public expense 

 Whether the circumstances of the breach are such that a member has 
misused a position of trust or authority and caused harm to another 

 Whether the breach was motivated by any form of discrimination against the 
victim’s ethnic or national origin, gender, disability, age, religion or belief, 
sexual orientation or gender identity 

 
 
 

Page 379



Appendix 2 
 

 

Considerations 
When taking any of the above factors into account, relevant considerations can 
include the circumstances of the complaint; the extent to which the councillor was 
responsible for, or was to blame for, the alleged breach; whether the alleged conduct 
was premeditated and/or planned and whether the alleged conduct has caused harm 
or impacted on another person, group or body. Views expressed by the complainant, 
or any other person affected by the alleged conduct, relating to the impact and effect 
will also be considered. Other considerations may be: 

 Whether there is evidence of previous similar behaviour on the part of the 
member 

 Whether the Councillor has been the subject of any previous complaints or 
investigations, or been referred to the SC for a similar matter and if the 
alleged conduct ongoing, repeated or is there evidence of escalating 
behaviour 

 Whether the investigation or referral to the SC or II is required to maintain 
public confidence in elected members in Trafford. 

 Whether investigation or referral to a SC is a proportionate response.  

 Whether it is likely that the breach would lead to a sanction being applied to 
the member and whether the use of resources in carrying out an investigation 
by an II or hearing by a SC would be regarded as excessive, when weighed 
against any likely sanction. 

Public interest should not be decided on the basis of resource alone but this is a 
relevant consideration when making an overall assessment. A balanced view should 
be taken and consideration of the outcomes of previous cases considered by the SC 
will be helpful in achieving this.  

The list is not exhaustive and not all factors will be relevant to every case 

 

Page 380



Appendix 3 
 
 
 

 TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF DECISION FOLLOWING FORMAL INVESTIGATION 
 

DATE OF DECISION 
 

 DECISION MAKER 
 
 DECISION 

REFERENCE 
 

 

SUMMARY OF ALLEGATION/COMPLAINT 

RELEVANT SECTION/S OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 

STATEMENT OF FACTS CONSIDERED 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT PERSONS VIEW 
 
 
 
 

DECISION MAKERS DECISION AND REASONING 
 
 
 
 
 

SANCTIONS, IF ANY, RESULTING FROM THE DECISION 
 
 
 
 

 

PUBLICATION DATE   
 

 

RECORDED BY:  
 

 
 

 

Page 381



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 
 

Arrangements for dealing with complaints about the Code of Conduct for 

members 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 This procedure applies when a complaint is received that a member, co-opted 
member or Parish Council Member has or may have failed to comply with the Code 
of Conduct for Members. 
 
1.2 The person making the complaint will be referred to as “the complainant” and 
the person against whom the complaint is made will be referred to as the “subject 
member”. 
 
1.3 No member or officer will participate in any stage of the arrangements if he or 
she has, or may have, any personal conflict of interest in the matter. 
 
2. Making a complaint 
 
2.1 A complaint must be made in writing either by post or e-mail to the Monitoring 
Officer.  
 
2.2 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint within five 
working days of receiving it and, at the same time, write to the subject member (and 
in the case of a complaint about a parish or town councillor to the Clerk of the council 
also) with details of the allegations (subject to any representations from the 
complainant on confidentiality, which are accepted as valid by the Monitoring 
Officer).   The subject member may, within five working days of receipt, make written 
representations to the Monitoring Officer which must be taken into account when 
deciding how the complaint should be dealt with.   Representations received after 
this time may be taken into account, at the discretion of the Monitoring Officer, but 
will in any event not be considered after the Monitoring Officer has issued the initial 
assessment of the complaint. 
 
3. Initial Assessment of Complaint 
 
3.1 The Monitoring Officer will review the complaint and, following consultation 
with the Independent Person take a decision (initial assessment) as to whether it 
merits investigation, or another course of action.   This decision will normally be 
taken within 20 working days of receipt of a complaint. 
 
The complaint will be rejected if; 
 
• The complaint is not against one or more named members or co-opted 

members of the council or a parish or town council within its district; 
 
• The subject member was not in office at the time of the alleged conduct. 
 
• The complaint, if proven, would not be a breach of the Code of Conduct under 

which the subject member was operating at the time of the alleged 
misconduct. 

Page 383



Appendix 4 
 

 
3.2 If the complaint has not been rejected on any of these grounds the Monitoring 

Officer will then go on to apply the following criteria in deciding whether a 
complaint should be accepted for investigation, dealt with informally, or 
rejected; 

 
• Whether a substantially similar allegation has previously been made by the 

complainant to Standards for England, or the Standards Committee, or the 
complaint has been the subject of an investigation by another regulatory 
authority; 

 
• Whether the complaint is about something that happened so long ago that 

those involved are unlikely to remember it clearly enough to provide credible 
evidence, or where the lapse of time means there would be little benefit or 
point in taking action now; 
 

• Whether the allegation is anonymous; 
 
• Whether the allegation discloses a potential breach of the Code of Conduct, 

but the complaint is not serious enough to merit any action and 
 

i. The resources needed to investigate and determine the complaint are 
wholly disproportionate to the allegations and 

 
ii. Whether in all the circumstances there is no overriding public benefit in 
carrying out an investigation. 

 
• Whether the complaint appears to be malicious, vexatious, politically 

motivated or tit for tat; 
 
• Whether the complaint suggests that there is a wider problem throughout the 

authority; 
 
• Whether it is apparent that the subject of the allegation is relatively 

inexperienced as a member or has admitted making an error and the matter 
would not warrant a more serious sanction;  

 
• Whether training or conciliation would be the appropriate response. 
 
The Monitoring Officer will consult with the Independent Person and then give his/her 
decision on how the complaint will be dealt with.  The Monitoring Officer may in 
exceptional circumstances refer the question of how to proceed to a sub-committee 
of the Standards Committee. 
 
4. Additional Information 
 
4.1 The Monitoring Officer may require additional information to come to a 
decision and may request information from the subject member.   Where the 
complaint relates to a parish or town councillor, the Monitoring Officer may also 
inform the Clerk of the council of the complaint and seek the views of the Clerk 

Page 384



Appendix 4 
 

before deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation or other action. In 
appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint 
informally, without the need for an investigation.    
 
4.2 Such informal resolution may involve the subject member accepting that 
his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, or taking other steps.   
Where the subject member or the authority (in appropriate cases) makes a 
reasonable offer of local resolution, but it is rejected by the complainant, the 
Monitoring Officer will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits 
formal investigation. 
 
4.3 If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulations by 
any person, the Monitoring Officer is authorised to report this to the police or other 
prosecuting or regulatory authority, in addition to any action taken pursuant to the 
Code. 
 
5. Confidentiality 
 
5.1 If a complainant has asked for their identity to be withheld, this request will be 
considered by the Monitoring Officer at the initial assessment stage. 
 
5.2 As a matter of fairness and natural justice the subject member should usually 
be told who has complained about them and receive details of the complaint.   
However, in exceptional circumstances, the Monitoring Officer may withhold the 
complainant’s identity if on request from the complainant, or otherwise, they are 
satisfied that the complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that they or any 
witness relevant to the complaint may be at risk of physical harm, or his or her 
employment may be jeopardised if their identity is disclosed, or where there are 
medical risks (supported by medical evidence) associated with the complainant’s 
identity being disclosed. 
 
5.3 If the Monitoring Officer decides to refuse a request by a complainant for 
confidentiality, they will offer the complainant the option to withdraw the complaint, 
rather than proceed with his or her identity being disclosed. The Monitoring Officer 
will balance whether the public interest in taking action on a complaint will outweigh 
the complainant’s wish to have his or her identity withheld from the subject member. 
 
6. Investigation 
 
6.1 The Monitoring Officer will appoint an investigating officer where a complaint 
merits formal investigation. The investigating officer may be a council officer, an 
officer from another council, or an external investigator. 
 
6.2 The investigating officer will follow guidance issued by the Monitoring Officer 
on the investigation of complaints. The guidance will follow the principles of 
proportionality and the cost effective use of council resources and shall be 
interpreted in line with these principles. 
 
6.3 The Investigating Officer will ensure that the subject member receives a copy 
of the complaint – subject to the Monitoring Officer decision on confidentiality. 

Page 385



Appendix 4 
 

 
6.4 At the end of their investigation, the investigating officer will produce a report 
and will send a copy of that report to the Monitoring Officer. The investigating officer 
may, before that, produce a draft report and send copies to the complainant and to 
the subject member, for comments. The investigating officer will take such 
comments into account before issuing their final report to the Monitoring Officer. 
 
7. Investigating officer finding of no failure to comply with the Code of 

Conduct 
 
7.1 Where the investigating officer's report finds that the subject member has not 
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer (in consultation 
with the Independent Person) will review the investigating officer’s report and if 
satisfied, will confirm the finding of no failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 
 
7.2 The Monitoring Officer will write to the complainant and the subject member 
(and to the Clerk of the council, where the complaint relates to a parish or town 
councillor), with a copy of the decision and the investigating officer’s report. 
 
7.3 If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied that the investigation has been 
conducted thoroughly, the investigating officer may be asked to reconsider the report 
and the conclusions. 
 
8. Investigating officer finding of sufficient evidence of failure to comply 

with the Code of Conduct.  
  
 Where the investigating officer’s report finds sufficient evidence that the subject 
member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer  will 
review the investigating officer’s report and will then having consulted the 
Independent Person either send the matter for local hearing before the hearings 
panel or seek local resolution. 
 
8.1 Local Resolution 
 
If the Monitoring Officer considers that the matter can reasonably be resolved 
without the need for a hearing, they will consult with the Independent Person and the 
complainant and seek to agree a fair resolution.   Such resolution may include the 
subject member accepting that their conduct was unacceptable and offering an 
apology, and/or other remedial action.   If the member accepts the suggested 
resolution, the Monitoring Officer will report the outcome to the Standards Committee 
(and the Clerk to the council if appropriate) for information, but will take no further 
action. If the complainant or the subject member refuses local resolution in principle 
or to engage with the agreed outcome, the Monitoring Officer will refer the matter for 
a local hearing without further reference to the complainant or the subject member. 
 
8.2 Local Hearing 
 
Where, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, local resolution is not appropriate or 
the complainant and/or subject member refuses to co-operate, then the Monitoring 
Officer will report the investigating officer’s findings to the hearing panel which will 

Page 386



Appendix 4 
 

conduct a local hearing before deciding whether the subject member has failed to 
comply with a Code of Conduct and, if so, what action (if any) to take in respect of 
the subject member. 
 
The Council has agreed a procedure for local hearings which is attached as Annex 1 
below. 
 
9. Constitution of the Hearing Panel 
 
The Hearing Panel is a sub-committee of the council’s Standards Committee.  The 
Council has decided that it will comprise of at least one of the independent Members 
co-opted to the Standards Committee and three members of the council drawn from 
at least two different political parties. Where the complaint is about a parish or town 
council member, the hearing panel will endeavour to include at least one of the 
parish or town council members co-opted to the Standards Committee.  
 
The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Hearing Panel and 
their views must be sought and taken into consideration before it takes any decision 
on whether the subject member’s conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the 
code of conduct and as to any action to be taken following a finding of failure to 
comply with the code. 
 
The quorum for the Hearing Panel will be two voting members. 
 
10. The Independent Person 
 
The Independent Person must be a person who is eligible under the Localism Act 
2011 to be appointed, has applied for the post following advertisements of a vacancy 
for the post, and has been appointed by a positive vote from a majority of all the 
members of the council at a meeting of the full Council. 
 
11. Action 
 
  
Where a Hearing Panel find that a subject member has failed to comply with the 
code of conduct, the Council has delegated to the Standards Committee and the 
Standards Committee has delegated to the Hearing Panel such of its powers to take 
action in respect of subject members as may be necessary to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct.   Accordingly, the Hearing Panel may –  
 
• Publish its findings in respect of the subject member’s conduct; 
 
• Report its findings to Council (or to the parish or town council) for information; 
 
• Recommend to Council that the subject member be censured; 
 
• Recommend to the subject member's group leader (or in the case of 

ungrouped members) recommend to Council) that he/she be removed from 
any or all committees or sub committees of the council; 

 

Page 387



Appendix 4 
 

• Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the subject member be 
removed from the Executive, or removed from their portfolio responsibilities; 

 
• Instruct the Monitoring Officer to (or recommend that the parish or town 

council) arrange training for the subject member; 
 
• Recommend to Council (or recommend to the parish or town council) that the 

subject member be removed from all outside bodies, appointments to which 
they have been appointed or nominated by their council; 

 
• Withdraw (or recommend to the parish or town council that it withdraws) 

facilities provided to the subject member by the council such as a computer, 
website and/or e-mail and internet access); or 

 

. Placing such restrictions on the subject members access to staff which may 

be reasonable in the circumstances  
 
12. Withdrawal of a Complaint 
 
In the event that a complainant withdraws a complaint at any time prior to a decision 
having been made by a Hearings Panel, the Monitoring Officer may, following 
consultation with the Independent Person, decide that no further steps be taken in 
respect of that complaint but shall, in taking such a decision take into account any 
issues which may arise under Paragraph 3.1(c) of the Code of Conduct. 
 
13. Revision of these Arrangements 
 
The Council may by resolution or delegation to the Monitoring Officer agree to 
amend these arrangements and has delegated to the Chair of the Hearing Panel the 
right to depart from these arrangements where they consider that it is expedient to 
do so in order to secure the efficient, effective and fair consideration of any matters. 
 
14. Appeals 
 
Subject to judicial review or a decision of a Local Government Ombudsman, there is 
no right of appeal against the decision of a Monitoring Officer or of the hearing panel. 
 
15.  Publication of Decision Notice 
 
Following the completion of an investigation culminating in a decision from the 
Monitoring Officer or hearing panel, a decision notice shall be published on the 
Council’s website no later than 10 working days after the decision is reached. Prior 
to publication, notification of the decision and a draft decision notice is to be sent to 
the Complainant and the Subject Councillor within 5 working days of the decision 
being made for comment and to propose amendments. Following consideration of 
comments and proposed amendments by the Complainant and Subject Councillor, 
the final decision notice will be signed off by either the Monitoring Officer or the Chair 
of the hearing panel and published. The decision notice will include;  
 

Page 388



Appendix 4 
 

 the date of the decision,  

 the decision maker,  

 a summary of the complaint,  

 the relevant sections of the code of conduct,  

 a statement of the facts considered,  

 the independent persons view,  

 the decision makers decision and reasoning, 

 sanction, if any, resulting from the decision 

Page 389



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:  Annual Meeting of the Council  
Date: 25 November 2020 
Report for:  Decision 
Report of:  Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy  
 
Report Title 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER SPECIAL URGENCY 
(REGULATION 11) PROVISIONS 
 

 
Summary 
 

 
The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 provide that a report should be made 
periodically to Council on Executive Key Decisions which have been taken under 
the Special Urgency provisions set out in Regulation 11. The purpose of this report 
is to provide this information to Council. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
That the content of the report be noted. 
 

  
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name: Ian Cockill 
Extension: 1387 
 
Background Papers:  None  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 391

Agenda Item 12



 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 Under the terms of Regulation 19 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012, which came into effect in September 2012, a report should be made 
periodically to Council on those Executive Key Decisions which have been 
taken under the Special Urgency provisions set out in Regulation 11.  

 
 
1.2 The following table gives details of the relevant decisions since the last 

report to Council on 22 May 2019: 
 

Decision: 
 

Date Decision Maker 

Covid-19 Council Tax 
Hardship Fund 
 

31 March 2020 Executive Member for Finance and 
Investment 

Trafford Leisure Loan 
 

14 April 2020 Chief Executive 

Strategic Investment  
 

24 April 2020 Special Executive Meeting 

Re-Opening of the School 
System 
 

19 May 2020 Executive Member for Children’s 
Social Care 

Discretionary Business 
Grants Fund 
 

20 May 2020 Executive Member for Finance and 
Investment 

Test and Trace Support 
Payments 
 

5 October 2020 Corporate Director, Finance and 
Systems 

Local Restrictions Support 
Grant (Open) – 
Discretionary Scheme 
 

20 November 2020 Executive Member for Finance and 
Investment 

 

Page 392


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Leader of the Council and Membership of the Executive
	6 Shadow Executive
	7 Council Committees
	8 Appointments to Outside and Independent Bodies
	11a Delegation of Functions
	Part 3 - Responsibilty for Functions - November 2020
	Part 4 Constitution - Procedure Rules - Nov 2020

	11b Trafford's Constitutional Changes in Response to the Local Government Ethical Standards Areas of Best Practice Published by the Committee on Standards in Public Life in January 2019
	App1 Draft Updated CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS
	App2 Draft two stage Public Interest Test for Complaints
	App3 Draft Formal Investigation Decision Notice
	App4 Draft updated Complaints procedure

	12 Report on Special Urgency Decisions

